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Minute of Meeting of the North East Scotland Transport Partnership Board 

 
Aberdeen, Wednesday, 9 June 2021 

 
Present:  Councillor Sandra Macdonald (Chairperson); Councillor Peter Argyle 

and Dr Margaret Bochel (Vice Chairs); Councillor David Aitchison, 

Councillor George Carr, Councillor John Cox, Councillor Michael 
Hutchison and Councillor Avril MacKenzie; and Colin Allanach, 

Gerry Donald and Ian Ross. 
 
In Attendance: Rab Dickson, Jon Barron, Jenny Anderson, Kirsty Chalmers, Paul 

Finch, Tricia Howden and Kelly Wiltshire (Nestrans); Councillor Ian 
Mollison, Allan Wood, Ewan Wallace, Chris Smith, Andrew Stewart 

and Lucy Johnston (Aberdeenshire Council); Councillor David 
Cameron, Karen Allan, Karen Gatherum, Nicky Laird and Mark 
Masson (Aberdeen City Council); Anne Macdonald (Audit Scotland); 

Alex Hynes and Ewan Tait (Scotland’s Railways, ScotRail) 
 

Apologies: Councillor Philip Bell 
 
 
Please note that if any changes are made to this minute at the point of approval, 
these will be outlined in the subsequent minute and this document will not be 

retrospectively altered. 
 

 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

1. There were no declarations of interest intimated. 

 
 
MINUTE OF BOARD MEETING, 14 APRIL 2021. FOR APPROVAL 
 

2. The Board had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 14 April 2021, for 

approval. 

 
The Board resolved:- 

to approve the minute as a correct record. 
 

 
PRESENTATIONS: ALEX HYNES, SCOTLAND'S RAILWAYS 

 
3. The Board received a presentation from Alex Hynes, Managing Director, 

Scotland’s Railway, ScotRail who provided an update in relation to the railway service in 

the North East. 
 

Alex provided information on the additional subsidy received by the Scottish Government 
which helped secure services, jobs and terms and conditions to offset the loss of revenue 
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and maintain the railway service throughout the pandemic. He advised that 86% of the 

pre-pandemic timetable was now operational in the North East, however the physical 
distancing measures still in place were having an impact on capacity and the driver 
training programme.  

 
Alex made reference to the recent opening of Kintore Railway Station; the emergency 

measures agreement which replaced the franchise agreement due to the pandemic; the 
timetable plans for May 2022; and the terrible accident at Carmont on 12 August 2020, 
intimating that steps had been taken to avoid a similar accident happening again. 

 
Alex also made reference to the climate change crisis in Scotland, the introduction of 25 

high speed trains, the Aberdeen Station redevelopment and the Decarbonisation Action 
Plan, stating that all diesel engines would be removed by 2035 and there would be an 
expansion of electrification (to Aberdeen and Inverurie by 2030), although battery and 

hydrogen options would also be considered. 
 

Alex and Ewan Tait responded to questions from members (a) explaining that weather 
data and earthworks improvements had been undertaken to address climate change, 
which was the cause of the Carmont accident due to rainfall; (b) providing information on 

the experimentation of dedicated cycle carriages; and (c) outlining the challenges 
between inter-city and rural services. 

 
The Board resolved:- 

to thank Alex Hynes and Ewan Tait for their presentation and attendance. 

 
 
ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21 
 
4. The Board had before it a report which provided information on the 2020/21 

Annual Audit Plan provided by Audit Scotland, which outlined the audit work to be 
undertaken to provide an opinion on the Partnership’s financial statements. 

 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board note the audit plan provided by Audit Scotland. 

 
Anne Macdonald provided an overview of the report. 

 
The Board resolved:- 

to agree the audit plan provided by Audit Scotland. 

 
 
UNAUDITED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR 2020/21 
 
5. The Board had before it a report which provided details of the unaudited annual 

accounts for 2020/21 and the final delay in drawdown. 
 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board –  
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(a) consider the Unaudited Annual Accounts for 2020/21 and approve their issue to 

the external Auditor and the Controller of Audit as per Appendix 1; and 
(b)  approve the final delay in drawdown for 2020/21 as per Appendix 3. 
 

Chris Smith provided an overview of the report. 
 
The Board resolved:- 

to approve the recommendations. 
 

 
2021/22 BUDGET MATTERS 

 
6. The Board had before it a report which outlined the funding allocations to Nestrans  

and provided an update on the Partnership’s 2021/22 monitoring and forecast outturn 

position. It also sought consideration of any budget or monitoring issues that may arise. 
 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board –  
(a) note the funding awards to Nestrans that have been confirmed for 2021/22;  

(b) note the monitoring position and forecast presented in Appendix 1;  
(c) note the additional grant funding awarded in 2021/22 through the RTP Active 

Travel grant;  
(d) approve the extension to the contract for further travel behaviour and attitude 

surveys;  

(e) approve the additional fee requested for ASAM19, should this cost be agreed for 
recharge to City Region Deal; and  

(f) approve the requested virements. 
 
Chris Smith provided an overview of the report. 

 
The Board resolved:- 

to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
 

7. The Board had before it a report which provided an update on liaison with other 

RTPs, with the Scottish Government and other organisations. 
 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board note progress on liaison arrangements with other RTPs, the Scottish 

Government and others and arrangements for future meetings. 
 
The Director made reference to the HTAP Steering Group meeting held on 22 April 2021 and 

the Bus Alliance Board meeting held on 26 May 2021, both minutes were appended to the 

report. 
 
The Board resolved:- 

Page 5



4 
 

 
NORTH EAST OF SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP 

9 June 2021 
 
 

 
(i) to approve the recommendation; and 

(ii) to instruct the Director to write to Mr Graeme Dey (MSP), the new Transport Minister 
inviting him to a future meeting of the Board. 

 
 
RTS UPDATE 
 

8. With reference to article 8 of the minute of the previous meeting of 14 April 2021, 

the Board had before it a report which provided information on the progress towards three 
strands of the RTS 2040, following submission of the Final strategy to the Cabinet 

Secretary for approval. 
 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board –  
(a) agree to publish the timeline, illustrating the key achievements of previous 

strategies;  
(b) agree to publish the RTS maps on the Nestrans website, subject to any discussion 

and comments at the meeting and noting that these will be updated on an ongoing 
basis; and  

(c) request a workshop be arranged for August for Board Members and Substitutes 

to discuss monitoring, targets and the delivery plan. 
 
Kirsty Chalmers provided an overview of the report and made reference to:- 

 the Mapping/illustration of what has already been delivered through previous 

strategies;  

 the Mapping of the 2040 strategy; and  

 the Development of targets, monitoring and the delivery plan. 
 
The Board resolved:- 

to approve the recommendations. 
 

 
CITY REGION DEAL UPDATE 

 
9. The Board had before it a report which provided an update on the Transport 

elements of the Aberdeen City Region Deal (CRD). 

 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board note the progress being made on the Transport elements of the Aberdeen 
City Region Deal, and associated projects being managed by Transport Scotland. 
 

Paul Finch provided an overview of the report, making reference to the following:- 

 The establishment of the Aberdeen City Region Deal; 

 External Links to Aberdeen South Harbour; 

 The Strategic Transport Appraisal; 

 Aberdeen to Central Belt Rail Improvements; 

 Laurencekirk A90/A937 Junction update. 
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The Board resolved:- 

(i) to approve the recommendations; and 
(ii) that a representative from Transport Scotland be invited to attend a future meeting 

of the Board to provide an update on the progress of national transport matters, 

and how they relate to the CRD and the region generally.   
 

 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY TRAVEL GRANT 
 

10. The Board had before it a report which provided details on the establishment of a 

new grant scheme aimed at encouraging communities to bring forward sustainable travel 

initiatives. 
 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board approve the establishment of a Community Sustainable Travel Grant 
Scheme. 

 
Kelly Wiltshire summarised the report and explained that the new Grant Scheme could 
be used to support measures and provide support for organisations developing or 

implementing sustainable travel projects. Schemes could include, but was not limited to:-  

 Secure Cycle Parking or Community Cycling Scheme;  

 Improving pedestrian/cycling access to community facilities;  

 A survey, public consultation or business case development to develop 

sustainable travel in a community;  

 Applicable volunteer training; and  

 Any other appropriate scheme that encourages sustainable travel. 

 
The Board resolved:- 

to approve the recommendation. 
 

 
BUS PARTNERSHIP FUND BID UPDATE 
 

11. The Board had before it a report which provided an update on the submission of 

the North East’s bid to Transport Scotland’s Bus Partnership Fund and presented the 

Vision for Aberdeen Rapid Transit (ART) which accompanied the bid. 
 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board –  
(a) note the submission of the bid to the Bus Partnership Fund on 16 April 2021 and 

request an update to the next board on the progress of this bid and any next steps; 
and  

(b) note the publication of the ART Vision Document. 

 
Kirsty Chalmers summarised the report making reference to the Bus Partnership Fund 

Bid and the development of the Aberdeen Rapid Transit – Our Vision concept. 
 
The Board resolved:- 
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to approve the recommendations. 

 
 
HEALTH & TRANSPORT ACTION PLAN – UPDATE AND ANNUAL REPORT 

 
12. The Board had before it a report which provided details on the Health and 

Transport Action Plan (HTAP) Annual Report 2021. 
 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board –  
(a) note the contents of this report and the HTAP Annual Report 2021; and  

(b) request that the report be forwarded to each of the Community Planning 
Partnerships. 

 

The Board heard from Andrew Stewart and Gerry Donald who provided an overview of 
the report. 

 
The Board resolved:- 

(i) to approve the recommendations; and 

(ii) to note that Andrew Stewart would arrange to circulate the NHS Grampian Spaces 
for People project presentation slides to members via the Clerk. 

 
 
PROGRESS REPORT 

 
13. The Board had before it a progress report which outlined the status of various 

activities in support of the Regional Transport Strategy. 
 

Board members noted the following:- 

 that  a response from Transport Scotland in relation to access work at Insch Station 

would be submitted to officers on 16 June 2021; and 

 that in relation to A96 dualling, that quarterly meetings were being held with the A96 
team and that work had progressed to Stage 3 Design. 

 

The Board resolved:- 

to note the content of the progress report and the information provided.  

 
 
PUBLICATIONS AND CONSULTATIONS 
 

14. The Board had before it a report which provided information on recent publications 

and consultation papers of interest and to agree a response where appropriate.  

 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board note the publications and consultations. 
 
Paul Finch provided a summary of the report, making reference to the following:- 

 Scotland’s National Population Strategy; 
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 Strathclyde Partnership for Transport (SPT) – Regional Transport Strategy Case for 

Change; 

 CBI - Greener Miles – Delivering on a net-zero vision for commuting; 

 Consultations on 2022 Rail Timetables; and 

 Williams - Shapps Plan for Rail. 
 

In addition, Paul Finch advised that a further two consultations had been received since the 

agenda was circulated, namely (1) Main Issues – TacTran; and (2)  Ethics Standards 
Commissioner’s four-year strategy. He indicated that draft responses would be prepared and 

submitted to the Chair and Vice Chairs for approval before issuing. 

 
The Board resolved:- 

to approve the recommendation. 
 
 
INFORMATION BULLETIN 
 

15. The Board had before it a report which provided information and updates on a number 

of matters not requiring decisions. 

 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board note the contents of this report. 

 
The Board heard from the Director who provided details in relation to Getabout and new 

Pedestrian and Cycle Counters funding. 
 
The Board resolved:- 

to approve the recommendation. 
 

 
CONFERENCES AND PRESENTATIONS 

 
16. The Board had before it a list of recent and forthcoming conferences, training and 

presentations of interest to Nestrans. 

 
The Board resolved:- 

to note the information provided and the content of the list. 
 
 
PENDING BUSINESS AND REPORTS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 
 

17. The Board had before it a report which (1) provided information on the progress on 

pending business and major reports scheduled for forthcoming Board meetings; and (2) 

provided the opportunity for the Board to add to or amend the scheduling. 
 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board note the report on pending business and agree the provisional scheduling of 

major reports to future Board meetings. 

 

Page 9



8 
 

 
NORTH EAST OF SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP 

9 June 2021 
 
 

 
The Board resolved:- 

to approve the recommendation. 
 

 
STAFFING MATTER - IN CONFIDENCE 

 
18. The Board had before it a report which sought approval of a number of proposed 

minor changes to Nestrans’ staffing structure. 

 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board –  
(a) approve the change to working hours to enable the Transport Executive (Travel 

Planning & Delivery) to move to full-time working;  

(b) agree to making the post of Cycling Development Officer permanent and changing 
the job title to Active Travel Infrastructure Officer;  

(c) agree to the proposed change, of appointing a part-time PR and Communications 
Officer and amending the Service Level Agreement with Aberdeenshire Counci l 
as discussed above; and  

(d) approve the recruitment of a replacement Transport Officer in due course. 
 
The Board resolved:- 

to approve the recommendations, subject to amending the job title at (b) above to Active 
Travel Development Officer. 

 
 
- COUNCILLOR SANDRA MACDONALD, Chairperson 
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NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 15 September 2021 

 

 

2.1    2021/22 Budget Matters 

 

 

 Purpose of Report 

 
To provide the Board with an update on the Partnership’s 2021/22 monitoring and forecast 
outturn position and to consider any budget or monitoring issues that may arise. 

  

 Background 

 
The Board has requested that a general budget report be submitted to each meeting, monitoring 
expenditure, identifying any potential budget issues, and reporting on any particular expenditure 
requests.  The reports are prepared jointly by the Nestrans office and Finance officers from 
Aberdeenshire Council. 

 

 Current Revenue & Capital Budget  

 

Appendix 1 to this report sets out a summary budget monitoring statement of expenditure to 31 

August 2021.  This shows expenditure of £733,737. 
 

 Virements 

 

The success of the bid by Aberdeen City Council on behalf of the North East Scotland Bus 
Alliance to the Sottish Government’s Bus Partnership Fund, which is the subject of a separate 
report,  has meant that a number of the projects that were being funded by Nestrans can now be 
progressed using the grant award.  The exact funding for some of the projects is still being 
discussed with Transport Scotland and there is a chance that there may be further implications 
to the Nestrans budget this financial year if further funding is agreed through the grant and this 
will be reported to a future Board if necessary.  Consequently, there are also now a number of 
project specific variances that have been identified and as a result a number of virements are 
proposed for consideration in Appendix 2.   

 

 Grant Funding 

 

Sustrans  

It was previously reported that the offer of grant in 2020/21 of £250,000 towards further path 
improvements on the Deeside Way from Sustrans through their National Cycle Network 
Development fund could continue to be claimed for works completed to end May.  A further 
extension was given to this deadline and to date the following sections have been completed 
and claimed against this grant: 
 
Section of NCN Deeside Way Improved Date Completed Cost (£) 

Cambus O’May to Ballater November 2020 73,687.01 
Boghead to Cambus O’May 31 March 2021 87,000.00 

Boghead to Cambus O’May further work (incl 
bollards) 

31 May 2021 5,393.94 
 

Milton of Crathes west towards Banchory and 
section east of Drumoak from Whinbank to 
Manse Cottage 

7 June 2021 49,925.41 

Further section at Milton of Crathes 2 August 2021 9,488.80 
Total Claimed  225,495.16 
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The potential to continue to make usage of the remaining grant that has not yet been claimed is 
being investigated.  If approved, further improvement works will be commissioned to maximise 
any available funding and this would likely include drainage works to address apparent path-
wide pooling on the section outside Ballater that was resurfaced. 
 
Sustrans also provide grant each year of up to £100,000 associated with the joint Cycling 
Development Officer post that is funded by Nestrans (this has now become the permanent Active 
Travel Development Officer post).  The £100,000 for 2020/21 was previously reported as being 
agreed for use for pedestrian and cycle monitoring counters being installed by Cycling Scotland 
along with a further 9 counters that Cycling Scotland are directly funding with all being added to 
the Cycling Scotland National Monitoring Framework.  Although this work was not completed by 
end May 2021, Sustrans will continue to provide the 20/21 grant for the counters that are now 
expected to be installed in September with any remaining funding used for the purchase of 
additional cycling equipment by Adventure Aberdeen and Live Life Aberdeenshire. 
 
The letter of offer for the £100,000 grant for 2021/22 has been received and it requires all works 
to be completed and claimed by the end of March 2022.  The projects to be funded via the grant 
have been agreed and comprise of the following: 
 

Project Cost (£) 

Deeside Way – Condition Survey 15,000 

Deeside Way - Upgrade 25,000 

Formartine and Buchan Way - Upgrades 20,000 

Formartine and Buchan Way – Condition Survey and Access Controls 19,090 

Cycle Maintenance Stand Repairs Fund 2,000 

Cycle Counter Maintenance - battery replacement and repairs 2,250 

Cycle Counter - software license renewal/data storage 6,660 

Consultancy support for Cycle Data Review 10,000 

TOTAL 100,000 

 
 

Regional Transport Partnerships Active Travel Grant 

As reported previously to the Board, it was anticipated that the deadline for claiming the 
remaining RTP Active Travel Grant for 2020/21 would be extended to end June 2021 due to the 
impact of Covid-19 lockdowns.  This was agreed and of the remaining grant of £180,375 a sum 
of £157,567.15 was claimed for completion of the A944 corridor active travel path study, and for 
Phase 1 of the resurfacing work on the Formartine & Buchan Way in the vicinity of, and including, 
the Ellon Viaduct.  Although the unclaimed amount of £22,808 is no longer available for use, 
every effort will be made to maximise the increased grant allocation of £274,00 in 2021/22.   
 
In terms of this years’ grant, Phase 2 of the resurfacing work on the Formartine & Buchan Way 
near Ellon is now complete and the Core Path Review within Aberdeen has been tendered and 
consultants Stantec appointed.  The path surveys will commence in September. 

 

Local Rail Development Fund Grant 

It was previously reported that £49,330 of the original £80,000 grant through round 2 of the LRDF 
towards a Laurencekirk to Aberdeen multi-modal corridor study remains and can be claimed in 
the current financial year.  Feedback from Transport Scotland on the Case for Change for this 
study required that further information was required that would necessitate the gathering of 
additional evidence and public consultation.  As it was not appropriate to gather travel information 
during lockdown restrictions, this work has been on hold, however a cost was obtained for 
undertaking public consultation when appropriate.  Transport Scotland has agreed to the request 
to increase the LRDF grant available in 2021/22 by £15,321 to fund this.  
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 Strategic Transport Fund 

 
The legal challenge successfully quashed The Strategic Transport Fund (STF). The current 
balance for 2021/22 is £483,681. No repayments have been made so far in 2021/22.  There 
are 16 developments remaining to be claimed.  

 

 Recommendation 

 
It is recommended that the Board: 

 
1. Note the monitoring position and forecast presented in Appendix 1. 
2. Approve the virements set out in Appendix 2. 

3. Note the updates on projects for which Nestrans receives external grant funding. 
4. Note the Strategic Transport Fund position. 

 
 
 
 
Mary Beattie  
Treasurer   
 
7 September 2021 
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Appendix 1

Revised Actual to 2021/22 Actual v

Description Budget Aug-21 Forecast Budget %

Expenditure

Core Costs

Partnership Office 464,515 193,548 464,515 42%

Partner Support costs 80,800 33,667 80,800 42%

Board Members Expenses 1,000 0 1,000 0%

Other Associated Costs 40,935 17,056 40,935 42%

587,250 244,271 587,250 42%

Regional Transport Strategy  

Health & Transport Action Plan 44,500 15,681 44,500 35%

Bus Action Plan 122,615 0 122,615 0%

Rail Action Plan 3,000 0 3,000 0%

General 122,300 34,669 122,300 28%

Project Feasibility & Monitoring 152,278 1,745 152,278 1%

Contingency 5,000 0 5,000 0%

Travel Planning 182,076 38,370 182,076 21%

Rechargeable Costs 0 20,200 0 *

631,769 110,665 631,769 18%

Coordination & Project Development 1,219,019 354,936 1,219,019 29%

Rail 3,222,353 0 3,222,353 0%

Strategic Roads

Capacity 72,921 44,976 72,921 62%

Safety 718,732 962 718,732 0%

Maintenance 104,000 0 104,000 0%

Bus Improvements

Energetica Corridor 402,790 26,984 402,790 7%

General Corridors 392,300 0 392,300 0%

Walking and Cycling

Strategic Corridors 1,370,600 15,028 1,370,600 1%

Carbon Reduction & Air Quality 260,497 12,222 260,497 5%

Various 1,175,009 45,450 1,175,009 4%

Cycling Development Officer Grant 289,313 64,808 289,313 22%

Laurencekirk to Aberdeen Mulit-modal Study 49,330 0 49,330 0%

Active Travel 454,375 157,567 454,375 35%

Strategic Investment Programme 8,512,220 367,997 8,512,220 4%

City Region Deal 0 10,805 10,805 *

Civitas/Portis 0 0 0 *

Total Expenditure 9,731,239 733,737 9,742,044 8%

Income

Partner Contributions

Aberdeen City Council 122,175 50,906 122,175 42%

Aberdeenshire Council 122,175 50,906 122,175 42%

Delay in Drawdown from 2020/21 242,669 242,669 0%

Scottish Government - Core costs 782,000 260,667 782,000 33%

Local Rail Development Fund 49,330 0 49,330 0%

Transport Scotland 454,375 157,567 454,375 35%

Sustrans 289,313 64,808 289,313 22%

Capital Grant & Use of Balances 7,669,202 0 7,669,202 0%

Investment Interest 0 228 4,800 *

Other Income 0 50 50 *

City Region Deal 0 10,805 10,805 *

Civitas/Portis 0 0 0 *

Total Income 9,731,239 595,936 9,746,894 6%

Operating (Surplus)/Deficit 0 137,801 (4,850)

SUMMARY OF INCOME & EXPENDITURE
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Appendix 2

Nestrans 2021/22

Proposed Virements as at 1 September 2021

Budget Head Project Current 

Budget

Proposed 

Virement

Revised 

Budget

Comments

Strategic Road 

Safety 

Improvements

Vehicle Restraining 

Systems - Repairs and 

Improvements

100,000 20,000 120,000 Schemes identified to the value of £120K and 

therefore additional funding requested to undertake 

identified works.

Strategic Roads 

- Maintenance

A93 Peterculter 

resurfacing

104,000 15,400 119,400 Costs increased due to rise in price of materials 

since first priced and as works were undertaken at 

night for safety of the public and workforce. The 

cost of removing and reinstating the cats eye road 

studs had also been omitted from the original 

estimate.

Energetica 

Corridor - Bus 

Improvements

Peterhead Bus 

Interchange

175,000 (170,000) 5,000 Project will not be delivered during 2021/22 and 

therefore reduction in budget proposed to retain 

only amount to fund any surveys/ studies that may 

be undertaken this year.

Energetica 

Corridor - Bus 

Improvements

A90/A92 Blackdog - 

Access to Bus Services

48,687 30,300 78,987 Increased cost associated with consultancy 

support to develop final design and tender and to 

include the cost of fencing and barriers.

Strategic 

corridors -Bus 

Improvements

Resurfacing section of 

Kingswells Park and 

Ride Ph2

44,000 (12,000) 32,000 Work complete and full requested budget no 

longer required.

Strategic 

corridors -Bus 

Improvements

Improved Access at 

West North Street Bus 

Stop

0 8,000 8,000 To improve the access arrangements at the bus 

stop outside the Lemon Tree, including a more 

user friendly ramp arrangement and installation of 

bus boarding kerbs.

Strategic 

corridors -

Walking and 

Cycling

Sauchen / Cluny 

footpath

44,704 20,000 64,704 Increased cost associated with a junction 

realignment and therefore an increase to the 

Nestrans contribution has been requested.

Strategic 

corridors -

Walking and 

Cycling

Ellon Integrated Travel 

Town (ITT) projects

0 90,000 90,000 Contribution to design and construction of ITT 

projects at Caroline Woods, Castle Park and 

Knockothie Road.  

Strategic 

corridors -

Walking and 

Cycling

Path from 

Craigiebuckler Drive to 

Springfield Rd

0 81,000 81,000 Formation of a 2m wide tarmacadam path through 

grassed area and associated drainage works 

(aspirational core path no 64).

Strategic 

corridors -

Walking and 

Cycling

Hazlehead Park 

footpath improvement

0 20,000 20,000 Footpath opposite restaurant leading to children's 

play area and further onto Hazlehead woodlands 

footpath network. Remove old existing crumbling 

footpath and reconstruct with tarmacadam and 

concrete edging. 

Strategic 

corridors -

Walking and 

Cycling

Allan Park Access 

footways

0 20,000 20,000 Convert heavily eroded loose-fill footpath areas 

from the Lodge House entrance to form more 

formal Bitmac surfaced more accessible footpaths 

and help develop circular route in and out of the 

Park.

Strategic 

corridors -

Walking and 

Cycling

Friarsfield Path 0 29,400 29,400 Resurface with tarmacadam and complete with 

concrete edging. Investigate and repair existing 

drainage system and install new where required.

Strategic 

corridors -

Walking and 

Cycling

River Don Path - 

Seaton Park

0 68,150 68,150 Upgrade to popular path including improvements to 

withstand increased rainfall/storm conditions.

Strategic 

corridors -

Walking and 

Cycling

CP83 Souterhead Rd to 

Cove Crescent

0 64,000 64,000 Works to construct and resurface the existing path 

area in a tarmacadam surface including the 

regrading and formation along boundary edges of 

existing materials to marry in with the finished 

surface levels of the tar path. 

Strategic Investment Programme
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Budget Head Project Current 

Budget

Proposed 

Virement

Revised 

Budget

Comments

Strategic Investment Programme

Strategic 

corridors -

Walking and 

Cycling

CP6 Seaton Park to Car 

Park & Bus Parking 

Facility

0 36,500 36,500 Works to construct and resurface the existing area 

in tarmacadam including the excavation and 

formation along the south boundary to lay half-

battered kerbs and provide a DDA compliant 

surface and facilitate bus use to the area.

Strategic 

corridors -

Walking and 

Cycling

River Don Path 

Improvements 

Woodside - Persley

0 60,000 60,000 Upgrade to popular path  on the south side of the 

river between Woodside Pitches and Persley 

including improvements to withstand increased 

rainfall/storm conditions.

Strategic 

corridors -

Walking and 

Cycling

Powis Bike Lockers 0 11,000 11,000 To Install approx 12 outdoor community cycle 

lockers in two separate locations in the Powis 

area, possibly in the Powis Community Centre and 

Powis Crescent areas.

Strategic 

corridors -

Walking and 

Cycling

Cycle racks 0 14,900 14,900 To Install cycle racks at major parks within 

Aberdeen and at Aberdeen Crematorium (for use 

by both staff and visitors to the wider area).

Carbon 

Reduction and 

Air Quality

Two electric minibuses 

for Fraserburgh area

248,000 9,700 257,700 Additional contribution to meet increase in cost of 

the 2 mini buses since originally estimated.

Carbon 

Reduction and 

Air Quality

LEZ development 12,497 15,000 27,497 Additional funding to meet the costs of completing 

the appraisal of the proposed LEZ boundary.

Various Hazlehead Cemetery 

Disabled Parking

0 42,000 42,000 Turn area that is used as informal parking into 

formal spaces for disabled parking to give access 

to top end of Hazlehead Cemetery as well as 

Hazlehead Policies and Hazlehead Park to 

address identified demand.

Various A944/A9119 Multi-

modal corridor study - 

detailed appraisal

150,000 (148,300) 1,700 Work on this project from August 2021 onwards 

being funded through the Bus Partnership Fund 

award.

Various A92 Multi-modal 

corridor study

200,000 (196,650) 3,350 Work on this project from August 2021 onwards 

being funded through the Bus Partnership Fund 

award.

Various Ellon to Garthdee Multi-

modal corridor study

80,734 (47,500) 33,234 Majority of work on this project from August 2021 

onwards being funded through the Bus Partnership 

Fund award.

Various A96 Multi-modal 

corridor study

118,221 (80,900) 37,321 Work on this project from August 2021 onwards 

being funded through the Bus Partnership Fund 

award.

Total 0
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 NORTH EAST TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 15 SEPTEMBER 2021 

 

2.2    Annual Accounts 2020/21 and the Report on the 2020/21 Audit by 

the External Auditor 

 

 

 Purpose of Report and Background 

 
This report submits the audited Annual Accounts for 2020/21 to be approved by the 

Partnership Board for signature and for the information of the Board, the external auditor’s 

report on the audit. 

 

 Background 

 
Local Authorities and similar bodies are required to ensure that they demonstrate proper 

stewardship of their financial affairs. The Annual Accounts, together with the opinion 

expressed by the independent auditor on the activities of the Partnership, is designed to 

meet these requirements.  

 

The auditor for the Partnership, Audit Scotland, has expressed an unmodified opinion on 

these Accounts and this is detailed in pages 13 to 16 of Appendix 1, the Annual Accounts. 

 

It is also a requirement of the governing regulations that the audited Annual Accounts will 

be made available for public inspection and sale to interested parties at a reasonable 

charge.  This charge has been set at £10 in past years and it is proposed that no alteration 

be made to this charge for printed copies of the Accounts. The audited Annual Accounts 

will also be available on the Partnership website and can be accessed and downloaded 

free of charge. 

 

 Annual Accounts 2020/21 

 

The Annual Accounts is prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice for Local 

Authority Accounting in the UK. The document comprises a number of statements, but 

Members’ attention is drawn to the following main items: 

 

Pages 2 – 9 Management Commentary 

 

Pages 13 – 16 Independent Auditor’s Report    

 

Page   18 Movement in Reserves Statement 

 

Page   20 Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement  

 

Page   21 Balance Sheet showing the financial position as at 31 March 2021 

 

Other prescribed statements are included along with notes to the core financial statements 

as appropriate. There are no Group Accounts to be commented upon. 
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 External Auditors Report to the Board 

 

The external auditor’s report to the Board is an important aspect of the auditor’s work in 

expressing an opinion on the Annual Accounts. A copy has been included as Appendix 2 

to this report and Anne MacDonald, the Senior Audit Manager, will be in attendance to 

speak more fully to the Board on this document.  The report covers the principal matters 

or issues that have arisen from the audit process and provides a useful commentary on 

the Partnership performance, corporate governance and best value achievement as well 

as a review of areas of significant audit risk.  The report is very positive and attests to the 

strengths of the systems and controls we have in place to manage the financial activities 

of the Partnership.  

 

 Recommendations 

 
The Board is recommended to: 

 
1 Approve for signature the audited Annual Accounts for 2020/21; 
 
2 Consider the External Auditor’s Report; 
 
3 Note that the Accounts can be accessed and downloaded free of charge from the 

Nestrans website. 
 

 

Mary Beattie 
Treasurer 
7 September 2021 
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Woodhill House Annexe 
Westburn Road Aberdeen 
AB16 5GB 

T: 0131 625 1500 
E: info@audit-scotland.gov.uk 
www.audit-scotland.gov.uk 

 

 

Nestrans Board         7 September 2021 

Nestrans  
27 – 29 King Street  
Aberdeen  
AB24 5AA 

 

 

Nestrans  

Audit of 2020/21 annual report and accounts 

Independent auditor's report 

1. Other than the matters set out in paragraph 10 below, our audit work on the 2020/21 annual 

accounts is now substantially complete. Subject to the satisfactory conclusion of the 

outstanding matters, we anticipate being able to issue unqualified audit opinions in the 

independent auditor’s report on 15 September 2021 (the proposed independent auditor’s 

report is attached at Appendix A). 

Annual audit report 

2. Under International Standards on Auditing in the UK, we report specific matters arising from 

the audit of the financial statements to those charged with governance of a body in 

sufficient time to enable appropriate action. We present for the Board’s consideration our 

draft annual report on the 2020/21 audit. The section headed “Significant findings from the 

audit in accordance with ISA 260” on page 10 sets out the issues identified in respect of the 

annual report and accounts. 

3. The report also sets out conclusions from our consideration of the wider scope audit 

dimensions as they apply to small bodies. Our Code of Audit Practice provides more detail 

on the wider scope of public audit framework.   

4. This report will be issued in final form after the annual accounts have been certified. 

Unadjusted misstatements 

5. We also report to those charged with governance all unadjusted misstatements identified 

during our audit, other than those of a trivial nature (ie less than £3,000), and request that 

these misstatements be corrected. We have no unadjusted errors to draw to your attention. 

Fraud, subsequent events and compliance with laws and regulations 

6. In presenting this report to the Board, we seek confirmation from those charged with 

governance of any instances of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud; any subsequent 

events that have occurred since the date of the financial statements; or material non-

compliance with laws and regulations affecting the entity that should be brought to our 

attention. 
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Representations from Treasurer  

7. As part of the completion of our audit, we are seeking written representations from the on 

aspects of the annual accounts including the judgements and estimates made. 

8. A draft letter of representation is attached at Appendix B. This should be signed and 

returned to us by the Treasurer with the signed annual accounts prior to the independent 

auditor’s report being certified. 

Outstanding matters  

9. There are some areas where we still require additional information, and these are identified 

below.  We would anticipate that these matters will be addressed before the Board meeting 

on 15 September 2021.  

• as set out in Exhibit 2 (page 9) in the Annual Audit Report, there is ongoing audit work  
regarding the disclosure of the pension liability and a reconciliation of accrued income in 
respect of the Civitas project 

• signed letter of representation (per para 8) 

• the outcome of final subsequent event transaction testing.   
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APPENDIX A: Proposed Independent Auditor’s Report 

Independent auditor’s report to the members of North East of Scotland Transport Partnership 
(Nestrans) and the Accounts Commission 

Reporting on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion on financial statements 

I certify that I have audited the financial statements in the annual accounts of Nestrans for the 
year ended 31 March 2021 under Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973. The 
financial statements comprise the Expenditure and Funding Analysis, Movement in Reserves 
Statement, Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow 
Statement, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is 
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the 
European Union, and as interpreted and adapted by the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 (the 2020/21 Code). 

In my opinion the accompanying financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view in accordance with applicable law and the 2020/21 Code of the 
state of affairs of the partnership as at 31 March 2021 and of its income and expenditure 
for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European 
Union, as interpreted and adapted by the 2020/21 Code; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government 
(Scotland) Act 1973, The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014, and the 
Local Government in Scotland Act 2003.  

Basis for opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing 
(UK) (ISAs (UK)), as required by the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Accounts 
Commission for Scotland. My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my report. I was 
appointed by the Accounts Commission on 10 April 2017. The period of total uninterrupted 
appointment is five years. I am independent of the partnership in accordance with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in the UK including the 
Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and I have fulfilled my other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. Non-audit services prohibited by the 
Ethical Standard were not provided to the partnership. I believe that the audit evidence I have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern basis of accounting 

I have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the 

financial statements is appropriate. 

Based on the work I have performed, I have not identified any material uncertainties relating to 
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the 
partnership’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at 
least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 
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Risks of material misstatement 

I report in a separate Annual Audit Report, available from the Audit Scotland website, the most 
significant assessed risks of material misstatement that I identified and my judgements thereon. 

Responsibilities of Treasurer and partnership for the financial statements 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Treasurer is responsible for the 
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the financial 
reporting framework, and for such internal control as the Treasurer determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Treasurer is responsible for assessing the 
partnership’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless deemed inappropriate. 

The partnership is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. I 
design procedures in line with my responsibilities outlined above to detect material 
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. Procedures include: 

• obtaining an understanding of the applicable legal and regulatory framework and how the 
partnership is complying with that framework; 

• identifying which laws and regulations are significant in the context of the partnership; 

• assessing the susceptibility of the financial statements to material misstatement, including 
how fraud might occur; and 

• considering whether the audit team collectively has the appropriate competence and 
capabilities to identify or recognise non-compliance with laws and regulations. 

The extent to which my procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is 
affected by the inherent difficulty in detecting irregularities, the effectiveness of the partnership’s 
controls, and the nature, timing and extent of the audit procedures performed. 

Irregularities that result from fraud are inherently more difficult to detect than irregularities that 
result from error as fraud may involve collusion, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. The capability of the audit to detect fraud and other irregularities 
depends on factors such as the skilfulness of the perpetrator, the frequency and extent of 
manipulation, the degree of collusion involved, the relative size of individual amounts 
manipulated, and the seniority of those individuals involved. 

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is 
located on the Financial Reporting Council's website www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. 
This description forms part of my auditor’s report. 
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Reporting on other requirements 

Opinion prescribed by the Accounts Commission on the audited part of the 
Remuneration Report 

I have audited the part of the Remuneration Report described as audited. In my opinion, the 
audited part of the Remuneration Report has been properly prepared in accordance with The 
Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014. 

Statutory other information  

The Treasurer is responsible for the statutory other information in the annual accounts. The 

statutory other information comprises the Management Commentary, Annual Governance 

Statement, Statement of Responsibilities and the unaudited part of the Remuneration Report.  

My responsibility is to read all the statutory other information and, in doing so, consider whether 

the statutory other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my 

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If I identify 

such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, I am required to determine 

whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, 

based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 

statutory other information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this 

regard. 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the statutory other information and I do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on the Management Commentary 
and Annual Governance Statement to the extent explicitly stated in the following opinions 
prescribed by the Accounts Commission. 

Opinions prescribed by the Accounts Commission on Management Commentary and 

Annual Governance Statement 

In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

• the information given in the Management Commentary for the financial year for which the 
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that 
report has been prepared in accordance with statutory guidance issued under the Local 
Government in Scotland Act 2003; and 

• the information given in the Annual Governance Statement for the financial year for which 
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that 
report has been prepared in accordance with the Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government: Framework (2016). 

Matters on which I am required to report by exception 

I am required by the Accounts Commission to report to you if, in my opinion: 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept; or 

• the financial statements and the audited part of the Remuneration Report are not in 
agreement with the accounting records; or 

• I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit. 

I have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 
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Conclusions on wider scope responsibilities 

In addition to my responsibilities for the annual accounts, my conclusions on the wider scope 
responsibilities specified in the Code of Audit Practice, including those in respect of Best Value, 
are set out in my Annual Audit Report. 

Use of my report 

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with Part VII of 
the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and for no other purpose. In accordance with 
paragraph 120 of the Code of Audit Practice, I do not undertake to have responsibilities to 
members or officers, in their individual capacities, or to third parties. 

 

 

 

 
Anne MacDonald CA 
Senior Audit Manager  
Audit  Scotland 
Woodhill House Annexe 
Westburn Road 
Aberdeen  
AB16 5GB 

 

15 September 2021  
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APPENDIX B Letter of Representation (ISA 580) 

 

15 September 2021  

 
Anne MacDonald  
Senior Audit Manager  
Audit Scotland 
the Annexe  
Woodhill House 
Westburn Road  
Aberdeen  
AB16 5GB 

 

Dear Anne  

North of Scotland Transport Partnership (Nestrans)   
Annual Accounts 2020/21 

1. This representation letter is provided about your audit of the annual accounts of Nestrans 

for the year ended 31 March 2021 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether 

the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with the financial reporting 

framework, and for expressing other opinions on the remuneration report, management 

commentary and annual governance statement. 

2. I confirm to the best of my knowledge and belief and having made appropriate enquiries of 

the  Director and the Partnership Board, the following representations given to you in 

connection with your audit of Nestrans’ annual accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021. 

General 

3. Nestrans and I have fulfilled our statutory responsibilities for the preparation of the 2020/21 

annual accounts. All the accounting records, documentation and other matters which I am 

aware are relevant to the preparation of the annual accounts have been made available to 

you for the purposes of your audit. All transactions undertaken by Nestrans have been 

recorded in the accounting records and are properly reflected in the financial statements.   

4. I am not aware of any uncorrected misstatements.    

Financial Reporting Framework 

5. The annual accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 (2020/21 accounting code), and in 

accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, the Local 

Government in Scotland Act 2003 and The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 

2014. 

6. In accordance with the 2014 regulations, I have ensured that the financial statements give a 

true and fair view of the financial position of the partnership at 31 March 2021 and the 

transactions for 2020/21.  

Page 27



Accounting Policies and Estimates 

7. All significant accounting policies applied are as shown in the notes to the financial 

statements. The accounting policies are determined by the 2020/21 accounting code where 

applicable. Where the code does not specifically apply, I have used judgement in 

developing and applying an accounting policy that results in information that is relevant and 

reliable. All accounting policies applied are appropriate to the partnership’s circumstances 

and have been consistently applied. 
 

8. The significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates are reasonable and 

properly reflected in the financial statements. Judgements used in making estimates have 

been based on the latest available, reliable information. Estimates have been revised where 

there are changes in the circumstances on which the original estimate was based or as a 

result of new information or experience. 

Going Concern Basis of Accounting 

9. I have assessed the partnership’s ability to continue to use the going concern basis of 

accounting and have concluded that it is appropriate. I am not aware of any material 

uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the partnership’s ability to continue as a 

going concern.  

Assets and Liabilities  

10. For the year ended 31 March 2021, the partnership did not own or mortgage any properties 

and did not hold any non-current assets.  At 31 March 2021, the partnership had no 

obligations under finance leases.  

11. All liabilities at 31 March 2021 of which I am aware have been recognised in the annual 

accounts.  

12. There are no material liabilities requiring a provision to be recognised in the financial 

statements for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount at 31 March 2021 of which I am 

aware where the conditions specified in the 2019/20 accounting code have been met.  

13. The accrual recognised in the financial statements for untaken leave by 31 March 2021 has 

been estimated on a reasonable basis. 

14. The pension assumptions made by the actuary in the IAS 19 report for Nestrans have been 

considered and I confirm that they are consistent with management's own view. 

15. There are no plans or intentions that are likely to affect the carrying value or classification of 

the liabilities recognised in the financial statements. 

16. Unspent funding has been identified and where appropriate, has been transferred to the 

general fund as at 31 March 2021.    

Contingent liabilities 

17. There are no significant contingent liabilities, arising either under formal agreement or 

through formal undertakings requiring disclosure in the accounts. There are no outstanding 

legal claims which have not been provided under the 2020/21 accounting code and IAS 37. 
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Fraud 

18. I have provided you with all information in relation to: 

− my assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated 
because of fraud  

− any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the financial statements 

− fraud or suspected fraud that I am aware of involving management, employees who 
have a significant role in internal control, or others that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements.  

Laws and Regulations 

19. I have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-

compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing 

financial statements. 

Related Party Transactions 

20. All material transactions with related parties have been appropriately accounted for and 

disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with the 2020/21 accounting code.  I 

have made available to you the identity of all the partnership’s related parties and all the 

related party relationships and transactions of which I am aware. 

Remuneration Report 

21. The Remuneration Report has been prepared in accordance with the Local Authority 

Accounts (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2014, and all required information of which I 

am aware has been provided to you. 

Management commentary 

22. I confirm that the Management Commentary has been prepared in accordance with the 

statutory guidance and the information is consistent with the financial statements.  

Corporate Governance 

23. I confirm that the partnership has undertaken a review of the system of internal control 

during 2020/21 to establish the extent to which it complies with proper practices set out in 

the Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework 2016. I have disclosed 

to you all deficiencies in internal control identified from this review or of which I am 

otherwise aware. 

24. I confirm that the Annual Governance Statement has been prepared in accordance with the 

Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework 2016 and the information is 

consistent with the financial statements. There have been no changes in corporate 

governance or issues identified since 31 March 2021 which require to be reflected.  

Events Subsequent to the Date of the Balance Sheet 

25. All events subsequent to 31 March 2021 for which the 2020/21 accounting code requires 

adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.  

Yours sincerely 
Mary Beattie  
Treasurer  
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Who we are 

The Auditor General, the Accounts Commission and Audit Scotland work together 
to deliver public audit in Scotland: 

• The Auditor General is an independent crown appointment, made on the 
recommendation of the Scottish Parliament, to audit the Scottish 
Government, NHS and other bodies and report to Parliament on their 
financial health and performance. 

• The Accounts Commission is an independent public body appointed by 
Scottish Ministers to hold local government to account. The Controller of 
Audit is an independent post established by statute, with powers to report 
directly to the Commission on the audit of local government. 

• Audit Scotland is governed by a board, consisting of the Auditor General, the 
chair of the Accounts Commission, a non-executive board chair, and two 
non-executive members appointed by the Scottish Commission for Public 
Audit, a commission of the Scottish Parliament. 

 

 

About us  

Our vision is to be a world-class audit organisation that improves the use of public 
money. 

Through our work for the Auditor General and the Accounts Commission, we 
provide independent assurance to the people of Scotland that public money is 
spent properly and provides value. We aim to achieve this by: 

• carrying out relevant and timely audits of the way the public sector manages 
and spends money 

• reporting our findings and conclusions in public 

• identifying risks, making clear and relevant recommendations. 
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Key messages 
 

2020/21 annual accounts  

1 Our proposed audit opinion on the annual accounts of the partnership is 
unmodified. 

2 The audited part of the remuneration report, management commentary 
and annual governance statement are all consistent with the financial 
statements and prepared in accordance with proper accounting 
practices. 

  

Financial sustainability  

3 The partnership continues to have financial stability because of 
sustained funding levels and support of from partners. 

Governance and transparency 

4 The partnership has appropriate governance arrangements in place and 
conducts its business in an open and transparent manner.  
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Introduction 
 

1. This report summarises the findings arising from the 2020/21 audit of North East 
of Scotland Transport Partnership (Nestrans).  

2. The scope of the audit was set out in our 2020/21 Annual Audit Plan which was 
presented to the board in June 2021. In accordance with Audit Scotland’s  Code of 
Audit Practice 2016 (the Code), we explained at that time that the small body 
provisions apply to Nestrans. The main elements of the 2020/21 audit therefore 
included 

• assurances to support our independent opinions on the annual accounts 

• consideration of the appropriateness of the disclosures in the annual 
governance statement 

• a review of the partnership’s financial sustainability. 

Adding value through the audit 

3. We add value to the partnership through the audit by: 

• identifying and providing insight on significant risks, and making clear and 
relevant recommendations  

• providing clear and focused conclusions on the appropriateness, 
effectiveness and impact of financial sustainability, governance and 
transparency and best value.  

Responsibilities and reporting 

4. Nestrans has primary responsibility for ensuring the proper financial stewardship 
of public funds. This includes preparing annual accounts that are in accordance 
with proper accounting practices. Nestrans is also responsible for compliance with 
legislation, and putting arrangements in place for governance, propriety and 
regularity that enable it to successfully deliver its objectives. 

5. Our responsibilities as independent auditor appointed by the Accounts 
Commission are established by the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, the 
Code of Audit Practice 2016 and supplementary guidance, and International 
Standards on Auditing in the UK. Local government bodies have a responsibility to 
put arrangements in place to demonstrate Best Value in how they conduct their 
activities. Our audit work on Nestrans’ Best Value arrangements is focused on the 
bodies use of resources to secure financial sustainability and the effectiveness of 
its governance arrangements.   

6. As public sector auditors, we give independent opinions on the annual accounts. 
Additionally, where the small body provisions of the Code apply, we conclude on 
the disclosures in the annual governance statement and the partnership’s financial 
sustainability. Further details of the respective responsibilities of management and 
the auditor can be found in the Code of Audit Practice 2016 and supplementary 
guidance. 

7. This report raises matters from our audit. The weaknesses or risks identified are 
only those which have come to our attention during our normal audit work and may 
not be all that exist. Communicating these does not absolve management from its 
responsibility to address the issues we raise and to maintain adequate systems of 
control. 
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Auditor independence  

8. Auditors appointed by the Accounts Commission must comply with the Code of 
Audit Practice and relevant supporting guidance. When auditing the financial 
statements, auditors must comply with professional standards issued by the 
Financial Reporting Council and those of the professional accountancy bodies. We 
can confirm that we comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical 
Standard. We can also confirm that we have not undertaken any non-audit related 
services and therefore the audit fee of £10,450 as set out in our Annual Audit Plan 
remains unchanged. We are not aware of any relationships that could compromise 
our objectivity and independence. 

9. This report is addressed to both the partnership and the Controller of Audit and 
will be published on Audit Scotland's website www.audit-scotland.gov.uk in due 
course. We would like to thank the management and staff who have been involved 

in our work for their cooperation and assistance during the audit. 
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Part 1 
Audit of 2020/21 annual accounts 

 

The annual accounts are the principal means of reporting financial 
performance and demonstrating stewardship of resources.   

Our audit opinions on the annual accounts are unmodified  

10. The annual accounts for the partnership for the year ended 31 March 2021 are 
due to be approved by the board on 15 September 2021. We report, within our 
independent auditor’s report that, in our opinion the:   

• financial statements give a true and fair view and were properly prepared   

• audited part of the remuneration report, management commentary and the 
annual governance statement were all consistent with the financial 
statements and properly prepared in accordance with the relevant 
regulations and guidance.   

11. We have nothing to report in respect of misstatements in information other than 
the financial statements, the adequacy of accounting records, or the information 
and explanations we received.    

Submission of the annual accounts for audit  

12. In response to the Covid-19 pandemic, the Scottish Government extended the 
deadline for certification of audited accounts from 30 September to 30 November 
2021. Staff were however able to deliver the unaudited annual accounts by the 
usual deadline of 30 June 2021.  .   

13. The working papers provided with the unaudited accounts were of a good 
standard and finance staff provided good support to the audit team. This helped 
ensure that the annual accounts audit process ran smoothly.  

  

 

Main judgements 

Our audit opinion on the annual accounts of the partnership is unmodified.  

The audited part of the remuneration report, management commentary and 
annual governance statement are all consistent with the financial statements 
and prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. 
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Conclusions on audit work to address risks of material 
misstatement   

14.  Appendix 2 provides a description of those assessed risks that were identified 
during the audit planning process. It also summarises the work we have done to 
gain assurance over the outcome of these risks.   

15. We have no issues to report from our work on the risks of material 
misstatement highlighted in our 2020/21 Annual Audit Plan.   

Overall materiality is £67,000  

16. The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional judgement. It 
involves considering both the amount and nature of the misstatement. 

17. Our initial assessment of materiality for the annual accounts was carried out 
during the planning phase of the audit and is summarised in Exhibit 1. With regard 
to the annual accounts, we assess the materiality of uncorrected misstatements 
both individually and collectively. On receipt of the unaudited annual accounts we 
reviewed our planning materiality calculations and concluded that they remained 
appropriate.    

Exhibit 1 
Materiality values  

Materiality level Amount 

Planning materiality – This is the figure we calculate to assess the overall impact of 
audit adjustments on the financial statements. It has been set at 2% of gross 
expenditure for the year.   

£67,000 

Performance materiality – This acts as a trigger point. If the aggregate of errors 
identified during the financial statements audit exceeds performance materiality this 
would indicate that further audit procedures should be considered. We have calculated 
performance materiality at 75% of planning materiality.  

£50,000 

Reporting threshold (i.e., clearly trivial) – We are required to report to those 
charged with governance on all unadjusted misstatements more than the ‘reporting 
threshold' amount. This has been calculated at 5% of planning materiality. 

£3,000 

Source: Audit Scotland, Annual Audit Plan 2020/21 

Significant findings arising from the audit  

18. International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260 requires us to communicate 
significant findings from the audit to those charged with governance, including our 
view about the qualitative aspects of the body’s accounting practices. Except for  
the matters set out in Exhibit 2, we had no significant findings to report around the 
qualitative aspects of the annual accounts process covering accounting policies, 
accounting estimates and financial statements disclosures.  

19. The significant findings from the audit are summarised in Exhibit 2.  
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Exhibit 2 
Significant findings from the audit of the financial statements 

Issue Resolution 

1. General Fund accounting  

While there is no impact on the budget outturn for the year, 
the accounting for the general fund was incorrect which 
resulted in material misstatements in all the primary 
statements in the annual accounts except the balance sheet 
(ie the expenditure and funding analysis, movement in 
reserves statement, comprehensive income and expenditure 
account and the cash flow statement). 

At 31 March 2021, approx. £180k of funds received in the 
year was unspent. In order to transfer the balance to 
reserves, income was incorrectly reduced by £180k. This 
understated the surplus for the year reported in the 
expenditure and funding analysis and comprehensive income 
and expenditure account.  As a result, compensating 
transfers were incorrectly included in both the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and the Cash Flow Statement to ensure 
the amounts balanced with the correct General Fund balance 
of £600,000 included in the Balance Sheet.     

Corrections have been made in the 
revised accounts.  

A recommendation has been made 
in the Action Plan included as 
Appendix 1 to ensure there is 
appropriate management review of 
the preparation of the unaudited 
accounts.  

  

2. Pension liabilities 

The net pension liability at 31 March 2021 has 
increased by £120,000 compared with the previous 
year.  On review of the unaudited accounts, we 
regarded it unusual that the partnership had a 
significant increase in its pension liability when a 
number of other bodies, also employer bodies within 
North East Scotland Pension Fund, had reported 
significant decreases in their respective pension 
liabilities.   

The amount included in the accounts each year is 
estimated by the actuary and is based on a number of 
assumptions about future cash flows.  Note 14 to the 
accounts, for example,  provides information on 
financial assumptions such as changes in rates of 
inflation, percentage movements in salaries, pensions 
etc  

Every three years, a full valuation is undertaken by the 
actuary which reviews the financial position of the fund 
in detail. The annual accounting update projects the last  
valuation forward. The triennial valuation also sets the 
employer contribution rate for the subsequent three 
years.   

It is  not unusual for the first accounting update after a 
triennial valuation to reflect a significant ‘experience 
gain or loss’. This adjustment will reflect the impact of 
the new  triennial valuation ie changes which arose in 
the previous 3 years but were not reflected in the 
actuary’s annual calculations for accounting purposes.     

North East Scotland Pension Fund’s latest triennial 
valuation was undertaken as at 31 March 2020.  
Included within the 2020/21 accounting update, the 
actuary has identified a significant experience loss of 
£460,000 and is one of the factors contributing to the  
increase in the gross pension liability. The main change 
which took place in recent years was the retirement of 

We have concluded that the 
increase in the net pension liability is 
reasonable.  

While we are satisfied that the 
liability of £750,000 included in the 
balance sheet at 31 March 2021 is 
fairly stated, we are giving further 
consideration to the related 
disclosures elsewhere in the 
accounts.   
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Issue Resolution 

the previous director in financial year 2019/20 and the 
impact of this is now reflected in the actuary’s annual 
figures for accounting purposes. 

3. Civitas funding  

The Civitas project was concluded in the year and a final 
claim has been submitted for costs incurred. We do not yet 
have an overall reconciliation between the letter of grant 
award and the amount claimed and consequently, we are 
not yet in a position to verify the accrued income figure 
included in the annual accounts.  

This matter is currently work in progress.  

4. Going concern 

Auditors are required to consider an organisation’s 
ability to continue as a going concern when forming an 
opinion on the financial statements. One of the 
indicators which may give rise to going concern 
considerations is an excess of liabilities over assets.  

The partnership is an admitted body of North East Scotland 
Pension Fund and has recognised net pension liabilities of 
£750,000 in the balance sheet resulting in a net liability 
position of £162,000 at 31 March 2021.  

This accounting requirement has no 
impact on the underlying basis for 
meeting current and on-going pension 
liabilities which will be met, as they fall  
due, by contributions from the constituent 
authorities. 

We agree with management’s view that it 
is appropriate to prepare the 2020/21 
annual accounts on a going concern 
basis. 

Source: Audit Scotland 

20. It is our responsibility to request that all misstatements, other than those below 
the reporting threshold, are corrected although the final decision on making the 
correction lies with those charged with governance, taking into account advice from 
senior officers and materiality. There are no uncorrected misstatements arising 
from our audit of Nestrans’ financial statements.    

Management commentary, annual governance statement and 
remuneration report 

21. The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
requires local government bodies to prepare and publish, along with their financial 
statements, an annual governance statement, management commentary (or 
equivalent) and remuneration report that are consistent with the disclosures made 
in the financial statements. The management commentary should be fair, balanced 
and understandable and clearly address the longer-term financial sustainability of 
the body. 

22. Based on our knowledge and work performed, we have concluded that these 
statements are consistent with the financial statements. 
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Part 2  
Financial sustainability 

Financial sustainability looks forward to the medium and long term to 
consider whether the partnership is planning effectively to continue to 
deliver its services or the way in which they should be delivered. 

Financial performance in 2020/21 

23.  The partnership set its 2020/21 budget in February 2020 on the basis that 
planned funding from constituent councils and the Scottish Government would 
continue to be maintained at the same level as previous years. This was 
subsequently confirmed and continued to provide a degree of financial stability in 
the short term. With the exception of contributions towards the construction of 
Kintore Station, actual spend for the year was largely in line with plans.   

24. In 2020/21, approximately 40% of the partnership’s Strategic Investment Fund 
budget of £7.5 million related to Kintore Station. While council allocations have 
been agreed in respect of this project, Nestrans obtained approval to delay the 
drawdown of funds while arrangements for the work are being finalised with the 
relevant contractors for the project.     

Reserves strategy  

25.  Previously, the partnership was required to achieve a break-even position year 
on year.  Any surplus was returned to the constituent councils through a reduction 
in requisitions, and any deficit was funded by increased contributions from 
constituent authorities.  With effect from March 2020, the Transport (Scotland) Act 
2019 permits the carry forward of surpluses/deficits. In effect, partnerships now 
have the ability to hold funds. At 31 March 2021, Nestrans held £600,000 in 
reserves which represents unspent funding carried forward.   

  

 

 

 

Main judgements 

The partnership continues to have financial stability because of sustained 
funding levels and support from partners. 
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Part 3 
Governance and transparency 

Governance and transparency is concerned with the effectiveness of 
scrutiny and governance arrangements, leadership and decision making 
and transparent reporting of financial and performance information. 

Governance arrangements  

26. Nestrans was constituted under the Transport (Scotland) Act 2005 as one of 
seven transport partnerships set up to provide a co-ordinated approach to transport 
planning and delivery between different local authority areas. The Nestrans area 
covers Aberdeen City Council and Aberdeenshire Council.   

27. The board has 12 members, four each from Aberdeenshire and Aberdeen City 
Councils and four non-council appointments made by the Scottish Ministers. In line 
with an arrangement between the constituent partners, the chair and deputy chair 
were changed during the year. In addition, a new Director was appointed following 
the retirement of the previous incumbent.    

28. The board met on six occasions during 2020/21, roughly every two months.   
We review minutes of board meetings to assess their effectiveness and periodically 
observe meetings for a greater insight into proceedings.  

29. Nestrans reports annually on progress against the existing Regional Transport 
Strategy. Work is progressing on a new strategy which will look ahead to 2040.  

Financial management 

30. Financial management is about financial capacity, sound budgetary processes 
and whether the control environment and internal controls are operating effectively. 
It is the partnership’s responsibility to ensure that its financial affairs are conducted 
in a proper manner. 

31. As auditors, we need to consider whether audited bodies have established 
adequate financial management arrangements. We do this by considering a 
number of factors, including whether: 

• the treasurer has sufficient status to be able to deliver good financial 
management 

• financial regulations and standing orders are comprehensive, current and 
promoted within the partnership  

• reports monitoring performance against budgets are accurate and provided 
regularly to budget holders. 

 

Main Judgements 

The partnership has appropriate governance arrangements in place and 
conducts its business in an open and transparent manner. 
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32. Overall, financial management within the partnership is considered to be 
satisfactory, with appropriate monitoring reports being regularly submitted to the 
board for scrutiny.  

Transparency 

33. Transparency means that the general public have access to understandable, 
relevant and timely information about how the partnership is taking decisions and 
how it is using resources.  

34. We noted evidence from several sources which demonstrate the partnership’s 
commitment to transparency: 

• members of the public can attend meetings of the partnership  

• board minutes and agenda papers are readily available on the partnership’s 
website 

• the website allows the public to access a wide range of information about 
business activities including plans and monitoring reports 

• the partnership makes its annual accounts available on its website. These 
include a management commentary which provides details of performance 
against budget, information on the use of reserves, and risks and 
uncertainties facing the organisation.  

35. Overall, we concluded that the partnership conducts its business in an open 
and transparent manner. 
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Appendix 1                         
Action plan 2020/21 
 

2020/21 recommendations 

Issue/risk Recommendation  Agreed management 
action/timing 

1. Preparation of annual 
accounts   

 Although there was no impact on 
the budget outturn for the year, 
there were material misstatements 
in the unaudited annual accounts. 

 

The arrangements for the 
preparation of the unaudited 
accounts should be reviewed to 
ensure there is appropriate 
management review.     

 

to be advised  
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Appendix 2  
Significant audit risks identified during planning 

The table below sets out the audit risks we identified during our planning of the audit and how we 
addressed each risk in arriving at our conclusion. 

Audit risk Assurance procedure Results and conclusions 

Risks of material misstatement in the financial statements 

1 Risk of material 
misstatement due to 

fraud caused 

by the management override 
of controls   

 

International Auditing 
Standards require that audits 
are planned to consider the risk 
of material misstatement in the 
financial statements caused by 
fraud, which is presumed to be 
a significant risk in any audit. 
This includes the risk of fraud 
due to the management 
override of controls. 

 

• Detailed testing of journal 
entries 

• Focused testing of accruals 
and prepayments 

• Considered any significant 
transactions that were  
outside the normal course 
of business.  

Audit work concluded 
satisfactorily. 

2 Risk of incomplete 
expenditure and income.  

 

Nestrans’ transactions are 
processed through a separate 
cost entre within Aberdeenshire 
Council's ledger and therefore 
there is a risk that transactions 
may be miscoded and 
Nestrans’ accounts are 
misstated. 

 

 

• Evaluated external 
auditor assurances from 
the auditor of 
Aberdeenshire Council 
with regard to 
expenditure incurred and 
income received, coding 
structures and 
completeness and 
accuracy of data 

• Verified partner 
contributions and a 
sample of grant income 
with supporting evidence 
and confirmed ledger 
postings. 

Audit work concluded 
satisfactorily. 
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NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 15 September 2021 

 

 

3.1    Director’s report on liaison between RTPs, and with the Scottish 

Government and Others  
 

 

1. Purpose of Report  

 

The purpose of this report is to update the Board on liaison with other Regional Transport 

Partnerships, with the Scottish Government and other organisations.   

   

2. Background  

  

This report details meetings with other RTPs, Transport Scotland and other national transport 

bodies, highlighting issues of interest across Scotland. It also notes the minutes from Steering 

Group meetings covering both the Health and Transport Action Plan (HTAP) (Appendix 1) 

and the North East Scotland Bus Alliance (Appendix 2) 

  

3. Recent Developments  

   

Despite the coronavirus pandemic and travel restrictions, an almost normal schedule of 

meetings has been going on, all of which have been held online in this period.  Meetings of 

relevance held since the last Board meeting on 9th June include:  

 

 Road Safety North East Scotland, 24 June 2021 

Rab Dickson represents Nestrans on the multi-agency Casualty Reduction group. 

 

 HTAP Steering Group, 25 June 2021 

The Health & Transport Action Plan Steering Group met virtually, chaired by Gerry 

Donald.  The minute of the meeting is attached as Appendix 1 to this report.  This 

meeting featured input from Scottish Government and Transport Scotland on their plans 

to establish a national Health and Transport Steering group. 
 

 North of Scotland Roads Collaboration Officers, 25 June 2021 

Rab Dickson attended this meeting, chaired by Ewan Wallace.  

 

 RTP Lead Officers Group with Transport Scotland, 6 July 2021 

Scotland’s seven RTPs met to discuss various matters of mutual interest and share 

experiences of strategic matters.  The meeting was attended by Alison Irvine, Transport 

Scotland’s Director of Transport Strategy and Analysis. There were updates in relation 

to travel advice in the pandemic, Active Travel and a discussion on forecasts/alternative 

scenarios, considering how travel demands might change. 

 

 City Region Deal Transport Working Group, 20 July 2021 

Paul Finch chairs the working group, attended by regional partners and Transport 

Scotland.  Progress across the City Region Deal projects were discussed, and proposals 
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debated around the next phase of work on the Strategic Transport Appraisal, including 

priorities for appraisal and business case development. 

 
 Aberdeen-Central Belt Key Stakeholders Group, 26 July 2021 

Rab Dickson and Paul Finch met with Network Rail and Transport Scotland to receive 

an update on progress on the Aberdeen to Central Belt rail project. 

 

 STPR2 Regional Reference Group, 29 July 2021 

Rab Dickson and Paul Finch represent north east interests in this meeting of all of the 

eleven STPR regional working groups across Scotland. 
 

 RTP Lead Officers Group, 4 August 2021 

Scotland’s seven RTPs met to discuss various matters of mutual interest and share 

experiences of strategic matters.  This included a presentation by Paul Finch exploring 

the experiences of the Health and Transport Action Plan, in terms of renewed national 

interest on Health and Transport issues. 

 

 City Region Deal Programme Board, 4 August 2021 

Rab Dickson and Paul Finch attended this meeting of the CRD Programme Board.   

 

 Transport Scotland STAG Advisory Board, 5 August 2021 

Paul Finch attended this meeting, on behalf of the other RTPs.  The group is reviewing 

progress being made by Transport Scotland with regard to updating Scottish Transport 

Appraisal Guidance (STAG).   

 
 Community Planning Aberdeen Management Group, 11 August 2021 

Rab Dickson attends the Management Group, which heard a presentation on NHS 

Grampian’s Strategic Plan. 
 

 SCOTS Summer Business Meeting, 13 August 2021 

Rab Dickson attended the meeting of the Society of Chief Officers of Transportation in 

Scotland (SCOTS).  Topics discussed included a presentation on Scottish Borders 

implementation of 20mph speed restrictions as part of their Spaces for People initiative. 

 
 Transport Scotland Rail Quarterly Meeting, 17 August 2021 

The regular meeting with rail industry and Transport Scotland received update reports 

on rail studies, an operational update and plans for decarbonising the railways.  Queries 

were raised around the recent performance of the Serco Caledonian Sleeper.   

 
 City Region Deal Transport Working Group, 18 August 2021 

Paul Finch chairs the working group, attended by regional partners and Transport 

Scotland.  Progress across the City Region Deal projects were discussed, and proposals 

debated around the next phase of work on the Strategic Transport Appraisal, including 

priorities for appraisal and business case development. 

 
 STPR2 North East Regional Transport Working Group, 19 August 2021 

This meeting heard from Transport Scotland and their consultants on the progress being 

made with the specific options being considered for North East Scotland, and also 

feedback from the consultation comments which were submitted in February 2021.   
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 City Region Deal Joint Committee, 20 August 2021 

Rab Dickson and Paul Finch attended this committee.  The Joint Committee received a 

number of reports, including consideration of an updated Strategic Business Case 

document for the upgraded road link to Aberdeen South Harbour.   

 
 Bus Alliance Board, 25 August 2021 

The Bus Alliance Board met to discuss the Bus Partnership Fund bid.  The draft minute 

of the meeting is attached as Appendix 2 to this report. 

 

 HTAP Steering Group, 27 August 2021 

The Health & Transport Action Plan Steering Group met virtually, chaired by Gerry 

Donald.  The draft minute of the meeting is attached as Appendix 3 to this report.   

 

 Net Zero Delivery Group, 27 August 2021 

Rab Dickson leads on the Mobility theme, one of the key area’s identified in Aberdeen’s 

ambitions towards Net Zero Carbon. 

 

 North East Scotland Freight Forum. 31 August 2021 

Paul Finch attended the meeting, and issues related to LEZ/updated City Centre 

Masterplan, Live Labs project, Rail Freight, and A96 dualling were discussed. 

 
 RTP Chairs Meeting, 1 September 2021 

Scotland’s seven RTPs met to discuss various matters of mutual interest and share 

experiences of strategic matters.  Paul Finch attended this meeting with Cllr Macdonald, 

which included a session with the Transport Minister Graeme Dey.  This session included 

discussion around national rail and bus matters.   

 

 STPR2 Regional Reference Group, 1 September 2021 

Paul Finch attended this meeting on behalf of the region.  The meeting an included an 

update on progress, discussion on the detailed appraisal of options, and outcomes of a 

review related to Major Ports in Scotland.   

 

4. Future Programme of Meetings  

  

The following meetings are scheduled between the preparation of this report and the next full 

meeting of Board on Wednesday 10th November 2021:   

 

 Meeting with Transport Minister, 08 September 2021 

 

 Road Safety North East Scotland, 16 September 2021 

 

 Aberdeen CRD Transport Working Group, 22 September 2021 

 

 SCOTS Liaison Committee Meeting, 24 September 2021 

 

 Aberdeen Prospers Outcome Improvement Group, 27 September 2021 

 

 Net Zero Conference, 30 September 2021 

 

 RTP Lead Officers Group with Transport Scotland, 6 October 2021 
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 STPR2 Regional Reference Group, 6 October 2021 

 

 STPR2 North East Region Transport Working Group, 11 October 2021  

 

 Aberdeen to Central Belt Key Stakeholders Group, 18 October 2021  

 

 HTAP Steering Group, 22 October 2021 

 

 North East Scotland Freight Forum, 26 October 2021 

 

 Community Planning Aberdeen Management Group Meeting, 27 October 2021 

 

 City Deal Programme Board, 27 October 2021 

 

 RTP Lead Officers Group with Transport Scotland, 1 November 2021 

 

 Aberdeen City Region Deal Transport Working Group, 3 November 2021 

 

 RTP Chairs Meeting, 3 November 2021 

 

 Aberdeen Prospers Outcome Improvement Meeting, 8 November 2021 

 

 5. Recommendation 

  

The Board is recommended: 

 

1. to note progress on liaison arrangements with other RTPs, the Scottish Government and 

others and arrangements for future meetings. 
 

RD 6 Sept 2021 
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Appendix 1 
 

HTAP Steering Group 
Thursday 25th of June 2021 (10.00-11.00) 

Hosted on Microsoft Teams  
 

Minute 
 

Present  
Gerry Donald, (Chair), NHS Grampian (GD) 
Rab Dickson, (Vice Chair), Nestrans (RD) 
Paul Finch, Nestrans (PF) 
Joanne Riach, NHSG (JR) 
Gale Beattie, Aberdeen City Council (GB) 
Nicola Moss, Moray Council (NM) 
Daniel Shaw, Aberdeenshire Voluntary Action (DS) 
Martin Hall, Aberdeenshire Council (MH) 
Steven Gorman, Scottish Ambulance Service (NJ) 
Audrey Birt, Mobility & Access Committee for Scotland (MACS) (AB)  
Alice Duthuille, Community Transport Association (AD) 
Virginia Irvine-Fortescue, Public Representative (VIF) 
Andrew Stewart, HTAP Programme Manager (AS) 
Guests 
Lucy Logan, Transport Scotland (LL) 
Fergus Millan, SG Primary Care Directorate (FM) 
Dominic Burns, SG (DB) 
Evonne Llewelyn, NHSG (EL) 
Stan Mathieson, NHSG (SM) 
 
Apologies 
Susan Forbes, Aberdeenshire Health & Social Care Partnership (SF) 
Ewan Wallace, Aberdeenshire Council (EW) 
Rachael Murphy, Community Transport Association (RM) 
 

Item  Action 

1. Welcome and Apologies  

 Apologies noted as above.    

2. Previous Minute  
 Approved.  

3. Matters Arising  
 All included in the agenda.  

4. Guest speakers  

 Lucy Logan, Accessible Transport Policy Officer, Transport Scotland 

gave a presentation on the work done around the Accessible 

Travel Framework, the soon to be launched Annual Delivery Plan 

and the recognition throughout the pandemic and dialogue with 

MACS and Disability Equality Scotland that transport for health 

journeys are a priority.  FM spoke of the Community Pathway for 

COVID-19 and that transport being an issue was flagged early in 
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the process and that there was no existing role within SG dealing 

with health and transport.  FM highlighted a need for a long-term 

strategic plan and structure to bring the issue higher up the 

agenda of NHS Boards.  The hope is that a Strategic Group can be 

set up at a national level before the end of the year and FM noted 

there is a lot to learn from HTAP and the range of partners 

involved in Grampian. 

 

5. COVID Update  
 The Chair summarised the ongoing pressures on the system and 

the issue of throughput being an ongoing challenge, highlighting 

the use of private ambulances and the arrangement with Royal 

Voluntary Service to support SAS. 

 

 
 

6. Regional Transport Strategy 2040  

 PF updated the meeting on the RTS.  Nestrans are currently 
working through comments from Transport Scotland and expect 
that the final document will be signed off later in the summer by 
the Minister.  PF also updated on the ongoing travel monitoring 
and market research by Nestrans to track changing travel patterns 

and traffic levels. 

 
 

7. Access to Health & Social Care Sub-Group  

 PF updated on the focus of the sub-group on how partners can 
support the pressure on throughput at ARI and access to local 

hospitals and are mindful of the pressure on SAS.  The Sub-Group 
are revisiting the previous draft Health Transport Charter and are 
consulting with partners on the wording of this.  The Sub-Group 
also acts to keep the many partners informed of the work and 
pressures across the whole system (Demand Responsive 

Transport, Public Transport etc).  The Chair mentioned patient 
confusion about recognising their responsibility in terms of 
arranging non-emergency transport.  AB highlighted her concern 
about the use of “Charter” as a term and the perception that the 
term had been damaged by other uses.   
ACTION:  Share the finalised document with FM. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
AS 

8. Third Sector Interface & Endowment Fun  

 DS updated the meeting on the bid made by the three Grampian 
Third Sector Interface bodies to the NHSG Endowment Fund.  The 

bid was successful and awarded £250K to the Supporting Patient 
Discharge Project.  The three TSI bodies will each recruit a Co-

ordinator with a view to beginning the project in August.  It is a 
two-year project and transport will be a small part of the project 
remit. 
 

GB had to leave the meeting and flagged that this was her last 
HTAP meeting due to a changing role.  The group thanks Gale for 
her input to HTAP and wishes her well in the new role. 
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9. Transport & Public Health Sub-Group  
 JR updated the meeting on the work of the sub-group, including 

the improvements to infrastructure for active travel resulting from 

the NHSG Spaces for People funding.  Also, the successful bid to 
Sustrans for a two-year NHS Workplace Engagement Officer to 

promote active travel to staff with 25% funding from Nestrans in 

years 2 and 3.  Recruitment for this post is underway.  JR 

summarised the changing Local Outcome Improvement Plan in 

Aberdeenshire, the creating of HEAL (Healthy Eating/Active Living) 

and the input to that, as well as the Programme Manager input to 
EV Infrastructure and the connections between NHSG and the 

wider work of partners. 

EL gave a presentation on her work delivering NHSG Spaces for 

People projects, including EV bikes for staff, new cycle parking and 

the development of a path between Aberdeen Royal Infirmary and 

Woodhill House. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

10. Programme Manager Update  
 Report circulated with the papers.  

11. AOCB  

 The Chair asked what next steps could crystalise the links made 
with guests from the Scottish Government.  FM requested to 
attend HTAP Steering Group meetings.  LL noted the conversation 
within HTAP is bigger than her role around the Accessible Travel 
Framework.  PF highlighted the need for a health and transport 
lens. 
ACTION:  AS will extend invite to FM for future meetings. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
AS 

12. Future Meetings  

 August 27th 10-11 

October 22nd 10-11 

December 13th 10-11 

 

 
Minute by Programme Manager. 
 
 
  

Page 53



HTAP Steering Group 
Friday 27th August  (10-11) 

Hosted on Microsoft Teams  
 

Minute 
 

Present  
Gerry Donald, (Chair), NHS Grampian (GD) 
Rab Dickson, (Vice Chair), Nestrans (RD) 
Joanne Riach, NHSG (JR) 
Susan Forbes, Aberdeenshire Health & Social Care Partnership (SF) 
Ewan Wallace, Aberdeenshire Council (EW) 
David Dunne, Aberdeen City Council (DD) 
Daniel Shaw, Aberdeenshire Voluntary Action (DS) 
Audrey Birt, Mobility & Access Committee for Scotland (MACS) (AB)  
Virginia Irvine-Fortescue, Public Representative (VIF) 
Andrew Stewart, HTAP Programme Manager (AS) 
 
Guests 
Emma Watkinson, NHSG (EWa) 
Susan Harrold, NHSG (SH) 
 
Apologies 
Paul Finch, Nestrans (PF) 
Nicola Moss, Moray Council (NM) 
Fergus Millan, SG Primary Care Directorate (FM) 
Steven Gorman, SAS (SG) 
 
 

Item  Action 

1. Welcome and Apologies  

 Apologies noted as above.    
2. Previous Minute  

 Approved.  DS highlighted a typo.  

3. Matters Arising  

 All included in the agenda.  

4. Guest speakers  

 Emma Watkinson, Project Administrator and Susan Harrold, 

Planning Manager (Planning, Innovation and Programmes 

Directorate), NHSG joined the meeting.  Susan Harrold presented 

on the NHS Grampian Plan for the Future 2022-2028 consultation.  

The wish is to engage the public, staff and partners to inform 

services and to build on the collaboration and collective response 
seen during the pandemic.  The plan is to produce a draft plan by 

the end of 2021 and have it approved by February 2022.  The 

meeting recognised the value of sharing the findings of the 

consultation with partner organisations to help inform the wider 
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work around prevention, deprivation, inequality etc.  The 

complexity of the challenges being faced were acknowledged. 

ACTION:  AS will circulate the slides. 

5. COVID Update  
 GD updated the meeting on the ongoing pressures on bed 

capacity in hospitals, the more complex nature of admissions and 

that some of those admitted have not been vaccinated.  The 

message emphasised was to promote getting doubled jabbed.  
The meeting was also updated on changes to the locations of 

vaccination centres. 

 

 
 

6. Regional Transport Strategy 2040  

 RD updated the meeting on the minor comments from Transport 

Scotland and that approval by the Minister is anticipated soon. 

 

 
7. Access to Health & Social Care Sub-Group  

 AS summarised the three main items for update.   
1. A draft series of communications regarding planning non-

emergency patient transport has been produced and 
circulated for comment.   

2. Engagement with Scottish Government and Regional 

Transport Partnerships around creation of a national 
strategic Health & Transport group. 

3. Linking THInC in to changes on vaccination centre 
locations. 

 

8. Third Sector Interface & Endowment Fund  

 DS updated the meeting on the bid made by the three Grampian 
Third Sector Interface bodies to the NHSG Endowment Fund.  The 

bid was successful and awarded £250K to the Supporting Patient 
Discharge Project.  The three TSI bodies have now each recruited a 

Co-ordinator.    

 

9. Transport & Public Health Sub-Group  

 JR updated the meeting on three main areas of progress. 

1. Establishing linking NHSG to wider public sector discussions 

around electric vehicle infrastructure. 
2. The appointment of Katrina Schofield to the NHS/Sustrans 

Workplace Engagement Officer post.  A baseline survey of 
staff and active travel will take place soon. 

3. Recent positive dialogue with Public Health Scotland who 
have undertaken to write a paper on Transport and Health. 

 
 
 

10. Footway Gritting and links to NHS including data  

 EW spoke to the issue of data sharing related to winter slips and 
falls to help inform the effectiveness of local authority gritting etc.  

JR agreed to follow up with Health Intelligence colleagues. 
ACTION:  JR to investigate what information is available. 

 

10. AOCB  
 DD made the meeting aware that Aberdeen City Council are now 

reviewing their Local Transport Strategy. 
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11. Future Meetings  
 October 22nd 10-11 

December 13th 10-11 

 

 
Minute by Programme Manager. 
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Appendix 2 
 

North East of Scotland Bus Alliance 

Minute of the Bus Alliance Board  

(Microsoft Teams)  

Wednesday 25th August 2021 at 1000hrs 

 

 

Present 

 

 

 

 

 

Robert Andrew, Chair (RA) 

Rab Dickson, Nestrans (RD) 

Richard McKenzie, Aberdeenshire Council (RM)  

Daniel Laird, Stagecoach Bluebird (DL) 

David Phillips, First Bus (DP) 

David Dunne, Aberdeen City Council (DD) 

Greig Mackay, Bus Users Scotland (GM) 

Kirsty Chalmers, Nestrans (KC) 

Apologies Peter Knight, Ewan Wallace, Douglas Bain 

 

Item  Action 

1 Welcome & Apologies 

 RA welcomed and noted apologies.   

2 Minute of the Bus Alliance Board 26 May 2021  

 Minute approved. 
 
Matters arising 
Most matters covered within the agenda. 
RA noted that although capacity constraints on vehicles are reducing 
with the easing of restrictions, we don’t yet have clarity on funding 
beyond 4th October.  
 
EW asked if RA would be happy to speak to Aberdeenshire Council 
Infrastructure Services Committee as the Chair of the BA Board.  RA 
has indicated that he would be happy to do this and will await further 
contact.  RM reported that it may be around January, but EW will be in 
touch when appropriate.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

3 Bus Partnership Fund (BPF)  

 a) Governance 
 

As discussions at the last meeting asked for partners views on 

appropriate governance structures, this item provided a link on the 

agenda to the ACC Committee report on this issue so that partners 

were aware of the recommendations being made.  Essentially, existing 

governance structures are felt to be appropriate for the BPF work at this 
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stage of the award.  ACC CG&R Committee will consider this paper on 

25th August 2021. 

In relation to the governance of the wider Bus Alliance, KC highlighted 

that RM had agreed to contact Bains Coaches and Deveron Coaches to 

see if they wish to re-engage with the Bus Alliance.     

DL highlighted that Watermill Coaches are also active in the transport 

network however it was highlighted that the focus had previously been 

on those operating commercial bus services.   

b) Project Plan 
Circulated with the agenda was a copy of the BPF project plan which 

has been submitted to Transport Scotland for consideration.  This is 

one of the first requirements of the BPF award.  DL highlighted that 

ownership of actions needs to be clear.  This will fall within the scope 

and remit of the BPF working group to keep track of progress of the 

individual actions.   

c) Scope and remit of working group 
A BPF working group has been established to oversee and co-ordinate 

the different strands of the BPF award.  KC presented the structure and 

membership of this group highlighting that it will meet monthly to tie in 

with the monthly reporting to Transport Scotland.  Both operators were 

asked to and agreed to participate in this group and KC will be issuing 

meeting invites shortly.  The remit of this group is as follows: 

1. Overview of the BPF Fund delivery;  
2. Agree the project plan and oversight of any change control;  
3. Monitor progress against the project plan, milestones 
and budget;  
4. Monitor progress and ensure consistency across multi -
modal corridor studies;  
5. Connection and tie-in of BPF work and other city centre 
workstreams including City Centre Masterplan and Low Emission 
Zone.  
6. Compilation and presentation of match in kind 
contributions to feed in to progress reporting;  
7. Strategic oversight of the wider policy context and projects 
across all partners e.g. other corridor studies, active travel, rail.  

There were no further comments on the role and remit. 

d) ART Consultancy support 
 

KC updated that a brief for consultancy support to assist in the option 

development, appraisal and business case development of ART is out 

for tender at present.  A further tender will also be required for support 

under the marketing and communications line of the BPF award and 

this will be developed over the coming months.  The successful 

consultant will link in to the BPF working group when appropriate. 

 

 

 

RM 
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4 Aberdeen City Centre  

 a) City Centre Masterplan Review  
A link to the papers for the ACC CG&R Committee on 25th August was 

circulated with the agenda.  Operators have had discussions with 

Senior Officers and elected members at the City Council in the last 

week or so, so have a good understanding of the recommendations 

being put to the committee with regard the city centre.  DD highlighted 

that the speed of progress is challenging for officers and that there are 

significant challenges for the city centre in terms of the number of 

vacant units which is around 55 on Union Street at present.   

Important that we weave all the different strands of work together.  A lot 

of opportunity but also a lot of work in a short timeframe.  Will have a 

better steer after CG&R this afternoon.   

RA – is there a risk that the timing doesn’t align, and will we have a 

hiatus period where union street is still not in use but there are none of 

the mitigation measures in place to help buses through the city centre.  

DD responded that the LEZ has been approved and delivery of this is 

progressing so the question is the gap between what further work will 

be instructed today and the delivery of the LEZ which is on a set 

timeframe.   

DP asked if there has been any modelling done to date to examine the 

likely consequences of any of the options.  DD responded that as part 

of LEZ work the modelling looked at two options (bus / taxi only access 

down the central section of Union Street and closing it to all traffic).  The 

decision today won’t be to do x or y it will be to work with stakeholders 

and do more work to identify the preferred option going forward. The 

next period between now and the November committee is the one that 

will determine what the preferred option is. Need to show the 

consequences of any decision that the members make.  

DP The spaces for people mitigations for buses haven’t been 

particularly effective e.g., the bus gate so the key issue for operators is 

the slowing down of journeys in the short term as traffic volumes start to 

increase as lockdown restrictions are eased and we try to attract people 

back to the city centre.  Do worry about attractiveness of any successful 

bids in the future which are based on diverting buses around the city 

centre rather than through.  Are we thinking through all the potential 

consequences?  

DL – Need to be mindful that the public may focus on the short term 

need rather than the long-term goal – this is a critical point for bus 

operators in attracting bus users back to using public transport. They 

are seeing a significant impact of traffic on service disruption compared 

to pre-covid.  Operators very willing to engage in discussions going 

forward. 

GM – From a bus users’ perspective, accessibility is key.  The one thing 

that buses should allow is accessibility to towns and city centres.  

Making areas pedestrianised and taking buses out of areas reduces this 

accessibility. Passengers want access by buses back into this area.  
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Hope that buses do get back in, although would be happy with a shared 

space.   

RD asked if an access for all-traffic option (effectively reverting to pre-

covid) for union street is still an option on the table?  There is a danger 

that we focus our attention on the impacts of a pedestrian only or 

shared space solution but don’t feel that reverting to an all traffic option 

on Union Street is desirable. Is the loss of bus lanes through spaces for 

people measures on the rest of union street being looked at?   

DD noted that for some, the desired solution is to go back to a pre-covid 

situation however we do have the LEZ which will be implemented, and 

this does include some restrictions.  Consultation out on the proposed 

LEZ currently.  At the west end of Union Street some right turn bans 

have been introduced to discourage general traffic on union street 

however a lot of these issues will be determined by the November 

committee.  

RA stated there is concern that whilst everyone supports the longer-

term plan, it is the potential short-term impacts if there is a hiatus that 
are of more immediate importance. 

The Bus Alliance agreed that all are supportive of the principles of the 

longer-term ambition but would like to see the full implications of all the 

options considered, including the short-term implications in the context 

of attracting people back to using bus services.  Whatever the outcome 

we need to put the best package together that we can.    

b) Low Emission Zone  
 

ACC are currently mid consultation on the proposed LEZ. 

There has been a strong response to the consultation to date with strong 

opinions at both ends of the spectrum. 

A summary will be produced once the consultation closes and DD can 

bring this back to the Bus Alliance. 

DP highlighted that through their dialogue with Systra as part of the 

consultation process they have requested to see some of the modelling 

to see in more detail the likely impacts around the boundary of the LEZ, 

where the traffic is going to go and how this will impact on buses.  DD 

happy to talk the bus operators through this in more detail.   

DP also asked if there was any clarity on exemptions?  There is an 

agreed list as part of the legislation.  DD to ask WH to circulate this. 

RM reported that the consultation was considered by ISC last Thursday 

and the formal position is supportive of the LEZ.  Comments will be fed 

back to the city. 
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5 SNP / Green Co-operation agreement 

The consensus from discussion on this was that it presents some good 

opportunities but is limited in detail at this stage.  Action to await 

ratification and see what next steps emerge. 

 

 

 

 

6 Partner Updates  

 Aberdeen City Council – Just wanted to highlight that BEAR 4 

funding applications are currently live.  

Aberdeenshire Council – Aberdeenshire’s Ready to Go DRT 

service has now been launched in the Inverurie area.  Will be 

expanding to include the central Buchan area in October.  Launched 

10 days ago and from a customer experience is going well albeit 

with some back-office challenges. 

First – Hydrogen Buses now largely operating well, well liked and 

well used.  Passenger numbers in Aberdeen are a bit behind the 

rest of the UK and so some concerns around this and not sure the 

reason behind this so will be monitoring this closely.  Fully 

supportive of long-term plans but concerns of short term.  If we are 
going to see more passenger numbers, then Market St and Bridge 

St are not fit for purpose.  Some of the busiest bus stops are on 

these sections.   

Stagecoach Bluebird – Capacity restrictions easing has taken 

some pressure off in terms of capacity on vehicles.  Some service 

changes on 16th August which seems to have gone quite well.  All 

minor and at the fringes of the network. Application deadline for 

BEAR 4 is tomorrow so working across the company on this.  Re-

imbursement rates for the under 22 concessionary scheme have 

now been confirmed which is a positive development.  Pleased to 

see this included in the CCMP report as well.  

Bus Users Scotland – New Bus Partnerships in Midlothian and 

West Lothian have now launched so working with those.  GM Chairs 

the West Lothian Partnership.  Working with Guide Dog Scotland 

and other organisation to identify key accessibility themes to feed 

into Bus Partnership Fund projects.  Compliance team all back out 

and about.  Mixed bag of results. Poor punctuality, non-compliant 

vehicles so this information being fed into the Traffic Commissioner.  

Nestrans – RTS progressing – currently awaiting approval from the 

Transport Minister. Cairngorms National Park have recently been 

awarded a £24m heritage bid for sustainable travel measures.  

Potential for sustainable travel hubs around Braemar / Ballater.  

Potential for shuttle buses for some of the tourist hotspots.  Potential 

for electric buses to avoid problems with car parking.  One of the 

key things for us is how this fits with conventional bus into the 

national park so that people can then use sustainable travel within 

the park.  DL very interested in engaging with CNP on this.   
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7 AOCB  

 There was no other business  

8 Date of Next Meeting: 24th November 2021  
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NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 15 September 2021 

 

 

3.2    Regional Transport Strategy 2040 Update 

 

1. Purpose of Report 

 

1.1 To update the Board on progress towards adoption of the Regional Transport Strategy and 

provide a follow up to the Board Workshop on 3rd August at which RTS monitoring and targets 

were discussed.  

2. Background 

   

2.1 The Final RTS 2040 was approved by the Nestrans Board on 10th February 2021 and submitted 

to the Cabinet Secretary and Transport Scotland on 24th March 2021.  At its meeting in June 

2021, the Board received an update on three other strands of work related to the RTS: 

a) Delivery mapping – this was agreed at the Board meeting in June and is now published 

on the Nestrans website here. 

b) RTS Maps – The Board were presented with draft maps to illustrate and demonstrate the 

geographic spread of actions contained within the new Nestrans 2040 strategy.  

Comments were taken on board from the Board meeting and the maps are being finalised 

in preparation for publication alongside the adopted strategy once approved.  

c) Targets, Monitoring and Delivery Plan – a workshop was held with Board members on 

3rd August 2021 to provide the opportunity to discuss the proposed monitoring and 

evaluation framework and proposed targets.   

3. Comments from Transport Scotland 

 

3.1 The Final RTS 2040 was approved by the Nestrans Board on 10th February 2021 and submitted 

to the Cabinet Secretary and Transport Scotland on 24th March 2021.  Comments were received 

from Transport Scotland on the proposed final strategy on 9th June 2021.  Most of these 

comments were points of clarification or suggestions where text could be made clearer with 

none substantially changing the policies or actions contained within it.  A response has been 

submitted to Transport Scotland with a summary of how we have taken on board their 

comments, whilst simultaneously, the final version of the document is with the graphics team to 

make the changes and prepare the final version.   

 

3.2 We are currently awaiting final confirmation from Transport Scotland officials that they are happy 

with the amendments that have been proposed, and that they are able to pass it for Ministerial 

approval. 

4. Targets, Monitoring and Delivery Plan 

 

4.1 A Board workshop, open to all Board Members and Substitutes, was held on 3rd August 2021 to 

discuss proposals for a revised monitoring and evaluation framework for the new Regional 
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Transport Strategy as well as the development of the Delivery Plan.  A note of the discussion at 

the workshop is provided in Appendix 1.   

 

4.2 As a result of the discussions and feedback received at the workshop it is proposed to re-

structure our monitoring and evaluation framework from the current annual monitoring report 

which monitors 48 indicators across all modes to the following two-tier approach: 

 

a) Annual monitoring of headline indicators which focus on trends over time and directly 

linked to the strategy’s 6 priorities providing a more focussed list of indicators aimed at 

monitoring the overall success of the strategy. 

b) A three yearly evaluation report that adds in other data of interest to Nestrans, rolling 

forward a number of the indicators of more general interest from the current monitoring 

report, as well as any additional survey data, qualitative data and lived experience from 

stakeholder groups, studies, projects, partners and the public. This will aim to show 

broader trends of interest and more detail, with the ability to add supporting narrative and 

analysis.   

 

4.3 This two-tier approach reflects the approach being taken by Transport Scotland for the 

monitoring of the National Transport Strategy.  It is proposed that the first annual monitoring 

report be produced in Spring 2022 following the publication of the Scottish Transport Statistics 

which is usually in February of each year.  The first three-yearly evaluation report would then be 

published in Spring 2024. 

 

4.4 A range of proposed indicators and targets were discussed at the workshop with some questions 

and issues raised for consideration.  These are currently being considered and will be reported 

back to the Board for approval in November 2021.   

 

5. Recommendation 

 

5.1 It is recommended that the Board: 

 

1. Note the progress towards adopting the final RTS. 

2. Agree the new approach to monitoring and evaluation and proposed dates for the first 

monitoring reports to be produced. 

3. Request that the proposed final list of indicators and targets be brought back to the Board 

in November, taking on board feedback from the workshop. 

 
 

 KC/1 September 2021 
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Appendix 1 
 

6. North East of Scotland Transport Partnership  

Nestrans RTS Workshop – 3 August 2021 

Virtual Meeting  

 

7. Decisions and Actions Arising 

 

In attendance: Cllr Sandra Macdonald (Chair), Cllr Philip Bell, Cllr John Cox, Gerry Donald, 

Cllr David Cameron, Cllr Gillian Owen, Rab Dickson, Paul Finch, Kirsty Chalmers, Kelly 
Wiltshire, Jon Barron, Jenny Anderson, Lucy Johnston, Ewan Wallace and David Dunne   
 
Apologies: Cllr Martin Ford and Cllr Ross Grant 
 

  Action 

1. 
 
 

Welcome and Housekeeping 

SM welcomed everyone to the meeting and asked them to participate at any 
time with any queries. 
 

 

2 
 
 

RTS2040 Update on Progress 
 

RD noted that work is ongoing on RTS2040 development and the purpose of 
the workshop is to give and update on this, and seek input to the monitoring 
and targets, including the level of ambition.  The team have received 
comments from Transport Scotland on RTS2040 and propose replying with 
table of responses and updated text for final strategy. SM thought none of the 
comments were showstoppers. RD agreed and we have sought clarification 
on a few and they are fairly minor, so some small amendments proposed but 
they are not significant.  GD noted failure of Mobility as a Service (MaaS) 
funding bid and asked if there is more we can do to strengthen position around 
this.   

 

3 RTS Targets 
KC presented the slides on priorities and targets and discussed proposals.  
Previous RTS monitoring had 28 indicators and targets and was based on 
existing published data sets.  Have opportunity to change structure and align 
to NTS.  Propose annual monitoring report based on strategy’s six priorities 
and 3-yearly evaluation report that reports trends and statistics of interest.  
Will cross reference the headline indicators proposed but there are some 
gaps.  SM noted the NTS delivery Board have discussed how “lived 
experience” can be obtained in addition to the statistics.  KC agreed that the 
evaluation reports could bring in some of the wider data sets that aren’t 
produced annually. 
 
Improved journey efficiencies to enhance connectivity. 
Five indicators proposed and details given on these and their sources and 
proposed targets for 2030 and 2040.   PB agreed this is a good ambition and 
asked how the routes would be chosen and at what time of day the journey 
time would be measured.  KC noted there are 12 routes, and it is AM journey 
times before 9am as is in current monitoring report.  PB asked what day it 
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relates to.  RD noted they come from websites such as google travel and the 
journey has been measured over a number of years and has varied with 
infrastructure and public transport services available.  The 12 journeys are a 
mix across the region e.g. Stonehaven to Airport.  SM asked if there is a 
danger that we miss something if journeys that are used don’t change to 
reflect for example AWPR now being in place and with public transport offers 
changing.  KC agreed it is important to look at car and public transport journey 
time differences.  SM asked if 1a and 1c should have 2030 targets.  PF 
advised 1a will be partly delivered by 2026. SM asked if the quality and 
capacity of rail gets picked up in another indicator.  PF agreed overcrowding 
is an important issue and could be picked up in bespoke evaluation if required.  
David Dunne asked if 2hr 10mins by 2040 included electrification aims, and if 
LNER stops build on journey time are we separating out express and tourist 
trains.  PF expects electrification will help achieve the quicker journey time 
target and the current project allows a stopping service for accessibility and 
limited stop express services by looking at signalling blocks and tracks.  KC 
noted the difficulty measuring travel by public transport given the variance in 
times and frequencies and RD also noted the chosen journeys include 
interchange and waiting times. 
 
Zero fatalities on the road network 
Three indicators proposed and details again given on proposed targets.  SM 
asked if it was a health issue that caused a fatality is this noted and KW stated 
it isn’t recorded as a road fatality, if it was due to a medical issue.  RD noted 
that killed and serious injuries (KSI) are mentioned as there is an aim to 
reduce injuries also and the numbers have drastically reduced.  EW 
welcomed the downward trend, but noted recent incidences and recalls when 
there have been different targets and timescales for different organisations in 
the past that created greater work, so cautioned against having differing 
targets but welcomed the ambition.  GD felt the ambition should be zero but 
asked how Nestrans can influence these outcomes.  KC advised we do have 
to do this in partnership with others, but there is a role and we can direct 
funding towards these areas.  KW noted Nestrans sits on NE road safety 
partnership and we have funded marketing towards partner wide campaigns.  
SM agreed we have to aim for zero by 2040 as this is the timescale for the 
RTS.  DD agreed and noted that inclusion in RTS means this will be reflected 
in LTS.   
 
Air Quality 
Two indicators proposed. GD asked if we could articulate what we have done 
and KC stated this is noted in the RTS.  PB asked if we should note the size 
of the particulates e.g. PM10 or PM2.5.  This is referred to in the strategy, but 
we used the indicator for PM10, but will look at 2.5 if we can get a figure for it 
as know the Council monitors this.  PB asked if Nitrogen oxide or dioxide is 
being reported and RD agreed to look at this in more detail. 
 
Reduce Carbon Emissions 
Currently monitor carbon emissions using a published figure.  Net zero aims 
of Transport Scotland given and suggest 90% by 2040 target for RTS.  SM 
asked if final 10% in 5 years is achievable, but KW noted that there will still 
be emissions, but they may be offset to give net zero.  SM also asked if this 
is surface travel only and thinks this is ambitious, but RD noted it is being 
driven by national guidance and a lot will be delivered by S Gov. KW clarified 
that this doesn’t include international air or maritime travel, but net zero does 
include offsetting and targets may become more ambitious after COP26, but 
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RTS should seek to enable this.  DD thinks this target is achievable given 
national aims and 90% is realistic. 
 
Accessibility for all 
Tricky in terms of data availability, but have tried to reflect geographic 
accessibility, affordability and physical accessibility.  NTS accessibility tool 
may be able to help with monitoring of this.  Suggest doing further regional 
travel surveys. GD asked if targets align with those of MACS, or can we learn 
from what they are doing.  KW will look into this.  KW noted that we consulted 
with MACS in developing the strategy.  SM asked if there is an opportunity to 
get data from the census and whether we should lobby for this.  RD thinks 
that those questions will be set and seeking to influence coverage of TS 
appraisal may be more appropriate to provide representation that is relevant 
at a regional or local authority level.  SM noted the development of tools and 
technology that will change and we should keep an awareness of this for 
qualitative and quantitative data. RD agreed that occasional studies are of 
interest but haven’t previously had regular rolling surveys to pick up changing 
attitudes and trends. 
 
Step change in public transport and active travel to enable 50:50 mode split 
between car driver and sustainable modes 
PB asked what targets mean - do you want to achieve electric 
vehicle/hydrogen vehicle usage and also get people to move to bus/rail.  Is 
the aim for less vehicles on the road?  KC noted the strategy does encourage 
shift to cleaner fuels, but for congestion issues and accessibility etc this also 
requires a shift to active and sustainable travel (public transport and car 
share).  PB wondered how practical the targets are if elderly population unable 
to walk and cycle.  RD also noted that P53 of the RTS speaks about reducing 
emissions via firstly, reduction in car kilometres (e.g. work from home, shop 
local), secondly mode shift and decarbonising is the third strand.  The 50% 
recognises that some people will still need to travel by car.  DD asked when 
3.3bn km baseline was taken and doesn’t like km travelled reduction rather 
than reduction in number of trips.  KC will clarify the year for the baseline but 
thinks it relates to 2019.  The car kilometres relate to the S Gov requirement.  
PF believes TS are starting to think about how they achieve this target and 
noted Aberdeenshire has the second highest rate nationally of km travelled.  
EW noted high car ownership levels as well and noted TS in discussion with 
COSLA over how to achieve commitment to 20% car km reduction. Believe it 
will have to reflect different geographical circumstances.  Still need to reduce 
car travel for capacity of network even if there is a big take up on alternative 
fuels. 
 

4. Delivery Plan Update 

 
PF gave an update on development of the Delivery Plan to translate who does 
what, when and how and this will influence our budget setting decisions and 
other priorities.  It will have to be dynamic and reactive to opportunities and 
circumstance albeit aligned to the strategy.  Will distribute example of 
spreadsheet but have been looking at various roles in delivering the RTS 
actions and priorities and what Nestrans’ role is and if there are budget 
implications.  SM asked what the various sized dots indicate.  The size 
difference indicates lead agencies and when there is a role for Nestrans we 
have considered is this a budget, policy, staff resource role etc. 
Next consideration will be level of detail, a link to the progress reports, how 
the actions lead to priorities, may need to estimate development costs.  PF 
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also noted previous daughter documents such as bus, HTAP, freight, active 
travel and rail action plans and consideration will be given as to whether it is 
appropriate to refresh all or some of these now. 
 

 RD wrapped up workshop by noting today was about informing the Board of 
current progress e.g. how does the monitoring report reflect whether the RTS 
is achieving its aims and will the delivery plan cover how we can influence 
this.  Welcome further input if Board members wish to add anything further.   
 
SM stated it would be helpful to share today’s information with Board 
Members and Substitutes who couldn’t attend today to also give them an 

opportunity to feed in. 
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  1 

NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 15 September 2021 

 

 

3.3    STPR2 and Other National Transport Policy Developments 

 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 

1.1 This report updates the Board on the progress being made with regards to the second national 

Strategic Transport Projects Review (STPR2), and the north east transport implications of the 

deal agreed between the Scottish Government and Scottish Green Party.   

 

2. Second Strategic Transport Projects Review (STPR2) 

 

2.1 STPR2 is a Scotland-wide review of the strategic transport network across all transport modes, 

including walking, wheeling, cycling, bus, rail and car, as well as reviewing wider island and 

rural connectivity.  It is being undertaken by Transport Scotland, and will inform transport 

investment in Scotland for the next twenty years.  The work is focussed on delivering the vision, 

priorities and outcomes set out in the National Transport Strategy (NTS2), and aligns with 

other plans such as Infrastructure Investment Plan, National Planning Framework, and the 

Climate Change Plan.   

 

2.2 The Nestrans area corresponds with one of the regional grouping which is being used to help 

progress the work.  The earlier work on the City Region Deal funded Strategic Transport 

Appraisal has significantly influenced the progression of STPR2 in this region, as well as 

informing the RTS.  A regional working group is meeting periodically with Transport Scotland 

and their consultants, with the most recent meeting held early August.  The leads of each of 

the regional working groups are also meeting on a more regular six weekly basis to review 

progress and discuss any key issues of concern.  

 

2.3 Three key elements of progress of interest to the Board have been provided during recent 

meetings. 

a) Programme  The draft findings are anticipated to be published towards the end of this 

calendar year, to enable a 12-week statutory consultation period, prior to the 

commencement of the pre-election period for local government elections to be held on 

05 May 2022. 

b) Options being considered for North East Scotland  The most recent meeting of the 

regional working group (19 August) confirmed that the majority of measures identified in 

the final Strategic Transport Appraisal are being considered for appraisal within the 

STPR2 process, as per earlier indications in February 2021.   

c) Feedback from February 2021 Consultation  The Board approved consultation 

feedback to Transport Scotland at its meeting on 14 April 2021 (Item 4.3).  Responses 

to this feedback, and to other questions that have been raised at regional working 

groups, have now been supplied by Transport Scotland and their consultants, and are 
set out in Appendix 1 to this report.   

 

The Director and Strategy Manager remain actively engaged at both national and regional 

level in tracking progress of STPR2, and ensuring that the unique requirements of the north 

east are fully considered in the appraisal process.  
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3. North East Transport Implications of Draft Shared Policy Programme Scottish 

Government and Scottish Green Party 

 

3.1 Published on 20 August, the document raises a number of issues specifically for north east 

Scotland.  https://www.gov.scot/publications/scottish-government-and-scottish-green-party-

shared-policy-programme/documents/.  Since finalisation of the agreement, the following new 

Ministerial Portfolios have been confirmed: 

 Patrick Harvey MSP – Active Travel, Zero Carbon Buildings, Tennant’s Rights 

 Lorna Slater MSP – Green Skills, Circular Economy, Biodiversity. 

 

3.2 Accordingly, the Transport portfolio is now split between MSPs Graeme Dey and Patrick 

Harvey, with both reporting to Michael Matheson (Cabinet Secretary for Net Zero, Energy and 

Transport). 

 
3.3 Appendix 2 to this report extracts the specific provisions relevant to transport in the north east 

of Scotland from the agreement, and provides some commentary regarding alignment with our 

established policy and some wider considerations.  Regional partners are also concurrently 

considering the implications of the agreement.  It is understood that no specific consultation 

was undertaken on the provisions of the agreement with Nestrans or partner local authorities.  

At present, there remains a lack of clarity as to how specific elements of the agreement will be 

taken forward, and also how some of the key measures included on specific corridors (such 

as theA96) might also be translated across the wider of region.     

 

3.4 Perhaps the most prominent issue raised by the agreement are the provisions around the 

future dualling of the A96 (rows 16 to 24 in Appendix 2).  Whilst commitment remains on a 

bypass around Inverurie, commitment to active travel and public transport improvements (bus 

and rail) along the corridor are strengthened.  There is a commitment also to undertake a 

review of the longer-term dualling project as a whole. 

 

3.5 Another significant issue is the commitment to work on the feasibility of a mass transit system 

for the region, including “a rail link between Dyce and Ellon and further north to Peterhead and 

Fraserburgh” (rows 22 and 23 in Appendix 2).  The region has been successful in attracting 

funding to develop an Aberdeen Rapid Transit system via the Bus Partnership Fund, and 

Nestrans has a strong track record in rail development.  Feasibility work undertaken in 2017 

specifically on options for a rail link between Dyce and Ellon concluded that there was not at 

that time found to be a persuasive case for continued appraisal of this option.  The summary 

of that work is available at this link: https://www.nestrans.org.uk/wp-

content/uploads/2017/11/FPASTS-1plus-Ellon-Rail-Study_Summary_Final.pdf 

 

3.6 Clearly, there remains public and stakeholder interest in the concept of rail line re-opening, 

and the revised look at the feasibility of the proposal needs to build upon this previous work, 

considering what might have significantly changed since 2017.  Such issues would include 

climate change policy, updates to appraisal guidance, changing travel patterns arising from 

Covid, any change in position regarding future dual-tracking of tunnels north of Aberdeen, and 

the changing road travel times since opening of AWPR/Balmedie Tipperty.  The work would 

also need to be framed by the findings of the STPR2 process, and the wider needs of the 

corridor.  
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4 Recommendations 

 

It is recommended that the Board: 

 

1. Note the progress being made on the STPR2 progress, including feedback on previous 

consultation responses. 

2. Note the north-east transport implications arising from the Shared Policy Programme 

agreed by the Scottish Government and Scottish Green Party, including the proposals 

for reviews for the future of A96 dualling, and also the feasibility of a rail link between 

Dyce and Ellon.  

 
PMF- September 2021  
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Appendix 1 

STPR2 Feedback on Stakeholder Questions and Comments 
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Appendix 2 

Shared Policy Programme - Transport Implications for North East Scotland 

Link to Document: https://www.gov.scot/publications/scottish-government-and-scottish-green-party-shared-policy-programme/documents/ 

 Commitment Fit with Existing Policy Comment 

1 Transport Policy Approach 
We agree that in the face of the climate emergency we need to shift away from 
spending money on new road projects that encourage more people to drive, 
and instead focus our money and effort on maintaining roads, improving safety 
and providing a realistic and affordable alternative through investing in public 
transport and active travel. 

 
Aligns with principles of RTS. 

 

2 20% car km target 
align transport policy with our climate targets and the goal of reducing car/km 
by 20% by 2030. Reducing the distance travelled by private car and the number 
of vehicles on the roads will improve air quality, the wellbeing of our 
communities and reduce accidents, and is an important part of our approach to 
achieving Scotland’s ambitious greenhouse gas emission reduction targets. 

 
Previously launched as part of 
national climate change action 
plan.  Principle aligns with the 
RTS, but we have more work 
to do on the regional veh/km 
aspect.   

 
Important to facilitate Electric Vehicles 
and support appropriate demand 
management framework.  Recognition 
of the rural aspect is essential.  

3 Active Travel Spend 
increase the proportion of Transport Scotland’s budget spent on Active Travel 
initiatives so that by 2024-25 at least £320m or 10% of the total transport 
budget will be allocated to active travel. 

 
Aligns with RTS 

 
We need effective delivery pathways 
at all levels, resources, and clear 
understanding of the role of 3rd party 
non-governmental organisations who 
can act as gatekeepers to delivery.   
 

4 Rail Decarbonisation 
during this parliamentary session, invest over £5 billion in maintaining, 
improving and decarbonising Scotland’s rail network. 

 
Aligns with RTS, and previous 
national commitments made 
in Rail Decarbonisation Action 
Plan.  

 
Potential fit with ACC’s plans for 
exploring Hydrogen potential for rail.  
Need to confirm whether this 
accelerates or extends previous 
commitments made in “Rail 
Decarbonisation Action Plan”?  
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Assumption this applies to Aberdeen-
Central Belt, and existing commitment 
to Inverurie. 

5 STPR2 
use the outcomes of the Strategic Transport Projects Review (STPR2) to direct 
future transport infrastructure investment. 

 
Aligns with RTS 

Important that STPR2 sets the 
framework for future studies 
identified below. 

6 Fair Fares 
commission a Fair Fares Review to ensure a sustainable and integrated 
approach to public transport fares. This will look at the range of discounts and 
concessionary schemes which are available on all modes including bus, rail and 
ferry. The review will consider options against a background where the costs of 
car travel are declining and public transport costs are increasing, exacerbating 
the impact on those living in poverty 

Aligns with RTS Awareness that there also needs to be 
a mechanism to address relative 
falling use of car prices. 
 
Questions remain around future 
funding models for different modes 
and types of public transport, 
particularly during the recovery phase 
from the pandemic. 

7 Transport Governance Review 
progress the on-going review of transport governance in Scotland to ensure it is 
fully aligned with the climate and traffic reduction targets, and to ensure that 
the national and local capacity is in place to deliver our active travel goals. 

 
Aligns with RTS 

 
Role of RTPs to be recognised. 

8 Safe(Routes) to School 
local authorities will be encouraged to deliver more Safe to School initiatives, 
with the aim of ensuring every child who lives within two miles of school is able 
to walk or wheel safely. 

 
Aligns with RTS 

 
This is an established policy.  It is 
appropriate to consider the options 
around “doing more”.   

9 20mph in Built up Areas 
all appropriate roads in built up areas will have a safer speed limit of 20 mph by 
2025. A task group will be formed to plan the most effective route for 
implementation. 

 
Aligns with RTS 

 
A number of practical implications 
including enforcement and route 
consistency. 

10 On-line Dangerous Driving Reporting System 
Transport Scotland will work with Police Scotland to develop a one year pilot 
project to develop an online reporting system enabling anyone to upload 
camera footage of dangerous driving 
 
 

 
If it has a positive impact, 
aligns with RTS 

 
Probably a number of practical 
implications for Police Scotland 
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11 Bikes on Buses 
our support for the purchase of new buses will be, where appropriate, 
conditional on space being available for bike transport in addition to wheelchair 
and buggy space. 
 
 

 
RTS supports further 
investigation of bikes of buses 
on appropriate routes. 

 
Question of whether this is 
appropriate on all buses, and on all 
routes.   

12 Active Freeway Network 
Transport Scotland will work with local and regional transport authorities on 
the establishment of an active freeway network for Scotland comprising local 
networks within towns and cities and connecting settlements and major 
destinations with high quality, safe routes 

 
Aligns with RTS 

 
Practical questions around land 
acquisition, and wider powers to 
implement in the face of 
parking/loading, available road 
widths, interface with public 
transport. 
 

13 STPR2 – Sustainable Mode and Investment Hierarchies 
future investment in our transport network will be set out in the second 
Strategic Transport Projects Review and will align with the sustainable mode 
and investment hierarchies. 

 
Aligns with RTS and is the 
established position in NTS2. 

 
Important that STPR2 sets the 
framework for future studies 
identified below. 
 

14 Conditions for any New Roads 
during this parliamentary session, new roads projects will normally only be 
taken forward where they reduce the maintenance backlog; address road safety 
concerns or adapt the network to deal with the impacts of climate change or 
benefit communities such as bypassing settlements. 

 
The RTS mentions A96, 
A90(N), and A90(S), and our 
network of regionally 
important roads such as A93, 
A944 and A947.  Whilst not 
necessarily new roads, 
improvements on these roads 
are considered necessary.  

 
New roads will be built to facilitate 
new development areas.  New roads 
may be built to facilitate economic 
opportunity. 

15 No Roads for Unconstrained Growth 
we will not build road infrastructure to cater for forecast unconstrained 
increases in traffic volumes. 
 
 

 
Aligns with RTS. 

 

P
age 75



 
 

16 A96 Corridor Transport Enhancements Programme 
The Scottish National Party and Scottish Green Party have and will maintain 
distinct positions of the dualling of the A96. However, as part of this agreement, 
the Scottish Government will take forward a transport enhancements 
programme on the A96 corridor that improves connectivity between 
surrounding towns, tackles congestion and addresses safety and environmental 
issues. 

 
RTS recognises the role of A96 
in providing benefits for 
Inverurie and wider regional 
connectivity, and safety 
benefits.  

 
Question if “enhancements 
programme” is a re-focussing of the 
existing effort, or a new effort.  There 
remains significant uncertainty around 
how this policy approach will be 
implemented.  

17 A96 Bypasses 
bypassing of Nairn, Keith, Elgin and Inverurie accompanied by measures to 
remove through traffic from the by-passed town centres. 

 
Inverurie element aligns with 
RTS 

 
Require confirmation whether this 
bypass commitment corresponds with 
the previously announced preferred 
route between Kintore and east of 
Huntly. 

18 A96 Road Safety Improvements 
targeted road safety improvements where needed, for example between 
Fochabers and Huntly and Inverurie to Aberdeen. 

 
RTS goes beyond this looking 
for junction upgrades 
between AWPR and Inverurie. 
 

 
Needs more definition.   
 

19 A96 Electric Highway 
the development of an A96 “Electric Highway”. 

 
 

 
Questions around the existing 
position, and what is proposed. There 
are many examples of commercially 
provided EV charges on A96 ranging 
from hub style locations to individual 
units at traditional fuel stations. 

20 A96 Dualling Review by 2022 
The current plan is to fully dual the A96 route between Inverness and Aberdeen. 
We agree to conduct a transparent, evidence-based review to include a climate 
compatibility assessment to assess direct and indirect impacts on the climate 
and the environment. This will report by the end of 2022. 

 
 
 

 
What is Nestrans’, AC’s and ACC’s role 
in the review.  How does it fit with 
STPR2? 
 
Keen not to lose any work on 
improvement to NMU infrastructure 
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on trunk network that is being 
progressed as part of dualling project.   
 
Need to understand how Active Travel 
will practically taken forward on the 
A96.   

21 Aberdeen to Inverness Rail Corridor Improvements 
work to improve the resilience, reliability and efficiency of the Aberdeen to 
Inverness rail corridor, alongside our commitment to decarbonise the rail 
network, to make it more competitive to road and encourage modal shift for 
both passengers and freight. 

 
Aligns with RTS 

 
If the outcome is “more competitive 
than road” this probably points to a 
substantive upgrade, ie a second 
phase of Aberdeen to Inverness 
improvements.   
 
Freight mode shift probably would 
have to focussed on food and drink, 
but this means wholesale 
commitment to terminal facilities at 
either end of journey and rolling stock, 
subsidy, and change of approach from 
rail industry and food and drink 
industry. 
 
As per “Rail Decarbonisation” (row 4) 
interest if this means end to end 
electrification or other approaches.   
 

22 Mass Rapid Transit System for North East Scotland 
working with Nestrans, Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire Councils on the 
feasibility of a mass rapid transit system for the region… 

 
Aligns with RTS. 
 

 
Building on ART proposals funded by 
Bus Partnership Fund.  Query around 
the line “for the region” 

23 Rail Line to Dyce Ellon Peterhead and Fraserburgh  
Goes beyond commitment in 
RTS. 

 
Question of how this fits with STPR2. 
Should include other options, and 
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[working with Nestrans, Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire Councils on the 
feasibility of] a rail link between Dyce and Ellon and further north to Peterhead 
and Fraserburgh 

build on previous work by Nestrans.  
Question of who leads on this work. 

24 A96 Bus Priority Measures 
reviewing the A96 corridor with a view to implementing appropriate bus priority 
measures 

 
There is an ongoing A96 
Inverurie to Aberdeen multi-
modal corridor study. 

 
Question of why just the A96, why not 
A90 north and south corridors.  We 
would assume the broader local and 
trunk road network along the corridor 
is included.   

25 Trunk Roads Projects Already Underway 
work on other trunk roads projects and programmes under construction, design, 
development or procurement will continue and be subject to the normal 
statutory assessment and business case processes. 

 
Laurencekirk junction 
improvements. 

 
 

26 Future Investment in Rail Determined by STPR2 
the future direction of investment in Scotland’s railways will be determined as 
part of the second Strategic Transport Projects Review. 

 
Aligns with expectations 

 

27 Community Bus Fund 
a Community Bus Fund will be introduced, which will support local transport 
authorities to improve local public transport in their areas. This fund will 
support transport authorities to explore the full range of options set out in the 
Transport (Scotland) Act 2019, including municipal bus services. 

 
Aligns with the challenges set 
out in the RTS 

 
For our area, this should enable 
funding for rural and urban areas and 
other innovation. 
 

28 Demand Management Options Analysis 
as part of work on policy measures to reduce car/km by 20%, we will publish an 
analysis of options to assess and identify demand management options at the 
local and national level to encourage the use of active travel and public 
transport as an alternative to cars. 
 

 
Aligns with expectations 

 
Needs a regional perspective.   

29 Public Lifeline Ferry Services 
we will support the delivery of publicly funded lifeline ferry services in cases 
where essential connectivity cannot be met by the normal operation of the 
market. We will assess the model of delivery of ferry services in Scotland, to 
ensure that our approach delivers good outcomes for communities, value for 
money, accountability and transparency. 

 
Ongoing commitment to 
Northern Isle Ferry Service. 
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30 UK Government Reserved Issues 
there are areas of transport such as fuel duty, vehicle taxes and rail services, 
where regulation and reserved issues constrain our ability to make and 
implement necessary policies. We will press the UK Government for further 
devolution of transport, specifically with regard to rail infrastructure and 
services. 

 
 

 
The Scottish Government has 
expressed its intention to bring the 
Scotrail franchise ‘in-house’ in 2022. 
Across the UK the Shapps-Williams 
reforms intend to integrate the 
governance and management of track 
and train with a new oversight board 
UK wide. The details of how this will 
operate and the implications within 
the devolved context are not currently 
clear. 
 
For the regulation of motor-vehicles 
and of taxation and presumably road 
pricing, the UK Government is 
currently reviewing in light of the 
expected fall in Vehicle Excise revenue 
with the growth of electric vehicles.  

31 Economic Development - £500 Just Transition Fund for North East and Moray 
As a demonstration of our commitment to just transition across Scotland, we 
will work with partners, communities and other stakeholders to take forward a 
ten-year £500m Just Transition Fund for the North East and Moray. This will 
support and accelerate the transition of the region and support the role of 
Aberdeen and the wider north east as one of Scotland’s centres of excellence for 
the transition to a net zero economy. 
 

  
The funding presents a range of 
opportunities, particularly around 
Hydrogen, and future infrastructure 
linked to renewables, carbon-capture 
and storage, and associated 
manufacturing and support.  

32 Planning – 20min Neighbourhoods 
embed the concept of twenty minute neighbourhoods to strengthen community 
resilience, reduce carbon emissions and reduce the need to travel, by improving 
local liveability and wellbeing. 

 
Fits with RTS principles 

 
Approach recognises importance of 
local walking and cycling networks.  
Requires consideration of both safe 
and attractive environment, but also 
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the sustainable provision of local 
services. 

33 Planning – Communities and Local Development Plans 
legislative reforms to the planning system must strengthen delivery of NPF4 and 
local development plans and ensure that effective engagement with local 
communities happens at all stages of local development planning, including 
better influence of communities through local place plans. 

  
The transport implications of the 
forthcoming NPF4 are as yet unknown 
however it is anticipated that they will 
be in line with the National Transport 
Strategy.  It is anticipated that NPF4 
will strengthen the emphasis on 
walkable (20 minute) neighbourhoods 
and active places within Planning 
Policy.  

34 Planning – Public Sector Land Assembly 
public bodies need land assembly powers, such as compulsory purchase and 
compulsory sales orders, which are effective, efficient and fair in order to 
support delivery of much-needed regeneration, infrastructure and the reuse of 
vacant land and property 

  
A key issue going forward for public 
transport and active travel schemes. 
This could enable significant progress 
in pursual of active travel schemes 
and smaller public transport initiatives 
such as bus priority measures by 
eliminating gaps in Bus Lane provision.   

35 Planning – Land Value Uplift Capture 
we will explore, develop and deliver an effective, fair mechanism for capturing, 
for public benefit, a share of the increase in land value that occurs when 
development is supported through the planning system. 

  
In the future, this could mean greater 
returns to the public finances where 
infrastructure investment opens up 
land for development or leads to high 
land values – e.g. the proposed access 
to the Aberdeen South Harbour or the 
AWPR. 
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STPR2 Regional Transport Working Group Feedback 

North East Scotland 

Question Response 

Major Ports: Local roads are out of scope, 
unless they provide access to major ports 
or airports, (Major airports are currently 
defined as Edinburgh, Glasgow, Aberdeen 
and Inverness; Prestwick is currently 
included from a freight perspective only). 
The list of major ports is currently being 
discussed and agreed with the Aviation, 
Maritime, Freight and Canals Directorate at 
Transport Scotland; How and when is this 
happening? And will a full and proper 
consultation be undertaken before 
changes are made in relation to major 
ports? 

Transport Scotland is working with its consultants to determine what will be a major port in the context of 
STPR2.  As a minimum this will include all ports that handle over one million tonnes of cargo annually, 
however other criteria are also being considered and will be shared with STPR2 Regional Transport Working 
Groups once available.  It is important to note that just because a port is not identified as being major for 
the purposes of STPR2 they will of course be regionally important and be reflected in local and regional 
transport strategies and plans. 

In relation to the option Sifting Lookback 
Note provided and the Sifting 
Methodology outlined, the question 'can 
Transport Scotland facilitate?' fails to 
recognise the role of that is played by RTPs 
and the 32 Local Authorities in ensuring 
that strategic transport is fit for purpose. It 
is felt that this section almost calls into 
question the existence of RTPs in 
particular. 

We do recognise the importance that RTPs and LAs play in delivering transport in Scotland.  Transport 
Scotland facilitates RTPs and LAs in appraising and delivering transport interventions already.  One area we 
would wish to explore further at the STPR2 Regional Reference Group is how we will work together RTPs 
and LAs to deliver strategic interventions that have not historically been delivered by Transport Scotland.  
We look forward to working with partners on this as it will be key to delivering our NTS2 priorities. 
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Question Response 

In England an approach has been taken to 
look at the sub-national network, why has 
this approach not been taken by Transport 
Scotland? 
 

There is a mutual interest and a mutual benefit for us to work with UK Government, and we have a track 
record in doing so. However, priorities for transport investment in Scotland will be made through the 
STPR2 process.  We will continue to make the significant level of investment that we are putting in right 
across the country to ensure that we have the type of transport infrastructure that is necessary for the 
years ahead. 

STPR2 PROCESS 

How are policy and governance framework 
matters being taken into consideration 
throughout the development of STPR2? 

Throughout the STPR2 process, strong cognisance has been given to the policy framework within which 

STPR2 is being delivered, and the policy priorities that STPR2 will help to deliver. Specifically, the priorities 

set out in NTS2 have directly informed the development of the STPR2 Transport Planning Objectives (TPOs), 

which have been used to support the sifting and appraisal of interventions, ensuring that only interventions 

and groupings that support the wider policy framework progress through the process.  Policy integration 

also forms part of the Integration STAG criteria which considers the extent to which an intervention 

supports a number of policy areas including NTS2 and National Performance Framework outcomes.   

 
Policy areas, such as the commitment to reduce car vehicle kilometres by 20% by 2030 and achieve Net 
Zero by 2045, are also being considered through the development of future scenarios, which are being 
developed to look at a range of possible futures, and how the possible interventions behave in them.  
  
Issues related to transport governance are being considered separately by a Transport Governance and 
Collaboration Review Group. Building on the work of the NTS2 Roles and 
Responsibilities review, the Transport Governance and Collaboration Review Group will consider how to 
improve transport governance and delivery across the country to ensure the NTS delivers for citizens and 
business across Scotland. 
 
The delivery of interventions has also been highlighted for further discussion at the Regional Reference 
Group and we look forward to working with RTWGs representatives on this.   

P
age 82



 

Question Response 

How will the STPR2 process address NTS2 
Priorities? 

There are a number of actions listed in the NTS2 Delivery Plan.  STPR2 is just one of these, however it is a 
key action and as such are we required to embed the priorities and outcomes from the NTS2 into the STPR2 
appraisal process to ensure interventions emerging through STPR2 will support delivery of the NTS2. This is 
reflected in the use of the Sustainable Investment Hierarchy – a core theme promoted in the NTS2 – 
throughout the STPR2 work to date, including to support the sifting of options. Likewise, the NTS2 Priorities 
have directly informed the development of STPR2 Transport Planning Objectives, against which 
interventions have been assessed at all stages. These approaches will help to ensure that interventions 
recommended through STPR2 also directly support the delivery of the NTS2 Priorities. 

In relation to the Climate Change Plan how 
will a reduction of car kilometres (20% by 
2030) be measured? In rural areas, a 
reduction in car kilometres will not be 
realistic if there is no public transport 
alternative, or where long distances are 
involved.  If alternative fuels can be made 
available in rural areas, would a reduction 
in car kilometres still be the right 
target/measure? 

The 20% car km reduction commitment is measured using the Scottish Transport Statistics, against a 2019 
baseline.  It is monitored as part of the Climate Change Plan monitoring and evaluation framework, which 
the Scottish Government reports on annually.   
 
We believe the CCPu commitment to reduce car kilometres by 20% by 2030 is a truly world-leading 
aspiration and commitment from Government.  It demonstrates our level of ambition as we work to meet 
Scotland’s statutory targets.  Our National Transport Strategy (NTS2) already outlines the need to reduce 
travel by unsustainable modes. The UK Committee on Climate Change (UKCCC) has also recommended that 
we reduce the demand for less sustainable transport modes.  The predominance of private car use – 
particularly single-occupancy journeys – cannot be therefore be overlooked, which is why this policy 
outcome is pivotal.  
 
This is a national ambition – however this does not mean car use in rural and remote areas is expected to 
drop at the same rate as towns and cities.  Given that the 20% reduction commitment is a Scotland-wide 
figure, it will obviously require geographical variations.  More rural areas tend to rely more heavily on 
private car use and have less access to public transport options.  Not everyone will be able to reduce their 
driving by 20%, and there is a decade for us to work to achieve this commitment.  We will look at all 
options – and engage with stakeholders – to explore how Scotland’s urban/rural split can best be taken 
account of as part of this national target, for the route-map being developed to meet the 20% reduction.   
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Question Response 

We acknowledge that reducing private car use will be more challenging for people who live in rural areas or 
who currently have no other affordable option.  However, to ensure our approach is in keeping with a just 
transition to net zero, the route map for our 20% reduction commitment will consider potential impacts on 
people who rely on cars as their only viable transport.  There are a range of issues which we are exploring 
in relation to this commitment, such as the availability of public transport alternatives, low income and 
inequality implications, and geographical considerations.  Ensuring that people can reduce their need to 
travel by car whilst still having affordable access to employment, goods and services will be key to 
achieving this outcome without having a detrimental effect on equality. 
 
On the question on alternative fuels, we are incentivising the uptake of ultra-low and zero-emission 
vehicles in a way which supports the sustainable travel hierarchy outlined in our National Transport 
Strategy – and allows people and communities to access the benefits of modern vehicles. 

Is a national review of aviation being 
undertaken out with STPR2? 

As outlined in Appendix C of the National Case for Change report published in February 2021, options 
related to air services, including operation / expansion of airports and new flights / changes to existing 
flights are out of scope. This includes Inter-Island and Island – Mainland air services.  
 
Out with STPR2, Transport Scotland is in the process of developing an Aviation Strategy, which will explore 
different options for accelerating the transition to low and zero emission aviation, and consider how we 
can work in partnership with industry to restore Scotland’s connectivity in a way which reduces the 
environmental impact. We will carry out a public consultation on our forthcoming Aviation Strategy later 
this year. 

What is the current status of this review of 
roles and responsibilities? 

As outlined in the NTS2 Delivery Plan, the Transport Governance and Collaboration Review Group will 
continue the work outlined by the NTS2 Roles and Responsibilities review. Initial work will expand and 
update the evidence base on transport governance and delivery across the country. This will be used to 
highlight and share good practice in the context of delivering the vision and priorities set out within the 
NTS2 and related Regional and Local Transport Strategies. The work will also inform longer term thinking 
on potentially strengthening the regional approach with a view to helping deliver better outcomes for 
citizens and businesses. 
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Will STPR2 undertake a review of funding 
streams, including for active travel 
infrastructure and local roads? 
 

Local authority funding of transport related services is out of scope for STPR2, in addition to ring-fencing of 
local authority budgets and revenue funding. As such, STPR2 will not consider a review of funding streams. 
The vast majority of funding to local authorities from the Scottish Government is provided via a block grant 
and we do not stipulate how local authorities should utilise their individual allocations. It is therefore the 
responsibility of each local authority to manage their own budget and to allocate the financial resources 
available to them on the basis of local needs and priorities, having first fulfilled their statutory obligations 
and the jointly agreed set of national and local priorities.  
 
Further information about options that are out of scope for STPR2 can be found in Appendix C of the 
National Case for Change report (available at https://www.transport.gov.scot/publication/initial-appraisal-
case-for-change-national-stpr2/) 
 

SCOPE & OPTIONS 

Why are some options out of scope for 
STPR2? 

The scope of STPR2 has been refined over the lifetime of the project, informed through discussions with 
the STPR2 Project Board and Transport Scotland’s Investment Decision Makers. Throughout the process, it 
has been acknowledged that STPR2 will not be able to address all transport problems and opportunities 
and that as such there will be some options which are out of scope. Appendix C of the National Case for 
Change report (available at https://www.transport.gov.scot/publication/initial-appraisal-case-for-change-
national-stpr2/) confirms the interventions and project types that have been deemed out of scope. It is also 
to be acknowledged that while some options may be considered out of scope for STPR2, there is the 
potential that they could be taken forward for development and delivery through a number of different 
workstreams including the Transport Governance and Collaboration Review Group, Islands Connectivity 
Plan, NTS2 Delivery Plan and Climate Change Plan update.  
  
STPR2 is ultimately a strategic study and so it is appropriate for scoping discussions to be considered at a 
national level, albeit with regional consideration. The process continues to have a regional approach and 
engagement with regional partners will continue to be important as the study progresses. 
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Will out of scope projects be reconsidered 
for inclusion in the STPR2 process? 

Given the need to progress the appraisal stages of STPR2 in order to keep to programme and publish a 
Delivery Plan containing the study recommendations by late 2021, there is a need to draw a line under the 
option sifting process. The scope of STPR2 was informed through detailed scoping discussions with the 
STPR2 Project Board and Transport Scotland’s Investment Decision Makers and while further consideration 
and discussion was given to the issue of scope in light of the comments received in response to the Case for 
Change reports, it is not intended to divert from the previously published list of out of scope interventions.  
 
Further information about options that are out of scope for STPR2 can be found in Appendix C of the 
National Case for Change report (available at https://www.transport.gov.scot/publication/initial-appraisal-
case-for-change-national-stpr2/) 
 

Are scoped out projects being considered 
elsewhere? 

Other workstreams, such as the Transport Governance and Collaboration Review Group, NTS2 Delivery 

Plan, the Islands Connectivity Plan and Climate Change Plan Update will consider a number of the scoped 

out interventions. The Case for Change Report(s) highlight local and regional options for consideration, as 

appropriate, by local and regional partners. 

How are out of scope options that require 
consideration at the national level being 
considered? 

While a number of national and strategic interventions raised through the STPR2 option generation process 
have been deemed to be out of scope, as set out in previous responses, there is the potential that they 
could be taken forward for development and delivery through a number of alternative workstreams 
including the Transport Governance and Collaboration Review Group, Islands Connectivity Plan, NTS2 
Delivery Plan and Climate Change Plan update. Transport Scotland officials have also engaged across 
Scottish Government in the development of STPR2, including the STPR2 Project Board, ensuring that wider 
teams within Government have an understanding of some of those key non-transport options e.g. digital 
connectivity and land use planning which while both out of scope for STPR2 merit further consideration 
through other parts of Scottish Government activity. 

Why does the long list contain local options 
when STPR2 is a strategic study? 

In line with the Initial Appraisal: Case for Change stage of STAG, all options have been considered and were 
included in the initial options long list. The initial long list was consolidated and refined and subsequently 
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sifted against a range of criteria, including deliverability and scope. On the whole, local options have been 
sifted out where they are not strategic, although some have been grouped together to form a strategic 
option e.g. those related to strategic bus priority or active travel. 

Will the definition of “strategic” be 
reconsidered? 

The definition of strategic has been confirmed by the STPR2 Project Board and Transport Scotland’s 
Investment Decision Makers and as such is very unlikely to change. 

Will options identified in STPR (2008) but 
not delivered be considered as part of 
STPR2? 

Yes. Recommendations from the first STPR, which have not been delivered nor form part of a programme 
for design development or delivery, will be reconsidered in STPR2.  

How are committed projects being dealt 
with? 

Projects that may be deemed as committed will be dealt with on a case by case basis, dependant on their 
development status, but are generally considered to be out of scope; unless they are identified as part of 
Phase 1. Phase 1 considers projects which can be delivered or significantly progressed in the next 2 – 3 
years and so it is considered appropriate for these to be scoped in. 

How does STPR fit with the recent rail 
projects prioritisation exercise just 
completed, and the pipeline approach? 

STPR2 can be considered the Strategic Business Case for recommendations made through that process, 
therefore Rail investments identified through STPR2 will enter the rail investment pipeline as set out in 
Transport Scotland's Rail Enhancements & Capital Investment Strategy. 

Why have some rail interventions been 
sifted out despite the rail network being 
"related to transport networks owned, 
operated and funded directly by Scottish 
Ministers"? 

Whilst many rail options were sifted in at Initial Appraisal Case for Change stage, some were sifted out for a 
number of reasons, including:  

• another option better addresses the same problem/opportunity; - the option is out of scope for 
STPR2 (such as options which relate to fares and funding (including operational subsidy);  

• the option is being progressed elsewhere (for example a scheme is committed or falls within 
existing franchise commitments); 

• the option is sifted out based on deliverability criteria (including affordability); or  

• the option is sifted out due to poor performance against transport planning objectives / sifting 
criteria. 
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A number of interventions already form 
part of current thinking and actions - how 
has Transport Scotland sought to ensure 
new or innovative options that can 
challenge the "business as usual" will be 
considered through the process? 

A wide-ranging Engagement and Consultation Strategy has been deployed to directly inform the generation 
of options and to help ensure new and innovative options are identified. This included Option Generation 
Workshops with stakeholders representing an array of organisations; Online Public Survey; Elected 
Members Briefing Sessions; and regular engagement with Regional Transport Working Groups and 
Transport Scotland/Scottish Government policy officials. This has been further supplemented by the STPR2 
consultant team (Jacobs / AECOM) applying professional expertise to consider additional interventions that 
address the identified problems and opportunities 

Why are local roads out of scope?  
 
Combined with the following for the 
purposes of fuller answer: 
 
Why are interventions directly related to 
the local road network included in Phase 1 
when local roads are out of scope? 

Local roads are generally out of scope for STPR2 as they are not considered to be nationally significant 
strategic roads such as the trunk road and motorway network. However, there are a number of exceptions 
to this, including: local roads used to access a major port or airport; local roads that provide access to a 
nationally significant NPF4 site; and options on local roads where amendments are required to support or 
facilitate changes to the strategic road network , or where they form part of a nationally strategic project, 
such as bus priority or active travel. It is to be noted that a strategic bus or active travel option on local 
roads does not result in all other options on that route being in scope (unless captured in the 
aforementioned list).    
 
As such, some local road options remain in the process. This includes interventions recommended within 
Phase 1 such as the development of Active Freeways (Intervention 1), the reallocation of space for active 
travel (Intervention 7) and reallocation of space for bus (intervention 10), each of which could play a 
significant role in supporting the NTS2 priorities. Similarly, the introduction of 20mph zones (Intervention 
2) has been taken forward due to its anticipated contribution towards creating a safer, healthier and 
greener Scotland, as committed in Scotland's Road Safety Framework to 2030.   
 
Further information about options that are out of scope for STPR2 can be found in Appendix C of the 
National Case for Change report (available at https://www.transport.gov.scot/publication/initial-appraisal-
case-for-change-national-stpr2/) 

Investment in the strategic road network 
asset is identified in Scotland’s Road Safety 

The strategic road network in this context is Scotland's trunk road network therefore Transport Scotland is 
responsible for delivering this action. 
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Framework 2030 and in the draft 
Infrastructure Investment Plan, how will 
this investment approach be delivered 
across the regional and local partners? 

How are regionally important non-trunk 
roads being considered if not as part of 
STPR2? 

The Case for Change Report(s) highlight local and regional options that have been scoped out of STPR2.  

These are for consideration, as appropriate, by local and regional partners. It is noted that local roads are 

being considered in STPR2 if they: are used to access a major port or airport; provide access to a nationally 

significant NPF4 site; and options on local roads where amendments are required to support or facilitate 

changes to the strategic road network including the provision of bus priority or active travel as part of 

potential strategic transport projects.  

Why are regionally significant roads scoped 
out whereas regionally significant active 
travel projects are scoped in? 

Walking, wheeling and cycling sit at the top of the Sustainable Travel Hierarchy whereas travel by private 
vehicles is at the bottom. Given their importance in supporting NTS2 Priorities, it was considered 
appropriate for strategic active travel projects to be scoped in. Roads are also scoped in but this is limited 
to trunk roads and local roads which: provide access to a major port or airport; provide access to a 
nationally significant NPF4 site; and options on local roads where amendments are required to support or 
facilitate changes to the strategic road network including the provision of bus priority or active travel.  
 
Further information about options that are out of scope for STPR2 can be found in Appendix C of the 
National Case for Change report (available at https://www.transport.gov.scot/publication/initial-appraisal-
case-for-change-national-stpr2/) 

Will consideration be given to changing the 
default speed limit to 20mph zones in 
illuminated areas at a national level as part 
of the Phase 1 workstream? 

In the Phase 1 Recommendations Report, “Intervention 2: Expansion of 20mph zones” considers the 
expansion of 20mph zones in urban areas. Although the intervention considers the development of a 
national strategy to guide the implementation of 20mph zones and limits, it is not within Transport 
Scotland’s remit to impose a default speed limit. Prior to widespread roll-out, as set out in the Phase 1 
Report, it will be important to evaluate the effectiveness of measures introduced to date, with Transport 
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Scotland’s role more appropriately focused on providing guidance and advice to local authorities (and other 
partners where appropriate) in their implementation of 20mph zones and limits. 

How can active travel infrastructure in 
towns be implemented if options related 
to the local road network are out of scope? 

Given their importance in supporting NTS2 Priorities, it was considered appropriate for strategic active 

travel projects to be scoped in, which as indicated in the question are likely to be located on local roads.  

Outwith this context local roads are generally out of scope, although there are a number of other 

exceptions as outlined above.  

 
Further information about options that are out of scope for STPR2 can be found in Appendix C of the 
National Case for Change report (available at https://www.transport.gov.scot/publication/initial-appraisal-
case-for-change-national-stpr2/)  

What does the term 'Active Freeways' 
mean and how does it differ from existing 
active travel infrastructure approaches? "is 
there a risk that by focusing on high-
demand travel corridors, that many small 
and mid-sized towns in Scotland which 
could benefit from active freeways 
investment miss out?" 
 

The Active Freeways concept was born from a desire to focus on high demand active travel routes rather 
than just cycling routes. There is no specific rationale behind the use of the term ‘Freeway’. 
STPR2 is considering a number of active travel corridor “types”, which cater for a range of distances. 
Although this includes high-demand travel corridors such as Active Freeways, the following groupings are 
also being considered at preliminary appraisal stage:  
 

• Village – Town Active Travel Connections: Options to provide active travel routes from villages to a 
nearby town or regional centre.  

• Long distance active travel network: Implementation of high-quality segregated long-distance 
routes for people walking, wheeling and cycling across Scotland.  

• Connecting Scotland’s Towns: Implementation of medium-distance active travel routes linking 
corridors where these connections are not made up of long-distance routes. 

• Connected Neighbourhoods: Options to make urban and suburban neighbourhoods in Scotland’s 
cities and towns more conducive for active travel by improving conditions for walking, wheeling 
and cycling and reducing traffic dominance. 
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How will public transport fares be 
considered given this is out of scope for 
STPR2? 

Local transport authorities are already able to influence bus fares using the provisions of the Transport 
(Scotland) Act 2019, both in terms of alternative governance models and through ticketing arrangements. 
However, it is expected that STPR2 will make recommendations concerning the provision of funding to 
support greater take-up of smart and integrated ticketing. Fares will be considered in parallel workstreams, 
including as part of the Transport Governance and Collaboration Review Group and a fares policy review 
will be considered as part of the Islands Connectivity Plan. 
 
 Further information about options that are out of scope for STPR2 can be found in Appendix C of the 
National Case for Change report (available at https://www.transport.gov.scot/publication/initial-appraisal-
case-for-change-national-stpr2/) 

Why is revenue funding, including for 
public transport, out of scope? 

Transport Scotland has provided substantial levels of revenue funding for public transport services during 
the pandemic, and continues to do so. However, there is a high degree of uncertainty in future travel 
demand and Transport Scotland is instigating a wide programme of analysis and policy development to 
ensure that public transport in Scotland continues to serve the wellbeing of the people of Scotland and is 
responsive and flexible to future needs. Therefore, the final nature of the policy on revenue support will be 
dependent on the position as we transition out of the pandemic.  
 
Further information about options that are out of scope for STPR2 can be found in Appendix C of the 
National Case for Change report (available at https://www.transport.gov.scot/publication/initial-appraisal-
case-for-change-national-stpr2/) 

Why are behaviour change interventions 
considered in Phase 1 when revenue 
funding is out of scope? 

An overarching aim of STPR2 Phase 1 is to “lock in” the benefits and travel behaviours of individuals caused 
by the COVID19 pandemic, and provide a step change in investment which supports the priorities and 
outcomes of the National Transport Strategy. Travel Behaviour Change campaigns can play a key role in this 
regard, building on the fact that people’s travel choices can change in response to external stimuli, giving 
confidence of the appropriateness of campaigns and initiatives that seek to positively influence behaviours. 
By helping to 'lock-in' the benefits of the positive effects on travel choices that COVID-19 has had in terms 
of increased active travel levels, travel behaviour change campaigns building on Scotland’s experience in 
this area would support ongoing efforts to influence sustainable travel choices, in order to deliver long 
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term modal shift and contribute to Scotland’s net zero targets, aiding a green economic recovery following 
the pandemic. As set out in the Phase 1 Report, work is being scoped out on how campaigns could be 
delivered but could be via both revenue and capital funding.    
 

Are demand restraint measures covered as 
part of STPR2? 

A number of measures aimed at managing travel demand are being considered at preliminary appraisal 
stage, which captures measures to effectively manage travel demand and encourage more sustainable 
travel options. This includes measures such as reallocation of road space and behaviour change campaigns.  
 
It is to be noted however that other potential forms of demand management measures are out of scope if 
they require legislative change, changes to transport regulation or changes in vehicle regulation and vehicle 
excise duty, for example. Workplace Parking Levies are also out of scope in the context of an intervention 
coming through STPR2, on the basis that there is already provision for local authorities to undertake this in 
the Transport (Scotland) Act 

The majority of public transport services in 
rural areas are not commercially viable and 
require ongoing public sector subsidy in 
recognition of the significant and often 
lifeline function they provide. As such, why 
is governance of bus services out of scope 
for STPR2? 

The Transport (Scotland) Act 2019 sets out options for local transport authorities who wish to change 
governance arrangements, including use of municipal operations, partnerships and franchising. However, 
Transport governance in Scotland will be considered by the Transport Governance and Collaboration 
Review Group. This contains representatives from COSLA and RTPs and is considering an update and 
revision to the evidence base on Scotland’s transport governance structures. Their work also links to a 
wider local governance review, which is considering how powers and resources should be shared between 
national and local government and with communities.  
 
Further information about options that are out of scope for STPR2 can be found in Appendix C of the 
National Case for Change report (available at https://www.transport.gov.scot/publication/initial-appraisal-
case-for-change-national-stpr2/) 

How is Demand Responsive and 
Community Transport being considered in 
STPR2? 

Interventions related to Demand Responsive and Community Transport are in scope for STPR2, excluding 
interventions that require revenue funding.   
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How are Demand Responsive Transport 
and Community Transport options being 
progressed if revenue funding is out of 
scope? 

In the STPR2 Phase 1 Recommendations Report, Intervention 6 relates to "Investment in Demand 
Responsive Transport and Community Transport". This intervention recognises that there has been a 
significant decline in bus use over the last decade or so, and across Scotland there is a need to consider 
alternative, innovative solutions which pull resources to ensure that levels of bus service provision are in 
place to enhance connectivity, provide inclusive access to jobs, and address issues of isolation and 
remoteness, particularly in rural areas. The use of capital funding to take forward and pilot demand 
responsive demonstration projects, such as MaaS, is therefore a key consideration that will be taken 
forward through STPR2. The need for action to ensure that bus remains a viable mode of transport is 
particularly pressing over the short-term period covered by STPR2 Phase 1 due to the impacts that the 
COVID-19 pandemic has caused in exacerbating issues associated with bus patronage decline and the 
increased financial subsidy requirements that have resulted.   
 
Demand Responsive and Community Transport is also being captured in the Phase 2 workstream as a 
distinct grouping. This grouping considers options such as capital funding for new vehicles, pilot schemes 
and demonstration projects that seek to draw on innovative solutions; perhaps supported by MaaS or 
smart technology where appropriate, or on international best practice in bus service provision.   
 

As the majority of road and public 
transport infrastructure serving rural, 
island and peripheral areas is owned and 
operated by local authorities and as such, 
by excluding local infrastructure and 
revenue funding from STPR2, is there a risk 
that proposed intervention will fail to 
improve rural accessibility over the lifetime 
of this strategy? 
 
Combined with:  
 

While aspects of the local road and public transport infrastructure remain out of scope for STPR2, it is 
considered that there are a number of options that would seek to address rural accessibility challenges, 
including in scope local road options and in scope MaaS, Demand Responsive and Community Transport 
and ferry / island connectivity options.  
 
With regards to public transport specifically, STPR2 put forward recommendations during Phase 1 that 
funding should be provided for pilot studies to examine more cost-effective ways of providing flexible 
demand responsive and community transport services, given the constraints on revenue funding. 
 
While the Phase 2 work is ongoing and recommendations will only emerge following conclusion of the 
appraisal stages, amongst the options under consideration include the extension of grant funding for zero-
emission vehicles to include smaller vehicles and non-scheduled services, and provision of funding towards 

P
age 93



 

Question Response 

How are Demand Responsive Transport 
and Community Transport options being 
progressed if revenue funding is out of 
scope? 

digital platforms, supporting more efficient service scheduling and the use of MaaS techniques to improve 
passenger information, booking and payment options. Although these options could benefit all areas of 
Scotland, they are considered to be particularly relevant in rural areas. 

How is bus priority being considered at 
Phase 1? 

In the Phase 1 Recommendations Report, “Intervention 10: Reallocation of road space for buses" focuses 
on the development and implementation of bus priority measures to increase the attractiveness of bus as a 
mode of transport, assisting with the recovery in bus patronage post-COVID-19.  
 
This will be realised through the £500m Bus Partnership Fund, which was launched in 2020 to support local 
authorities, in partnership with bus operators, to develop bus priority measures designed to tackle the 
negative impact of congestion on bus services so that bus journeys are quicker and more reliable – 
encouraging more people to travel by bus. The first round of funding was awarded in June 2021 and a 
second round of bids are due for submission in October 2021. In addition to promotion of bus priority 
interventions on the local road network, Transport Scotland through its Managed Motorways workstream 
is also looking to identify bus priority measures on Scotland’s trunk road network, including interventions 
to improve access from the local road network onto the motorway (e.g. ramp metering or Merge-in-Turn), 
as well as measures on the mainline to improve conditions for buses (e.g. the use of hard shoulders, or 
variable speed limits). Transport Scotland has consulted on the provision of an Actively Managed Hard 
Shoulder for bus only over a section of the M8 and M9 motorways. This is expected to reduce bus journey 
times and improve reliability, particularly at Claylands (Junction 2 of the M8) and on approach to Hermiston 
Gait (Junction 1 of the M8). 

Why are Mass Transit groupings in 
Glasgow, Edinburgh and Aberdeen being 
taken forward for further consideration 
when the approach to sifting appears to 
have focused on sifting options that do not 
fall under the role/ownership of assets of 
Transport Scotland? 

Phase 1 captures Glasgow and Edinburgh Mass Transit options through Intervention 9 “Development of 
Glasgow ‘Metro’ and Edinburgh Mass Transit strategies”. Glasgow Metro considers one or more of bus 
rapid transit, tram, light rail and/ or metro rail, with the network complementing and being integrated with 
the bus and heavy rail networks and Edinburgh Mass Transit considers Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) and Tram 
and would complement and integrate with the current bus, tram and heavy rail networks. These 
interventions, alongside Aberdeen Mass Transit, are also being considered in Phase 2 and each of the 
modes listed are within scope for STPR2; although there are some exceptions, for example revenue funding 
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for public transport which is out of scope. It is recognised that Transport Scotland would need to work in 
partnership with local and regional partners to progress some options captured under Mass Transit 
groupings. 
 
A number of additional intervention recommendations in Phase 1 are being considered in Phase 2 (e.g. 
Active Travel Freeways, expansion of 20 mph zones, mobility hubs) also fall outside the ownership of 
Transport Scotland. It is recognised that Transport Scotland would need to work in partnership with local 
and regional partners to progress these interventions further. 

Why are only CHFS and NIFS ferry services 
in scope when STPR2 is a national review? 

Transport Scotland provides direct support for ferry services on the Clyde and Hebrides Ferry Services 
(CHFS) and Northern Isles Ferry Services (NIFS) network.  The current Ferries Plan is due to be replaced by 
the end of 2022 in the form of the Islands Connectivity Plan although this is likely to differ from the present 
form of the Ferries Plan. It will be developed within the policy context provided by the National Transport 
Strategy and National Islands Plan, which are themselves aligned to the Scottish Government’s Purpose and 
National Outcomes. It will be closely linked to the Strategic Transport Projects Review, in order to consider 
island connectivity more broadly. Problems and opportunities analysis carried out through STPR2 related to 
Scotland's inter-island transport networks, including the findings from stakeholder engagement undertaken 
with island communities, has been shared with the Islands Connectivity Plan team.   
 
Further information about options that are out of scope for STPR2 can be found in Appendix C of the 
National Case for Change report (available at https://www.transport.gov.scot/publication/initial-appraisal-
case-for-change-national-stpr2/) 

Why are air services, including inter-island 
air services which form a similar role to 
buses and rail in other parts of Scotland, 
out of scope? 
 

As outlined in the National Transport Strategy, we all have a responsibility for delivering the Strategy and 
making sure it is a success. STPR2 will help contribute to the delivery of a number of the outcomes and 
priorities of the Strategy. The strategic options or interventions to be considered within STPR2 have been 
informed through discussions with the STPR2 Project Board and Transport Scotland. Throughout the 
process, it has been acknowledged that STPR2 will not be able to address all transport problems and 
opportunities and that some options will not be in the scope of STPR2 to deliver. Accordingly, options 
related to air services, including the operation and expansion of airports or new flights / changes to existing 
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flights are out of scope. As set out above, an Islands Connectivity Plan will be developed as a successor to 
the Ferries Plan 2013-22, which will consider island connectivity more broadly, having regard to aviation (as 
well as ferries and to connecting and onward travel). The evidence base collected through STPR2 related to 
aviation will be used to support the development of the Islands Connectivity Plan.  
 
Transport Scotland is in the process of developing an Aviation Strategy, which will explore different options 
for accelerating the transition to low and zero emission aviation and consider how we can work in 
partnership with industry to restore Scotland’s connectivity in a way which reduces the environmental 
impact. We will carry out a public consultation on our forthcoming Aviation Strategy later this year. 
 
Further information about options that are out of scope for STPR2 can be found in Appendix C of the 
National Case for Change report (available at https://www.transport.gov.scot/publication/initial-appraisal-
case-for-change-national-stpr2/) 

Why is maintenance out of scope for 
STPR2? 

Revenue funded routine and cyclic maintenance are out of scope for all modes as they constitute business 
as usual works, undertaken under the responsibility of relevant bodies e.g. by the trunk road operating 
companies in the case of the trunk road network and by local authorities on the non-trunk road network 
etc. Budgets will continue to be provided to Local Authorities that will allow them to make decisions on 
how they want to invest in their local road network. Capital programmed Motorway and Trunk Road 
network renewals and improvements are in scope of STPR2 as they contribute to maintaining and safely 
operating existing assets, by investing in the network for reliability, resilience and safety.  
 
Further information about options that are out of scope for STPR2 can be found in Appendix C of the 
National Case for Change report (available at https://www.transport.gov.scot/publication/initial-appraisal-
case-for-change-national-stpr2/) 

How are options and groupings linked? 
What process has been followed to 
develop groupings? 

Over 13,000 ‘ideas’ were generated across all regions through an extensive engagement process. These 
were subsequently refined, consolidated and sifted to create a list of around 2,800 options or interventions 
that emerged following the sifting exercise undertaken at the Initial Appraisal: Case for Change stage. An 
exercise was then undertaken to group those interventions which were similar in nature; this has resulted 
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in around 80 groupings being taken forward to the Preliminary Options Appraisal stage, and has aided 
manageability of the appraisal exercise. The options recommended from the three Advanced Regions 
(Borders, North East Scotland and South West Scotland) were included in that grouping exercise, following 
a review against the STPR2 Sifting Criteria. The outcomes of those reviews are reported in the Option 
Sifting Update Reports whereby 35 options from the North East remained in-scope for further 
consideration in STPR2. 
 
These reports can be found in the ‘Option Sifting Update Reports for the Advanced Regions’ section of the 
STPR2 website (available at https://www.transport.gov.scot/our-approach/strategy/strategic-transport-
projects-review-2/#section-63218) 
 
In short, groupings are made up of individual options and were developed to help provide consistency 
across the multiple STPR2 options and a more proportionate yet robust appraisal. 
 

APPRAISAL 

Which criteria was used to assess the long 
list and sift to a short list? What are the 
next steps in the appraisal process? 
 
Which criteria is being used to assess 
groupings at preliminary appraisal stage?  
 
Which criteria is being used to assess 
groupings at detailed appraisal stage?  
 

Options in the North East of Scotland were generated through the Aberdeen City Region Deal Strategic 
Transport Appraisal: Pre-Appraisal, published October 2020. As part of the Pre-Appraisal, a high level 
appraisal of options was undertaken against Transport Planning Objectives, Modal Issues and Deliverability 
criteria. Option packages were subsequently developed and they were added to the STPR2 long list to sit 
alongside options from all other regions.  
 
Options in the STPR2 long list were assessed against multiple sifting criteria, with options sifted if:  
· they did not contribute to addressing the five STPR2 Transport Planning Objective (TPOs); and/or  
· they were not considered to be deliverable (including those which could not be directly delivered or at 
least facilitated by Transport Scotland); and/or  
· they were not considered to be strategic or within the scope of STPR2; and/or  
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· they did not offer the best solution to sufficiently address the identified problems / opportunities in the 
context of the Sustainable Investment Hierarchy (i.e. another option higher up the hierarchy addressed the 
same problem / opportunity as well or better).  
 
 

Which criteria is being used to assess 
groupings at preliminary appraisal stage?  

Groupings (rather than options) are being assessed against the STPR2 Transport Planning Objectives (TPOs), 
STAG criteria (Environment, Safety, Economy, Accessibility and Social Inclusion, and Integration), Statutory 
Impact Assessments (SIAs) and deliverability criteria. In line with STAG guidance, the assessment has been 
largely qualitative at this stage.  
 
Groupings taken through the appraisal process have also been assessed using a scenarios approach, based 
on looking at a range of possible futures and how the possible interventions behave in them. For the initial 
appraisal, two variants of travel behaviour have been considered – a ‘high motorised travel’ scenario and a 
‘low motorised travel’ scenario. These variants contain elements of travel behaviour change that have been 
accelerated by the COVID-19 crisis, for example increased working from home. One variant will also include 
what could be described as ‘with outcome’, in that it will describe a future in which the 20% reduction in 
car vehicle kilometres by 2030 and net zero by 2045 are achieved.  
 
Performance of the groupings under these scenarios will inform the recommendations on which groupings 
are taken forward to the next stage in appraisal. 

Which criteria is being used to assess 
groupings at detailed appraisal stage?  
 

Qualitative and where appropriate quantitative (where possible) appraisal of multi-modal intervention 
‘packages’ made up of the groupings and interventions will be undertaken. 
 
The packages will be assessed under alternative future scenarios which are being developed to represent 
different levels of travel demand. At the final appraisal stage, these future scenarios will be reflected in the 
various appraisal tools which are being prepared to support the appraisal, enabling a more quantitative 
assessment of an intervention’s impacts to be made.  
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Packages will be appraised under the defined future scenarios with specific consideration given to 
performance against the STPR2 TPOs, the STAG Criteria, SIAs, Inclusive Growth, Cost to Government and 
Risk and Uncertainty. 

Will RTWGs be involved in the preliminary 
and detailed appraisal of groupings? 

The intention is for the STPR2 team to undertake appraisal of groupings. However, for some groupings, 
where needed, we are looking to discuss with relevant Regional Transport Working Group (RTWG) 
members and other stakeholders where appropriate, aspects of the appraisal of some specific 
interventions. This is to assist in filling in identified gaps in information/knowledge or evidence as well as 
ensuring alignment with regional plans that are already underway, for example for MT3 Aberdeen Mass 
Transit grouping, which has overlap with plans in the North East to develop ‘Aberdeen Rapid Transit’. 

Is there scope for interventions to be 
appraised as standalone? 

At the current stage, it is the groupings that are being assessed against multiple criteria, including the 
STPR2 Transport Planning Objectives, STAG criteria, Statutory Impact Assessments, and Deliverability 
criteria. Groupings are made up of individual options and although some (e.g. Mass Transit groupings, such 
as Aberdeen Mass Transit) are location specific and may be viewed as standalone options, these are also 
made up of multiple individual options. Assessing the groupings provides a proportionate 
approach compared to individually assessing each of the options within that grouping against the full range 
of appraisal criteria. However, based on consideration of the individual option’s rationale/evidence for 
inclusion within each grouping, a decision has been made as to whether groupings are taken forward in 1) 
full (all options within that grouping), 2) part (some but not all options in that grouping) or 3) grouping not 
taken forward to the later stages of appraisal. 

How will regional and local sifted in options 
be considered as part of the Appraisal, 
whilst ensuring specific option details are 
not lost?  
 

The use of groupings will help provide consistency across the multiple STPR2 options alongside a 

proportionate yet robust appraisal. The options have not ‘been lost’, they are there and being assessed 

within the overarching grouping appraisal at Preliminary Options Appraisal stage. The key decisions during 

the preliminary phase of the appraisal process will be whether groupings are taken forward in 1) full (all 

options within that grouping), 2) part (some but not all options in that grouping) or 3) grouping not taken 

forward to further appraisal. Packages of interventions will be developed from the groupings and related 
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options.  once they have been through preliminary appraisal.  We are ensuring that we can audit and track 

individual options through the appraisal process.  

How will relevant sifted out options be 
passed onto Local Authorities and Regional 
Transport Partnerships for their own 
consideration? 

The Case for Change Report(s) highlight local and regional options for consideration, as appropriate, by 

local and regional partners.  

How will RTWGs be engaged going forward 
for the duration of STPR2? 

It is proposed that the Regional Transport Working Groups (RTWG) will be engaged through 1-2-1 sessions 
due to be held in mid-August and October; the confirmed dates for the North East are Thursday 19th 
August and Monday 11th October. We will also be held a National MS Teams Live Session giving an 
overview on the next stages of Appraisal. Working Group Members from all 11 regions will be invited to 
attend the event to be held at the end of July.  
 
Thank you also to North East RTWG representatives that attended the recent new Regional Reference 
Group which will meet every 4 - 6 weeks. The purpose of the Reference Group is to facilitate timely 
engagement between RTWGs, Transport Scotland and the Jacobs/AECOM consultancy team on STPR2 on 
relevant topics of common interest across all regions. 

How will sifted in options, which sit under 
the direct control of local authorities / 
Regional Transport Partnerships, be dealt 
with? 
 
Combined with: 
 
Where local or regional options have been 
sifted in, how and when will the roles of 
local authorities / regional transport 

Transport Scotland currently funds a number of projects or interventions that are delivered by RTPs and 
LAs so we will build on those arrangements as appropriate.  However the specific project governance of any 
option that requires joint working with relevant partners to allow delivery to be established at the outset of 
the project to ensure clear roles and responsibilities of the stakeholders involved. Where possible this will 
build on pre-existing relationships, but it acknowledged that some of these will be new and will need time 
to develop.  This topic has also been highlighted for further discussion at the Regional Reference Group and 
we look forward to working with RTWGs representatives on this.   
 
It is also worth noting that STPR2 is one of the delivery mechanisms of the National Transport Strategy 2 
(NTS2), and building on the work of the NTS2 Roles and Responsibilities review, the Transport Governance 
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partnerships and Transport Scotland be 
defined in terms of delivery relationship? 

and Collaboration Review Group will continue to consider how to improve transport governance and 
delivery across the country to ensure the NTS delivers for citizens and business across Scotland. 
 

How are City and Growth Deal projects 
being dealt with through STPR2? 

Across Scotland different City / Growth Deals are at different stages of business case development. 
Proposals with links to STPR2 will therefore be considered on a case by case basis, including for the 
Aberdeen City Region Deal. Transport Scotland will continue to engage with City Deal and Growth Deal 
partners to understand the status of projects, the impacts they may have on the strategic transport 
network, and links to STPR2. This engagement will also include clarification on the status of how City / 
Growth Deal projects are considered as part of STPR2. 

How will the regional transport appraisal 
be undertaken for City and Growth Deal 
projects? 

Transport Scotland is keen to work in partnership with the various City and Growth Deal teams across 
Scotland with regards to transport modelling tools and data developed and gathered for STPR2 and that 
clear synergy between the work streams will be required to ensure all interventions within the City and 
Growth Deals are captured in the modelling for STPR2. These exercises are not, however, one and the 
same. The City and Growth Deal appraisals requires to understand the regional and local impact of the 
projects upon the strategic and local transport networks, while the STPR2 related modelling and appraisal 
will assess the requirements for improvements to the strategic network by utilising both regional and 
national models and data, and where localised improvements are identified, Transport Scotland will work 
with partners to ensure these are progressed through the appropriate channels. 
 
It is further noted that STPR2 does not negate the need, in line with Scottish Planning Policy, for 
development proposals that have the potential to affect the performance or safety of the strategic 
transport network to be fully assessed by the promotor of the site to determine their impact, or appraised 
by Planning authorities through the Development Planning process 
 

Is the appraisal approach biased towards 
road and rail schemes? 
 

The policy and strategy landscape has moved on significantly since the first STPR was published over ten 
years ago, including around: NTS2 Priorities and outcomes and the Sustainable Investment Hierarchy; 
Climate Change Plan Update, which includes policies such as a 20% reduction in car kilometres by 2030; 
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and legal requirements around Net Zero and Islands Community Impact Assessments. Transport Scotland 
has sought to embed all these factors into the appraisal process in order to ensure that STPR2 helps to 
deliver the NTS2 outcomes and support wider Net Zero and equalities commitments. As such the scope of 
modes being considered in STPR2 has also broadened when compared to STPR1. 
Whilst STPR2 is following STAG and therefore is an objective led, evidence-based process (and that process 
should not be pre-judged), based on what has been built into the appraisal process and looking at the wide 
range of interventions being considered, it is not anticipated that schemes will all be road and rail related 
this time around. 

NPF4 

Which nationally significant sites will be 
included NPF4? If not known at present, 
when will this information be made 
available? It is important to understand as 
local road access to NPF4 sites is in scope. 

Work is ongoing on the development of NPF4 and therefore it is not possible to confirm which nationally 
significant developments are in NPF4 at this stage. The STPR2 team remain in close dialogue with the NPF4 
team given the need to align these respective workstreams. It is currently anticipated that the draft NPF4 
document will be published in the Autumn. 

SPATIAL 

How is connectivity being addressed 
specifically for rural areas? Are existing 
groupings, such as MaaS, Car Clubs and 
active travel sufficient to address the 
problems identified in rural areas? 

MaaS, Car Clubs and active travel measures form an important part of options / groupings in rural areas but 
there are also options / groupings related to Demand Responsive and Community Transport, behavioural 
change campaigns, ferry / island connectivity and others which look to address problems identified in rural 
areas. The full list of identified problems can be found in the regional Case for Change reports and National 
Case for Change report. 

How were differences between urban and 
rural areas taken into consideration in the 
development and appraisal of options? 

STPR2 is a national project that is being taken forward in line with Scottish Transport Appraisal Guidance 
(STAG) to support the delivery of an evidence-based, objective led transport appraisal. On this basis, 
options which are urban and rural based have been assessed against the same assessment criteria. One 
element of the appraisal is an assessment against the Transport Planning Objectives (TPOs). The STPR2 

P
age 102



 

Question Response 

TPOs sit at an overarching national level and are closely aligned with the NTS2 priorities and outcomes. 
However, it is to be reminded that a series of regional sub-objectives sits within the overall direction of the 
national TPOs but with a focus on the specific evidence-based problems and opportunities for each of the 
individual STPR2 regions. Accordingly, with consideration of the regional sub-objectives in mind, at the 
preliminary appraisal stage, it may be appropriate for interventions to perform slightly differently across 
regions mindful of the differences in the types of problems, opportunities and travel characteristics across 
Scotland.  
 
With regard to option development, a range of approaches were used to generate interventions across 
Scotland for consideration through the STPR2 process, including option generation workshops in around 30 
locations, as well as an online survey promoted to the public and wider stakeholders engaged throughout 
the process. 
 
This inclusive approach has ensured option generation has taken place in a truly open manner, with no 
limitations placed on the types of options generated, with options requested across all modes and all parts 
of the country. 

Will any areas of Scotland, such as rural, 
remote and island communities, be 
untouched by STPR2, and if so, how will 
these areas be supported in terms of 
investment and development associated 
with transport to assist progress towards 
the NTS2? 

STPR2 is a strategic Scotland wide study and has been developed to consider all areas of Scotland. STAG 
does not prioritise particular geographic areas and all options are being assessed against a consistent set of 
appraisal criteria in an equitable way (and indeed were assessed against the same criteria at sifting stage). 

Provide an update on the Islands 
Connectivity Plan, including how: It links 
with STPR2; How it will comprehensively 
cover the connection needs of all islands 

With regard to the scope of the ICP this has still to be discussed with Ministers, however it is not envisaged 
that its scope would extend to island or any other road networks. However, as you likely aware, given the 
importance of ferries to Island communities, Transport Scotland’s Ferries Unit meets regularly with Island 
Authorities and looks forward to continuing this as they develop the ICP.   
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and peninsulas; and how it will be strategic 
and long term. 

COVID-19 & Phase 1 

How has Covid-19 and the impact of the 
pandemic on transport been taken into 
consideration in the appraisal process? 

Throughout the development of STPR2, the need to consider future uncertainties and how these could 
impact the appropriateness of recommendations has been an ongoing consideration. These uncertainties 
have been brought to the fore, more than ever, by the COVID-19 pandemic which has the potential to 
significantly impact future travel patterns and attitudes to travel.  
 
As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, as set out in the Scottish Government’s Programme for Government 
published in September 2020, STPR2 has been restructured with delivery in two phases. Phase 1 was 
introduced to help expedite the development of interventions to embed, support and extend the increase 
in travel by sustainable modes; and support economic recovery following the pandemic. Accordingly, Phase 
1 identified projects which:  
· could be delivered or significantly progressed within the next 2 - 3 years;  
· would support a green, inclusive and sustainable economic recovery following the pandemic and would 
help to lock in sustainable travel behaviours observed during periods of lockdown; and  
· were likely to make a significant contribution to STPR2 Transport Planning Objectives.  
 
The Phase 1 assessment was undertaken at a time of huge uncertainty for the transport system. Long-term 
transport trends have been substantially disrupted by COVID-19, and the transport impacts arising from 
economic and social changes caused by the pandemic are far from being fully understood. Therefore, in the 
absence of perfect foresight and in order to reflect this uncertainty in the assessment process, the 
anticipated contribution of each measure to the STPR2 objectives was considered against three scenarios. 
 
· Scenario 1 – Without COVID-19 (Simplistic): Assumed the movement and travel characteristics that would 
have been expected if the pandemic had not occurred, and so was based on pre-COVID-19 data, trends and 
policy priorities.  
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· Scenario 2 – Post COVID-19 (Quicker return to Pre COVID-19 travel behaviours): Accounted for COVID-19 
but assumed a relatively strong recovery towards previous travel patterns, such as may occur following 
introduction of an effective COVID-19 vaccine and a suppression of case numbers.  
· Scenario 3 – Post COVID-19 (Maintaining Lockdown behaviours): Has key characteristics that could be the 
result of ongoing advice to maintain physical distancing and lasting changes in people’s need/willingness to 
travel, especially to large urban centres.  
 
The scenarios being developed for Phase 2 in STPR2 will be for the medium and longer term (next 20 years) 
and it was therefore considered that they do not need to consider the details of the present COVID-19 
crisis. It is assumed that some effective means of managing coronavirus will be found. Lasting responses to 
the crisis will however need to be taken into account, a most obvious example being that a major part of 
the economy has carried out a very large-scale experiment into the feasibility of consistent working at 
home. 

What is the focus of Phase 1? As set out in the Scottish Government’s Programme for Government published in September 2020, as a 
result of the COVID-19 pandemic, it was decided to take forward STPR2 in two phases. The focus of Phase 1 
is on recommendations for investment by Transport Scotland designed to support a green economic 
recovery following the COVID-19 pandemic. To this effect, recommendations set out in Phase 1 were those 
for which there was a high degree of confidence they would perform well against the following criteria:  
 
-Can be delivered or significantly progressed in the short term.  
-Will make a significant contribution to some or all of the STPR2 objectives.   
-Will support a fair and sustainable economic recovery following the COVID-19 pandemic, and help lock in 
the sustainable travel behaviours observed during lockdown and contribute to addressing the increasing 
car dependence and low public transport usage.  
 
Phase 2 of STPR2 will report on a wider, more comprehensive set of interventions for investment over a 20-
year period. 
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Why is there a lot of emphasis on active 
travel at Phase 1 when a focal point of this 
work is recovery from the COVID-19 
pandemic? 

Transport projects which performed well against a number of criteria were included in Phase 1. The criteria 
included COVID-19 recovery priorities but also includes alignment with NTS2 Priorities, contribution 
towards STPR2 objectives and whether projects can be delivered or significantly progressed within the 
short term. NTS2 includes a priority related to taking climate action and helping to deliver net zero 
emissions target and similarly, one of the STPR2 objectives relates to the net zero emissions target. Active 
travel projects can also typically be delivered in shorter timescales and can also help to "lock-in" an 
increase in sustainable travel behaviours recorded during the pandemic. However, interventions from a 
range of modes were recommended at Phase 1 and no specific focus was given to active travel. 

Given the impact of COVID-19 on travel 
patterns, is it not better to wait until new 
travel patterns are established to complete 
STPR2? 

The speed and scale of collapse in economic and social activity as a result of COVID-19 has been 
unprecedented and has had a significant impact on travel demand. Some aspects of travel demand are 
expected to recover once government restrictions and recommendations are lifted, however there are also 
likely to be more complex and longer lasting changes in travel patterns.  
 
Transport will have an important role to play in the short term recovery from the pandemic. As set out in 
the Scottish Government’s Programme for Government published in September 2020, as a result of the 
COVID-19 pandemic, it was decided to take forward STPR2 in two phases, with Phase 1 focusing on 
recommendations designed to support a green economic recovery following the pandemic. This included 
recommendations that could be delivered or significantly progressed in the short term, could support a fair 
and sustainable economic recovery following the pandemic, and could help lock in the sustainable travel 
behaviours observed during lockdown, contributing to addressing increasing car dependence and declining 
public transport usage.  
 
The purpose of transport interventions is not only to respond to existing and forecast travel demand, but 
also to influence travel behaviours. Phase 2 will report on recommendations for delivery over a longer 
period (20-years). While it may seem intuitive to wait and see how travel patterns change in the medium to 
long term, it will be more difficult to influence these changes once they have been established. Failure to 
intervene could have lasting implications in various domains including the viability of public transport 
services, environmental sustainability, and longer term economic recovery from the pandemic.  
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Future uncertainty, while undoubtedly greater as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, was always 
recognised as an important consideration for STPR2, in response to the publication of an ambitious NTS2 
seeking to bring about sustainable travel changes within a twenty year investment horizon. In order to 
better understand this uncertainty, a Scenario Planning approach is being adopted to understand the 
performance of transport interventions in different future scenarios. 

How are Phase 1 interventions being 
funded? Will local authorities be provided 
with increased longer term budgets, 
including revenue funding, to help deliver 
Phase 1 interventions? 

Phase 1 is viewed essentially as prioritising and focussing existing levels of committed transport investment 
to realise the key objectives set for this phase of supporting recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic. In 
doing so there may be some leveraging of elements of additional funding or reprioritisation of existing 
funding to help deliver these prioritised interventions.  
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NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 15 September 2021 

 

 

4.1    Bus Partnership Fund Update 

 

 

 Purpose of Report 

 
The purpose of this report is to formally inform the Board of the success of the North East’s bid 

to Transport Scotland’s Bus Partnership Fund, update on progress since the award was made 

and request approval to appoint consultants to progress delivery of the Aberdeen Rapid Transit 

strand of work.  

 Background 

 
As reported to the Board in June 2021 a bid was submitted by Aberdeen City Council, on behalf 

of the North East Bus Alliance, to the Scottish Government’s Bus Partnership Fund on 16th April 

2021.  In summary, the bid was focussed on the following key points: 

 

a) Only a visionary, ambitious proposal will lead to significant change; 

b) With an ambition to deliver an Aberdeen Rapid Transit system, the application focusses 

on developing the Business Case for ART and delivering significant bus priority on the 

four main radial routes from Aberdeenshire into Aberdeen and in the city centre, upon 

which a successful ART system will depend; 

c) Infrastructure improvements including bus priority will be developed using STAG-based 

options appraisals, which inform investment business cases, and building on much work 

by the partners already complete or underway; 

d) ‘Quick-win’ interventions which have already been assessed, can unlock improvements to 

bus priority in the city centre, benefiting many of the region’s bus services; 

e) The proposals have been developed by the North East Bus Alliance, who have an 

established track record of effective delivery.  All are in agreement that the proposals 

presented provide the most effective step-change for public transport in the region; and 

f) Public and stakeholder engagement has helped and will continue to shape the proposals. 

 The Bus Partnership Fund Award 

 

The partners were informed on Monday 14th June that the bid had been successful for the full 

amount applied for of £12,030,000, which includes:   

a) £10,000,000 for ‘quick-win’ delivery of enabling works on South College Street, plus  

b) £1,400,000 for STAG/outline business case development for: 

i. City Centre; 

ii. Ellon to Garthdee; 

iii. Westhill to Aberdeen; 

iv. Inverurie to Aberdeen; 
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v. Stonehaven to Aberdeen; and 

vi. Aberdeen Rapid Transit 

c) £630,000 for comms/engagement, programme management and other costs related to 

the development of the proposals. 

Although this is a partnership award, Aberdeen City Council is identified as the lead authority and 

a report was considered at the City Growth and Resources Committee on 25th August 2021 which 

outlined the resource and governance implications of the award.  All partners, including Nestrans, 

have reviewed the grant offer and confirmed that they will work with the City Council to ensure 

compliance with the grant conditions.     

 Progress Update 

 
Governance arrangements   

Existing governance arrangements have been discussed with partners and are considered 

appropriate for the current scale of grant, particularly given most projects have already been 

approved to progress.  These existing governance arrangements are: 

a) Aberdeen City Council – committees as required and as per the terms of reference, Capital 

Programme and Transportation Programme Board scheme of governance 

b) Aberdeenshire Council – committees as required and as per terms of reference 

c) Nestrans Board – meets 6 times a year 

d) North East Bus Alliance Board – meets 4 times a year 

e) North East Bus Alliance Executive – meets 8 times a year 

f) Bus Partnership Fund Working Group (see below). 

 

Establishment of a Working Group 

A Bus Partnership Fund Working Group has been established, Chaired by Nestrans, and 

involving all partners of the Bus Alliance, with the remit to: 

a) Provide an overview of the BPF Fund delivery;  

b) Agree the project plan and provide oversight of any change control;  

c) Monitor progress against the project plan, milestones and budget;  

d) Monitor progress and ensure consistency across multi-modal corridor studies;  

e) Provide connection and tie-in of BPF work and other city centre workstreams including 

City Centre Masterplan and Low Emission Zone;  

f) Compilation and presentation of match in kind contributions to feed in to progress 

reporting; and    

g) Strategic oversight of the wider policy context and projects across all partners e.g. other 

corridor studies, active travel and rail.  

This group will meet monthly and, when appropriate, bring in external partners such as 

Transport Scotland’s Bus Partnership Fund team and relevant consultants.  Reporting of the 

work of this group will be to the North East Bus Alliance Board, Nestrans Board and the relevant 

Council Committees as appropriate. 

 

Development of a project plan and financial monitoring 

 

A project plan detailing the various workstreams of the award, their key milestones, gateway 

reviews and spend profile has been developed and submitted to Transport Scotland for their 

consideration.  This was a key requirement of the grant offer, to submit this within 2 months of 

Page 110

https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s123614/Bus%20Partnership%20Fund%20Report.pdf


the award being made.  As the responsible authority, Aberdeen City Council will take the lead 

on the financial monitoring and grant claims relating to the award.   

 

Most projects contained within the award are already in progress and either funded by Nestrans 

or Aberdeen City Council’s general capital fund.  The grant offer letter was signed on 2nd August 

2021 and therefore all eligible bus priority intervention measure expenditure as specified in the 

award from then until 31st March 2023 will be reclaimed from Transport Scotland in accordance 

with the grant conditions.  This will have an impact on the Nestrans 2021-22 budget and this is 

discussed in more detail under item 3.1 Budget Matters.   

 

Project delivery 

 

Multi-modal corridor studies are already underway on each of the priority corridors and are being 

led by Aberdeen City Council (and are typically being funded by Nestrans up to 2nd August when 

they will be funded by the BPF).  Nestrans are leading on the Aberdeen Rapid Transit stream of 

work which is discussed in more detail below and on the development of a scope for the 

marketing and communications strand which is still in the early stages of consideration.   

 Aberdeen Rapid Transit 

 
To progress the ART workstream Nestrans has carried out a tendering exercise for consultancy 

support to undertake a STAG-based options appraisal and business case preparation of a future 

rapid transit network.   

 

The scope of work includes confirmation of the case for change, preliminary options appraisal, 

detailed options appraisal, and subsequent business case development (subject to gateway 

reviews).  The work will consider alternative options for the extent of the network, all operational 

options such as mode of transit and integration with the existing bus network, and delivery / 

procurement options including consideration of powers available in Transport (Scotland) Act 

2019.  The work will exclude developing the detailed options for bus priority measures on each 

of the key corridors of interest, which form part of separate commissions.  However, the 

successful consultant will require to work collaboratively with the teams undertaking this work. 

 

This tendering exercise is currently underway utilising the Scotland Excel Framework, and the 

Public Contracts Scotland website facility.  The bids will be assessed following the report 

submission deadline on Tuesday 7th September 2021.  It is our intention to verbally report to 

Board on the 15th of September the outcome of this tendering exercise, the successful consultant 

and, due to the potential value of the commission (anticipated to be in the region of £200,000), 

seek approval for award of the contract.  Under terms of Nestrans’ financial regulations, the 

Partnership Board has authority to award tendered contracts which are greater than £50,000 

over the contract period.   

 

 Recommendations 

 
It is recommended that the Board: 
 
1. Note the success of the bid to the Bus Partnership Fund and award of £12,030,000 for the 

delivery of the measures outlined above;  
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2. Note the progress to date in developing the project plan and establishing governance 
arrangements; and  

3. Agree the appointment of consultants to progress the ART options appraisal and business 
case development.   

         KC  1st September 2021  
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NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 15 September 2021 
 

 

 

4.2    A944 Active Travel Route Study 

 

 Purpose of Report 

 
The purpose of this report is to update the Board on the completion of a commission of a study 
to develop options for an upgraded active route between Kingswells and Westhill.  

 Background 

 
While there is an existing shared use foot and cycle path adjacent to the dual carriageway, this 
contains narrow sections, junctions with limited visibility for both motorists and active travellers 
and sections where cyclists are required to dismount. 
 
The aim of this study was to develop options that could encourage modal shift, provide links 
to key destinations and encourage active travel as a means of both leisure and commuting.  
 
The aspiration and vision being for active travel users to be provided with the same level of 
east-west priority as motor vehicles along the route. The proposals developed as part of this 
study enhance and improve sustainable modes of travel and support the drive towards net 
zero carbon emissions and build on a previous feasibility study undertaken that considered the 
deliverability of an improved active travel route along the route of the A944. 
 
The full report is available on the Nestrans website here. 

 

 Stakeholder Engagement / Problems and Opportunities 

 
In order to understand existing problems and opportunities along the route, the initial round 
of engagement was progressed involving local elected representatives; Aberdeen City 
Council, Aberdeenshire Council and Nestrans; Community Councils; local primary schools; 
Special Interest Groups; and the general public.  

 
High level feedback on the problems and opportunities included: 
 The shared use path currently being split between the north and south of the 

carriageway, 

 Conflict between cyclists and vehicles emerging from junctions onto A944 means 
opportunity to close off vehicular access from some junctions onto the route, 

 Poor visibility at certain points of the route, 

 Narrow sections along the route, making it difficult for passage with other cyclists or 
pedestrians, 

 Opportunity to reduce the size of the central reservation to allow more space to 
accommodate active travel infrastructure, 

 Opportunity to increase leisure cycling along the route, providing connections to the 
wider active travel network. 

 

 Option Appraisal and Development 

 
Taking on board the findings from this initial round of consultation, two stages of option 
development were progressed. This resulted in the development of three option alignments. 
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As part of the alignments for Options 2 and 3, an active travel bridge over the AWPR were 
proposed. 
 
All options include a fully segregated path with; 
 a 2m wide footway,  

 1m segregation between pedestrians and cyclists,  

 a 3m wide two-way cycleway and  

 a 1m verge segregating the path from the carriageway. 
 

Option 1 – On-line Route 

Follows the route of the A944, provides a fully segregated path for pedestrians and cyclists 
with new priority sections put in place at junctions as well as some closing of junctions (to 
vehicles) to benefit pedestrians and cyclists. 

 
Possible benefits of this option include; 

 Closure of A944/Westhill Road junction to vehicles to create continuous active travel 
route and low vehicle traffic on Westhill Road 

 Good level of access to facilities, incl. Prime Four and Kingswells Park and Ride 

 Excellent potential for future expansions to the east and west 

 Medium cost 
 
Possible disbenefits of this option include; 

 Four toucan crossings are required to cross Kingswells South junction 
 Carriageway realignment required in two locations on the A944 

 Route passes to the rear of the Five Mile Garage with some perception of remoteness 
possible 

 Route remains adjacent to vehicular traffic on the A944 
 

Option 2 – Northern Option 

Follows a route to the north of the A944, uses a series of new and upgraded paths and 
connects to various facilities along its path.  It includes a bridge over the A90 (AWPR) to the 
north of Kingswells South junction, an S-shaped access point to that bridge for pedestrians 
and cyclists (with separate stairs for pedestrians as a shortcut) and offers connection to Prime 
Four Business Park, Kingswells Park and Ride and Kingswells/Westhill. 
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Possible benefits of this option include; 

 Route is distanced from the A944 for its entire length 

 Bridge crossing of the A90 (AWPR) 
 Easy access to facilities along the route, e.g. Lawsondale pitches, Prime Four, Kingswells 

Park and Ride 

 Reduced vehicle speeds where the route crosses side roads with priority given to active 
travel 
 
Possible disbenefits of this option include; 

 Continuous gradient to the A90 (AWPR) from both directions but never steeper than 
maximum standards 

 Longest route by 400m of the three under consideration 

 High cost 
 

Option 3 – Southern Option 

Follows a route to the south of the A944, using mostly new paths and involves a large bridge 
over the A90 (AWPR) south of Kingswells South junction.   

 
 
Possible benefits of this option include; 
 Majority of the route is separate from the A944 carriageway 
 Access nearby to Prime Four and Kingswells Park and Ride 
 Bridge crossing of the A90 (AWPR) 
 Potential for access to Kingshill Woods 
 Closure of A944/Venture Drive junction creates a continuous active travel route 
 
Possible disbenefits of this option include; 

 Highest cost of the three options 

 Limited access to facilities along the route 

 Requirement to cross the B9119 Tarland Road and the A944 via toucan crossings 
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 Route is relatively remote compared to the other options potentially leading to a perception 
of isolation 

 
 

 Costings 

 
High-level cost estimates have been provided for each of the options.  These include kerbs, 
footways and paved areas, earthworks, general site clearance, soft landscaping, raised tables, 
toucan crossings, carriageway realignment, public utilities, traffic management, placemaking 
and structures.  In the case of options 2 and 3, these costs have been expanded with costings 
for a basic bridge, a mid-range bridge and what is termed an iconic bridge.  The overall cost 
estimates can be summarised as follows; 

 

Option 1 Total Amount Option 2 Total Amount Option 3 Total Amount 
 
 

£3,696,000 

Basic bridge Basic bridge 
£7,365,000 £8,185,000 

Mid-range bridge Mid-range bridge 
£16,715,000 £22,938,000 

Iconic bridge Iconic bridge 
£31,259,000 £45,886,000 

 
 

 Next Steps 

 

This full study, and findings, will be incorporated into the recently awarded commission for the 
completion of;  

 a Detailed Appraisal of options for improving multimodal transport connections on the 
A944 and A9119 Westhill to City Centre corridors and on adjacent routes; 

 this study is being managed by a client group that includes both Aberdeen City 
Council and Aberdeenshire Council, alongside Nestrans. 

 upon agreement of preferred options, the provision of preliminary design drawings; and 

 development of supporting Business Cases for the preferred options. 
 

 Recommendations 

 

It is recommended that the Board: 

 

1. Note the completion of the study and the options presented as its findings; and  

2. Note that these will form part of the commission for the A944/A9119 Multimodal 

Corridor Study - Completion of Detailed Appraisal and Preliminary Design of Options, 

which is now underway. This study area covers a wider area, predominantly the A944 

and A9119 corridors between Westhill and Aberdeen City Centre.    

 

 

 

JB  27 August 2021  
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5.1     Rail Update 

 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 

1.1 This report provides an update to the Board on a number of regional rail matters.   

 

2. Insch Railway Station Accessibility Study 

 

2.1 As reported to previous meetings, Nestrans are undertaking an accessibility study for 

Insch Railway Station. This study is being carried out as a Scottish Transport Appraisal 

Guidance (STAG) process with funding from Transport Scotland’s Local Rail 

Development Fund (LRDF).  Under the grant conditions, each stage of the STAG is sent 

to Transport Scotland as part of a gateway before we proceed to the next stage. The 

Preliminary Appraisal Report was approved by Transport Scotland in December 2020.  

AECOM, the consultants carrying out the study on our behalf, produced a Detailed 

Options Appraisal, which is the third and final stage in the appraisal process. The 

Detailed Options Appraisal report was submitted to Transport Scotland and we received 

some feedback from them on this.  After discussions with Transport Scotland and our 

consultants, this report has been revised and the revised document has now been sent 

to Transport Scotland for approval.  

 

2.2 Members will recall from previous reports that Insch has been identified as one of the 

poorest in Scotland in accessibility terms, having no level access to platform 1, and no 

alternative station within 18 kilometres and nearest fully-accessible station 23 kilometres 

away at Kintore.  Public consultations and an on-line survey received a good level of 

response and identified significant issues regarding access to the railway. 

 

2.3 Options were considered and compared to a do-nothing scenario and were considered 

against a number of identified Transport Planning Objectives.  All options were found to 

be technically feasible, but all had challenges that need to be overcome.  The 

assessment concluded that Option 4 (footbridge with lifts) should be taken forward as 

the preferred option.  

 

2.4 The revised Executive Summary is available in Appendix 1 and the full revised report 

is available on the Nestrans website.  Officers now await response from Transport 

Scotland on the revised Detailed Appraisal Report.  

 
3. Aberdeen to Laurencekirk Strategic Corridor - Multi Modal Study 

 

3.1 As previously reported, Nestrans has appointed consultants AECOM to carry out an 

Aberdeen to Laurencekirk strategic corridor multi-modal study. This study is also part 

funded by Transport Scotland’s Local Rail Development Fund (LRDF).  As well as other 

options for improving sustainable travel along the A90 and A92 corridor, one of the 

elements of the study is to look at the railway line between Aberdeen and Laurencekirk 
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and explore any opportunities for additional railway stations. This is being done as a 

STAG appraisal including liaison with Transport Scotland and Rail Industry 

representatives, as well as other transport stakeholders as the study progresses.  Full 

consideration is also being given to the ongoing rail improvements between Aberdeen 

and the Central Belt and the electrification/decarbonisation work.   

 

3.2 The first stage of the STAG appraisal (Case for Change Reporting) considers 

opportunities and problems and identifies Transport Objectives for the study.  It also 

considers Options for the next stages of the study.  Initial feedback has been received 

from Transport Scotland on this phase of work.  

 

3.3 Officers and our consultants AECOM have met to discuss how to address this feedback. 

It was agreed that additional public consultation would be required. Transport Scotland 

have agreed to fund this additional consultation, at a cost of £15,321.16 through the 

LRDF. This additional work is now progressing, and a public consultation survey, which 

will include contacting elected representatives and community councils, will begin soon. 

We will update the Board once the consultation has been completed. 

 
4. ScotRail Timetable Consultation 

4.1 As members will have received by email, the ScotRail consultation for the May 2022, 

began on 20th August 2021. Information on the consultation and a link to respond is 

available on the ScotRail website. Fit for the Future | ScotRail.  The consultation 

information confirms the importance of the inter-city routes serving Aberdeen and the 

north-east, and the complementary nature of the local supporting services.  A proposed 
timetable has also been produced.  

4.2 Officers’ views are that we are broadly supportive of the proposals for the North East of 

Scotland, as the majority of the current timetable is being maintained.  Issues that have 
been identified are as follows: 

Aberdeen to Inverness Service 

The 16:00 LNER departure from London Kings Cross arrives into Aberdeen at 23:11.  

However, the last departure northbound from Aberdeen is at 22:49, to Dyce, Kintore and 

Inverurie.  It would be more sensible if this last northbound service could depart following 

the arrival of the London train. 

Evening departures from Inverness to Aberdeen are proposed as 17:13 (arrives 19:38); 

18:05 (arrives 20:37) and 21:33 (arrives 23:46).  The gap between 18:05 and 21:33 

appears to be somewhat lengthy. 

 

Earliest Arrivals into Aberdeen 

For the Local Montrose to Inverurie Service we have raised with ScotRail our concerns 

that the first trains in the morning are not early enough, particularly for those who start 

work at 07:00.  Current first arrivals from the south are proposed as 07:05, and similarly 

from the north at 07:05. 

 

Stonehaven 

Whilst no significant changes are currently proposed, officers believe that it is important 

to continue to highlight the important role of Stonehaven plays in providing an 

opportunity for convenient inter-city rail access for those across large of parts of Deeside 

and Donside. 
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Rolling Stock and Overcrowding 

As rail patronage returns, officers consider that it is important to continue to monitor any 

instances of over-crowding on specific trains, particularly if travel patterns may be 

changing. 

 

4.3 The consultation runs until the 1st of October and we are keen to collate Members’ views 

before then, to respond to ScotRail formally.   
 

5. LNER Timetable Consultation update 

5.1 LNER recently went out to public consultation on their May 2022 timetable. Nestrans 

attended several meetings/workshops on this and fed into the consultation. The full 

consultation can be found at Timetable 2022 Consultation | LNER.  At the time, Nestrans 

expressed disappointment around the Aberdeen to London (southbound) journey time 

duration getting longer by around 10mins, but we welcome the additional early morning 

direct London to Aberdeen link northbound (which replaced the current Leeds to 

Aberdeen service). 

5.2 Since then, we have received an email from LNER saying that the proposed May 2022 
timetable is now not going ahead in May 2022. This is a result of a combination of issues 

that need to be rectified before a significant timetable change can be introduced to 

operate reliably for customers.  Five key reasons why this course of action has been 

recommended were listed as: 

a) Further performance modelling is required, which is not achievable before the 

timetable bid date of 1 October 2021 

b) Additional timetable development is required to enable successful integration of 

freight paths  

c) Fleet availability in order to allow Hitachi time to repair cracks in the Class 800 

trains 

d) A need for increased traction power supply across the East Coast Main Line 

e) Responses received to the public timetable consultation may enable a change to 

the service specification 

5.3 Officers will continue to update Members once we get more clarity on when these 

proposed timetable changes will take effect.  Meantime, Nestrans will continue to 

interface with East Coast Mainline Authorities, Tactran and Sestran, and the rail 

operator, to push for ongoing service development.   

 

6. Serco Caledonian Sleeper 

6.1 Members may be aware that there have been some issues with the Caledonian 

Sleeper recently. In common with many other transport operators, they have been 

impacted in recent months by higher-than-normal levels of staff absence, among their 

safety critical staff.  In the short term they have had to make some difficult choices 

around temporarily reducing the frequency with which they serve certain routes, which 

has impacted the Aberdeen route on occasions.  Officers have been in touch with 

Serco the operator of Caledonian sleeper and we are arranging a meeting to discuss 

these issues further. 
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7. Aberdeen Railway Station Update 

7.1 As members will be aware, the refurbishment of Aberdeen Railway Station is underway. 

The station redevelopment, which will include a new ticket office and retail space, is 

causing some disruption to passengers accessing the station. This work is due to be 

completed by March 2022. As part of the works, Nestrans officers through meetings with 

ScotRail, have also requested seating to be added to platform 7 N and S (the current 

platform that is used for the local Montrose to Inverurie Service and service to Inverness) 

as there is currently no seating on this platform.  It has been agreed that due to the new 

layout of the station, less seating will be required on the main concourse and as such 
some of the seating, could be moved to platform 7. 

 

8. Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Board: 

1. Note the progress on the Insch Accessibility Study and Executive Summary in 

Appendix 1; 

2. Note the progress on the multi-modal study considering the Aberdeen to 

Laurencekirk corridor including forthcoming community consultation;  

3. Direct officers to respond to the ScotRail timetable consultation based on the 

comments provided in this report;  

4. Note the update from LNER; and  

5. Note the update on the Aberdeen Railway Station Refurbishment 
 

 

PMF/KW- August 2021 
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Appendix 1 

 

Executive Summary – Insch Railway Station Accessibility Study  
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Introduction
Accessibility improvements at Insch 
Station – which sits on the Aberdeen to 
Inverness line approximately 27 miles 
northwest of Aberdeen, at the southern 
outskirts of the village – have been a 
longstanding issue of concern amongst 
local residents and Elected Members in 
North East Scotland.

Platform 2 is accessible from the main 
road (B9002) and the station’s car park 
via a short flight of steps or ramps. 
Platform 1 is only accessible from 
Platform 2 via a stepped overbridge. Insch 
is the only station in the North East of 
Scotland where both platforms are not 
accessible to all users, making it a priority 
for improvement from a regional 
perspective. Currently, passengers with mobility issues have the option to arrange a taxi in advance with ScotRail 
to transfer to the next closest stations of Inverurie (~21 minute drive) or Huntly (~18 minute drive) for part of their 
journey.

Problems & Opportunities Analysis
The key problems, issues, opportunities and constraints in the study area were identified based on a review socio-
economic conditions in the study area, key transport and travel trends at Insch Station, a review of accessibility at 
Insch relative to other stations across Scotland, the environmental and planning context and the findings from 
public and stakeholder engagement activities. The analysis was supported by detailed on-site review including a 
site accessibility audit, video surveys of pedestrian behaviour in and around the station and the results from an 
online public survey. A summary of the key issues considered in making the Case for Change for improvements at 
Insch Station are presented below.

The Policy Context: equal 
access for all

Improvements sought through 
the Accessibility at Insch study 
strongly align with national, 
regional, and local strategies, as 
well as Inclusive Access 
Strategies and guidance that 
has emerged from the Equality 
Act 2010.

The National Transport Strategy 
(NTS2), published in February 
2020,  specifically highlights the 
need for an inclusive transport 
system that contributes to a 
fairer Scotland and includes a 
specific priority to reduce 
inequality. Under this priority 
includes outcomes around 
developing a transport system 
that “will provide fair access to services we need” and “will be easy to use for all”. Expanding on this, the STPR2 

Figure 1: Insch Station Context Plan

Figure 2: Policy Context
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Phase 1 Recommendations published in February 2021 recognise the importance of improving the accessibility of 
Scotland’s rail stations with “Project 12: Infrastructure to provide access for all at rail stations” one of 20 
interventions promoted in the report. This option is promoted due to its benefits in terms of reducing inequalities, 
encouraging modal shift – in line with recent Climate Change Update Plan which sets out the Scottish Government’s 
target to reduce car kilometres by 20% by 2030 – and providing increased access to opportunities for all. 
Encouraging modal shift has become increasingly important throughout the course of completing this study, with 
rail travel only permitted for essential purposes throughout the majority of 2020 and so far in 2021 due to the Covid-
19 pandemic. To support the green recovery from the pandemic, it will be essential to encourage people back onto 
public transport and improving the accessibility of rail travel can increase the desirability of this mode.

A consistent theme within the reviewed policy position is the increased focus on protecting people from 
discrimination in wider society; an issue that the delivery of access improvements at Insch Station would support.

The Socio-Economic Context: supporting rural population accessibility

A common message during engagement activities undertaken was that Insch Station is central to the attractiveness 
of the village, with data showing that there is a high propensity within Insch to travel to work by train (over 6% 
compared to 1% for Aberdeenshire and 4% for Scotland). However, current access issues at the station prevent 
large sections of the population from using the station. Socio-economic data suggests that compared to regional 
and national averages, there are higher proportions of very young (0-4 years) and older people (65+ years) residing 
in the village; this points to Insch being attractive to older residents, including those of retirement age, as well as 
young families; both groups which may have a higher propensity for inclusive physical infrastructure at the station.  
This could mean that there may be a greater need for accessibility improvements at Insch Station to make rail a 
more attractive alternative for young families with prams/buggies and a more viable mode of transport for older 
people who are more likely to experience problems with mobility. A decline in bus services in recent years also 
compounds the need for improved 
accessibility at the station. 

The Transport Context: the uniqueness 
of Insch Station

Insch Station experienced a steady increase 
in passengers from 2004/05 (~62,000), 
reaching a peak of ~122,000 in 2014/15. 
Since this time, numbers have fallen, which 
is likely to reflect the challenges faced by the 
oil and gas industry since 2014 as well as 
A2I improvement works which have caused 
disruption on the line in recent times. A 
further decline is anticipated for 2020/21 
associated with the impacts of the Covid-19 
pandemic and subsequent travel 
restrictions.  

During the course of completing this study, 
the Covid-19 pandemic has led to significant 
changes in people’s travel behaviours and 
introduced uncertainty around future travel 
patterns including future attitudes to travel. 
In the context of Insch, it is important to 
recognise that while future use of the rail 
network across Scotland in terms of overall 
demand remains uncertain, the accessibility 
problems at Insch Station for those with 
mobility impairments will remain regardless 
of future travel patterns, and aspirations to 
build back better should look to encourage 
more people onto public transport, which 
accessibility improvements can support.  Figure 3: Rail Station Accessibility across Scotland
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To understand how the accessibility of Insch Station compares to other stations across the region and country, a
review was undertaken to categorise each of Scotland’s stations according to their accessibility level (1=Fully
accessible, 2=Partially accessible (drop-off by car); 3=Partially accessible (via footpath); 4=Inaccessible; and 
5=Fully Inaccessible). Based on this assessment, Insch Station was identified as a Category 4 (inaccessible)
station.

From a regional perspective, Insch is considered to be the priority for accessibility improvements as it is the only
station in the North East of Scotland that is not at least partially accessible.

At a national level, of Scotland’s 359 stations, 111 (31%) fell within Category 4 or 5. 54 stations (15%) fell within
Category 4 or 5 and were found to have patronage greater than Insch1 but only two of these stations (1%) had
higher patronage than Insch and did not have an alternative station within 5km that was at least partially accessible.
However, in contrast to Insch, both of these stations have a fully accessible Category 1 station within 16km,
meaning that passengers with increased mobility needs can complete a round trip using an alternative station. This
is contrary to the nearest stations to Insch – Huntly and Inverurie (both 18km by road from Insch) – which fall within
Categories 2 and 3 respectively, with the nearest fully accessible station to Insch located at Dyce, some 38km
away by road. The review therefore confirmed that Insch is one of the least accessible stations in Scotland.

Stakeholder Engagement: united support to address an issue of longstanding concern

An extensive public and stakeholder engagement exercise was undertaken to understand the transport-related
problems and opportunities associated with Insch Station. At a stakeholder level, the study is being overseen by a
Project Working Group comprising Nestrans, Aberdeenshire Council, Transport Scotland, Network Rail and
ScotRail who have provided input at key points. Engagement was also undertaken with the Elected Members, the
British Transport Police, Mobility and Access Committee for Scotland, local taxi operators, the Central
Aberdeenshire Access Panel and Bennachie Community Council, all of whom expressed their support and
willingness for measures to improve accessibility at the station. A site accessibility audit undertaken with members
of the Access Panel provided a particularly insightful review of the problems with access at the station for those
with mobility impairments.

Engagement with the public was undertaken through the following sources:

 a public consultation event at Insch Station in October 2019, attended by approximately 40 people who
provided their experiences of using Insch Station. A number of attendees were local residents who experienced
mobility conditions that meant they were currently unable to access the station;  

 an online survey conducted between November and December 2019 which was issued via maildrop to around
5,000 homes in the Insch Station catchment and promoted using social media. The online survey was
undertaken to provide more detailed information around the number of people impacted by the current
accessibility arrangement at Insch Station, the reasons for the infrequent use of the alternative travel
arrangements provided by ScotRail and the number of people that would use Insch Station more frequently if
accessibility improvements were made. A total of 438 responses were received.

Responses to the survey confirmed that the current accessibility arrangement is a barrier to station use, with over
half of respondents (58%) stating that they were affected by the existing access arrangements at Insch Station in
some way. Reasons for being impacted were varied and not confined to physical mobility impairments. Other
reasons included having a friend or family member with a mobility impairment, difficulty carrying luggage or other
items across the footbridge, medical conditions not classed as mobility issues, concerns about slippery and uneven
treads on the footbridge stairs, and difficulty accessing the platform when the Level Crossing barrier is closed. 118
respondents agreed that they do not consider rail to be a viable option due to their access requirements and
disagreed that journeys are easy to undertake by train.

The overwhelming majority of respondents to the survey (75%) were unaware that ScotRail offered alternative
travel arrangements for those to whom the station is inaccessible. Supplementary to the online survey, consultation
with Aberdeenshire Council’s Taxi Licensing team indicated within the Inverurie, Insch and Huntly area, there are
14 taxi operators and 26 vehicles, of which only 4 are wheelchair accessible. It was also commented that with many
taxis used for school transport in rural areas, it may be difficult for passengers to book a taxi at short notice during

1 Based on Estimates of Station Usage from 2017-18, Office of Rail and Road
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certain times of the day, particularly if an accessible taxi is required. Consultation with ScotRail has suggested that
these alternative arrangements are relied upon relatively infrequently (less than ten times per year); as confirmed 
by the online survey results, this may be because few people are aware of the provision but also because such a
service is not seen to be as convenient or comfortable with numerous members of the public commenting that it
would be more convenient for them to use their own car or get a lift for their full journey rather than interchange via
taxi at their nearest accessible station.

The online survey also asked respondents for their views on potential improvement options, with high numbers
stating that they would use Insch Station more frequently in the future if access improvements were delivered. For
example, 188 respondents said that they would use the station more frequently if lifts were implemented with
similarly high numbers obtained for other improvements e.g. footway to Platform 1 and ramped footbridge options.
These findings highlight the potential for greater usage of Insch Station as a result of accessibility improvements.

Figure 4: Use of Insch Station if accessibility improvements were to be implemented

As part of the survey, respondents were provided the opportunity to provide any other feedback in relation to travel
at Insch Station. Overall, the strength of feeling regarding accessibility issues at the station was emphasised, with
many highlighting the unacceptability of the existing situation in terms of equality, the isolating impacts for those
unable to drive and the clear desire to use the station if accessibility improvements were made.

Figure 5: Online Survey Feedback

Page 127



Accessibility at Insch Station  Project number: 60599819

Prepared for:  Nestrans AECOM

Transport Planning Objectives
In line with Scottish Transport Appraisal Guidance (STAG), objective setting for this study was driven by an 
understanding of the evidence-based problems and opportunities at Insch Station. This evidence, focussed on the 
particular problem or barrier associated with accessing the rail network for those with mobility impairments at Insch 
Station, drove the development of a single Transport Planning Objective (TPO) for the study, as follows. 

 TPO1: To improve physical accessibility at Insch Station to enable increased travel opportunities for all users, 
including those with mobility impairments, the ageing population and those with young children.

Option Development and Appraisal
Option Generation

In STAG, all generated options must be appraised against a Do-Minimum option. This considers the impacts on 
the transport network if no action is taken i.e. if no ‘Do-Something’ options are implemented. For this project, the 
following transport commitment has policy and funding approval and therefore constitutes part of the Do-Minimum 
scenario:   

 Refurbishment works of the existing footbridge which are planned to take place in 2023/24 (part of Control 
Period 6) involving repair, re-painting, and tread and deck replacement.

Other improvements taken into account include the extension of the station’s two platforms to support the 
introduction of longer High-Speed Trains, completed during 2019, and the A2I Phase 1 Improvements, including 
increased reliability of service (although it is to be noted that Insch Station does not benefit from additional services). 

To address the identified TPO, a range of options were 
generated based on interventions that have a long history 
in the study area and have been considered through 
previous work, as well as interventions identified through 
discussions with stakeholders and on-site review. The 
following options were  generated, with each offering a 
different level of accessibility: 

 Footpath options, comprising a new footpath from the 
station to the rear of Platform 1 via the B9002 and 
private land south of the station, to enable step-free 
access to Platform 1. 

 An underpass option to provide a step-free platform-
to-platform access under the railway line.

 Ramped footbridge and footbridge with lift options to 
facilitate step-free access between Platforms 1 and 
2. 

 Car Park options to enable people with mobility 
impairments to drive, or be picked-up/dropped-off, via Platform 1. 

Option Sifting

A sifting exercise was undertaken based on a high-level assessment of each option’s performance against the 
study TPO and deliverability criteria in order to identify those options suitable for taking forward to Preliminary 
Appraisal. Findings from the sifting exercise are summarised in Table 1, using the key presented below.

Option would be expected to have a positive impact against the TPO / Implementability criteria

Option would be expected to have negligible impact against the TPO / Implementability criteria

Option would be expected to have negative impact against the TPO / Implementability criteria

Figure 6: Potential Improvement Options
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Table 1: Option Sifting

Option TPO1 Feasibility Affordability Acceptability Progress?

0 Do-Minimum Yes

Do-Minimum used as the basis to compare other options.

1a Footpath to south of Platform 1 with
footpath on south side of B9002 Yes

This option would support delivery of the TPO by facilitating pedestrian access to Platform 1 and is likely to be the
most publicly acceptable of the alternative footpath options due to the directness of the route. Feasibility and cost
issues associated with potential impacts of a footpath on the south side of the B9002 will require further consideration.

1b Footpath to south of Platform 1 with
footpath on north side of B9002 No

While this option has potentially less deliverability constraints compared to 1a, it would involve people with mobility
impairments having to cross the B9002 twice, and therefore does not fully support the TPO for accessibility
improvements and is unlikely to be well-used/publicly supported.

1c Footpath via residential unit with
footpath on south side of B9002 No

While this option could support delivery of the TPO by facilitating pedestrian access to Platform 1, there are significant
concerns regarding deliverability and this option could also encounter public acceptability issues.

2 Underpass No

While this option could support delivery of the TPO by facilitating pedestrian access to Platform 1, there are significant
concerns regarding constructability, feasibility and affordability. This option could also encounter public acceptability
issues, although it is possible that concerns regarding personal safety and security may be partially mitigated by CCTV
installation.

3 Footbridge with ramps Yes

There are variations with this option, including removal of the existing overbridge and retaining of the existing
overbridge. This option would contribute positively to delivering the TPO by facilitating access to Platform 1 and is
considered feasible, although construction costs are likely to be high. The option could encounter acceptability issues
associated with a substantial loss of station car parking and visual impact. The existing footbridge is non-compliant
with modern standards and would require considerable upgrade works if the line is to be electrified in the future. Costs
are also likely to be higher if the existing overbridge is to be retained due to maintenance costs. However, from an
environmental and planning perspective, retaining of the existing bridge is more likely to be feasible.

4 Footbridge with lifts Yes

There are variations with this option, including removal of the existing overbridge and retaining of the existing
overbridge. This option would contribute positively to delivering the TPO by facilitating access to Platform 1 and is
considered feasible, although construction costs are likely to be high. The option would likely be publicly supported -
there could be concerns around visual impact although it is expected that the visual impact of ramps would be greater.
The existing footbridge is non-compliant with modern standards and would require considerable upgrade works if the
line is to be electrified in the future. Costs are also likely to be higher if the existing overbridge is to be retained due to
maintenance costs. However, from an environmental and planning perspective, retaining of the existing bridge is more
likely to be feasible.

5a New car park south of Platform 1 Yes

This option could positively contribute to delivering the TPO by facilitating a drop-off opportunity to Platform 1, similar
to the situation at other stations in the North East. Due to the requirement of third party land to deliver this option,
feasibility is unknown, while there may also be public acceptability issues due to wider village impacts of developing a
car park to the south of station.

5b
New car park south of Platform 1
with footpath through field & along
the south side of the B9002

Yes

This option could positively contribute to delivering the TPO by providing a pedestrian access to the station in addition
to a drop-off opportunity to Platform 1. Due to the requirement of third party land to deliver this option, as well as
potential impacts on the Level Crossing, feasibility is unknown, while there may also be public acceptability issues due
to wider village impacts of developing a car park to the south of station.
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Preliminary Appraisal
The options taken forward to Preliminary Appraisal were subject to qualitative appraisal against the study TPO and
STAG Criteria, using the seven-point scale in line with STAG. Feasibility and Public Acceptability were assessed
on the extent of risk (low, medium, and high risk); with aspects of Affordability considered alongside the
development of option cost estimates as part of the Detailed Appraisal. The findings from the Preliminary Appraisal
of options are presented in the table below.

Table 2: Preliminary Appraisal Findings

Option

TPOs STAG Criteria Implementability
Risk Rating

TP
O

1

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t

Sa
fe

ty

Ec
on

om
y

In
te

gr
at

io
n

Ac
ce

ss
ib

ilit
y

& 
So

ci
al

In
cl

us
io

n

Fe
as

ib
ilit

y

Af
fo

rd
ab

ilit
y

Pu
bl

ic
Ac

ce
pt

ab
ilit

y

Do-Minimum - - - - - - - -

Option 1a –
Footpath    -   High Med

Option 3 –
Footbridge with Ramps   - -   Med Low

Option 4 –
Footbridge with Lifts   - -   Med Low

Option 5a –
New Car Park -   -   Med Low

Option 5b –
New Car Park + Footpath    -   High Med

Key (impact vs criteria):
   -   

Major
negative
impact

Moderate
negative
impact

Minor
negative
impact

No benefit or
impact

Minor
beneficial

impact

Moderate
beneficial

impact

Major
beneficial

impact

The appraisal findings resulted in the progression of four options to the Detailed Appraisal stage:

 Option 1a: Footpath through field and along south side of the B9002;

 Option 3: Footbridge with ramps;

 Option 4: Footbridge with lifts; and

 Option 5b: New car park south of Platform 1 with footpath through field and along the south side of the B9002.

Based on the findings from the Preliminary Appraisal, it was recommended that Option 5a for a new car park be
rejected from further consideration. This option was not considered to support the TPO for the study as it would
only provide a benefit to those users who could be dropped off and picked up at the station. It would not provide
benefits to those with increased mobility needs who drive to the station as there would remain no opportunity for
step-free platform-to-platform access.
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Detailed Appraisal
Those options taken forward from the Preliminary Appraisal were defined further, as set out in Table 3 below, for
the purposes of further option assessment through the Detailed Appraisal stage. This considered the performance
of each option against the TPO; the five STAG Criteria; Cost to Government; and Risks and Uncertainty, including
the potential Feasibility, Affordability and Public Acceptability risks associated with the delivery of each option.

Table 3: Options Taken Forward to Detailed Appraisal

Option Description

1a - Footpath
Option would allow step-free access to Platform 1 by non-motorised users.
There is an approximate 250m travel distance between platforms with this
option and it would require navigation of the existing Level Crossing.

3 – Footbridge with ramps
Option would allow step-free access to Platform 1 by non-motorised users
via a footbridge with ramps. In order to ensure appropriate gradients, this
would involve an approximate 250m travel distance between platforms.

4 – Footbridge with lifts Option would allow step-free access to Platform 1 by non-motorised users
via a footbridge with lifts.

5b – New car park + footpath

Option would allow step-free access to Platform 1 by motorised and non-
motorised users. This would require an access road to be constructed from
the B992 to an approximate 40 space car park. There is an approximate
250m travel distance and navigation of the existing Level Crossing is
required for access between the platforms on foot with this option.

An overview plan of the options is presented in Figure 7 below.

Figure 7: Options Overview Plan
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Appraisal Findings

The Detailed Appraisal findings are summarised for each of the options as follows:

Transport Planning Objective

The appraisal found that Option 4 (Footbridge with Lifts) performs most positively against the TPO for the study,
as this option would provide the easiest route available and shortest distance practical for passengers to travel
between platforms; in line with the Design Guidance for Accessible Railway Stations. Option 4 is considered to
be the only option that fully supports the TPO, providing a step-free platform-to-platform access solution that
would enable increased travel opportunities for all users at the station.

Whilst the other options provide a benefit relative to the Do-Minimum situation, the walk distance involved in
crossing between platforms for Option 1a (Footpath), Option 3 (Footbridge with Ramps) and Option 5b (New Car
Park + Footpath) is approximately 250m and these options would not fully support the TPO given that this distance
would not be manageable for all users. In addition, Option 1a and Option 5b require users to navigate the existing
Level Crossing, which is an uneven surface that can be challenging to negotiate for those with mobility
impairments, potentially limiting users of this route further.

Environment

Against the environment criteria of STAG, Option 1a, Option 3 and Option 4 are anticipated to generate limited
impacts against the majority of the environmental sub-criteria, with the exception of biodiversity and habitats; 
landscape and visual and cultural heritage. All options are considered to generate a minor negative impact against
biodiversity and habitats due to a loss of trees and scrub, which can create fragmentation of habitats and barriers
to movement for a number of species, including protected species such as badgers and bats. Given the listed
status of the station, the principal concerns from an environmental perspective are in relation to landscape and
visual and cultural heritage impacts, particularly for Option 3 and Option 4.

Option 3 and Option 4 would be anticipated to have a moderate negative impact in terms of landscape and visual
effects as a new footbridge structure with ramps or lifts is likely to be at odds with the balance of existing
townscape features in view. The use of traditional materials that are more sympathetic to the existing character
of the station could be used to mitigate visual amenity impacts of these options, although the scale of each of the
proposed structures would still likely impact on the surrounding townscape. The level of visual intrusion created
by Option 4 would be expected to be lower than Option 3 due to the reduced footprint of the lifts option.

Option 3 and Option 4 would be anticipated to have a major negative impact in terms of cultural heritage effects.
Throughout this study, it has been assumed that the existing footbridge would require removal for a number of
reasons including its poor state of repair, the need for ongoing maintenance and the potential for future
electrification of the line. However, removing the existing footbridge and introducing a new structure could
generate significant adverse impacts on the character, integrity and setting of the remaining listed structures at
the station. While further work would be required with Aberdeenshire Council planners to discuss mitigation should
this option be progressed, it has previously been noted that impacts could be mitigated to some extent through
careful design and siting of a new structure away from the existing footbridge.

Safety

Against the safety criteria, Option 3 and Option 4 perform more positively than Option 1a and Option 5b. There
are safety concerns associated with Option 1a and Option 5b in terms of accidents due to increased interaction
between pedestrians and vehicles on the B9002 and at the driveway where the path to access Platform 1 would
be routed; this concern would be more pronounced for Option 5b as this option would be expected to increase 
the numbers of vehicles passing through the Level Crossing. There are also minor security concerns associated
with these options due to the secluded nature of the path behind the station which could cause incidents of anti-
social behaviour, though this could be mitigated through lighting and CCTV provision.

Option 3 and Option 4 are anticipated to have limited impacts in terms of security and could generate a small
positive impact in terms of accidents by eliminating a trip hazard for those who currently experience difficulties
navigating the existing stepped footbridge. Whilst there may be some perceived safety concerns associated with
Option 4 related to possible breakdown of the lift and in relation to anti-social behaviour, discussions with
stakeholders have confirmed that, assuming lifts would be of a similar standard to those introduced at stations
elsewhere on the Aberdeen to Inverness rail line, it would be fitted with a descend button that allows the lift to
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return to ground level in the event of breakdown. It was also noted that lift breakdowns happen infrequently at
other stations on the route and CCTV means that lift misuse would be unlikely to be an issue.

Economy

Due to the nature of improvements being considered through this study, it was not possible to fully assess the
economy criteria of STAG from a traditional Transport Economic Efficiency or Wider Economic Impacts
perspective. As such, the assessment against the economy criteria considered the likely types of benefits that
could be generated, drawing on the findings from a literature review of the economic impacts of accessibility
improvements elsewhere in the UK, as well as a high level exercise to understand the potential lost passenger
revenue associated with the current accessibility arrangement at Insch Station.

The literature review highlighted a range of economic benefits that cannot be captured under a traditional benefit
cost ratio approach, including the value of improved inclusiveness that the general population place on such
interventions and the value placed on improvements by people who may not benefit now but who may benefit in
future if their circumstances change (e.g. ageing, having children, becoming injured, or developing a long-term
health condition or disability). The literature review additionally highlighted that accessibility improvements could
open up employment opportunities for people with work-limiting disabilities.

To provide an estimate of the number of trips that are potentially lost to the rail network as a result of the current
accessibility limitations at Insch Station, results of the online survey undertaken between November and
December 2019 were used, specifically considering those users who reported that they would use the station
more often if accessibility was improved. This analysis found that accessibility improvements at the station could
be expected to generate an additional 4,700 trips (entries and exits) annually at Insch Station, which could
generate approximately £50,000 per annum in additional fare revenue. It should be noted that the survey data
upon which the analysis was undertaken was completed in 2019 (i.e. pre-pandemic) and therefore, given the
uncertainties around potential future levels of travel demand associated with travel behaviours and trends in a
post-Covid-19 society, the results should be treated with caution.

In terms of the performance of options against the economy criteria, the high cost relative to the benefits that
would be created in economic terms resulted in Option 1a, Option 3 and Option 5b being scored negatively against
this criteria. Whilst Option 4 has the highest capital costs of all options under consideration, it is the only option
that would provide a fully accessible station at Insch, which is considered to provide economic benefits in terms
of value placed on this by the general population, in terms of option values whereby a number of respondents to
the online survey indicated that the barriers to access at the station may impact on them in the future and in terms
of the new users and diverted users from other modes who could use the station if accessibility was no longer a
barrier.

Integration

The options under consideration as part of this study are anticipated to have limited impacts in terms of transport
integration and in terms of transport and land use integration. Against the policy integration criteria, all options
would be considered to generate positive impacts by aligning with the NTS Priority of ‘Reducing Inequalities’ and
other policy and legislative areas, including the Equality Act 2010, the Inclusive Transport Strategy and
accessibility for all priorities outlined in the Nestrans RTS 2040 and STPR2 Phase 1 Report. Given that Option 4
provides a fully accessible platform-to-platform solution, this option performs more positively than other options
against the policy integration criteria.

Accessibility and Social Inclusion

All options perform strongly against the accessibility and social inclusion criteria, as physical accessibility
improvements at the station will improve access to key services, including employment, education sites and
healthcare facilities and all options are anticipated to reduce the disproportionate impact experienced by certain
users groups, although to varying extents.

Option 4 is anticipated to perform the most strongly against this criteria as this option would be likely to improve
access to local services for the most number of people and this option is anticipated to fully negate the
disproportionate impact on affected groups meaning that there would be easy access between platforms
regardless of age, gender or physical disability and as a result, would allow excluded groups to participate more
fully in society through increased opportunities that rail travel from Insch Station would bring.
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Whilst Option 1a, Option 3 and Option 5b are anticipated to reduce the disproportionate impact experienced by
some user groups (e.g. people travelling with a pram), it is still considered that other groups of people would
continue to be disproportionately impacted by the accessibility arrangement, including older people, pregnant
women and those with a physical disability due to the distance required to travel between platforms. Option 5b
would provide an additional benefit for those able to get dropped off and picked up at the station, as this negates
the need to cross between platforms on foot.

Feasibility

While all options are technically feasible, there are challenges for all options that would need to be overcome.

Option 1a and Option 5b would require changes to the Level Crossing Order as the existing Order does not
include any provision for a public footpath. Amendments to the Level Crossing Order would require promotion by
Network Rail, who have expressed significant concerns about the footpath element and therefore would be
unlikely to support any changes to the Order. The footpath would additionally require changes to the Level
Crossing equipment, potential removal of a wall and/or road realignment, and repositioning of the boundary wall
which would likely impact on existing rail signalling. Private land to the south of Platform 1 would be required for
delivery of these options, with Option 5b requiring the greatest land acquisition of all the options. Discussions with
Aberdeenshire Council highlighted concerns relating to the access road junction associated with Option 5b, which
would require further consideration through a Transport Statement or Transport Assessment to support any
application for planning permission. Discussions would also be required to determine who would take ownership
of the footpath and car park if either of these options were to progress. These issues are considered to present a
major risk to the deliverability of Options 1a and 5b.

The principal considerations in terms of feasibility for Option 3 and Option 4 relate to the listed planning consent
that would be required, both to implement a new structure and to remove the existing stepped overbridge (if
decided to be the preferred way forward). Whilst there are environmental constraints that have been recognised,
positive discussions have taken place with the local authority thus far and this should continue following selection
of a preferred option. These options would also require land take from the existing car park, more significantly so
in the case of Option 3, which is estimated to result in a loss of 23 spaces from the 44 space car park (whilst
Option 4 is estimated to result in a loss of approximately 6 spaces). Option 3 and Option 4 would additionally
require the purchase of private land to the south of Platform 1 and re-cabling from the existing footbridge to the
new footbridge. These issues are considered to present a moderate risk to deliverability of Options 3 and 4.

Affordability

Informed by an engineering assessment and associated assumptions, an exercise was undertaken to develop an
outline order of magnitude construction costs for each of the options under consideration, as presented in the
table below. As shown, the total estimated costs include 64% optimism bias owing to the stage of this study.

Table 4: Estimated Scheme Costs
Ref Summary Option 1A Option 3 Option 4 Option 5b
1 Construction Works Cost £154,000 £853,000 £959,000 £751,000
2 Allowance for contractor’s preliminaries @ 15% £24,000 £128,000 £144,000 £113,000
3 Main contractors overheads & profit @ 5% £9,000 £50,000 £56,000 £44,000
4 Main contractor’s on-costs subtotal £33,000 £178,000 £200,000 £157,000
5 Construction Cost @ 4Q 2019 £187,000 £1,031,000 £1,159,000 £908,000
6 Design Development & Contingency @ 20% £38,000 £207,000 £232,000 £182,000
7 Optimism Bias @ 64% £144,000 £793,000 £891,000 £698,000
8 Est. Construction Cost at 4Q 2019 (excl. VAT) £370,000 £2,040,000 £2,290,000 £1,790,000

As shown, Option 4 is anticipated to be the highest cost option, although it is not significantly higher than Option
3 and Option 5b. Option 1a is anticipated to be the lowest cost option by a considerable margin (over five times
lower than other options). However, there are a number of uncertainties regarding the associated changes
required to the Level Crossing and the respective costs of these changes, which could increase costs based on
both technical delivery and potential programme cost issues.

Operating and maintenance requirements include winterisation for all options, CCTV and lighting for the footpath
and car park options, regular servicing of the lift and signing and lining for the car park. It is understood that
winterisation would be subsumed into existing contracts as additional work when completing existing winterisation
and other maintenance duties at Insch Station. Servicing of the lifts would be undertaken on a regular basis, with
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ScotRail indicating that lift servicing would likely be subsumed into an existing maintenance contract for lifts
elsewhere on the railway (e.g. at Dyce and Kintore Stations).

Public Acceptability

Engagement with the community indicated strong support for measures to improve accessibility at Insch Station
and therefore all options would be likely to generate a level of support from the public. During engagement with
the community, Option 4 emerged as the clear preferred intervention with many indicating that the footbridge with
lifts option would be the only way to improve accessibility such that travel opportunities are increased for all users.
Option 4 was the preferred option by 50% of respondents to the public survey, with 86% including this option
within their top three priorities for improvement.

Figure 8: Potential Improvement Options (Prioritised)

A number of concerns were raised regarding Option 1a, including the travel distance that would be required
between platforms, the difficulties of navigating a cobbled paving surface and the Level Crossing, potential anti-
social behaviour associated with the secluded nature of the path to the south of the station, safety concerns
relating to increased interaction between pedestrians and the Level Crossing and privacy concerns for properties
located adjacent to the Level Crossing. These concerns are applicable in the case of Option 5b.

Option 3 generated concerns relating to the loss of car parking that would be required to accommodate the
footbridge with ramps structure and the significant visual impact that the structure would cause.

Recommendations
Based on the results of the appraisal undertaken, it is recommended that Option 4 (Footbridge with Lifts) provides
the greatest benefits and should be progressed for further design and development works.

This option has been assessed to be the only option that fully supports delivery of the study TPO by enabling
increased travel opportunities for all users at the station. The option generally performs positively against the
STAG criteria and is associated with reduced deliverability risks and uncertainties compared to the other options
under consideration through this study. This option benefitted from strong community support and was the top
ranked option amongst respondents to the online public survey, with 86% of respondents including this option
within their top three priorities for improvement.

In progressing this option, further discussions should be undertaken with the Planning team at Aberdeenshire
Council given the potential environmental impacts that have been identified, particularly in relation to potentially
adverse impacts on the existing footbridge, meaning that any works would require listed planning consent.

While this option constitutes a high cost option in the context of this study, owing to its strong alignment with policy
and the increasing priority being placed on reducing inequalities and improving accessibility for all to the rail
network, opportunities should be sought to make the case for funding through appropriate channels.
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NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 15 September 2021 

 

 

6.    Progress Report 

 

 

 Purpose of Report 

 
To advise the Board of a change in format to the progress report, which is a standing item on 

the agenda for each meeting, and to highlight some specific progress on matters not otherwise 

covered on the Board Agenda. 

 Background 

 

Since the drafting in 2007 of the first Nestrans’ Regional Transport Strategy, a progress report 

has been prepared that listed each strand of the strategy along with the aims and objectives 

of that strand.  It has listed the projects or action points being taken forward by Nestrans and 

partners, current status and planned progress.  This has provided the Board with greater detail 

on the progress and expenditure to date on individual projects within the Nestrans Strategic 

Investment Programme and Coordination and Project Development Budgets along with 

updates where known on projects and action points that are being progressed and funded by 

others that relate to the Regional Transport Strategy.  

 Discussion 

 

Following the submission of the final RTS2040 to the Cabinet Secretary and Transport 

Scotland in March 2021, the actions listed in the strategy have been used as the basis for a 

new format for the progress report.  The policy headings and actions of the RTS2040 have 

been included in full and shown in Bold text within the appended progress report.  A section 

relating to overarching policies and projects (such as STPR2) has been included at the top of 

the progress report.   

 

The progress report prepared for this Board is unusually lengthy (92 pages), as all rows have 

been included.  In future only new information will be shown to enable Members to easily see 

new information that is being given.  This will considerably reduce the size of future reports. 

 Progress Highlights 

 

Some examples of where particular progress is currently being made is summarised below. 

 

 AT2 – Progression of Investment on Deeside Way and Formartine and Buchan 
Way: Successful completion of resurfacing and path improvement projects on Ellon 

Viaduct, and also in an around Milton of Crathes, building on previous improvement 
work. 

 AT3 – Community Sustainable Travel Grant: 

Grant scheme now up and running with first grant payment made to Strichen 
Community Park for Cycle Repair Station, and website redesign. 

 AT5 – Core Paths Review in Aberdeen 

Consultants Stantec successfully commissioned to undertaken the review work, with 
initial surveys now being completed. 

 BUS4 - Programme of multi-modal corridor studies 

Considerable levels of activity considering problems, opportunities, option 
development, and stakeholder consultation, including A944/A9119 – Westhill to 
Aberdeen City Centre; A96 – Inverurie to Aberdeen; A90(N) – Ellon to Garthdee;  A92 
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– Bridge of Don to Bridge of Dee; A947 – Dyce to Bucksburn; and A93 – Banchory to 
Aberdeen.   

 BC5 – Sustaining Choices, Peterhead 

Nestrans have supported work in Peterhead, funded by Planning Aid Scotland, on a 
community led project to look at making walking, cycling and wheeling easier and 
safer.  Draft Action Plan now finalised. 

 RE9 – Rail Decarbonisation 

Series of meetings held with Network Rail and local roads authorities on prospective 
plans for the gauge clearance (adjustment of structures crossing the railway) that 
would be required to enable rail electrification to Aberdeen and Inverurire from the 
South.   

 RD5 – Aberdeen South Harbour – External Links 

Updated business case approved by both City Region Deal Joint Committee, and 
Aberdeen City’s Strategic Growth and Resources committee.  Now submitted to 
Scottish and UK Governments for approval to draw down funding for detailed design 
etc.  

 BC2 – Getabout, Tour of Britain – Getabout village  

Getabout Village delivered to support Tour of Britain, 12 September. 
 BC3 – Travel Planning support – Vaccination Centres 

Support being provide to Health and Social Care Partnerships for the transition from 
TECA to the new Vaccination Centre located in the former John Lewis building. 

 HE1 – Health and Transport Action Plan – National Engagement 

Successful engagement with Scottish Government, other RTPs. and Transport 
Scotland, on the experience with HTAP, and the agenda items that need to be 
progressed at a national level in this important area.   

 

 Recommendation 

 

It is recommended that the Board: 

 

1. Note the format of the revised Progress Report as discussed above and presented in 

the Appendix. 

 

2. Advise on any amendment to this format, if necessary, for future Board meetings. 

 
 

JA/PMF/2 Sept 2021 
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Nestrans RTS 2040
Current Actions/ Progress Future Actions/ Progress

Project/Action Progress Budget To be done Target

Strategic 

Transport 

Projects Review 

Following the 

publication of the 

revised National 

Transport Strategy 

(NTS2) which sets out 

transport policy across 

Scotland for the next 20 

years, a Strategic 

Transport Projects 

Review (STPR2) has 

been commenced.  This 

will assess 

recommendations for 

strategic transport 

infrastructure priorities 

throughout Scotland. 

This substantial transport appraisal will 

make recommendations for S Gov future 

transport investment focused on themes 

of economic prosperity, equality, health 

and wellbeing and climate action and is 

now programmed to completed at end of 

2021.  Regional working group 

established chaired by Nestrans, 

including SDPA and officers of both 

Councils.  Nestrans has agreed to 

provide access to the ASAM strategic 

model for STPR2.

TS published STPR2 update and 

phase 1 recommendations in Feb 21 

and Nestrans response to 

consultation submitted.  Groupings of 

schemes taken through to Phase 2 

will be appraised and report in late 

Autumn 2021 and provide Scottish 

Ministers with further potential 

transport investment opportunities for 

the period 2022-2042. The Scottish 

Government and Scottish Green 

Party draft shared policy 

programme agrees to use the 

outcomes of STPR2 to direct future 

transport infrastructure 

investment, but also introduces a 

range of additional issues to be 

considered for the north east. 

TS and their 

consultants have 

provided a series of 

presentations and 

meetings to officers 

providing feedback on 

appraisal approach, 

schemes being 

progressed, and 

feedback on earlier 

comments.  NE staff 

will continue to 

feedback comments on 

issues of concern.  

↑

The Scottish 

Government 

and Scottish 

Green Party 

draft shared 

policy 

programme

The Scottish Gov and 

Green Party have 

agreed to work 

together over the next 

five years and 

published a shared 

draft programme on 

20 Aug 2021 with 

areas of mutual 

interest that details 

collaboration on 

various topics and a 

number of 

commitments

The transport related commitments 

are listed against the relevant RTS 

policy headings and actions below.

The draft agreements will now be 

considered by the respective 

political parties involved and 

Ministers will provide an update to 

Parliament following recess.

Seeking clarification 

from Transport 

Scotland on whether 

new commitments will 

be included in STPR2 

appraisal

↑

Overarching at 

National Level

Status
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Current Actions/ Progress Future Actions/ Progress

Project/Action Progress Budget To be done Target

AT- Increasing the number of people travelling actively for health and the environment

i) Westhill to Aberdeen City Centre:     

AECOM was commissioned to develop 

options and undertake a STAG based 

appraisal for the improvement of the 

A944 pedestrian and cycle route with the 

goal of increasing the number of active 

travel users along the route. 

being funded via 

£54K of the RTP 

20/21 grant

Invoiced in full 

and reclaimed via 

grant

Study completed, three options 

presented, all segregated, and 

comprise an ‘on-line’ route 

following the A944, as well as 

possible paths north and south of 

the carriageway.  This study and its 

findings, will now form part of the 

wider A944/A9119 Multimodal 

Corridor Study that is underway 

and covers the entire corridor from 

Westhill to Aberdeen city centre.

Study findings are 

subject of separate 

report to Board.   

↑

ii) Inverurie to Aberdeen City Centre:  

A96 Kintore / Blackburn Cycleway. 

Contribution to land purchase and 

construction of Shared Used Cycleway / 

Footway

£160K in 21/22 Aecom have been commissioned to 

undertake the design. Landowner 

search concluded.  Topographical 

surveys to be done in Sept. 

Detailed design on preferred option 

progressing with outline design on 

alternative options as a back up.

Match funding to be 

sought from Sustrans 

once PfE portal opens.  

↑

ii) Inverurie to Aberdeen City Centre: 

Berryden corridor active travel 

connections. Feasibility and design of 

segregated cycle paths on St Machar Dr 

(west of Tillydrone Ave), Ashgrove Rd, 

Ashgrove Rd West, Skene Sq and 

Gilcomstoun Steps

£100K in 21/22 Consultancy support contract 

currently being prepared for the 

Berryden corridor active travel 

connections feasibility and design.

↑

iii) Stonehaven to Aberdeen City 

Centre via Chapelton, Portlethen, 

Cove, Altens, Torry and the South 

Harbour:

Elements of this being considered 

under various other studies such 

as the Wellington Road and 

Laurencekirk to Aberdeen multi-

modal studies and the External 

links to Aberdeen South Harbour.

↑

AT 1:

Upgrade 

existing routes 

and develop a 

network of high 

quality and safe 

active travel 

routes across 

the region, 

focussing on 

the key 

priorities listed.

Policy Headings

RTS actions

Status

a.   Safe and 

segregated active 

travel connections 

within and connecting 

to Aberdeen City 

Centre from the main 

commuter towns, in 

line with and to 

complement the 

objectives of the 

Aberdeen City Centre 

Masterplan.  Wherever 

possible routes 

should be segregated 

and road space 

reallocation should 

also be considered to 

allow cyclists, 

pedestrians and 

wheelers (especially 

those less confident 

and able) sufficient 

space. Priority 

corridors have been 

identified opposite, 

some or all of which 

may be suitable for 

designation as ‘Active 

Travel Freeways’ as 

proposed by 

Transport Scotland:
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iv) Ellon to Aberdeen City Centre: A90 

Ellon / Foveran / Newburgh. Contribution 

to land purchase and construction of 

Shared Used Cycleway / Footway 

(match funding to be sought from 

Sustrans)

£120K in 21/22 Arcadis have been commissioned to 

undertake the design.  Feasibility 

designs completed.  Public 

engagement event being 

developed.

Landowner searches 

to begin in Sept. ↑

v) Banchory to Aberdeen City Centre: Active travel elements will be 

considered within the A93 multi-

modal study.

↑

The Scottish Government and 

Scottish Green Party draft shared 

policy programme agrees Transport 

Scotland will work with local and 

regional transport authorities on the 

establishment of an active freeway 

network for Scotland.

The active freeway network for 

Scotland will comprise of local 

networks within towns and cities 

and connecting settlements and 

major destinations with high 

quality, safe routes.

↑

AT 1:

Upgrade 

existing routes 

and develop a 

network of high 

quality and safe 

active travel 

routes across 

the region, 

focussing on 

the key 

priorities listed.

a.   Safe and 

segregated active 

travel connections 

within and connecting 

to Aberdeen City 

Centre from the main 

commuter towns, in 

line with and to 

complement the 

objectives of the 

Aberdeen City Centre 

Masterplan.  Wherever 

possible routes 

should be segregated 

and road space 

reallocation should 

also be considered to 

allow cyclists, 

pedestrians and 

wheelers (especially 

those less confident 

and able) sufficient 

space. Priority 

corridors have been 

identified opposite, 

some or all of which 

may be suitable for 

designation as ‘Active 

Travel Freeways’ as 

proposed by 

Transport Scotland:

Page 3 of 91

P
age 141



07/09/2021 Regional Transport Strategy

Progress Report 

nestrans

Current Actions/ Progress Future Actions/ Progress

Project/Action Progress Budget To be done Target

Policy Headings

RTS actions

Status

Craigshaw Dr cycle route.  Traffic 

Regulation and re-designation Orders 

have gained committee approval. The 

Redetermination order for the shared use 

footway is still under review by the 

Scottish Ministers and an update on 

progress requested. A further meeting 

was undertaken with Sustrans to clarify 

the conditions they placed on their match 

funding and agreed minutes of this 

meeting do state that some of the 

conditions in the award letter will be 

removed. Still awaiting a formal 

acceptance that the details are in line 

with the PFE funding guidance and grant 

will be awarded. 

£300K in 21/22 

(incl £50K delay in 

draw down from 

20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£9.5K

Detailed design continues in 

preparation of the Tender drawings 

and those required by Sustrans PfE. 

The Stage 1/2 Safety Audit has been 

procured - Discussions on the scope 

and package for presentation is 

ongoing. Sustrans Infrastructure 

Steering Group (ISG) has now 

accepted the most recent 

presentation of documentation on 11 

March 2021 allowing the project to 

progress towards the Pre-

Construction phase milestone, which 

is due to be reported back to the ISG 

in mid June. Work is currently 

progressing on the preparation of 

Sustrans Conditions for the 

Monitoring and Behaviour Change 

programme for this project.

The ISG review that 

will dictate if and when 

the legal agreement for 

the Construction 

phase funding grant, 

currently of £700K, can 

be authorised did not 

take place until 29 

July.  ACC received 

letter on 10 August to 

state that decision was 

deferred based on 

level of cost info 

provided.  ACC writing 

to confirm why no 

decision made.  Verbal 

indication is that PfE is 

oversubscribed.  Next 

Sustrans decision 

panel not until Nov. 

↔

Wellheads Cycle Link design. Detailed 

Design and Contract document 

preparation for an extension of the 

existing Wellheads Dr shared use path 

to the north, by-passing the roundabout, 

to connect with Farburn Terr. Also 

included  will be design of a cut-through 

at the Market St closure to create a safe 

and coherent cycle connection with the 

Wellheads shared use cycle route. 

£20K in 21/22 

Invoiced to date = 

£0.4K

Drawing for the land acquisition and 

construction work access areas are 

being prepared.  Discussions with 

land owners on land acquisition are 

progressing by ACC's Estates Team.  

Plot 5 - Heads of Terms to be 

issued. Plot 1&2 Heads of Terms 

agreed, to be reviewed and signed 

off. Plot 4 - No progress as of yet. 

The Detailed Design and generation 

of tender drawings are ongoing. 

Still a risk that Sustrans 

requirements cannot be 

accommodated within 

the available 'Road' 

space and they may not 

approve the full funding 

application.

↑

b.  Support ACC and 

other partners, 

including Sustrans 

and Paths for All, in 

developing a network 

of cycle routes and 

quiet routes across 

the city to complement 

actions on the priority 

corridors, support the 

concept of 20 minute 

neighbourhoods and 

create a cycle friendly 

city.

AT 1:

Upgrade 

existing routes 

and develop a 

network of high 

quality and safe 

active travel 

routes across 

the region, 

focussing on 

the key 

priorities listed.
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Fraserburgh - Maconnochie Road.  

Match funding bid to Sustrans 

unsuccessful and Nestrans agreed to 

meet full cost.

£89.7K in 21/22 

(incl 39.7K delay in 

draw down from 

20/21)

Phase 1 of the project Sports Centre - 

Maconochie is complete. Traffic 

crossing procurement underway.  

Phase 2 of project will see the shared 

use path continued from Maconochie 

Road onto Seaforth Street.

Phase 2 design to be 

finalised.  Awaiting 

issues relating to land 

access to be resolved.

↑

Inverurie - North/South links to new 

Academy.  WSP progressing the design 

of the shared used footway which 

extends to the new academy campus via 

Kellands Park to Port Elphinstone onto 

the A96 Inverurie to Kintore Strategic 

link.

£196.4K in 21/22 

(all delay in draw 

down from 20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£1.7K

 Virtual engagement event held from 

22 Feb for 4 weeks and outcomes 

being fed into the designs. AC 

officers are  reviewing the Stage 1 

designs, and WSP are progressing 

with Stage 2 design. 

Anticipate that Stage 2 

design will be 

completed with next 12 

weeks, enabling tender 

to be issued for 

construction in 

December.

↑

Corsemanhill Drive, Inverurie. 

Construction of Safer Routes to School 

Link as identified within the Inverurie 

Integrated Travel Town between Davah 

Wood and Corsemanhill Drive

£90K in 21/22 (incl 

£55K delay in draw 

down from 20/21)

Topographical Survey complete.    

Design works to be carried out using 

AC's in house resources.  WSP 

engaged to provide external 

support  due to small risk 

associated with the stability of the 

bank and drainage, but it is not 

thought to be significant. 

Aim to undertake 

construction in early 

2022.

↑

Aberdeen Cross City Transport 

Connections Feasibility study to 

investigate ways to maximise 

connectivity between new developments 

in the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 

was completed and STAG Part 2 report  

was reported to the ACC CG&R 

Committee in June 2019.  Budget 

approved for 20/21 to progress priority 

elements from the study. 

£33.8K in 21/22 (all 

carry forward from 

20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£2.2K

Brief to be developed by ACC staff for 

consultancy support to progress the 

development of Active Travel 

schemes identified through the STAG 

part 2 study.  Work on this project 

has been delayed due to ACC staff 

resources being diverted 

elsewhere.

↔

AT 1:

Upgrade 

existing routes 

and develop a 

network of high 

quality and safe 

active travel 

routes across 

the region, 

focussing on 

the key 

priorities listed.

d. Direct active travel 

links within and 

between north east 

communities, 

focussing on 

connecting 

communities and 

employment, 

education, health, 

social care and 

community facilities, 

alongside those 

recreational routes 

which can also link up 

communities and 

enhance access to 

open space, including 

the coastal path 

network.

c.   Support AC’s work 

with local 

communities, and 

aided by Sustrans 

Scotland and Paths 

for All, in their 

Integrated Travel 

Town (ITT) Project to 

shape more 

sustainable and active 

travel in the towns of 

Huntly, Inverurie, 

Fraserburgh, 

Portlethen and Ellon
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Sauchen/ Cluny footpath.  Developer 

obligation funding also being used.

£44.7K in 21/22 (all 

carry forward from 

20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£2.7K

Aberdeenshire Council undertaking 

construction of scheme at cost of 

£289,888.  Promotional works being 

developed to encourage school pupils 

and the community to use the route.  

Junction realignment 

required, resulting in 

increased costs and 

additional contribution 

proposed in separate 

budget matters report.

↑

A92 Balmedie / Blackdog Shared Used 

Path.  The estimated cost of surfacing 

the path between Balmedie and 

Blackdog to formalise it to enable it to be 

adopted by AC is £20K.

£20K in 21/22 (all 

delay in draw down 

from 20/21)

Aberdeen Roads Ltd have agreed 

that works can be carried out on the 

provision that AC adopt all shared 

use paths in this area.  Discussions 

ongoing as to whether the Council will 

accept this asset.

Awaiting outcome of 

discussions regarding 

the adoption prior to 

any further progress 

being made.

↑

e.   Improved provision 

at junctions and 

crossing points for 

both cyclists and 

pedestrians. 

Junction Alterations to Lock in the 

Benefits (LiB) of AWPR. Detailed design 

of options for alterations to Broomhill 

Road - Anderson Drive and 

Westburn/Lang Stracht - Anderson Drive 

with a focus on improvements for Active 

travel.  Land around Woodhill House has 

provisionally been confirmed to be within 

ownership of ACC with no restrictions.  

Sustrans  decision not to provide funding 

towards the detailed design of the 

scheme, which they consider not 

ambitious for cyclist benefit has been 

£20.1K in 21/22 

(including 16.1K 

delay in draw down 

from 20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£1.6K

Jacobs' progressed the detailed 

design and submitted most of their 

final work in March, but the 

remaining street lighting designs, 

which were completed in July have 

still to be reviewed and agreed by 

ACC staff. Land plans have been 

passed to ACC Estates, to progress 

the land acquisition required for the 

works. 

↑

f.   A requirement for 

new and upgraded 

roads and new 

developments to 

include high quality 

non- motorised user 

(NMU) provision that 

is integrated into the 

wider active travel 

network

AT 1:

Upgrade 

existing routes 

and develop a 

network of high 

quality and safe 

active travel 

routes across 

the region, 

focussing on 

the key 

priorities listed.

d. Direct active travel 

links within and 

between north east 

communities, 

focussing on 

connecting 

communities and 

employment, 

education, health, 

social care and 

community facilities, 

alongside those 

recreational routes 

which can also link up 

communities and 

enhance access to 

open space, including 

the coastal path 

network.
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g.  Work with Sustrans 

and Transport 

Scotland to develop 

the National Cycle 

Network to be 

predominantly off-

road and to connect 

more communities 

along its route

Nestrans CDO submitted a bid to 

Sustrans for further upgrade works on 

the Deeside Way from Crathes to 

Banchory, from Dinnet to Cambus O'May 

and from Cambus O'May to Ballater.  

Sustrans are providing full funding for the 

Deeside Way upgrades in 20/21 in 

addition to CDO grant and letter of grant 

received and accepted.  W M Donald 

appointed by Abdnshire Council. Claim 

for first section of works completed in 

Nov 2020 from Cambus O May to 

Ballater uploaded to Sustrans portal. 

£250K National 

Cycling Network 

(NCN) 

Development Grant 

from Sustrans in 

20/21

Claimed to date = 

£225.5K

Further section from Boghead to 

Cambus o May completed by end 

March 2021. Phase 3 between Milton 

of Crathes to Birkenbaud (east of 

Banchory) also now completed along 

with an additional 900m section east 

of Drumoak from Whinbank to Manse 

cottage that was agreed as there was 

budget remaining.  Sustrans agreed 

to further work being undertaken 

beyond June deadline and further 

section delivered at Milton of 

Crathes and claim submitted and 

approved.

Further improvements 

being considered to 

address some reported 

pooling of water on 

section to the east of 

Ballater.  

↑

Sustrans Active Travel Development 

Officer grant offer for 2021/22 received 

and usage has been agreed. 

£40K Sustrans 

ATDO grant in 

21/22

£15K to be used to fund a Health 

Check on the Deeside Way with a 

further £25K allocated to undertake 

any upgrades.

↑

AC Roads Formartine has been 

commissioned to undertake path 

improvement and resurfacing work to the 

Ellon Viaduct and surrounding paths to 

the value of £166K using the 20/21 grant 

that was available to be claimed until 

June 2021.  Works completed at cost of 

£143.2K and claim submitted. 

being funded via 

£166K of the RTP 

20/21 grant and a 

further £114K of 

the 21/22 grant

Claimed to 

date=£143.2K

Works on the northern paths will 

be funded via £114K of the 21/22 

grant.  The works started on 5 July 

to enable works to be done during 

the school holidays and are now 

complete.

↑Formartine & Buchan 

Way corridor

Deeside Way corridor

AT 1:

Upgrade 

existing routes 

and develop a 

network of high 

quality and safe 

active travel 

routes across 

the region, 

focussing on 

the key 

priorities listed.

AT 2:

Continue to 

protect, 

maintain and 

improve the 

Deeside Way 

and Formartine 

& Buchan Way 

as segregated, 

green transport 

corridors. 

Consideration 

should also be 

given to the 

creation of 

further green 

corridors and 

appropriate 

biodiversity 

improvements 

when looking at 

segregated 

active travel 

provision on 

other links.

Improved train 

capacity, 

comfort and 

reliability.
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Installation of the 4 timber bridges 

purchased in 2019/20 and purchase and 

installation of up to 4 further bridges

£50K Capital in 

21/22 plus £80K of 

RTP 21/22 grant

Condition of 21/22 grant states that 

£100K match funding required and 

AC Council Environment Planning 

Dept has allocated £50K in 21/22 and 

Nestrans budget of further £50K 

agreed.

Arrangements to be 

made to have the 4 

bridges installed and 

the tender issued for 

the next tranche of 

bridges.

↑

Sustrans Active Travel Development 

Officer grant offer for 2021/22 received 

and usage has been agreed. 

£39.1K Sustrans 

ATDO grant in 

21/22

£19.1K to be used to fund a Health 

Check and review of access 

control points on the Formartine & 

Buchan Way with a further £20K 

allocated to undertake any 

upgrades.

↑

Funding for purchase and installation of 

10 no. cycle maintenance stands at key 

locations within Aberdeen.  This will 

supplement the 8 stands already 

installed by ACC using Spaces for 

People funding.

£13.6K in 21/22 (all 

delay in draw down 

from 20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£0.3K

Preferred location for further 

stands agreed and ACC currently 

seeking approval for installation on 

adopted footways.

Nestrans to assist with 

map/publicity of 

maintenance stand 

locations

↑

Application received from Strichen 

Community Park for £1,224 funding 

via the Sustainable Travel Grant 

Scheme for purchase of a cycle repair 

station that they would install beside 

the Lodge Café which is nearby the 

F&B Way.  A ten space cycle parking 

rack has also been purchased via  

Buchan Area Initiative grant support.

Cost being met 

from Travel 

Planning - Grant 

Schemes budget

Paid in 21/22 = 

£1.2K

Grant offered under the terms of 

the new Community Grant 

approved by the Board in June.  

Legal services assisted in 

developing Grant Agreement 

terms. Letter of award with terms 

has been signed and returned.

Cycle Repair Station 

has been ordered and 

will be installed by the 

Community Park 

Company

↑

Application received from 

Aberdeenshire Council for £2,563.30 

match funding via the Sustainable 

Travel Grant Scheme for cycle 

parking.

Cost being met 

from Travel 

Planning - Grant 

Schemes budget

Grant offer agreed and match 

funding to be provided for 

purchase of a 12 space cycle 

shelter at the Green, Berrymuir Rd, 

Portlethen.

↑

Formartine & Buchan 

Way corridor

Signage, 

parking/storage (on 

and off public 

transport), changing 

facilities and tourist/ 

leisure-friendly 

facilities.

AT 2:

Continue to 

protect, 

maintain and 

improve the 

Deeside Way 

and Formartine 

& Buchan Way 

as segregated, 

green transport 

corridors. 

Consideration 

should also be 

given to the 

creation of 

further green 

corridors and 

appropriate 

biodiversity 

improvements 

when looking at 

segregated 

active travel 

provision on 

other links.

Improved train 

capacity, 

comfort and 

reliability.

AT 3:

Increase the 

provision and 

quality of active 

travel facilities 

across the 

Region.
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Sustrans Active Travel Development 

Officer grant offer for 2021/22 received 

and usage has been agreed. 

£2K Sustrans 

ATDO grant in 

21/22

Funding agreed for repairs to cycle 

maintenance stands in Aberdeen ↑

Temporary signs created and erected for 

Ride the North 153, which has a 

Grampian Highlands Cycle Network with 

158 suggested cycling routes around 

Aberdeenshire and Moray.  The  signs 

will be in place from 1 May for 153 days 

to  30 Sept.

Nestrans 

contributed to cost 

of temporary 

signage in 

Grampian and 

Moray area from 

the travel planning 

budget.

The  signs will be in place from 1 

May for 153 days to  30 Sept 2021. ↑

Safer routes to 

schools.

Improve quality of 

walking surfaces.
Improved lighting, 

giving due 

consideration to the 

impacts of light 

pollution.Improved 

maintenance.

AT 4: 

Implement 

regional cycle 

hire schemes, 

which can 

include bike 

hire, eBike hire, 

cargo bike hire 

and cycle share 

schemes.

Aberdeen Bike Hire 

Scheme

ACC announced on 22 March 2020 the 

operator for Aberdeen’s new electric bike 

hire scheme is Big Issue ShareBike Ltd.    

ShareBike, an established Norwegian 

bike hire company, is sourcing the 

ebikes and developing the app whilst 

The Big Issue will recruit locally to 

undertake the maintenance for tasks 

such as bike re-distribution, bike 

maintenance, contact centre, and battery 

charging.  Nestrans has approved a 

£10K budget in 21/22 to assist with 

promotion of the scheme and to support 

membership subscription. 

£10K Revenue in 

21/22

The scheme will see about 450 

ebikes initially being installed at 

various locations around the city with 

people able to book the bikes 

primarily through a smartphone app 

although web-based and telephone 

bookings will also be available. 

People will be able to book an ebike 

through a monthly subscription 

scheme or on a pay-as-you-go basis. 

Using a mobile phone and personal 

code, a GPS system will identify bike 

availability to start the trip and also 

the available parking spaces at the 

end of the journey.

Because of a lack of 

availability of ebikes 

worldwide due to 

COVID the scheme 

launch has been 

pushed back from Sept 

to March 2022. 

↔

Signage, 

parking/storage (on 

and off public 

transport), changing 

facilities and tourist/ 

leisure-friendly 

facilities.

AT 3:

Increase the 

provision and 

quality of active 

travel facilities 

across the 

Region.
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B9002 Kennethmont 

Footway 

Land Purchase & Construction. Project is 

at and advanced stage an will be 

progressed in 2020/21

£77.5K in 21/22 (all 

delay in draw down 

from 20/21)

Confirmation received that Land 

Purchase has now been 

concluded. 

A diversion of SSE 

services is required for 

this project.

↑

A947 Albert Road, 

Oldmeldrum

Footway Reconstruction £26.1K in 21/22 Potential delays, but anticipate that 

these works will be completed by 

end March 2022 using external 

resources.

↑

Shore Street, Macduff 

Phase 3

Footway Reconstruction £42.4K in 21/22 Implementation delayed as a result 

of AC resources being redirected.

Anticipate that works 

can still be done by 

end March.

↑

Core Paths Review in 

Aberdeen

Consultancy work to review the core path 

network in Aberdeen to assess path 

condition, identify any H&S concerns and 

grade each path to provide detailed 

baseline information.  This will help 

inform a future Core Path Plan Review 

and suggested priority actions to improve 

the Network.

£80K of the RTP 

21/22 grant

Tender brief posted on PCS using 

lot 2 of the Scotland Excel 

framework on 23 June with four 

submissions made by deadline of 

16 July.  Returns assessed on 

80/20 quality/price basis and 

Stantec appointed.  Inception 

meeting held.

Pilot surveys to be 

carried out in 

Aberdeen on 2/3 

September before 

rolling out 

methodology to survey 

all core paths in 

Aberdeen

↑

Wayfinding signs - 

Stonehaven

Bid has been submitted to ScotRail 

Station Travel Plan Development Fund 

for £10K and this budget forms part of 

the Nestrans match funding in 

partnership with £5K via Aberdeenshire 

Council's Smarter Choices Smarter 

Places funding.

£5K in 21/22 (all 

delay in draw down 

from 20/21)  

ScotRail have confirmed that they will 

not be able to contribute to this in 

2021.  

Nestrans to discuss 

potential options with 

Aberdeenshire Council 

with remaining 

funding.

↔

Sustrans funding Sustrans has agreed to the remaining 

20/21 Cycle Dev Officer grant once the 

ped/cycle counters being installed by 

Cycling Scotland are funded being used 

for bikes, helmets and equipment by 

Sport Aberdeen and Live Life 

Aberdeenshire.

Cost being met 

from 2020/21 

Sustrans CDO 

grant

Sport Aberdeen and Live Life 

Aberdeenshire are to progress the 

purchasing of bike and bike 

equipment with the remaining 

grant funding once the ped cycle 

counter installation costs are 

confirmed.

Sustrans has extended 

the time period that the  

unused 20/21 grant can 

continue to be claimed 

within.

↑AT 6:

All children and 

adults should 

be provided 

with the 

opportunity to 

learn to ride a 

bike and 

support 

provided to 

those who do 

not have access 

to a bike in 

order to do so.

AT 5:

Extend and 

improve the 

walking 

network within 

all communities 

and the city to 

provide a high-

quality walking 

environment 

with safe 

crossing points, 

seating and 

wayfinding, 

which 

emphasises the 

priority of 

active travel 

and encourages 

walking or 

wheeling as the 

preferred option 

for short 

journeys.
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Scottish Government 

Free bike pilots

The first 6 pilot projects selected to 

offer free bikes to school age children 

who cannot afford one were 

announced in Aug 2021 and will test 

delivery models in urban and rural 

locations, across primary and 

secondary schools ages and trial 

various procurement models. They  

will run for 12 months and be 

evaluated  to determine what the best 

models of local delivery could look 

like.  The suggestion submitted by 

Nestrans was not successful, but  

feedback from TS has been received 

and we have been encouraged to re-

apply once applications are open in 

early 2022.  

The pilots will test a variety of 

ownership, loan and subscription 

models and undertake various 

methods of assessing need to 

ensure inclusion and accessibility.  

They are linked to existing 

community networks across 

schools, charities, cycling clubs 

and active travel hubs and will 

explore opportunities to maximise 

benefits for the local supply chain, 

including recycling bikes.  

Aberdeenshire Council is part the 

Sustrans IBike project pilot and 

officers are seeking to confirm 

details. Although the schools are 

yet to be confirmed, it is likely to 

cover one academy and feeder 

primary.

Further pilots will be 

announced in the 

coming months. 

Transport Scotland 

continues to explore 

opportunities for both 

an islands project and 

a specific adaptive 

bikes pilot. 

↑

Middlefield 

Community Bike Loan 

Scheme

A community bike loan scheme was 

launched in Middlefield on Fri 27 

August 2021

Cost being met 

from Travel 

Planning budget

Nestrans funded the costs for a 

bike doctor from Adventure 

Aberdeen to attend the launch from 

12.30pm-3.30pm to check and 

repair bikes to support the launch 

of the Scheme. 

↑

Scottish Government The Scottish Government and 

Scottish Green Party draft shared 

policy programme commits to 

increase the proportion of Transport 

Scotland's budget spent on Active 

Travel initiatives so that by 2024/25 at 

least £320M or 10% of the total 

transport budget will be allocated to 

active travel.

↑AT 7: 

Work with 

partners, 

including 

Transport 

Scotland, Local 

Authorities, 

Sustrans, 

Cycling 

Scotland and 

Paths for All to 

ensure the 

funding models 

for active travel 

improvements 

can help us 

deliver the 

priorities for the 

north east.

AT 6:

All children and 

adults should 

be provided 

with the 

opportunity to 

learn to ride a 

bike and 

support 

provided to 

those who do 

not have access 

to a bike in 

order to do so.
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Cycling Action Plan for 

Scotland

Cycling Action Plan for Scotland was 

published in 2010 and refreshed in 2013.  

Latest refresh CAPS 2017-2020 

published 17 Jan 2017.

A new CAPS is currently being 

developed. Nestrans is involved in the 

group.

Places for Everyone 

(PfE)

S Gov provides funding to Sustrans that 

is open to bids for infrastructure projects 

to promote cycling and walking.  The 

Community Links Programme is now 

called Places for Everyone. The Cab Sec 

for Transport announced on 21 August 

that the Scottish Gov is reducing the 

match funding rate for PfE in 20/21 from 

50% to 30%.

Sustrans has advised that the Places 

for Everyone portal is currently closed 

for bids.  Previously submitted bids 

are however continuing to be 

considered and progressed if agreed.  

Closure of the portal 

will be reviewed in 

Sept. 

↑

AT 7: 

Work with 

partners, 

including 

Transport 

Scotland, Local 

Authorities, 

Sustrans, 

Cycling 

Scotland and 

Paths for All to 

ensure the 

funding models 

for active travel 

improvements 

can help us 

deliver the 

priorities for the 

north east.
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RL - Developing the rail network

Rolling Stock 

improvement. New 

Aberdeen-London 

Azuma rolling stock 

and upgraded Sleeper 

service as well as 

High Speed Trains 

with greater capacity 

and faster running 

speeds between 

Scotland’s cities have 

recently been 

introduced. Next 

generation investment 

in decarbonising the 

railways may require 

development of 

hydrogen trains

RL 1:

Due to the high 

proportions of 

long-distance 

business and 

leisure travel by 

rail to and from 

the north east, 

the highest 

priority should 

be investment 

in improving 

the quality of 

InterCity 

services, 

ensuring 

reliability and 

performance, 

adequate 

capacity and 

improved on- 

board facilities 

as well as 

reducing end-to-

end journey 

times between 

key centres
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Aberdeen-Central Belt 

improvements to 

reduce journey times 

by 20 minutes or 

more, through the 

Aberdeen to Central 

Belt and 7 Cities 

Projects. Network Rail 

and Transport 

Scotland are 

considering the 

constraints on this 

corridor and are 

looking at how to 

deliver benefits for the 

entirety of the corridor 

in terms of both 

intercity and regional 

connectivity, freight 

and journey times. In 

order to meet future 

forecast demand and 

improve the 

attractiveness of the 

line there is an 

aspiration to see three 

intercity services per 

hour from Aberdeen to 

the Central Belt.

Ministerial announcement on STPR 10 

Dec 08 includes rail service 

enhancements between Aberdeen and 

the Central Belt and reconfiguration of 

the national rail timetable (incl trying to 

reduce journey times to the Central Belt 

by up to 20mins) as priority projects.  On 

28 Jan 2016 S Gov announced 

£200million to help improve journey 

times and increase capacity between 

Aberdeen and the Central Belt as part of 

a £254million package in addition to the 

City Region Deal. Mar 2017 Minister 

announced team to be set up to review  

options for capacity improvements 

between Aberdeen and Dundee, as well 

as options for double tracking Usan 

Junction and the South Esk viaduct at 

Montrose. 

Project Delivery Group set up with 

representation from Nestrans, 

Tactran and City Region Deal teams.   

Network Rail has produced a GRIP2 

report on behalf of Transport Scotland 

that develops options based on 

rearranging use of line by 

local/intercity trains and introduction 

of freight loops.  GRIP3 report and 

the Outline Business Case for the 

project being progressed.

Meeting arranged for 

26 August to discuss 

the Outline Business 

Case and have a 

workshop on how best 

to capture regional 

economic benefits.  

↑

RL 1:

Due to the high 

proportions of 

long-distance 

business and 

leisure travel by 

rail to and from 

the north east, 

the highest 

priority should 

be investment 

in improving 

the quality of 

InterCity 

services, 

ensuring 

reliability and 

performance, 

adequate 

capacity and 

improved on- 

board facilities 

as well as 

reducing end-to-

end journey 

times between 

key centres
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Addressing resilience 

and timetable 

constraints, including 

addressing the single-

track section at Usan, 

near Montrose. This 

will help ensure that 

capacities are not 

limited unnecessarily 

and that delays do not 

impact on other 

services

East Coast Main Line Authorities - 

Manifesto launched 15 July 2014.  

SYSTRA appointed to refresh the 2016 

“Investing for Economic Growth” study 

for ECMA.  LNER has introduced Azuma 

trains.

£3K Revenue in 

21/22

Subscription levels to remain at same 

level in 21/22 and budget approved. ↑

Aberdeen-Inverness 

Phase 2 

enhancements. This 

will enable an hourly 

service with a journey 

time of less than two 

hours (previous 

commitment in 

Strategic Transport 

Projects Review)

Phase 1 was completed in December 

2019 and included re-doubling of most of 

the track between Aberdeen and 

Inverurie, signalling enhancements 

between Inverurie and Nairn, platform 

extensions at Insch and Elgin, relocation 

of Forres Station and extension of 

passing loop at Forres.  The Scottish 

Government and Scottish Green Party 

draft shared policy programme agrees 

to work to improve the resilience, 

reliability and efficiency of the 

Aberdeen to Inverness rail corridor, 

alongside our commitment to 

decarbonise the rail network, to make 

it more competitive to road and 

encourage modal shift for both 

passengers and freight.

£3.209M contribn 

to Kintore Station 

in 2021/22 (all 

delayed draw down 

from 20/21)

Kintore Station was reopened on 

Thursday 15 October 2020.   It is also 

the largest electric vehicle charging 

location in north east Scotland, with 

24 of the 168 spaces at the new 

transport hub fitted with charging 

points.   Project costs now 

confirmed as having increased to 

£15M, with regional contribution 

therefore almost £5.5M.  Previously 

funded work that will contribute to 

this total agreed.

Discussions ongoing 

with Transport 

Scotland, Nestrans and 

Aberdeenshire Council 

regarding invoicing of 

regional contribution.

↑

RL 1:

Due to the high 

proportions of 

long-distance 

business and 

leisure travel by 

rail to and from 

the north east, 

the highest 

priority should 

be investment 

in improving 

the quality of 

InterCity 

services, 

ensuring 

reliability and 

performance, 

adequate 

capacity and 

improved on- 

board facilities 

as well as 

reducing end-to-

end journey 

times between 

key centres
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A bid was made to the Local Rail Dev 

Fund in 2019 to cover the cost of a 

feasibility study into new rail stations on 

the line south of Aberdeen and the full 

requested funding was awarded in Aug 

2019, although it will be provided in 

stages subject to approval that 

justification to progress the study to the 

next stage is evidenced. LRDF grant 

award provided on basis that a multi-

modal corridor study between Aberdeen 

and Laurencekirk be undertaken.  

Deadline for claiming Round 2 LRDF 

grants extended to 31 March 2022 due to 

covid.

£80K LRDF grant 

(of which £49.3K 

remains to claim in 

21/22)

Invoiced to date = 

£30.7K

Aecom appointed and initial case for 

change report drafted that 

recommends a number of options for 

preliminary qualitative appraisal. 

Feedback received from Transport 

Scotland on case for change and 

they wish further evidence to be 

provided by collecting information 

from corridor users and additional 

analysis of public transport data.  

Cost estimate for undertaking 

further work to address comments 

obtained from Aecom and 

Transport Scotland has agreed to 

meet this additional cost and 

increase the overall grant by 

£15,321.

Online survey being 

developed and 

additional stakeholder 

engagement and data 

collection and analysis 

to take place. Further 

information in separate 

report.

↑

The Scottish Government and 

Scottish Green Party draft shared 

policy programme agrees to work with 

Nestrans, Aberdeen City and 

Aberdeenshire Councils on the 

feasibility of a rail link between Dyce 

and Ellon and further north to 

Peterhead and Fraserburgh.

RL 2:

The provision 

of improved 

access to the 

railway network 

by considering 

opportunities 

for additional 

stations, better 

integration of 

local services 

with InterCity 

services, full 

access for all 

and improved 

access to 

stations by non-

car modes. 

Undertake a review of 

the Cross Aberdeen 

local rail corridor 

(Montrose-Aberdeen-

Inverurie) and 

previous Crossrail 

business case to 

determine whether 

there remain markets 

that may be 

appropriately served 

by improved access to 

rail. Development of 

business cases for 

additional stations to 

enhance the viability

of the local cross 

Aberdeen rail service, 

with new stations 

providing access to 

the railway for an 

increasing proportion 

of the north east 

population, with 

delivery of additional 

stations where a 

viable business case 

is proven.
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Insch Station Accessibility Study £8.5K in 2021/22 

(all delayed draw 

down from 

2020/21) 

Detailed appraisal of Insch Station 

Accessibility complete and draft 

report submitted to Transport 

Scotland and published on Nestrans 

website. Comments on draft report 

received from Transport Scotland 

and report updated to address 

these.

Updated final study 

report sent to TS and 

subject of separate 

report to Board.

↑

Upgrade of Stations and improved 

accessibility

Improvements to Montrose and 

Aberdeen Stations are ongoing. ↑
£500K outstanding ITF funding for 

Inverurie Interchange advanced to 

Nestrans and later passed to AC to 

retain in a ring-fenced account. Extra 36  

parking bays, improvements to surfacing, 

layout and lighting completed Dec 2017.

Remaining grant at 

start 2018/19 = 

£314.3K

BID Inverurie have enquired as to 

proposals.  Aberdeenshire Council to 

seek meeting with Network Rail about 

the land next to Railway station. 

ScotRail and Nestrans to also attend.

Initial meeting held 

between ScotRail and 

Aberdeenshire Council 

to discuss this in Jan 

2020

Working with ScotRail 

and other partners to 

ensure a better 

balance between 

journey times and 

stopping patterns to 

maximise the benefits 

of rail and improve 

connectivity between 

local and InterCity 

services.

ScotRail and LNER are consulting on 

timetables and this is subject of 

separate report to Board.

Aspiration for a 15-minute peak 

frequency to / from Aberdeen for all 

stations between Inverurie and 

Stonehaven or Montrose;

RL 2:

The provision 

of improved 

access to the 

railway network 

by considering 

opportunities 

for additional 

stations, better 

integration of 

local services 

with InterCity 

services, full 

access for all 

and improved 

access to 

stations by non-

car modes. 

The Scottish Government and 

Scottish Green Party draft shared 

policy programme agrees that  the 

future direction of investment in 

Scotland’s railways will be 

determined as part of the second 

Strategic Transport Projects 

Review.  They will also press  the 

UK Government for further 

devolution of transport, specifically 

with regard to rail infrastructure 

and services as there are areas of 

transport such as fuel duty, vehicle 

taxes and rail services, where 

regulation and reserved issues 

constrain their ability to make and 

implement necessary policies.

Upgrading of stations 

to ensure accessibility 

for all and 

improvement of 

interchange 

opportunities, 

including as priorities, 

accessibility at Insch 

Station and the 

development of 

Inverurie Interchange.

Work with ScotRail 

and Network Rail to 

realise the aspirations 

of the ‘Scotland Route 

Strategy’, in 

particular:
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Aspiration for a 30 minute all day 

frequency for all stations between 

Inverurie and Montrose

Recognising Dundee as a key 

employment, education and leisure 

destination, as well as a key 

interchange point, all stations from 

Inverurie south to have a minimum of 

hourly direct service to the city.

Travel plans to be 

developed and 

updated for all 

stations across the 

north east to consider 

and improve access to 

stations by all modes. 

Travel plans for Dyce, Inverurie and 

Stonehaven were done in 2019 and 

have identified a need for additional 

car parking at each. The Strategic 

Development Plan also identifies a 

requirement for additional car parking 

at Huntly, Portlethen and Laurencekirk 

rail stations. In line with the 

Sustainable Travel Hierarchy, we will 

investigate options for improving 

links by all modes, starting with 

pedestrian and cycling links and then 

consider the need for additional 

parking beyond this. We will 

encourage the rail industry to 

consider improved management 

options for their car parks, so that 

spaces are used appropriately for rail 

related uses.

Nestrans commissioned a study in 

2015 to consider options to increase 

parking at Dyce Station.  In addition 

to the travel plans undertaken by 

ScotRail, Nestrans commissioned a  

study into future forecasts for station 

usage in the Mearns area 

(Laurencekirk, Stonehaven and 

Portlethen) that considered options 

for car park extensions, which was 

also completed in 2019.  Both 

Nestrans studies published on 

website.

ART - Aberdeen Rapid Transit

RL 2:

The provision 

of improved 

access to the 

railway network 

by considering 

opportunities 

for additional 

stations, better 

integration of 

local services 

with InterCity 

services, full 

access for all 

and improved 

access to 

stations by non-

car modes. 

The Scottish Government and 

Scottish Green Party draft shared 

policy programme agrees that  the 

future direction of investment in 

Scotland’s railways will be 

determined as part of the second 

Strategic Transport Projects 

Review.  They will also press  the 

UK Government for further 

devolution of transport, specifically 

with regard to rail infrastructure 

and services as there are areas of 

transport such as fuel duty, vehicle 

taxes and rail services, where 

regulation and reserved issues 

constrain their ability to make and 

implement necessary policies.

Work with ScotRail 

and Network Rail to 

realise the aspirations 

of the ‘Scotland Route 

Strategy’, in 

particular:
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ART 1:

Develop the 

principle of an 

Aberdeen Rapid 

Transit scheme, 

through 

engagement 

with the Bus 

Alliance 

partners, ... 

 ....with a view to an 

additional public 

transport option 

providing express 

service journey times, 

frequency and 

reliability to 

encourage a mode 

shift.

The Scottish Government and 

Scottish Green Party draft shared 

policy programme agrees to work with 

Nestrans, Aberdeen City and 

Aberdeenshire Councils on the 

feasibility of a mass rapid transit 

system for the region.  

ART 2:

Develop and 

deliver a bid to 

Transport 

Scotland’s Bus 

Partnership 

Fund to take 

forward 

feasibility and 

business case 

development 

for two ART 

cross city 

corridors 

connecting 

Park & Ride 

sites and the 

Airport with the 

Aberdeen Rapid Transit 

investigation and Bus 

Partnership Fund Bid 

preparation 

Jacobs appointed following competitive 

tender to provide Aberdeen Rapid 

Transit and Bus Partnership Fund Bid 

support. 

£39K in 21/22 (incl 

£19K delay in draw 

down from 20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£23.9K

ART Vision work reported to 

Nestrans Board in June 2021 and 

published on Nestrans website.  

The NE Bus Alliance was 

successful in its bid for £12M 

through the Bus Partnership Fund 

and part of this will be used to 

develop the business cases and 

designs for the Aberdeen Rapid 

Transit system.  Consultancy brief 

developed and being tendered by 

Nestrans using the Scotland Excel 

Framework.  Deadline for tender 

responses is 3 September.

Tender submissions to 

be evaluated and 

contract awarded.

↑

Craibstone/Airport/TE

CA to the south via the 

City Centre and

 Kingswells to Bridge 

of Don via Union 

Street.

ART 3:

Implement 

Aberdeen Rapid 

Transit 

connecting: 
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ART 4:

Develop 

complementary 

bus priorities 

and city centre 

traffic 

management 

which improves 

the city centre 

environment 

whilst providing 

suitable priority 

for ART and 

buses.

Successful Bus Partnership Fund 

award includes funding for the 

delivery of South College Street as an 

enabling measure for further bus 

priority measures in the city centre.  

Bus Partnership Fund working group 

established with the remit to oversee 

the BPF work and ensure alignment 

with other city centre workstreams.

ART 5:

Develop a suite 

of 

complementary 

measures 

including:  

off-vehicle ticketing, 

high quality halts and 

interchanges, 

marketing and 

branding as well as 

safe, high quality 

integration with other 

modes, to emphasise 

the step-change 

additionality of the 

ART system.
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BUS - Improving the region’s bus network 

BUS 1:

Continue to be 

a key partner of 

the North East 

Bus Alliance 

and ensure a 

strong 

partnership 

continues for 

the benefit of 

the north east.

North East of Scotland 

Bus Alliance

The North East of Scotland Bus Alliance 

has been approved by both Councils and 

the operators and has been signed.  The 

Transport Bill was passed on 10 October 

2019 and  received Royal Assent on 15 

November 2019 making the Transport 

(Scotland) Act 2019 law.  The new 

legislation will give local councils and 

RTPs more flexibility to improve 

services, either by working with bus 

companies or by stepping in and running 

services themselves.  It includes new 

local franchising powers, and 

requirements on bus operators to provide 

more information to the public about 

routes, timetabling and fares.

£87.3K in 21/22 

(incl £36K carry 

forward from 20/21)

The Bus Action Plan produced by the 

Bus Alliance and based on the State 

of the Network Report was published 

on the Nestrans website in April 2020 

and will be updated and reported to 

the Bus Alliance Board every 6 

months. The Bus Alliance submitted a 

bid to the S Gov's Bus Partnership 

Fund that was successful and was 

awarded over £12M funding.

↑

New bus priority (with 

a focus on providing 

continuous provision) 

on all key radial routes 

into the city and 

linking to Park & Ride 

provision and to 

support plans to 

develop Rapid Transit 

corridors (see also 

Aberdeen Rapid 

Transit).

BUS 2:

Develop and 

deliver the 

actions 

contained 

within the Bus 

Action Plan, in 

partnership 

with the 

members of the 

North East Bus 

Alliance. Our 

priorities being:

a) bus journey 

times and 

reliability
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Support the City 

Centre Masterplan 

proposals to create a 

network of bus, cycle 

and local access only 

sections within the 

city centre, similar to 

that already 

introduced on Broad 

Street.

ACC is progressing proposals for 

South College St Ph1 improvements 

that involves linking Palmerston Road 

through to North Esplanade West and 

a package of junction improvements 

and road widening measures to 

increase capacity and improve traffic 

flow. Alongside the carriageway there 

will be shared and segregated 

facilities for pedestrians and cyclists.

The £12M Bus Partnership Fund 

award will be used to deliver the 

improvements at South College 

Street, in support of the City Centre 

Masterplan by helping to unlock 

wider improvements for bus 

priority in the city centre and 

enabling public realm measures to 

enhance the city centre as a 

destination. 

↑

Implement town 

centre improvements 

to improve priority for 

buses across 

Aberdeenshire.

Trial of E-paper bus information by 

Councils used Civitas funding to install 

display screens on A96 corridor, with 

additional Nestrans budget to allow a 

larger screen size to be purchased to 

optimise the provision of real time 

information, scheduled timetables and 

public notices. Further Nestrans funding 

used for digital display screens in 

Inverurie and Fraserburgh.

Aberdeenshire Council has  

installed a 32" papercast solar e-

paper display in Westhill and solar 

powered 13" display and bus 

shelter lighting at Chapelton/ 

Newtonhill P&R using Developer 

Obligation Funding

↑

BUS 2:

Develop and 

deliver the 

actions 

contained 

within the Bus 

Action Plan, in 

partnership 

with the 

members of the 

North East Bus 

Alliance. Our 

priorities being:

a) bus journey 

times and 

reliability

BUS 2:

b) information, 

marketing and 

promotion

Roll out of digital 

timetables at bus 

stops, focussing 

initially on the priority 

radial corridors.
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In accordance with Council's Bus 

Information Strategy documents - 

replace and/or provide bus timetable 

display cases at bus stops within 

Aberdeen City and Shire to ensure 

minimum standards and content can be 

provided, is DDA compliant and allows 

for future standardised region wide 

improvements to timetabling information.  

New large format printer purchased and 

was delivered on 18 Feb 2021.

£14.5K Capital in 

21/22

Invoiced to date = 

£0.14K

This is a reactive programme 

resulting from bus stop changes 

and remedial works identified by 

inspections throughout the year.  

↑

Continue to promote 

Park & Ride and 

undertake targeted 

promotion to 

encourage increased 

bus use through the 

Getabout brand.

Park and Ride website www.getabout 

byparkandride.org.uk was launched via 

the Getabout brand on 23 October 2019.  

It covers Bridge of Don, Craibstone, 

Ellon, Kingswells and Newtonhill.  The 

website provides users with info on the 

facilities at each site, opening times, 

fares, how to purchase tickets, journey 

planner and links to live departures.

Action Plan developed to improve 

P&R services, facilities, information 

and promotion through Civitas Portis 

project. Communications plan also 

developed and social media plan was 

implemented in partnership with the 

two Councils.

Better engage with the 

business community 

and major employers 

through travel 

planning initiatives 

(see also Behaviour 

Change).

BUS 2:

b) information, 

marketing and 

promotion

Roll out of digital 

timetables at bus 

stops, focussing 

initially on the priority 

radial corridors.
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BUS 2:

c) Fares and 

ticketing

Further support the 

development of the 

GrassHOPPER 

integrated ticketing 

arrangement to 

develop online retail 

solutions, alternative 

ticket types, mobile 

and fares capping 

technology.

Launch of new multi operator ticket 

scheme - Grasshopper took place on 8 

May 2014.  Full details on prices and 

coverage on grasshopperpass.com 

website. Grasshopper pass coverage 

extended to allow travel on multi-

operator services over a wider area in 

2015. From 22 Aug 2016 the 

Grasshopper ticket can be stored on a 

smartcard, making it Scotland's first 

means of smart multi-operator travel.

Nestrans had agreed to contribute in 

2020/21 along with both Councils, 

Stagecoach and First Aberdeen to  

marketing to advertise the smartcard, 

but this was not appropriate during 

Covid.  Transport Bill was passed on 

10 October 2019 and received Royal 

Assent on 15 November 2019 making 

the Transport (Scotland) Act 2019 

law.  It includes mention of "smart-

ticketing" across bus, rail, ferry, 

subway and tram networks, with a 

"national technological standard" that 

such schemes would have to live up 

to.  

Explore options to 

reduce transport 

poverty by working in 

partnership with bus 

operators to look at 

fare structures, 

See AF1 and AF5: the affordability of 

transport

Continue to promote 

the Thistle Assistance 

Card. 

See AA7: Improving access to the 

transport network for all.

Continue to engage 

with disability groups 

to improve access for 

all.

Resurfacing section of Kingswells Park 

and Ride used by buses via the new link 

road previously funded by Nestrans. 

Phase 1 works were completed in week 

beginning 22 March 2021 and cost will 

be met from 20/21 budget.  

£44K budget in 

21/22 

Order has been raised with ACC 

Roads Services on 16 April to 

undertake Ph 2 resurfacing.  Works 

took place in June.

Awaiting final invoice, 

but full budget not 

required and virement 

proposed in separate 

report.

↑

BUS 2:

d) Affordability 

and 

accessibility:

BUS 2:

e) Interchange 

between bus 

services and 

with other 

modes:

Development of the 

network of Park & 

Ride and mini-

interchange hubs 

across the region 

(also see P&R).
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Aecom commissioned to progress Ph 2 

additional external waiting facilities and 

upgrade to turning circle to 

accommodate 15m vehicles at Ellon 

P&R improvements to tender. 

£89.1K budget in 

21/22 (all delay in 

draw down from 

20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£25.5K

Contract has been awarded to W M 

Donald at a Costs of £1,100,000 

which is being funded by 

Aberdeenshire Council.  Nestrans 

funding is 21/22 being used as 

contribution to bus infrastructure 

elements.

Construction 

commenced on 28 

June 2021 and good 

progress being made.  

Bus stop infrastructure 

and information 

display units at a cost 

of £130K 

commissioned.

↑

Seek improvements to 

Aberdeen Bus Station 

to provide a high 

quality passenger 

experience, improve 

accessibility and 

provide a fit for 

purpose operating 

environment.

Improvement to links 

and accessibility 

between and within 

Aberdeen Rail Station, 

Aberdeen Bus Station 

and the Ferry terminal 

creating a single 

navigable hub, easily 

accessible by active 

travel modes.

Enhanced provision 

for carriage of bikes 

on buses.

The Scottish Government and 

Scottish Green Party draft shared 

policy programme agrees support for 

the purchase of new buses will be, 

where appropriate, conditional on 

space being available for bike 

transport in addition to wheelchair 

and buggy space.

BUS 2:

e) Interchange 

between bus 

services and 

with other 

modes:

Development of the 

network of Park & 

Ride and mini-

interchange hubs 

across the region 

(also see P&R).
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Contribution towards the Construction of 

a 300m Footpath connecting Hareburn 

Terrace, Blackdog to A90 to assist 

access to bus services

£48.7K Capital in 

21/22 (all delay in 

draw down from 

20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£0.3K

Increased costs have arisen due to 

additional consultancy work and 

the original cost estimates not 

accounting for the fencing / 

barriers required

Virement proposed in 

separate budget report 

to increase the budget.

↑

New footpath and bus stop infrastructure 

at B900 Tarty Road end to facilitate 

access to bus services as previous link 

lost to AWPR-BT.

£90K Capital in 

21/22 (all delay in 

draw down from 

20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£0.3K

AC PTU in discussions with Transport 

Scotland /Aberdeen Roads Ltd to 

determine best option to connect 

Tarty to bus services and trying to 

encourage them to open up a route to 

Bridgend, which requires the same 

level of funding as connecting to the 

B9000, but is a better option for the 

bus users as more services to 

access.

ARL and TS have 

approved the design, 

although confirmation 

is awaited in writing 

with an element of 

minor conditions being 

attached to the 

development.  AC plan 

to use in-house 

resources to undertake 

works.

↑

Refresh of All Aberdeen City Bus Stop 

Flags resulting from information being 

out of date ie/ bus service numbers etc

£96K Capital in 

21/22

Invoiced to date = 

£0.5K

Preparatory works underway to 

understand the requirements of the 

project with good progress being 

made.

Next phase of project 

will require discussion 

with ACC to agree the 

design element.

↑

Remaining funding from Nestrans budget 

in 20/21 towards E- timetables agreed 

for use for bus stop infrastructure 

improvements in Aberdeenshire.

£15.3K in 21/22 (all 

delay draw down 

from 20/21)

Invoiced to date =   - 

£3.5K

Refund received from SSE due to 

quote for works in 20/21 being in 

excess of actual costs and will be 

used for further works in 2021/22.

Budget in 21/22 to be 

used for further bus 

stop infrastructure 

improvements

↑

Work with the bus 

operators to increase 

the proportion of the 

bus fleet operating 

with low or zero 

emission vehicles.

BUS 2:

g) Quality of the 

vehicles:

BUS 2:

f) Bus stop 

infrastructure:

BUS 2:

e) Interchange 

between bus 

services and 

with other 

modes:

Work with the two 

local authorities to 

upgrade bus stop 

infrastructure across 

the region to ensure it 

is high-quality, fit for 

purpose, safe and 

accessible.

Improved and safe 

pedestrian access to 

bus stops.
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Work with bus 

operators, bus users 

and communities to 

ensure accessibility 

needs are met across 

the bus network.

BUS 3:

The Bus Action 

Plan is a rolling 

5-year action 

plan and we will 

continue to 

monitor, review 

and update 

progress 

through the Bus 

Alliance.

Progression of the previously funded 

corridor study Phase 2 elements that 

require further development to STAG 

detailed (Part 2) appraisal and thereafter 

preliminary design 

£150K in 21/22

Invoiced to date = 

£0.7K

Client group set up and brief 

developed and tendered using the 

Scotland Excel framework.  

Following evaluation of tender 

returns in July, Stantec was 

appointed and an inception 

meeting was held in early August.

This project received 

funding via the Bus 

Partnership Fund and 

Nestrans budget no 

longer fully required.  

Proposed virement in 

separate budget 

report.

↑

BUS 2:

g) Quality of the 

vehicles:

BUS 4:

Work through 

the Bus 

Alliance to 

develop Bus 

Service 

Improvement 

Partnership 

agreement(s) 

(or alternative 

statutory 

agreement) 

based on a 

package of 

infrastructure 

and service 

improvements 

and 

commitments to 

be delivered by 

both public 

sector and bus 

operator 

partners. 

Corridor 

studies, in line 

with the 

principles of 

STAG will be 

used to identify 

appropriate 

infrastructure 

measures to 

feed into these 

agreements. 

Westhill to Aberdeen 

multi-modal corridor 

study looking at both 

Queens Road and the 

Lang Stracht .

Page 27 of 91

P
age 165



07/09/2021 Regional Transport Strategy

Progress Report 

nestrans

Current Actions/ Progress Future Actions/ Progress

Project/Action Progress Budget To be done Target

Policy Headings

RTS actions

Status

Final business case/ detailed design/ 

implementation of smaller scale 

interventions identified within the 

previously funded A944/A9119 multi-

modal corridor study initial appraisal, 

namely •	Changes to bus lane hours of 

operation on A944 and A9119, 

•	Conversion of the e'bound left-turn 

dedicated lane from Union St into Rose 

St to left and ahead for buses, taxis and 

cycles only;

•	Conversion of the right turn from West 

North St to Castle St to buses and cycles 

only;

•	Making the ahead movement from 

Trinity Quay to Guild St bus and cycle 

only;

•	Implementation of a bus gate on Guild 

St, e'bound at Stirling St; and

•	Implementation of a bus gate on Bridge 

St (n'bound) at Wapping St and 

conversion of the left and right turns from 

Union St to Bridge St to bus and cycle 

only

£50K in 21/22

Invoiced to date = 

£0.2K

A report on the future of Union 

Street, as part of the City Centre 

Masterplan review, will be 

considered by the Council's City 

Growth and Resources Cttee on 25 

Aug. Additional modelling work is 

currently underway to better 

understand how the interventions 

promoted as part of this project 

interact with the proposed Low 

Emission Zone and any future 

traffic restrictions on Union Street. 

Once there is more certainty 

around Union Street, officers will 

better understand how the 

proposals promoted as part of this 

project fit with that vision, and 

whether any further interventions 

are required to support the efficient 

movement of buses through the 

city centre. This information will all 

be relevant for the development of 

the Business Cases. The 

requirement to wait and 

understand the impacts of these 

parallel projects prior to the 

development of the Business Case 

may have implications on the 

timescales for delivering this 

project

↑

BUS 4:

Work through 

the Bus 

Alliance to 

develop Bus 

Service 

Improvement 

Partnership 

agreement(s) 

(or alternative 

statutory 

agreement) 

based on a 

package of 

infrastructure 

and service 

improvements 

and 

commitments to 

be delivered by 

both public 

sector and bus 

operator 

partners. 

Corridor 

studies, in line 

with the 

principles of 

STAG will be 

used to identify 

appropriate 

infrastructure 

measures to 

feed into these 

agreements. 

Westhill to Aberdeen 

multi-modal corridor 

study looking at both 

Queens Road and the 

Lang Stracht .
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Wellington Road multi-

modal corridor study 

Nestrans commissioned a pre-appraisal 

that was completed and published in 

2015.  ACC commissioned the STAG 

part 1 initial appraisal that was 

completed in 2018.  Aecom again 

appointed to undertake STAG part 2 

detailed appraisal following competitive 

tender. Paramics Discovery micro 

simulation model developed  by Aecom 

and audited by Stantec who also used it 

for the transport links to Aberdeen South 

Harbour Stag part 2 study.

£37.9K in 21/22 (all 

delay draw down 

from 20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£25K

Detailed appraisal for Wellington Rd 

corridor options being completed 

following ACC decision in Feb on 

preferred option for Abdn South 

Harbour.  Online consultation 

undertaken between 12 Apr - 9 May.  

Final appraisal complete and draft 

report subject of separate report 

on agenda.

↑

Ellon to Robert 

Gordon’s University 

via King Street and 

Holburn Street multi-

modal corridor study. 

Aecom appointed following tender in 

2020 to undertake a multi-modal study 

on the Ellon-City Centre - Garthdee 

corridor. Problems, Opportunities, Issues 

and Constraints identified and over 100 

options generated. High level sifting 

undertaken.

£80.7K in 21/22 

(incl £52.7K delay 

in draw down from 

20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£15.5K

Options developed into packages 

that have bee appraised against 

STAG criteria.  Stakeholder 

consultation on options 

undertaken and online public 

consultation took place from 9 - 25 

August.  This project also received 

funding via the Bus Partnership 

Fund and Nestrans budget no 

longer fully required.  

Draft report on option 

appraisal to be 

finalised incorporating 

feedback from 

consultation.  

Proposed virement in 

separate budget 

report.

↑

A96 Inverurie - Aberdeen City Centre 

multi-modal corridor study. Stantec 

appointed following tender in 2020.  The 

Scottish Government and Scottish 

Green Party draft shared policy 

programme agrees to  develop a 

programme of enhanced public 

transport improvements in North East 

Scotland, which will include reviewing 

the A96 corridor with a view to 

implementing appropriate bus priority 

measures

£118.2K in 21/22 

(incl £68.2K delay 

in draw down from 

20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£23.1K

Initial problems and opportunities 

identified but will be updated as 

study progresses.  Option 

generation, sifting and 

development underway and 

workshops being held with key 

stakeholders. This project also 

received funding via the Bus 

Partnership Fund and Nestrans 

budget no longer fully required.

Proposed virement in 

separate budget 

report.

↑

BUS 4:

Work through 

the Bus 

Alliance to 

develop Bus 

Service 

Improvement 

Partnership 

agreement(s) 

(or alternative 

statutory 

agreement) 

based on a 

package of 

infrastructure 

and service 

improvements 

and 

commitments to 

be delivered by 

both public 

sector and bus 

operator 

partners. 

Corridor 

studies, in line 

with the 

principles of 

STAG will be 

used to identify 

appropriate 

infrastructure 

measures to 

feed into these 

agreements. 

Similar studies will 

then be progressed on 

the remaining radial 

corridors into 

Aberdeen.
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A92 multi-modal corridor study between 

Bridge of Don and Bridge of Dee via 

Anderson Dr and Parkway.  Study will 

also consider B9077 Great Southern 

Road and B985 West Tullos Road and 

previous and ongoing work in relation to 

Wellington Rd, Bridge of Dee and 

A90(S) Park & Ride and combine this 

into a coherent whole 

£200K in 21/22

Invoiced to date = 

£1.7K

Client group set up and draft brief has 

been developed and is to be tendered 

using the Scotland Excel framework.  

Tender was issued at end of July 

and responses to be submitted by 

mid September.  This project has 

received an allocation of funding 

via the Bus Partnership Fund, 

meaning hat Nestrans full budget is 

no longer required.

Client group will 

evaluate tender returns 

on 80/20 quality/price 

ratio and aim to make 

an appointment by end 

Sept.  Proposed 

virement in separate 

report

↑

A947 multi-modal corridor study from 

A96 Inverurie Road roundabout to City 

boundary at River Don.  Study will 

include options for formalising the 

change of alignment of the A947 from 

Victoria Street to Riverview Drive through 

eg placemaking interventions on Victoria 

Street  It will also take cognisance of and 

complement the A947 Route Action Plan 

developed by Aberdeenshire Council 

£150K in 21/22

Invoiced to date = 

£2.8K

Client group has been set up and 

brief was tendered using the 

Scotland Excel framework.  Client 

group met to evaluate tender 

returns on 80/20 quality/price ratio 

and Aecom appointed.  

Inception meeting to 

be arranged with 

appointed consultant.

↑

A93 multi-modal corridor study.  Study 

will investigate options along the corridor 

between Peterculter and Aberdeen City 

Centre 

£150K in 21/22

Invoiced to date = 

£3.3K

Client group has been set up and 

brief was tendered using the 

Scotland Excel framework.  Client 

group met to evaluate tender 

returns on 80/20 quality/price ratio 

and Aecom appointed.  

Inception meeting to 

be arranged with 

appointed consultant.

↑

BUS 4:

Work through 

the Bus 

Alliance to 

develop Bus 

Service 

Improvement 

Partnership 

agreement(s) 

(or alternative 

statutory 

agreement) 

based on a 

package of 

infrastructure 

and service 

improvements 

and 

commitments to 

be delivered by 

both public 

sector and bus 

operator 

partners. 

Corridor 

studies, in line 

with the 

principles of 

STAG will be 

used to identify 

appropriate 

infrastructure 

measures to 

feed into these 

agreements. 

Similar studies will 

then be progressed on 

the remaining radial 

corridors into 

Aberdeen.
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BUS 5:

Secure funding 

for the delivery 

of 

improvements 

to bus services 

and 

infrastructure.  

In the first 

instance this 

will be through 

a bid, alongside 

partners of the 

North East Bus 

Alliance, to the 

Scottish 

Government’s 

Bus Partnership 

Fund.

Nestrans appointed Jacobs following 

tender for bus partnership fund bid 

support and ART development.  BPF bid 

submitted by 16 April.

SEE ART 2, BUS 2a and BUS 4 

above.  The Bus Alliance submitted a 

bid to the S Gov's Bus Partnership 

Fund that was successful and was 

awarded over £12M funding.  Project 

plan draft submitted to Transport 

Scotland.  Officer working group 

meetings taking place on a 

fortnightly basis.  

Update on Bus 

Partnership Fund 

given in separate 

report on agenda
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BUS 6:	

Lobby Scottish 

Ministers to 

continue their 

support for bus 

passengers 

across 

Scotland, 

beyond the Bus 

Partnership 

Fund, through 

enhanced 

capital and 

revenue 

funding, as set 

out in the 

National 

Transport 

Strategy.

The Scottish Government and 

Scottish Green Party draft shared 

policy programme agrees a 

Community Bus Fund will be 

introduced, which will support local 

transport authorities to improve local 

public transport in their areas. This 

fund will support transport authorities 

to explore the full range of options set 

out in the Transport (Scotland) Act 

2019, including municipal bus 

services.
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P&R - Maximising the benefits of Park & Ride 

P&R 1:

In order to 

maximise the 

benefits that 

could be 

afforded by 

Park & Ride, we 

need to deliver 

bus journey 

times that are 

competitive to 

the car in terms 

of frequency, 

journey speeds 

and reliability. 

Aberdeen Rapid 

Transit is Nestrans’ 

priority to deliver this 

and we will work 

through the North 

East Bus Alliance to 

deliver a network of 

rapid transit corridors 

anchored by the ring 

of Park & Ride sites 

currently in existence. 

See also ART and 

BUS.

P&R 2:

Although there 

is currently a 

small Park & 

Ride facility at 

Newtonhill 

(provided by the 

developer of the 

town of 

Chapelton), a 

high-quality 

Park & Ride 

facility to the 

south of 

Aberdeen at 

Portlethen is 

still a priority.  

P&R site south of 

Aberdeen

A site to the south of Aberdeen was 

identified in the previous RTS and the 

Scottish Government’s Strategic 

Transport Projects Review. We will work 

with Transport Scotland and 

Aberdeenshire Council to ensure 

delivery of this facility alongside 

significant bus priority measures on the 

corridor into Aberdeen and a Bus 

Service Improvement Partnership 

agreement to ensure attractive journey 

times and service provision are integral 

to the design and development of this 

facility.

Nestrans has written previously to the 

S Gov to seek a contribution to 

strategic Park & Ride in the North 

East, towards the scheme at 

Portlethen given the inclusion of the 

A90 (S) and A96 sites in the STPR 

and the significant funding towards 

this to date from local authority 

budgets. 
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P&R 3:	

Work with both 

ACC and AC to 

ensure that we 

optimise the 

use of Park & 

Ride facilities 

across the 

region.  

In the short term, 

Nestrans will support 

the creation of a 

footpath link from the 

P&R car park at 

Bridge of Don to the 

mainline bus stops on 

Ellon Road, increasing 

the number of bus 

services accessible to 

P&R users.

This is being considered as an option 

within the Ellon - Garthdee Multi-

modal Corridor Study

P&R 4:

Bus priority 

measures need 

to be 

complemented 

by city centre 

parking policies 

which make 

Park & Ride a 

more attractive 

option than 

driving and 

parking in the 

city centre. This 

in turn also 

needs to be 

matched by 

investment in 

high quality, 

low emission 

vehicles; 

information, 

fares, ticketing 

and promotion. 

Work with both 

councils and bus 

operators to ensure 

wider policies support 

the success of the 

Park & Ride network. 

This is critical as we 

strive to reduce 

emissions, improve 

local air quality and 

improve accessibility 

for all.
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Crathes mini-

interchange hub

Contribution towards the creation of a 

Mini Interchange Hub which would 

include for a designated car park, 

improved bus stop facilities and 

pedestrian crossing facilities

£53.5K budget in 

21/22 (all delay in 

draw down from 

20/21) 

Invoiced to date = 

£0.2K

AC officers in Estates and Legal are 

in the process of concluding the land 

purchase.

No further progress 

whilst awaiting Legal 

to complete the land 

acquisition.

↔

Oldmeldrum mini-

interchange hub

Contribution towards the development of 

a Mini Interchange Hub at Oldmeldrum to 

complement the existing services 

operated by Stagecoach and Bain 

Coaches and enhance the long term 

viability of these commercial services.  

The scheme includes the creation of a 

car park, footways, and lighting to 

enhance alternative modes of transport 

and encourage people out of their 

vehicles to reduce the carbon footprint.  

Aecom appointed to progress detailed 

design. 

£76.4K budget in 

21/22 (incl £47K 

delay in draw down 

from 20/21) 

Invoiced to date = 

£1.7K

Alternative land opportunities being 

explored by AC PTU in conjunction 

with their colleagues within Property 

and Legal.  Progress being made 

with two landowners, one at 

Newbarns, the other at Parcock 

Quarry.  Concept drawings 

complete for both locations and 

awaiting outcomes of land prices 

from the land owners.  Anticipate 

detailed proposals for both 

locations being available for 

discussion / consideration at the 

next Formartine Area Committee 

on 07/09/21.  Consideration is also 

being given to another site on the 

south side of Oldmeldrum, and are 

currently awaiting a response from 

the land owner prior to preparing 

concept drawings.

↑

P&R 5:

Nestrans will 

support AC in 

the expansion 

of the network 

of mini- 

interchange 

hubs to 

improve 

accessibility in 

rural areas, 

including 

support for a 

transport hub in 

Banchory and 

further mini-

interchange 

sites where 

appropriate. 

These will allow 

people in more 

rural parts of 

the region to 

access the 

mainline bus 

network either 

by car, feeder 

bus services, 

demand 

responsive 

transport 

services or by 

cycling and 

walking. 
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P&R 6:

We will work 

with ScotRail to 

develop travel 

plans for all rail 

stations in the 

north east to 

identify 

capacity 

constraints ... 

...and requirements for 

expanded parking 

facilities in the context 

of access by all 

modes and in line with 

the Sustainable Travel 

Hierarchy. Options for 

improved 

management of 

existing spaces for rail 

users should also be 

considered

See RL2 Travel plans for all rail 

stations

MD - Managing demand

MD 1:

Agree with 

partners and 

embody in 

policy 

documents, the 

principle that 

we cannot (and 

should not) 

attempt to 

predict and 

provide, which 

results in 

building 

transport 

infrastructure to 

accommodate 

the unlimited 

demands of 

development 

and individuals’ 

desire to travel. 

Investment should 

instead be in line with 

the sustainable 

transport and 

investment 

hierarchies and new 

development located 

in areas and designed 

in ways that facilitate 

movement by active 

travel and public 

transport.

The Scottish Government and 

Scottish Green Party draft shared 

policy programme agrees they will not 

build road infrastructure to cater for 

forecast unconstrained increases in 

traffic volumes and that during this 

parliamentary session, new roads 

projects will normally only be taken 

forward where they reduce the 

maintenance backlog; address road 

safety concerns or adapt the network 

to deal with the impacts of climate 

change or benefit communities such 

as bypassing settlements.  Future 

investment in the transport network 

will be set out in the second 

Strategic Transport Projects Review 

and will align with the sustainable 

mode and investment hierarchies
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National Policy The Scottish Gov are seeking views on 

how to implement a clearer and more 

consistent approach to parking laws in 

Scotland ahead of the development of 

new policies having obtained the 

necessary powers in the Scotland Act.  

The Transport Bill was passed on 10 

October 2019 and received Royal 

Assent on 15 November 2019 making 

the Transport (Scotland) Act 2019 

law.  It includes the outlawing of 

pavement and double parking and 

gives all Scottish Councils the power 

to impose a workplace parking levy. 

Workplace Parking 

Licencing

Transport Scotland undertaking a 

consultation on regulations and 

guidance for Workplace Parking 

Licensing.  It enables stakeholders 

and the general public to offer their 

views on the regulatory framework 

and supporting guidance that would 

underpin local authorities WPL 

schemes should they chose tom 

implement this.  Local authorities 

would be required to undertake a 

consultation on the design and 

implementation of any specific local 

scheme.

Consultation launched 11 June and 

closes 6 September 2021.  All 

responses will then be analysed 

and considered along with any 

other available evidence to help 

Transport Scotland prepare the 

WPL regulations and guidance. 

Responses will be published where 

permission has been given to do 

so. An analysis report will also be 

made available.

Nestrans response 

discussed in separate 

report on publications 

and consultations.

↑

In Aberdeen city 

centre the car parking 

strategy needs to 

incorporate charging, 

enforcement and 

extension of controls 

to ensure it delivers 

on demand 

management policies 

and supports 

sustainable travel 

choices. 

Regional Parking Strategy published on 

Nestrans website.  ACC strategic parking 

review undertaken by Aecom and funded 

by the City Centre Masterplan and will 

form part of the EU funded Civitas Portis 

project. 

ACC plans to develop and engage on 

a draft car parking framework 

currently on hold during Covid 

outbreak.

MD 2:

Identify the 

most 

appropriate 

charging 

regimes in and 

around 

Aberdeen, such 

as Workplace 

Parking Levies 

or other 

charging 

options, which 

could manage 

the demand for 

travel and 

provide revenue 

to support a 

step change in 

transport 

provision in 

support of the 

objectives of 

this Strategy.

MD 3:

Work with local 

authorities to 

develop car 

parking policies 

which 

contribute 

towards mode 

shift and a 

fairer system of 

payments to 

reflect the 

impact of traffic 

on urban areas 

and the need to 

offer 

alternatives to 

the car. 
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Parking policies also 

need to support the 

vitality of the city and 

town centres by 

ensuring access and 

turnover of spaces for 

local businesses 

rather than facilitating 

long stay commuter 

parking.

MD 4:

Review the 

allocation of 

roadspace 

within 

Aberdeen and 

Aberdeenshire 

towns to … 

... provide protection 

to vulnerable road 

users and to enhance 

journey times for 

public transport, in 

line with the travel 

hierarchy

See AT and BUS

RE - Reducing emissions from transport

RE 1:

Work to deliver 

substantial 

mode shift 

away from the 

private car to 

more 

sustainable 

modes 

including public 

transport, 

cycling, walking 

and shared 

transport…  

... See also BUS, ART, 

P&R, Behaviour 

change and active 

travel.  Significant 

mode shift will have 

substantial benefits 

for reducing carbon 

and other pollutants. 

Cars and LGVs are 

responsible for the 

majority of emissions 

from road transport.

MD 3:

Work with local 

authorities to 

develop car 

parking policies 

which 

contribute 

towards mode 

shift and a 

fairer system of 

payments to 

reflect the 

impact of traffic 

on urban areas 

and the need to 

offer 

alternatives to 

the car. 
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RE 2:

Work with 

partners in 

planning, 

economic 

development, 

health and 

education, as 

well as the 

wider business 

community, to 

reduce the need 

to travel, ... 

... including support 

for digital working 

strategies and virtual 

health appointments, 

ensuring equitable 

access.

 ... and substantially 

reduce traffic in the 

city centre. ...

South College St/QE Rbt Ph2 review. 

Feasibility study to review options for the 

junction (including active travel) following 

the opening of the AWPR and any 

impact this has had on traffic flows in the 

area with the intention that providing 

alternative routes for general traffic will 

help to enable delivery of the City Centre 

Masterplan and support the Roads 

Hierarchy proposals.

£19K Revenue in 

2021/22 (incl £10K 

carry forward from 

20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£0.4K

Brief to be developed by ACC staff for 

consultancy support. 

Awaiting completion of 

ASAM strategic 

transport model.

↑

… Work with 

Aberdeenshire 

Council to reduce car 

traffic in key town 

centres across the 

region.

RE 3:

Support 

Aberdeen City 

Council in the 

delivery of its 

City Centre 

Masterplan and 

Roads 

Hierarchy 

proposals to 

dissuade 

through traffic 

from city routes 

…
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RE 4:

Support 

Aberdeen City 

Council in the 

delivery of a 

Low Emission 

Zone in 

Aberdeen City 

Centre with the 

primary focus 

to reduce levels 

of vehicle 

emissions that 

are harmful to 

human health.

Low Emission Zones The Scottish Gov announced a 

commitment to introduce LEZs into 

Scotland's 4 largest cities by 2020 

although indicative extended timeframe 

of Feb - May 2022 now earliest realistic 

period due to Covid . An LEZ Project 

Group (including Nestrans) has been 

formed. ACC awarded S Gov funding to 

assist in LEZ development and to 

upgrade the City Centre micro-simulation 

model.  Systra appointed.  Nestrans 

budget contribution approved for 

modelling of LEZ options with City 

Centre Master Plan interventions in 

place to aid further development of 

options.

£12.5K in 21/22 (all 

delay in draw down 

from 20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£12.2K

ACC aim to introduce LEZ by Spring 

2022.  Systra has completed draft 

reports on option testing modelling 

and NLEF Stage 2 appraisal. ACC 

agreed preferred LEZ boundary in 

June and public and stakeholder 

consultation took place via ACC 

website from 28 June to 22 August.  

Leaflets sent to all properties 

within the proposed boundary 

notifying them of consultation. 

Systra also held workshops to 

seek feedback from key 

stakeholders.   ACC has received 

funding for enforcement cameras 

from S Gov and this will be 

procured.

Feedback received is 

being analysed and 

will help inform the 

final LEZ boundary and 

the Council’s formal 

submission to Scottish 

Ministers in late 

2021/early 2022.  

Nestrans response to 

consultation submitted 

and detailed in 

separate report.  

Signing strategy being 

developed.  Additional 

funding proposed in 

separate budget 

report.

↑

RE 5:

Work with 

partners to 

extend the 

network of 

publicly 

available 

electric vehicle 

charging points 

across the 

region, 

facilitating a 

move away 

from 

petrol/diesel to 

zero emission 

transport.

Scoping of Live Lab 

Proposals

RD The themes suggested for 

exploration through the live labs 

commission include Alternative 

Fuelling Hubs.  Desktop research 

and evidence gathering, including 

stakeholder engagement underway 

and draft potential projects being 

developed for appraisal.

↑

Page 40 of 91

P
age 178



07/09/2021 Regional Transport Strategy

Progress Report 

nestrans

Current Actions/ Progress Future Actions/ Progress

Project/Action Progress Budget To be done Target

Policy Headings

RTS actions

Status

RE 6:	

Enable the 

region to be an 

exemplar for 

hydrogen 

transport by 

working with 

partners to 

increase the 

number of 

hydrogen 

refuelling 

stations across 

the region and 

... 

...unlocking the 

potential for future 

expansion of the 

hydrogen vehicle fleet, 

including buses, 

HGVs, cars, vans, 

ships and trains.

See RE5 - Scoping of Live Lab 

proposals.  The themes suggested for 

exploration through the live labs 

commission include Alternative 

Fuelling Hubs and Haulage efficiency.

Desktop research and evidence 

gathering, including stakeholder 

engagement underway and draft 

potential projects being developed 

for appraisal.

↑

JIVE project - Aberdeen is set to become 

the first city in the world to introduce 

hydrogen-powered double decker buses.  

The project has been funded by ACC, 

EU  (FCH JU) and S Gov and will invest 

about £500k in 15 vehicles.  The 15 

hydrogen double decker buses will be 

operated by First on the 19 (Culter to 

Tillydrone) route. the buses are more 

efficient than electric equivalents, with 

refuelling taking less than 10 minutes 

and offering a greater range. Water is 

the only emission from the vehicles,

In addition to the 15 buses currently 

being deployed across the city as part 

of JIVE, another £1 million has now 

become available through the 

initiative and ACC's Strategic 

Commissioning Committee approved 

plans on 27 Aug 2020 to increase the 

number of hydrogen buses to 25.

The first of the hydrogen 

powered double deckers 

arrived in Aberdeen and 

became operational in 

Jan 2021.

... The initial focus will 

be on ensuring that 

services running on 

key radial corridors 

into the city, linked to 

P&R, are operated by 

ULEVs. More marginal 

services in rural areas 

will be more 

challenging and the 

priority will be to 

maintain bus service 

provision. However, 

where services are 

contracted by local 

authorities, we will 

encourage them to 

use the tender 

process to facilitate 

vehicle emission 

reductions

RE 7:

Work with bus 

operators to 

fully 

decarbonise the 

bus fleet by 

2035. This will 

also have 

substantial 

benefits for air 

quality as 

buses are 

significant 

emitters of NO2 

and PM10. 

There are 

substantial 

challenges for 

the bus 

industry in 

achieving this 

and we will 

lobby S. Gov for 

the appropriate 

financial 

support to 

achieve this... 
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The Bus Emissions Abatement Retrofit 

(BEAR) programme aims to fit 

buses/coaches with Clean Vehicle 

Retrofit Accreditation Scheme (CVRAS) 

accredited retrofit technology measures 

to support the delivery of Scotland’s Low 

Emission Zones (LEZs). First Aberdeen 

and Stagecoach bids to Ph3 of BEAR 

funding in 2020/21 was unsuccessful 

and Nestrans Director discussed this 

with TS.  Although bids met criteria the 

scores were ranked and the 35% max 

cap per operator for State Aid reasons 

was met by higher scored submissions.

Allocations announced for the 

BEAR Phase 4 funding of  up to 

£5.7 million in 2021/22 and is 

available to licensed bus and 

coach operators, local authorities 

and community transport operators 

located in, or operating eligible 

vehicles based on routes within 

one of the 4 cities identified in the 

Prog for Gov 2017 LEZ 

commitment and/or one of 

Scotland's Air Quality Management 

Areas.

Closing date for 

applications is 5pm on 

Thursday 26 August 

2021.

↑

Scottish Ultra-Low Emission Bus 

Scheme (SULEBS) is an evolution of the 

Scottish Green Bus Fund held between 

2011 and 2018 and a £9million fund was 

launched on 19 August 2020.  It can 

assist with 50% of the cost differential 

between a standard diesel bus and the 

equivalent ultra-low emission bus and 

rise to a max 75% support of the 

differential depending on the zero 

emission running capability. Support is 

also available for the infrastructure for 

this technology of up to 75% of the 

capital cost.

S Gov announced on 20 Jan 2021 

that an extra £25 million is being 

made available through a 2nd round 

of SULEBS.  The Grant funding is 

available in 2020-21. Bids needed to 

be submitted by midnight 21 February 

2021. 

Stagecoach Bluebird bid 

for 22 double deck ADL 

battery-electric buses 

and infrastructure and 

were awarded 

£4,079,134

↑

... The initial focus will 

be on ensuring that 

services running on 

key radial corridors 

into the city, linked to 

P&R, are operated by 

ULEVs. More marginal 

services in rural areas 

will be more 

challenging and the 

priority will be to 

maintain bus service 

provision. However, 

where services are 

contracted by local 

authorities, we will 

encourage them to 

use the tender 

process to facilitate 

vehicle emission 

reductions

RE 7:

Work with bus 

operators to 

fully 

decarbonise the 

bus fleet by 

2035. This will 

also have 

substantial 

benefits for air 

quality as 

buses are 

significant 

emitters of NO2 

and PM10. 

There are 

substantial 

challenges for 

the bus 

industry in 

achieving this 

and we will 

lobby S. Gov for 

the appropriate 

financial 

support to 

achieve this... 
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RE 8:

Work to ensure 

full 

decarbonisation 

of council, car-

club, taxi and 

other 

community 

planning and 

Getabout 

partner vehicle 

fleets within the 

period of this 

Strategy, with 

significant 

progress by 

2030.

Two Electric mini buses 

for Fraserburgh area

Contribution to 2 electric mini buses to 

support school transport and social work 

services in Fraserburgh area and assist 

AC move to ULEV vehs in Council fleet 

(AC to fund 50% of one minibus and 

charging infrastructure). Two 

replacement vehicles have been 

ordered, one of which is being funded via 

Transport Scotland's Switch on Fleet 

Grant. Second vehicle  procured from 

Mellor Coachcraft at cost of £170,704.  

Remaining budget to be used to install 

charging posts

£248K budget in 

21/22 (all delay in 

draw down from 

20/21)

Swarco / Boyd Brother have been 

identified for supply and installation of 

electric vehicle charging points within 

the Fraserburgh area to support these 

two buses and expand the EV 

network. Both vehicles delivered 

and Nestrans logo has been added. 

Additional contribution 

to cost of second 

vehicle proposed in 

separate budget 

report.

↑
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RE 9:	

Support the 

Scottish 

Government’s 

commitment to 

the 

decarbonisation 

of rail services 

in the north 

east e.g. 

battery, hybrid 

or hydrogen 

technology or 

electrification 

by 2035.

Rail Services De-

carbonisation Action 

Plan

On 28 July 2020 the Cabinet Secretary 

for Transport launched Transport 

Scotland’s Rail Services Decarbonisation 

Action Plan and full details can be 

viewed on the TS website.  The action 

plan seeks to remove diesel passenger 

trains from Scottish services and secure 

significant benefits for rail freight over 

the next 15-25 years.  The plan looks to 

achieve its aims through further 

electrification and, for some routes, 

through the use of battery electric-

powered trains and to work with 

developers of hydrogen fuel cell 

powertrains to accelerate their 

development and deployment in 

Scotland. 

For the NE the plan envisages that 

additional diesel trains (made 

available by electrification) and then 

alternative traction technologies could 

be used as a transitional solution until 

electrification works can be fully 

developed, funded and efficiently 

delivered on the appropriate routes.  

The Scottish Government and 

Scottish Green Party draft shared 

policy programme agrees to invest 

over £5 billion in maintaining 

improving and decarbonising 

Scotland's rail network during this 

parliamentary session.

Aim to electrify routes to 

Aberdeen and Inverness 

from central belt by 

2035, including section 

to Inverurie, with 

alternative bi-mode 

traction north of 

Inverurie until full 

electrification  delivered 

to Tain post 2035.  

Nestrans co-ordinating 

with Network Rail as a 

single point of contact 

for NE and have met 

with Council 

structures, transport 

and roads teams and 

obtained feedback 

regarding bridge 

heights for 

electrification.

↑

RE 10: 

Ensure that the 

north east is 

open to 

opportunities to 

pilot new 

technologies 

for alternative 

fuels …

 ... for modes such as 

rail, air, coach, 

shipping and freight, 

positioning the region 

at the forefront of 

alternative energy 

technology 

developments.
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BC - Encouraging behaviour change

BC 1:

Continue to 

support the 

Getabout 

Partnership and 

development 

and roll out of a 

Regional 

Sustainable 

Travel 

Promotion 

Strategy to 

encourage 

people to travel 

by active and 

sustainable 

modes.

Getabout Getabout continuing to be promoted as 

the Sustainable Transport Brand at 

events.  Getabout partnership celebrated 

10th (tin) anniversary in 2019 and 

produced money tin can promotional 

items, encouraging people to save 

money in the tins from travelling actively 

and sustainably. Getabout website 

(www.getabout.org.uk) refreshed to 

improve editorial access and update 

graphics. The costs were met from the 

Travel Planning budget and the new 

version of the website went live in May 

2020.

Costs met from 

Travel Planning 

budget

Getabout and Nestrans websites and 

social media continue to be used to 

post transport related guidance during 

the transition phases out of lockdown. 

Also being used to promote safe 

journeys to vaccination centres.  

Summer cycle safety campaign has 

been recent focus and further 

information in info bulletin.  

Planning underway for involvement 

at final stage of Tour of Britain (see 

below).  

Developing proposals 

for winter "Be Safe, Be 

Seen" campaign.  

Adverts booked on the 

reverse of Pay & 

Display tickets from 

late October that 

remind drivers to be 

extra vigilant for 

vulnerable road users 

and point to the 

Getabout website for 

winter road safety tips.

↑

Tour of Britain The final stage of the 2020 Tour of 

Britain was due to start in Stonehaven 

and finish in Aberdeen City Centre, with 

the route taking in the Cairn O Mount.

Due to covid it was agreed in May 

2020 to postpone the 2020 planned 

race until Sept 2021.  Getabout to 

have a table within the promotional 

village at the finish point at 

Aberdeen Beachfront.

The final stage, 

Stonehaven to Aberdeen 

to be Sun 12 Sept 2021

↑

Getabout Cycle 

Roadshow

Range of bikes purchased and delivered 

for use at local events to encourage 

cycling in schools, communities and 

organisations.  Service Level Agreement 

for purchase, storage, transport and 

maintenance of full kit for event and hire 

rates in place.  Accessible bike 

purchased via Nestrans Travel Planning 

and HTAP budgets in 19/20.

Costs to use 

roadshow for 

events met from 

Travel Planning 

budget and 

Getabout partners 

own budgets or 

SCSP awards

Usage of Getabout Cycle Roadshow 

at events stopped due to Covid-19.  

Adventure Aberdeen have purchased 

new bikes and helmets funded by 

Nestrans as previously agreed in 

March 2020 in anticipation of 

restarting events later in 2021.

The Getabout Cycle 

Road Show is being 

used at the 'Getabout 

Village' at the finish of 

the Tour of Britain on 

12 Sept 2021 at 

Aberdeen Beach

BC 2:	

Continue to use 

the Getabout 

sustainable 

travel brand to 

promote 

cultural and 

behaviour 

change 

initiatives 

across the 

north east with 

innovative 

awareness 

campaigns and 

incentives to 

more 

sustainable 

travel methods.
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Radio Advertising Radio advert booking contract on 

Original 106fm for a minimum of 50 

adverts per month has been extended to 

Feb 2022.  

Costs met from 

Travel Planning 

budget unless 

otherwise stated.

Radio advertising over the summer 

has been to promote Cycling safely

A radio advert has 

been created to 

promote the Tour of 

Britain and the 

Getabout village on 12 

Sept 2021

↑

Travel Planning support Continuing to provide assistance to 

companies to develop travel plans.   

Sweco completed work on the Civitas 

Portis project on Travel Planning in 

the North Dee, Tullos and Altens 

business parks in Aberdeen. Travel 

planning leaflets for the areas have 

been designed and printed in 2020 

and will be distributed once co-vid 

restrictions allow. 

Electronic copies of the 

leaflets and travel 

planning reports are 

available on the 

Nestrans website. 

Travel Planning work 

is ongoing working 

with partners to 

promote travel 

planning to vaccination 

centres. 

Dyce Travel Plan Nestrans contributed in 19/20 to cost of 

consultancy study led by ACC as 

available Civitas funding insufficient to 

cover full cost.  Atkins consultants 

appointed and business breakfast held in 

Jan 2020.

Nestrans to lead on development of 

travel planning information for TECA - 

P&J Live, which ACC will fund using 

Smarter Choices, Smarter Places 

grant.  This project has been 

cancelled due to the high public 

knowledge of travelling to TECA/P&J 

live due to it being a vaccination 

centre.

Work is ongoing to 

promote safe travel to 

vaccination centres, 

including the major 

vaccination centre 

opening w/c 13 Sept at 

the Bon Accord Centre 

(old John Lewis site)

BC 3:

Encourage and 

support more 

organisations 

to develop and 

implement 

travel plans, 

including 

workplaces and 

schools across 

the region.

BC 2:	

Continue to use 

the Getabout 

sustainable 

travel brand to 

promote 

cultural and 

behaviour 

change 

initiatives 

across the 

north east with 

innovative 

awareness 

campaigns and 

incentives to 

more 

sustainable 

travel methods.
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BC 4:

Continue to 

support the 

Nestrans 

Sustainable 

Travel Grant to 

help 

organisations 

promote and 

encourage 

active and 

sustainable 

travel.

Sustainable travel grant 

schemes (STGS)

Combined budget approved to continue 

to provide sustainable travel and cycle 

parking grant schemes in 2021/22. 

Guidance for cycle parking grant to be 

finalised and publicised. Details on 

Sustainable Travel Grant Scheme criteria 

and guidance can be viewed on the 

Nestrans website.  

£53.8K in 21/22 

(incl £33.8K delay 

in draw down from 

20/21)

Funded to date = 

£1.2K

Criteria for the new Community 

Sustainable Travel Grant approved 

by the Board in June have been 

developed with input from legal 

and finance officers and an award 

made to Strichen Community Park 

for a cycle repair station.  Award 

also approved under the 

Sustainable Travel Grant Scheme 

to Aberdeenshire Council to match 

fund cost of installing cycle stands 

at the Green, Portlethen.  Both 

awards also detailed at AT3 above.

New Community 

Sustainable Travel 

Grant to be publicised.

↑

Travel Know How 

Scotland

Travel Know How website  launched on 

22 September 2016 to help 

organisations create travel plans. 

Promotional leaflets and business cards 

have been produced on behalf of 

Transport Scotland and Nestrans have 

started to distribute these. 

↑

Sustaining Choices Planning Aid Scotland (PAS) has 

selected Peterhead North as one of nine 

areas in Scotland to be involved in a 

project to look at making walking, cycling 

and wheeling easier and safer and to 

discuss ways to improve conditions for 

those who use public transport.  Aim is to 

build an increased evidence base to 

better inform local decision making and 

planning and create a sustainable 

transport action plan.

PAS are working with J Barron of 

Nestrans, M Chapman of Buchan 

Dirlers Cycle Club, L Findlay of 

Buchan Dev Ptnrship and E Morris - 

AC's Area Project Officer. 

Presentations given to community 

council meetings, online public 

sessions and public survey 

circulated.  Draft Action Plan with 

priorities prepared.

Delivery Summit held 

with public on 19 

August.  Draft Action 

Plan now being 

finalised.

↑

BC 5:

Continue to 

support The 

Travel Know 

How Scotland 

website and 

toolkit and 

other travel 

planning 

initiatives.
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Carshare website Annual licence for getabout liftshare 

website and call centre has been 

renewed for 2021/22

Costs to be met 

from travel plan 

budget

The plan to test the market to ensure 

best value in year ahead for car share 

service in 21/22 was postponed as 

car share was not being 

recommended during covid travel 

restrictions, but may be progressed 

for 22/23 if appropriate.

RTP's are currently 

working together to look 

at options for car sharing 

in the future.

↑

Co-wheels Car Club Car club launched in Aberdeen City on 2 

April 2012.  Wheelchair Adapted Vehicle 

launched 16 July 2013. The Accord 

Smartcard can now be used for Co-

wheels membership. Following tendering 

process by ACC, Co-wheels contract to 

start 1 April 2017 for a period of 3 years, 

with the option to extend for up to 2 

further years. Two hydrogen fuel cell 

Toyota Mirai cars joined the co-wheels 

fleet from 1 April 2019. An extra electric 

vehicle was agreed for north Dee area.

ACC to commence tendering process 

in year ahead for Car Club provision 

as current contract ends April 2022.

↑

BC7:

Investigate the 

opportunities 

for 

mainstreaming 

Mobility as a 

Service (MaaS) 

measures …

 ... focussing on 

integration of journey 

planning and ticketing 

across different 

modes of travel.

See RE5 - Scoping of Live Lab 

proposals.  The themes suggested for 

exploration through the live labs 

commission include Mobility Hubs 

and Rural Mobility as a Service 

Applications.

Desktop research and evidence 

gathering, including stakeholder 

engagement underway and draft 

potential projects being developed 

for appraisal. 

↑

BC 6:

Continue to 

support and 

promote shared 

transport 

initiatives, 

including Car 

Sharing, Car 

Clubs and bike 

hire schemes 

as useful tools 

to encourage 

behaviour 

change.
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BC 8:

Use a wide 

range of media 

and marketing 

techniques to 

promote and 

support 

developments 

to the transport 

network across 

the north east 

… 

... in order to increase 

awareness and 

maximise benefits

Real Time Passenger 

Information 

Budget approved in 15/16 to replace 

existing RTPI screens in Aberdeen with 

modern screens that will run on the 

Aberdeenshire System and installation of 

further solar powered screens in 

Aberdeenshire.  New system allows 

messages to be sent to the screens to 

assist with disruption management. 

Region wide live bus departure info can 

be found online at AC, First and 

Stagecoach websites, on mobile phones 

using the free Traveline Scotland app, or 

via QR codes on timetables at bus stops 

using smartphones.

£20K in 21/22 for 

contribution to 

annual 

maintenance costs 

of system

Nestrans has again agreed to 

contribute to the annual maintenance 

costs of the system in 2021/22.

↑

Extended Real Time 

Information in 

Aberdeenshire

Expansion of RTI to include for the 

purchase and installation of 2 new 

displays within each Council area within 

Aberdeenshire

£78K in 21/22 

Invoiced to date = 

£0.3K

Project will include the 

procurement of solar or battery 

powered e-paper displays.

↑

BC 9:	

Utilise 

increased 

access to data 

and enhanced 

digital 

capabilities to 

improve 

provision of 

information on 

journey 

options, live 

journey 

updates, 

ticketing and 

interchange 

information to 

inform journey 

choices, inform 

users about 

their journey 

both prior to 

and during the 

journey itself 

and enable 

monitoring of 

travel 

behaviours and 

trends.
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Innovation in Monitoring See RE5 - Scoping of Live Lab 

proposals. The themes suggested for 

exploration through the live labs 

commission include innovation in 

monitoring and dissemination of data 

on road/transport network

Desktop research and evidence 

gathering, including stakeholder 

engagement underway and draft 

potential projects being developed 

for appraisal. 

↑

Travel behaviour 

change and transport 

surveys to support 

RTS2040

Continuation of travel behaviour and 

attitude surveys as a result of Covid in 

2021/22 and development of options for 

a comprehensive travel survey as a 

baseline for RTS2040.

£37.3K in 21/22 

(incl 7.3K 

continuation from 

20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£6.8K 

Further travel behaviour surveys 

commissioned on a 2 monthly 

basis from June and results 

published on website.  Traffic 

surveys also  undertaken following 

competitive tender in May on A90 

between Ellon and Peterhead and 

now being analysed for 

comparisons with previous 2019 

data, drawing out covid impacts on 

peak period commuting patterns, 

and also considering impacts on 

HGV traffic.  

Summary of findings 

from further travel 

behaviour surveys 

included in info 

bulletin.

↑

BC 9:	

Utilise 

increased 

access to data 

and enhanced 

digital 

capabilities to 

improve 

provision of 

information on 

journey 

options, live 

journey 

updates, 

ticketing and 

interchange 

information to 

inform journey 

choices, inform 

users about 

their journey 

both prior to 

and during the 

journey itself 

and enable 

monitoring of 

travel 

behaviours and 

trends.
BC 10:	

Enhance data 

gathering, 

including 

conducting a 

region-wide 

travel survey to 

provide 

comprehensive 

data on how 

people in the 

North East of 

Scotland travel 

and how they 

potentially 

could travel in 

the future. This 

will allow 

Nestrans to 

focus our work 

on removing 

barriers to 

sustainable 

travel and 

improving 

walking, cycling 

and public 

transport in the 

North East as 

well as 

providing us 

with a baseline 

from which to 

monitor 

delivery of the 

RTS.
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NTS2 - managing 

demand

The National Transport Strategy NTS2 

Delivery Plan has a section on Managing 

Demand that states "We will work across 

government to develop a coordinated 

package of policy interventions to reduce 

car kilometres by 20% by 2030. 

Assuming the health pandemic has 

moved to a phase to allow more certainty 

regarding future forecasting, a route map 

to meet the reduction will be published in 

2021".  The Scottish Government and 

Scottish Green Party draft shared 

policy programme agrees that as part 

of work on policy measures to reduce 

car/km by 20%, we will publish 

an analysis of options to assess and 

identify demand management options 

at the local and national level to 

encourage the use of active travel and 

public transport as an alternative to 

cars.

£25K Revenue in 

21/22

Nestrans has approved a budget to 

meet the cost of any studies to look 

into the regional implications of the 

national traffic demand targets.  This 

allocation would provide an 

opportunity to ensure that we have 

evidence available to ensure that the 

needs of our region are properly 

represented.  The Scottish 

Government and Scottish Green 

Party draft shared policy 

programme also agrees to support 

and guide positive choices that will 

help Scotland achieve a 20% car 

kilometre reduction by 2030.

↑

Cycling Scotland are funding the 

installation of 9 ped/cycle counters 

across the north east and arranging the 

installation of 12 further counters to be 

funded via the 2020/21 Sustrans CDO 

grant.  Info from all sites will feed into 

Cycling Scotland's Active Travel Open 

Data portal.  

Agreement from 

Sustrans that 

£100K CDO grant 

from 20/21 can 

continue to be 

claimed for agreed 

projects

Site visits undertaken and 

locations confirmed.  Installation 

delayed due to a number of supply 

factors, provisional programme of 

works for the installation of all 

counters in Aberdeen and 

Aberdeenshire scheduled for 

period between 6th and 20th 

September. 

↑Active Travel Counters

BC 10:	

Enhance data 

gathering, 

including 

conducting a 

region-wide 

travel survey to 

provide 

comprehensive 

data on how 

people in the 

North East of 

Scotland travel 

and how they 

potentially 

could travel in 

the future. This 

will allow 

Nestrans to 

focus our work 

on removing 

barriers to 

sustainable 

travel and 

improving 

walking, cycling 

and public 

transport in the 

North East as 

well as 

providing us 

with a baseline 

from which to 

monitor 

delivery of the 

RTS.
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Sustrans Active Travel Development 

Officer grant offer for 2021/22 received 

and usage has been agreed. 

£18.9K Sustrans 

ATDO grant in 

21/22

Cycle counter maintenance (battery 

replacement and repairs) and 

software licence for existing 

counters within Aberdeen being 

funded along with consultancy 

support to undertake a review of 

cycle data.

↑

RD - Maintaining and improving the region’s road network

a) Dualling the Ellon 

bypass to Toll of 

Birness including 

upgrades to 

roundabouts

b) Junction upgrade at 

Toll of Birness to an at-

grade roundabout

c) Provision of 

sections of 2+1 lanes 

on the A90(N) and 

A952 between Toll of 

Birness and Peterhead 

& Fraserburgh

d) Targeted safety 

improvements to the 

A952, including a 

roundabout at Cortes 

junction.

Initial STAG appraisal work has 

already been carried out to identify 

and assess the options on this 

section of the corridor. This strategy 

will build on the initial work to further 

develop and deliver a preferred option 

for each of the above, taking into 

account the results of the appraisal 

carried out to date, in particular the 

environmental constraints associated 

with the crossing of the River Ythan 

which has designated areas of nature 

conservation associated with its 

estuarial waters and should be 

protected.

Active Travel Counters

BC 10:	

Enhance data 

gathering, 

including 

conducting a 

region-wide 

travel survey to 

provide 

comprehensive 

data on how 

people in the 

North East of 

Scotland travel 

and how they 

potentially 

could travel in 

the future. This 

will allow 

Nestrans to 

focus our work 

on removing 

barriers to 

sustainable 

travel and 

improving 

walking, cycling 

and public 

transport in the 

North East as 

well as 

providing us 

with a baseline 

from which to 

monitor 

delivery of the 

RTS.

RD 1:

A90(N) and 

Ellon to 

Peterhead and 

Fraserburgh 

route action
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a) Upgrade to modern 

dual carriageway 

standard including a 

strategy of grade 

separation of 

junctions

Laurencekirk Flyover -Infrastructure 

Secretary Keith Brown announced £24M 

of funding on 28 Jan 2016 to take 

forward the design and construction of a 

grade separated junction on the A90 at 

Laurencekirk junction. Transport 

Scotland has appointed Amey to 

undertake route option assessment work 

and develop a preferred junction option, 

leading to the preparation of draft road 

Orders. Nestrans has shared previous 

work and will be part of the Partnership 

Group overseeing the project along with 

Transport Scotland, Aberdeenshire and 

Angus Councils.

S Gov has 

committed £24 

million in addition 

to City Region Deal 

Funding

Draft Orders and the Environmental 

Impact Assessment Report published 

on 19 December 2019 and the 

Statutory Consultation Period closed 

on 14 Feb 2020.  The Scottish 

Government and Scottish Green 

Party draft shared policy 

programme agrees that  work on 

other trunk roads projects and 

programmes under construction, 

design, development or 

procurement will continue and be 

subject to the normal statutory 

assessment and business case 

processes.

Amey continuing to 

look at options to 

address some of the 

objections raised.  

Seeking to have next 

partnership group 

meeting in early 

October.

↑

b) Work with Tactran 

to press for an 

upgrade of the A90 

through or around 

Dundee

Response to consultation by Tactran 

on their RTS Main Issues Report, 

highlighted the inclusion of this action 

within our own RTS (response 

contained within Information Bulletin)

c) Safety 

improvements and 

removing pinchpoints 

on the A92 coast road 

between Stonehaven 

and Montrose

RD 2:

A92/A90(S) 

Aberdeen to 

Perth route 

action
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RD 3:	

A947 Aberdeen 

to Banff and 

Macduff route 

action to deliver 

safety and 

operational 

efficiency 

improvements.

A947 Route Action Aecom commissioned in 2016/17 to look 

at opportunities such as overtaking lanes 

and junction improvements.  Night time 

audit of any missing road studs and 

average speed camera case studies 

undertaken.  Delivery of Action Plan to 

be progressed and business cases 

developed for individual schemes along 

the corridor. Aecom commissioned  to 

undertake Banff Bridge Feasibility Study 

at an estimated cost of £70K. Bid 

submitted to Sustrans Places for 

Everyone Fund for this study in August 

2020.

£151.8K Capital in 

21/22 (all delay 

draw down from 

20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£0.7K

Budget combined with A947 minor 

improvements carried forward from 

20/21.  Aecom are in the final 

stages of their work on the Banff 

Bridge Feasibility Study.  A briefing 

is scheduled with Councillors for 

21 Sept following which the public 

consultation will be launched.  

Discussions underway with local 

roads teams to identify where they 

are on site along the A947 doing 

normal maintenance work to see if 

some of the minor improvements 

can carried out at the same time.

Public consultation to 

be undertaken over a 

period of 3 weeks to 

seek input into the 

Banff Bridge Feasibility 

Study and aim to have 

a draft of the final 

report by end Nov

↑

RD 4:	

A98 

Aberdeenshire / 

Moray 

boundary to 

Fraserburgh 

route action to 

deliver safety 

and operational 

efficiency 

improvements.
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Bridge of Dee STAG part 2 assessment reported to 

ACC's CHI on 24 Jan 2017 and is 

published on ACC website.  Agreed to 

review concepts after the opening of the 

AWPR to enable any changes in traffic 

patterns to be accurately assessed and 

for the indicative costs being brought up 

to date. Option of a 4 lane rather than a 

6 lane bridge considered, but based on  

modelling predictions of significant 

congestion it was agreed not to progress 

investigation into 4 lane option further.  

£74.5K Revenue in 

21/22 (incl £9.5K 

carry forward from 

20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£0.6K

Brief being developed for consultancy 

work to undertake further 

investigation of the options developed 

through the Bridge of Dee Stag Part 2 

following the settling of traffic patterns 

after opening of AWPR. 

Awaiting completion of 

ASAM strategic 

transport model.

↑

Wellington Road See BUS 4 - Wellington Road multi-

modal corridor study ↑

Access upgrades to 

Aberdeen South 

Harbour

Appraisal and delivery of any approved 

outcomes to be funded through £25M 

allocation within City Region Deal.  

Combined pre-appraisal and part 1 Stag 

report completed. Stantec completed 

STAG part 2 detailed appraisal in Jan 

2021.  ACC CGR Cttee considered 

STAG part 2 detailed appraisal on 3 Feb 

21 and approved recommended option to 

route via Hareness and upgrade the 

coast road and bridge. 

Funding for study 

being provided 

through the City 

Region Deal

Updated Strategic Business Case  

considered at CRD Joint Cttee on 

20 Aug and ACC CGR on 25 Aug 

and both approved seeking draw 

down of £1.2M of CRD budget for 

this project to progress the design 

and an Outline Business Case.  

This includes, but is not limited to, 

surveys and investigations, design 

development, obtaining all 

necessary approvals, permissions, 

licences, agreements and consents 

required. 

Results to be reported 

back to ACC CGR and 

the City Region Deal 

Joint Committee upon 

completion in 2024

↑

RD 5:	

A92 Blackdog 

to Stonehaven 

route action to 

deliver safety 

and operational 

efficiency 

improvements 

including at 

Bridge of Dee, 

improvements 

on Wellington 

Road, and 

access 

upgrades to 

Aberdeen South 

Harbour
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RD 6:	

A96 Aberdeen 

to Inverness - 

The Scottish 

Government 

has already 

committed to 

the dualling of 

the A96 from 

Aberdeen to 

Inverness to be 

delivered by 

2030 with a 

preferred route 

identified 

between 

Aberdeen and 

East of Huntly.  

The investment 

will enhance 

transport 

connectivity 

between the 

two cities ... 

...and is aligned with 

one of the north east’s 

identified strategic 

growth corridors (as 

identified in the 2020 

Strategic Dev Plan).  

The project supports 

the objectives of the 

Regional Economic 

Strategy and Nestrans 

will continue to work 

closely with both 

Transport Scotland 

and Aberdeenshire 

Council to ensure the 

scheme delivers the 

intended benefits for 

the north east, 

promotes facilities for 

non-motorised users 

along the corridor as 

well as effective future 

integration with the 

public transport 

network (bus and rail).

The Scottish Gov’s Infrastructure and 

Investment Plan set out the aim to dual 

the A96 (T) between Aberdeen and 

Inverness by 2030.  Project included 

within NPF3: Proposed Framework. 

Contract worth up to £50M awarded by 

Transport Scotland to Amey Arup Joint 

Venture for the route option assessment 

and detailed design work to dual the A96 

between east of Huntly and Aberdeen.  

Options being appraised were displayed 

at public events in May 2019 and can be 

viewed on TS website. Transport 

Scotland identified the preferred option 

between East of Huntly and Aberdeen 

and launched a virtual consultation on 21 

Dec 2020.  The consultation was open 

for 8 weeks and closed on 15 February 

2021.

Quarterly liaison meetings have been 

set up with the A96 team and will be 

used to keep up to date with the 

Walking, Cycling, Horse riding 

Assessment and Review and other 

streams of work.  The SNP and S 

Green Party have differing 

positions on the dualling, but as 

part of the draft shared policy 

programme the S Gov will take 

forward a programme on the A96 

that includes targeted road safety 

improvements where needed, eg 

between Fochabers and Huntly and 

Inverurie to Aberdeen and the 

development of an A96 “Electric 

Highway”. They agree to conduct a 

transparent, evidence-based 

review on plans to fully dual the 

A96 to include a climate 

compatibility assessment to 

assess direct and indirect impacts 

on the climate and 

the environment. This will report by 

the end of 2022.

Recent meeting with 

A96 team have been 

cancelled following the 

recent S Gov 

announcement on a 

review of the A96 

dualling plans.

↑

RD 7:

Remainder of 

A96 to be 

upgraded to 

modern dual-

carriageway 

standards, 

including grade- 

separated 

junctions.

Nestrans funded STAG 2 study 

completed in 2008 to determine optimum 

solution at Haudagain roundabout and 

Ministers committed to funding this 

following completion of AWPR.  TS 

announced Farrans Construction 

appointed in Jan 2019

Details of planned traffic management 

and works for Haudagain 

improvement can be viewed on the 

Transport Scotland website
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RD 8:	

A944 route 

action 

measures to 

deliver safety 

and operational 

efficiency 

improvements. 

Strategic Network 

Monitoring – Phase 4 

Queens Road Corridor

Expansion of ACC's current Internet 

Protocol closed-circuit television 

(IPCCTV) equipment at traffic signals, 

along the A944 Queens Road Corridor 

between Groats Road and Springfield Rd 

to monitor and better manage changes in 

traffic flow to assist in reducing 

congestion and improve journey times

£35.1K Capital in 

2021/22 (all delay 

draw down from 

20/21 of remaining 

£50K budget)

Invoiced to date = 

£12.8K

Work to be undertaken under existing 

contract.  Equipment has all been 

delivered and installation of CCTV 

columns to be arranged. 

Aim to complete 

project by end October 

2021.

↑

RD 9:	

A93 route 

action 

measures to 

deliver safety 

and operational 

efficiency 

improvements.

See BUS 4 - A93 multi-modal corridor 

study
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Berryden Corridor ACC approved funding for this project 

within their 5 year budget plan.  The 

Berryden Corridor Improvement Project 

involves widening the existing road and 

junction improvements between Skene 

Square and Ashgrove Road, and the 

construction of a new section of road 

between Ashgrove Road and 

Kittybrewster roundabout adding more 

than 1.7miles of additional lane capacity 

in total. The improved section of road 

would have traffic light junctions instead 

of roundabouts, except for the 

Kittybrewster/St Machar roundabout 

which will remain. The project will 

provide more than 10 new pedestrian 

crossings, about 1 mile of additional 

pavements, and more than 2 miles of 

new cycle tracks, all aimed at 

encouraging people to walk and cycle 

more. 

Full planning permission has been 

granted for formation of road with 

associated footways, cycle tracks, 

street lighting, drainage, landscaping, 

earthworks and associated works for 

the section from Kittybrewster / St 

Machar roundabout to Ashgrove 

Road.  The process for compulsory 

purchase was started by ACC in 

2018. Scottish ministers have 

backed the compulsory purchase 

of land needed to build the new 

dual carriageway.

ACC CGR Cttee on 25 

Aug to consider an 

updated business case 

for the corridor 

improvement.

↑

Automatic Number 

Plate Reading (ANPR) 

Journey time monitoring 

sites

Installation of further sites to monitor 

traffic flow and journey time and would 

have the potential to collect data on 

vehicle types and emissions associated 

with each vehicle.  

£113.2K Capital in 

2021/22 (delay 

draw down from 

20/21 of remaining 

£147K budget)

Invoiced to date = 

£26.9K

ANPR will provide an accurate data 

set for journey time monitoring. It will 

enable network events to be 

monitored in real-time and could be 

used to provide info to road users on 

the time it will take to travel parts of 

the network ahead eg via Variable 

Message Signs and other user 

interfaces. The data set could also be 

used to assess vehicle types 

including emission details.

Installation of first 

batch of cameras 

ongoing, albeit slowed 

due to contractor staff 

holidays during 

summer.

↑

RD 10:

Monitor and 

alleviate pinch 

points on the 

network to 

improve 

journey 

reliability where 

appropriate and 

in line with 

sustainable 

travel and 

investment 

hierarchy.
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RD 11: 

Work with the 

Councils and 

Scottish 

Government to 

monitor, review 

and seek an 

appropriate 

funding 

mechanism to 

mitigate the 

cumulative 

impacts of 

development on 

the transport 

network where 

deemed 

necessary.

Cumulative Transport 

Appraisal

STF Supplementary Guidance was 

adopted by the Strategic Development 

Planning Authority (SDPA) on 25 June 

and ratified by both Councils before 

coming into force on 28 Aug 2015.   STF 

payments to date given in budget 

matters report. Decision of the Court in 

respect of the challenge by Elsick 

Development Co Ltd was published on 

29 April 2016.  The Court upheld the 

appeal and quashed the Supplementary 

Guidance.  Judgement on appeal to the 

Supreme Court announced 25 Oct and 

was unsuccessful.

Further cumulative transport appraisal 

works in support of LDP MIR 

allocations completed and 

supplementary draft CTA report with 

option testing based on LDP 

allocations  reported to Board in June 

2019 and now published on Nestrans 

website.  The potential mitigation 

options identified have been 

considered alongside the options 

being developed through the 

Strategic Transport Appraisal being 

funded by the City Region Deal and 

will also feed into the Strategic 

Transport Projects Review (STPR2) 

where appropriate. 

STF payments still held 

by Nestrans to be 

returned as requested 

and details on the 

amounts repaid and still 

currently held are 

reported in the budget 

matters report. 

Riverview Dr, Dyce carriageway 

reconstruction between  Overton Circle 

and Netherview Avenue

£245K in 20/21

Invoiced to date = 

£166.7K

Works complete. Awaiting final 

invoice. ↑

Great Southern Road carriageway 

resurfacing of the southbound lanes 

between Provost Watt Drive/West Tullos 

Road and the Bridge of Dee/Stonehaven 

£206K in 20/21

Invoiced to date = 

£127.9K

Works completed in March. Awaiting 

final invoice. ↑

A93 Peterculter carriageway resurfacing 

from Rob Roy Bridge to Aberdeenshire 

Council boundary

£104K Capital in 

21/22

Invoiced to date = 

£1.3K

Resurfacing works undertaken by 

Leiths between 14-17 June and 

took place on nightshift pattern 

from around 7pm. 

Awaiting final invoice, 

but additional budget 

requested in separate 

report.

↑

b) Climate change 

adaptation and 

mitigation;

a) Increased 

investment in 

maintenance of the 

existing road network;

RD 12:

Consolidated 

asset 

management 

and 

prioritisation 

system:
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c) Review of structure 

lifecycles and 

prioritisation of 

improvements;

d) Address weight and 

height restricted 

bridges;

e) Improved 

adaptability to climate 

change; and

f) Effective routine and 

cyclical maintenance 

of active travel 

infrastructure

FR - Facilitating the movement of freight

FR 1:

To continue to 

facilitate a 

North East 

Freight Forum 

to provide a 

voice for freight 

interests and an 

avenue for 

dialogue 

between 

business and 

decision-

makers.

Freight Action Plan and 

Freight Forum

Finalised Freight Action Plan and Freight 

Forum meetings can be viewed on 

Nestrans website alongside HGV route 

maps for Aberdeen City and 

Aberdeenshire areas and Civitas Portis 

funded assessments and evaluations.

Online Freight Forum meeting held on 

25 Feb 2021.  Freight Working 

Group to meet on 31 August.

↑

RD 12:

Consolidated 

asset 

management 

and 

prioritisation 

system:
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Freight Maps Nestrans produced freight maps for 

Aberdeen and Aberdeenshire with 

support of the InterregIVB StratMoS 

project to aid more efficient freight 

distribution to and from major freight 

locations. Principal freight routes, height, 

width and weight restrictions, lorry 

parking locations and industrial estates 

are highlighted.

The freight maps are published on the 

Nestrans website

Freight initiatives See RE5 - Scoping of Live Lab 

proposals. The themes suggested for 

exploration through the live labs 

commission include Haulage 

efficiency, which could include a 

review of facilities

Desktop research and evidence 

gathering, including stakeholder 

engagement underway and draft 

potential projects being developed 

for appraisal. 

↑

FR 3:

To provide 

opportunities 

and facilities to 

enable a mode 

shift from road-

based freight to 

sea or rail, 

where 

appropriate… 

... and efficient, 

including access to 

ports and railheads as 

well as adequate 

railfreight facilities.

FR 4:

To support the 

development of 

connections 

from 

Craiginches 

Rail Freight 

terminal to 

Aberdeen South 

Harbour, … 

...recognising the 

potential future 

importance of the 

movement of goods 

between the two.

FR 2: 

To continue to 

develop freight 

routes, facilities 

and provide 

freight 

information to 

support 

logistics 

companies in 

making efficient 

and effective 

decisions 

benefiting their 

businesses and 

the region.
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FR 5:

To promote the 

opportunities 

for less 

environmentally 

damaging 

practices, by 

supporting the 

use of cleaner 

vehicles... 

... such as through the 

ECO Stars 

programme, 

encouraging mode 

shift to railfreight or 

maritime where 

appropriate, break 

bulk and effective last 

mile solutions where 

there is a 

demonstrated need.

The ECO Stars Fleet Recognition 

Scheme is  free to participants and aims 

to help fleet operators improve efficiency, 

reduce fuel consumption and emissions 

and make cost savings. Aberdeen City 

Council, Aberdeenshire Council and 

Nestrans have agreed to facilitate a 

regional Eco Stars programme for the 

north east

The scheme was launched in the 

north east in Aberdeen Town House 

and the Castlegate on Wednesday 

9th November 2016.

↑

FR 6:

Support the 

uptake of cargo 

bikes and 

alternatively 

fuelled smaller 

vehicles for 

shorter 

distance 

internal freight 

movements 

within the 

region.

E-cargo bikes ACC awarded funding for cargo bikes 

through £10.3M for S Gov for LEZ 

schemes in 2019/20 and Nestrans 

undertook the procurement on behalf of 

the Council of 6 E-cargo bikes 

(4xChristiana, 2xRiese and Muller) and 

accessories.  

Nestrans is now managing the pilot 

trial that offers businesses in 

Aberdeen city centre a bike for up to 

a year for last mile deliveries and full 

details for applicants are on the 

Nestrans website.  Bikes being 

piloted to date by Poldinos, CFINE, 

The Haven - Stonehaven, Fargo 

Cargo, ACC countryside rangers and 

Mad Potato.  Social media has been 

used to encourage organisations to 

sign up.

Discussions being 

held with new 

applicants keen to 

acquire one of the 

ecargo bikes. Further 

details in info bulletin.

↑

AS - External air and sea connections

AS 1:

Nestrans will 

continue to 

work closely 

with Aberdeen 

International 

Airport to 

maintain and 

enhance …

 ... connectivity to 

international hubs 

(particularly London 

Heathrow, Amsterdam 

Schiphol and Paris 

Charles de Gaulle).
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AS 2:

We will also 

support 

Aberdeen 

International 

Airport in its 

call to reform 

and level the 

playing field …

...  in terms of Air 

Passenger Duty in 

order to support the 

regional economy of 

the north east and the 

connectivity of 

Scotland as a whole.

Scottish Ferry Services Scottish Ferries Plan published 

December 2012 with strategic guidance 

for the provision of ferry services in 

Scotland through to 2022.  Road 

Equivalent Tariff (RET)  introduced on 

the Pentland Firth routes, whilst a variant 

of the scheme will be brought in on the 

routes from Aberdeen to Kirkwall and 

Lerwick. The proposals will see foot 

passenger fares cut by an average of 

more than 40%, whilst car fares will be 

reduced by an average of more than 

30%. This will bring fares into line with 

those on the Clyde and Hebrides 

network.  

In June 2018, the Minister announced 

that they would be unable to 

implement the RET cut in fares on the 

routes to and from Orkney without the 

risk of a legal challenge.  The 

Scottish Government and Scottish 

Green Party draft shared policy 

programme agrees they will 

support the delivery of publicly 

funded lifeline ferry services in 

cases where essential connectivity 

cannot be met by the normal 

operation of the market. They will 

assess the model of delivery of 

ferry services in Scotland, to 

ensure that their approach delivers 

good outcomes for communities, 

value for money, accountability and 

transparency.
Northern Isles Ferry 

Services

The new contract for the Northern Isles 

ferry services has been formally awarded 

to current operator Serco.

The contract will run from 30th June 

2020 until 30th June 2026, with the 

option of a further two years.

AS 3:

We will work in 

partnership 

with Hitrans, 

ZetTrans, the 

Scottish 

Government 

and others to 

maintain and 

enhance lifeline 

maritime and air 

services 

serving 

Aberdeen and 

connections to 

Orkney and 

Shetland.
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Aberdeen  Harbour Funding arrangements for Aberdeen 

South Harbour incorporated commercial 

borrowing from the European Investment 

Bank, and funding from the Aberdeen 

City & Region Deal.  Construction 

contract signed with Dragados UK on 20 

Dec 2016 for the £350 million project that 

will include 1,400 metres of new quay, 

with a water depth of up to 10.5 metres 

and create an additional 125,000 square 

metres of lay-down area. Michelle 

Handforth officially took over role as new 

Chief Executive on 5 Feb 2018. She will 

be leaving to join Network Rail as MD 

for Wales and west England in 

Summer 2021. Quay names are to be  

Dunnottar the 400m east quay, Crathes 

the 175m south quay, Balmoral the 300m 

west quay and Castlegate the 540m 

north quay.  New construction schedule 

for the South Harbour Expansion Project 

will see a phased completion in 2021 

through to 2022.

AHB has awarded 2 new contracts 

totalling £60M.  Van Oord will be 

principal contractor for 550m long 

South Breakwater and Beattie FRC to 

build the 10m high concrete Crown 

Wall along the length of the North 

Breakwater. Both structures will 

provide critical protection for vessels 

and operations within the Harbour 

expansion, ultimately protecting the 

port from a one-in-100-year storm. 

Work on site will start imminently.  

Works to install a water main on St 

Fittick’s Road at the junction with the 

newly aligned Greyhope Road 

commenced on 10 May. This 

installation is part of the 3km water 

main works which will connect the 

expanded Harbour to the existing 

Scottish Water network and Torry 

Quay. 

The final caisson 

arrived in August and 

all 22 are now in place.  

Work will now 

continue on the top 

layers of the fixed 

quays. There has been 

considerable progress 

on site over the 

summer months, 

particularly with the 

South Breakwater and 

Crown Wall, and AHB 

are on track for their 

phased completion in 

2021 and into 2022.

↑AS 4:

In line with the 

Regional 

Economic 

Strategy for the 

north east, 

Nestrans 

supports the 

continued 

investment in 

the 

development of 

our ports and 

harbours 

(Aberdeen, 

Peterhead, 

Fraserburgh 

and Macduff) 

and the 

Aberdeen 

Harbour 

expansion. We 

will continue to 

work with 

partners to 

ensure the 

transport needs 

and 

implications of 

such 

developments 

are fully 

considered.
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Peterhead Harbour Plans have been unveiled for a £49M 

investment into Peterhead Harbour. The 

much larger fish market and provision of 

covered landing areas, stores, ice, 

boxes, water, fuel and all manner of 

repair services are substantially 

complete with the first auction in the new 

building in June 18 following completion 

of 2nd phase of dredging works. The 

inner harbours will be deepened to 6.5m 

and a commitment to completing a 

further 100m of deepwater berthing at 

Greenhill has been made. The necessary 

consents have all been obtained.  

Contract awarded to civil engineering 

contractor, McLaughlin & Harvey and 

dredging contractor, Boskalis 

Westminster. Work commenced in 

October 2016 and should be 

substantially complete in April 2018.  

Further details on Port Authority's 

website

Due to Covid-19 the contract to 

bolster the sea defences along the 

seaward side of Alexandra Parade 

has been deferred to Spring 2021 at 

earliest and a series of containers 

filled with aggregates have been 

erected in front of the Fish Market as 

a temporary sea defence from hostile 

winter weather and ensure business 

continuity until they can be removed 

when the project is reinstated.

Pedestrian barriers were 

erected at each end of 

the container wall for 

approx 6-8m to improve 

visibility and perception 

of pedestrian and traffic 

presence. A speed limit 

of 10mph applies on 

approach to the 

container wall.

Fraserburgh Harbour A grant of £7.57M has been announced 

from the European Fisheries Fund to 

deepen part of Fraserburgh Harbour to 

give access to more boats and improve 

local facilities.  The major deepening 

project of the North Harbour Basin is 

now almost complete with the final works 

of achieving the identified water draft 

availability of -4.7m at chart datum 

expected to conclude in the early Spring 

of 2015.   This basin will be operational 

immediately post this.

Fraserburgh Harbour Commissioners 

have appointed specialist maritime 

consultants Fisher Associates to 

prepare a masterplan for the harbour.  

The masterplan will comprise a 

strategic framework for the physical 

development of the harbour over the 

next 20 years, to support growth in 

existing markets as well as facilitate 

access to new business

The masterplan has 

been finalised following 

consultation and can be 

viewed on the 

Fraserburgh Harbour 

website.

AS 4:

In line with the 

Regional 

Economic 

Strategy for the 

north east, 

Nestrans 

supports the 

continued 

investment in 

the 

development of 

our ports and 

harbours 

(Aberdeen, 

Peterhead, 

Fraserburgh 

and Macduff) 

and the 

Aberdeen 

Harbour 

expansion. We 

will continue to 

work with 

partners to 

ensure the 

transport needs 

and 

implications of 

such 

developments 

are fully 

considered.
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AS 5:

We will work 

with Aberdeen 

International 

Airport and the 

relevant 

Harbour 

authorities to 

reduce their 

carbon 

emissions … 

...and to identify 

opportunities for the 

testing and roll out of 

new technologies to 

reduce carbon 

emissions from air 

and sea.

The Scottish Government and 

Scottish Green Party draft shared 

policy programme agrees to actively 

enable the supply chain for the 

renewable energy sector, including 

support in the national spatial 

strategy for regional scale proposals 

for associated business and supply 

chain infrastructure, such as energy 

centres and port diversification

AS 6:

We will work 

with Aberdeen 

Airport and 

Aberdeen 

Harbour to 

develop Surface 

Access 

Strategies … 

... for Airport and ferry 

/ cruise ports to 

maximise 

opportunities for 

sustainable travel and 

to improve access for 

all.

AS 7:

In terms of road 

access, we will 

work with 

partners to 

improve access 

to our 

nationally and 

regionally 

significant 

ports … 

... through journey 

time, safety and 

reliability 

improvements. See 

also  FR and RD.
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RS - Road safety and casualty reduction 

RS 1:

Nestrans will 

work with local 

authorities, 

Police Scotland 

and others 

through the 

Road Casualty 

Reduction 

Partnership, 

Road Safety 

North East 

Scotland, ... 

... to prioritise safety 

within transport policy 

and seek to achieve 

ambitious targets for 

reducing casualties 

and eradicating 

fatalities in our 

transport systems.

Road Safety North East Scotland is a 

partnership consisting of Aberdeen City 

Council, Aberdeenshire Council, Moray 

Council, NESTRANS, NHS Grampian, 

North Safety Camera Unit, Police 

Scotland and the Scottish Fire and 

Rescue Service, who seek to promote 

road safety and road casualty reduction 

across the North East of Scotland.

The RSNES Twitter account is:

https://twitter.com/roadsafetynes ↑

RS 2:

Nestrans will 

support work to 

deliver the 

outcomes of the 

North East 

Road Casualty 

Reduction 

Strategy

focussed 

around the five 

key themes of 

Education, 

Enforcement, 

Engineering, 

Encouragement 

and Evaluation.

North East Scotland 

Road Casualty 

Reduction Strategy 

(NESRCRS) promotes 

road safety and road 

casualty reduction 

across Aberdeen, 

Aberdeenshire and 

Moray.

Membership of NESCRS is drawn from 

the three North-east local authorities, 

Police Scotland, Fire and Rescue 

Service, NHS Grampian, BEAR 

Scotland, Transport Scotland, Nestrans 

and Road Safety Scotland.

Nestrans has purchased 500 

getabout branded bike lights for 

distribution to cyclists in north east 

communities travelling without lights 

to promote safety and assist with 

LOIP active travel aims.

Police Scotland have 

been given 300 sets of 

lights and ACC City 

wardens 200 sets to 

distribute to cyclists 

seen travelling without 

lights. 

↑

Cycle education linked to Integrated 

Travel Towns (Peterhead, Fraserburgh, 

Inverurie, Huntly & Portlethen)

£10K in 21/22 AC planning to progress this after the 

October school holidays. ↑We will work with 

partners including the 

local authorities, 

Sustrans and others to 

deliver segregated 

provision for vehicles, 

pedestrians and cyclists 

where possible, traffic 

calming and other 

measures to enhance 

safety across our 

networks.

RS 3:	

Nestrans will 

work with 

partners to 

deliver safe 

cycling and 

walking 

opportunities, 

by consistent 

application of 

the Sustainable 

Travel 

Hierarchy, 

putting the 

needs of 

pedestrians and 

cyclists first. 

Page 67 of 91

P
age 205

https://twitter.com/roadsafetynes
https://twitter.com/roadsafetynes


07/09/2021 Regional Transport Strategy

Progress Report 

nestrans

Current Actions/ Progress Future Actions/ Progress

Project/Action Progress Budget To be done Target

Policy Headings

RTS actions

Status

Grampian Cycle Partnership launched 

the Good Cycle Guide in August 2021.  

This handbook, compiled by cyclists 

for cyclists, highlights best-practice 

cycling behaviours. With the large 

uptake of cycling over the past year or 

so, the group (which is a voluntary 

organisation that encourage, promote 

and support all forms of cycling 

across the North East) developed the 

guide to remind cyclists of their 

responsibilities while riding. 

It offers guidance ranging from on 

road cycling, shared-use paths and 

zones, to mountain biking and 

overtaking horses.  It allows 

current cyclists to refresh 

themselves on advice they should 

be following and gives tips and 

encouragement to those looking to 

start, or resume, pedalling. It is 

also worthwhile for other non-

cycling road users to give a better 

understanding of cycling 

positioning and dispel common 

misbeliefs.

https://www.grampiancyc

lepartnership.org/wp-

content/uploads/2021/08

/GCP_Good_Cycling_G

uide_FINAL_09.08.2021

.pdf

↑

Bend Mitigation/Skid 

Resistance 

Improvements

An Aberdeenshire wide project to 

improve skid resistance at locations 

where there have been identified "run-

off" incidents. Sites will be identified by 

Roads service and prioritised by 

Transportation service. Sites where there 

have been injury collisions will receive 

higher priority.

£309.6K Capital in 

20/21  (incl £85.5K 

delay draw down 

from 20/21)

Priority list of schemes has been 

agreed and tender being prepared. 

These improvements will be 

implemented following the 

completion of Aberdeenshire 

Council's surface dressing 

programme.

↑

Renewal of Reflective 

Road Studs

Similar projects have been supported 

previous on an area specific basis and 

have had successful outcomes. 

Additional funding in 20/21 approved.  

Sites have been identified by Roads 

service and will be jointly prioritised 

based on accident data and surface 

conditions. 

£102.9K Capital in 

21/22 (incl £42.9K 

delay draw down 

from 20/21)

Aberdeenshire Council plan to 

progress this through an external 

contract. 

Likely be the end of the 

year / beginning of 

next before this work 

is started.

↑

We will work with 

partners including the 

local authorities, 

Sustrans and others to 

deliver segregated 

provision for vehicles, 

pedestrians and cyclists 

where possible, traffic 

calming and other 

measures to enhance 

safety across our 

networks.

RS 4:

Work with the 

Roads 

Authorities to 

We will identify 

routes and 

locations where 

enhancements 

or speed 

restrictions 

could 

contribute 

towards fewer 

collisions or 

result in less 

severe injuries. 

This will 

include priority 

routes 

identified in the 

section on 

Maintaining and 

Improving the 

Region’s our 

Road Network 

and at 

individual 

locations where 

risks have been 

noted or 

collisions have 

occurred.

RS 3:	

Nestrans will 

work with 

partners to 

deliver safe 

cycling and 

walking 

opportunities, 

by consistent 

application of 

the Sustainable 

Travel 

Hierarchy, 

putting the 

needs of 

pedestrians and 

cyclists first. 
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Vehicle Restraining 

System repairs and 

improvements

Ongoing project to repair and in some 

cases replace VRS across 

Aberdeenshire.  Additional funding in 

20/21 approved.

£100K Capital in 

21/22 (all delay 

draw down from 

20/21)

Schemes identified to the value of 

£120K, therefore a virement to 

increase the budget is proposed 

within separate budget matters 

report.  

Proposals to be 

assessed by 

Aberdeenshire 

Council's Road Safety 

team.  

↑

Zebra Crossing retrofits 

in Aberdeenshire

Budget approved to replace existing 

zebra crossing poles with Halo Beacons 

at prioritised sites 

£35K in 21/22 (all 

carry forward from 

20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£27.8K

Various sites identified within 

Kincardine & Mearns & Marr 

geographical areas.  TWM have been 

awarded the contact for supply and 

installation of Zebra Crossing 

Retrofits.  Site within Stonehaven 

was omitted from original list but 

has been added to contract.

↑

Variable Message Signs Improvements to variable message sign 

units at schools in Aberdeen that are 

near end of life and developing faults, to 

upgrade them and enable remote 

programming

£54.3K Capital in 

21/22 (all delay 

draw down from 

20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£0.4K

Signs delivered and all 44  installed 

by 18 May with final commissioning 

taking place until 21 May.  Slight 

reduction in number of 

replacement signs required due to 

school closures and adjustment to 

budget agreed by Board in June.  

Works complete.

Awaiting final invoice. ↑

RS 4:

Work with the 

Roads 

Authorities to 

We will identify 

routes and 

locations where 

enhancements 

or speed 

restrictions 

could 

contribute 

towards fewer 

collisions or 

result in less 

severe injuries. 

This will 

include priority 

routes 

identified in the 

section on 

Maintaining and 

Improving the 

Region’s our 

Road Network 

and at 

individual 

locations where 

risks have been 

noted or 

collisions have 

occurred.

RS 5:

Work with 

partners to 

deliver 

enhancements 

which can 

contribute 

towards safer 

and more 

attractive 

environments, 

particularly for 

pedestrians and 

cyclists. This 

will include 

20mph areas, 

implementation

of crossings 

and traffic 

calming, and 

identifying Safe 

Routes to 

Schools, 

including the 

potential for 

traffic-free 

periods around 

schools.
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Safe Routes to 

Schools

The Scottish Government and 

Scottish Green Party draft shared 

policy programme agrees that local 

authorities will be encouraged to 

deliver more Safe to School initiatives

This has been agreed with the aim 

of ensuring every child who lives 

within two miles of school is able 

to walk or wheel safely

↑

20 mph areas The Scottish Government and 

Scottish Green Party draft shared 

policy programme agrees that all 

appropriate roads in built up areas 

will have a safer speed limit of 20 mph 

by 2025. 

A task group will be formed to plan 

the most effective route for 

implementation

↑

RS 6:

Work with bus 

and rail 

operators as 

well as the 

British …

 ... Transport Police to 

improve safety and 

security for public 

transport users.

Road Safety Education Bespoke talks in towns with high 

collision incidences by professional 

engagement team.

£40K in 21/22 (all 

carry forward from 

20/21)

Budget for road safety education talks 

approved to carry forward to 21/22 as 

they were unable to take place in 

20/21 due to covid.

Proposed programme 

being developed and 

costed and likely to 

include cycle 

roadshows for adult 

and child cycling 

engagement

↑

Safety Campaign Getabout participating with road safety 

and cycling campaign over summer in 

partnership with the Road Safety North 

East Scotland partnership and Police 

Scotland.

Costs being met 

from approved 

travel plan budget

The campaign was launched in mid 

June and included media releases 

from the partners, social media, 

posters and radio adverts.

↑

RS7:

Nestrans will 

continue to 

engage with the 

public and 

other partners, 

including Road 

Safety North 

East Scotland, 

to raise 

awareness, 

educate and 

promote 

messages of 

road safety.

RS 5:

Work with 

partners to 

deliver 

enhancements 

which can 

contribute 

towards safer 

and more 

attractive 

environments, 

particularly for 

pedestrians and 

cyclists. This 

will include 

20mph areas, 

implementation

of crossings 

and traffic 

calming, and 

identifying Safe 

Routes to 

Schools, 

including the 

potential for 

traffic-free 

periods around 

schools.
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Dangerous driving 

pilot

The Scottish Government and 

Scottish Green Party draft shared 

policy programme agrees that 

Transport Scotland will work with 

Police Scotland to develop a one year 

pilot project to develop an online 

reporting system enabling anyone to 

upload camera footage of dangerous 

driving.

↑

RU - Improving accessibility in rural areas 

RU 1:

Building on the 

work that 

Aberdeenshire 

Council has 

done to review 

fixed route and 

demand 

responsive 

transport 

provision in the 

area, undertake 

a rural ...  

...  accessibility audit 

to better understand 

which areas are most 

likely to experience 

poor levels of 

accessibility and to 

establish appropriate 

levels of connectivity 

across all of Aberdeen 

and Aberdeenshire, 

based on settlement 

type.

Tender issued by Aberdeenshire 

Council, with assistance from 

Nestrans, to evaluate the performance 

and benefits of the Aberdeenshire 

Enhanced Demand Responsive 

Transport Service 'Ready2Go' which 

was launched in August 2021. The 

Study will provide a robust evaluation 

of the performance of the trial and 

make recommendations on where and 

how such a model of service delivery 

can be implemented elsewhere within 

Aberdeenshire. 

Nestrans 

contributing to the 

cost of this study 

through the Bus 

Action Plan budget.

Closing date for tender 

submissions is 6 Sept 2021. ↑

RS7:

Nestrans will 

continue to 

engage with the 

public and 

other partners, 

including Road 

Safety North 

East Scotland, 

to raise 

awareness, 

educate and 

promote 

messages of 

road safety.
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RU 2:

Use this 

analysis to 

identify a 

baseline level of 

connectivity 

into and 

between 

settlements by 

modes other 

than the car. 

identifying 

appropriate 

levels of 

connectivity 

into and 

between ... 

...smaller towns and 

villages, as well as 

connecting to 

mainline services 

connecting with 

Aberdeen. Use this 

information to 

prioritise 

improvements to 

those communities 

experiencing the 

lowest levels of 

accessibility.  Aim to 

establish a 

‘connectivity 

guarantee’ for each 

settlement
RU 3:

Work with 

Aberdeenshire 

Council to 

expand and 

enhance the 

network of mini-

interchange 

hubs across the 

region... 

... with the aim of 

providing the 

opportunity for local 

bus, DRT, community 

transport services, 

bike hire, cyclists and 

pedestrians as well as 

car drivers to feed into 

mainline bus or rail 

services.

See also P&R5
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RU 4:

Explore 

opportunities to 

develop an 

enhanced 

demand 

responsive 

transport 

network, … 

...open to all, that 

expands provision for 

journeys to work and 

education as well as 

shopping, health and 

social trips.

Aberdeenshire Council launched the 

Ready2Go Demand Responsive 

Transport pilot in the Inverurie area on 

16 Aug 2021.  Operated by Watermill 

Coaches using five brand new 

wheelchair-accessible minibuses, it 

runs 6.30am-7.30pm Mon-Fri and 

7.30am-6.30pm on Sat. Unlike the A2B 

dial-a-bus services, customers can 

book any time using the Ready2Go 

DRT app.

Passengers can request a bus at 

short notice or can ask for a future 

departure or arrival time and plan 

their public transport journeys and 

track their Ready2Go bus on a map 

in real-time before it arrives. The 

system will also provide the times 

of any other alternative bus 

services operating in the area.  

Those without a smartphone who 

are unable to use the Ready2Go 

DRT app can phone the Council to 

book their bus.

The service will also 

connect to some of the 

main transport hubs in 

the area including 

Inverurie, Insch and 

Kintore railway 

stations to help 

improve onward travel 

opportunities.

↑

See RE5 - Scoping of Live Lab 

proposals.  The themes suggested for 

exploration through the live labs 

commission include Mobility Hubs 

and Rural Mobility as a Service 

Applications.   

Desktop research and evidence 

gathering, including stakeholder 

engagement underway and draft 

potential projects being developed 

for appraisal. 

↑

Cairngorms National Park has 

received almost £12.5Million Heritage 

Horizon Award Funding in July 2021 

via the National Lottery Heritage Fund 

to preserve the landscape and wildlife 

and to enable more people to access 

the area using sustainable transport. 

Meeting held with Nestrans staff to 

discuss sustainable transport 

proposals planned for Deeside 

area including shuttle buses and 

an e-bike network with hubs in 

Ballater and Braemar to improve 

access by all abilities to the Park, 

and active travel measures to 

address network gaps. 

A dedicated member  

of staff is to be 

recruited through the 

project for the Deeside 

area and will liaise with 

Nestrans.

↑

Demand responsive 

transport, MaaS 

journey planning and 

transport integration 

opportunities, new 

start entrepreneurs 

and community led 

initiatives, maximising 

technological and 

digital opportunities 

with partners such as 

Cairngorms National 

Park and others.

RU 5:

Encourage and 

facilitate the 

trial of new 

models of rural 

public transport 

provision, 

including :
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RU 6:

Work with 

partners at a 

local and 

national level to 

determine how 

to provide more 

stability and 

increased 

funding support 

to community 

transport 

providers.  

This needs to include 

consideration of, 

including whether 

changes in legislation 

are required to 

encourage new 

entrants to the public 

transport market 

(including taxi 

operation or small 

companies providing 

local services).

See BUS 6 for details on Community 

Bus Fund reference within the 

Scottish Government and Scottish 

Green Party draft shared policy 

programme

↑

RU 7:

Support active 

travel (walking 

and cycling) 

improvements 

focussed 

around 

community 

accessibility 

and... 

... lobby funding 

providers such as 

Sustrans and 

Transport Scotland to 

relax inappropriate 

standards for rural 

areas, where value for 

money considerations 

may enable more 

appropriate 

interventions to 

upgrade walking and 

cycling opportunities.

See AT7
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HE - Improving access to health

Health & Transport 

Action Plan

HTAP works being progressed by HTAP 

support manager and sub groups.  

Further funding approved for 2021/22 to 

continue part funding of the HTAP 

Programme Support Manager, general 

HTAP actions and contribution towards 

provision of  the THInC service until end 

March 2022. 

£35K in 21/22 

(includes £4K delay 

in draw down from 

20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£6.2K

The HTAP Steering Group meet 

every 2 months.  Representatives 

from the Scottish Government 

Health Directorate and Transport 

Scotland attended the last meeting 

on 27 June and minutes are within 

the Director's Report

↑

National Health 

Innovation Drones 

Group

The Programme Manager is a member of 

twice monthly meeting of NHS Innovation 

Leads discussing the potential use of 

drone technology to reduce time 

consuming transportation by road in 

health settings.  For example, robot 

controlled drones delivering defibulators 

to remote locations.

The group is making preparations to 

carryout "real world" trials of 

unmanned drones in health settings 

similar to trials in other parts of the 

UK.

NHSG Patient 

Transport Group

NHSG have recruited a Project Manager 

to write a business case for funding 

additional transport in the long term, 

where demand exceeds the capacity of 

the Scottish Ambulance Service Patient 

Transport Service.

The meeting is Chaired by the HTAP 

Steering Group Chair. ↑

THInC In The City The two wheelchair accessible vehicles 

operated by Buchan Dial A Community 

Bus and booked via THInC have been 

funded by Aberdeen City Health & Social 

Care Partnership.  

A grant has been approved by 

Aberdeen City Health & Social Care 

Partnership to fund the service for the 

year 2021/22.  

↑

HE 1:

Continue to 

work with 

partners, 

including the 

NHS, Health 

and Social Care 

Partnership, 

Scottish 

Ambulance 

Service, 

Community 

Transport 

Association and 

Local 

Authorities, to 

further develop 

and deliver the 

Health and 

Transport 

Action Plan.

HE 2:

Continue to 

work with our 

partners in the 

Health and 

Transport 

Action Plan to 

provide advice, 

guidance and 

support for 

people 

accessing 

appointments 

whether 

travelling to a 

hospital or GP 

or accessing an 

E-clinic, 

telephone or 

video 

appointment.
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BeLinkD Nestrans had previously awarded £2.5K 

to this free to the user community 

transport pilot in the Buchan area of 

Aberdeenshire.  The pandemic and 

lockdowns and physical distancing 

restrictions have all impacted on the 

pilot.  

The Be-Link'D Steering Group is 

targeting the Tarland area and is 

making preparations for a re-launch 

event with new promotional material. 

↑

THInC, Public Transport 

Units and Support to the 

NHS/Patient Transport 

Service.

The Scottish Ambulance Service Patient 

Transport Service (PTS) has operated at 

reduced vehicle capacity due to physical 

distancing.

Patient transport requests for hospital 

appointments, hospital discharge and 

COVID-19 tests were directed to THInC 

from NHSG, the PTS, the Grampian 

Coronavirus Assistance Hub and direct 

from members of the public. THInC staff 

liaised with transport operators including 

private operators contracted by NHSG, 

community/voluntary transport 

organisations and Councils to arrange 

transport.

£9.5K Revenue in 

2021/22

Invoiced in full

THInC continues to be funded by 

Nestrans, NHS Grampian, Aberdeen 

City Council and Aberdeenshire 

Council.  THInC is included within 

vaccination appointment letters.  Over 

1,100 trips for vulnerable passengers 

to the relevant Vaccination Centre 

have been organised by THInC. A 

THInC webpage is being developed 

to improve on the current 

temporary version.  A workshop 

was held on the 23 July with NHSG 

and Community Transport 

Association (Scotland) and their 

local members to consider future 

models of partnership between 

organisations.  

NHS Grampian is 

currently preparing a 

business case relating 

to reflecting the 

ongoing social 

distancing impacts on 

ambulance capacity 

and associated delays 

in patient discharge.

↑

Patient Transport 

Guide

A Patient Guide on planning non-

emergency transport has been 

produced by the HTAP Programme 

Manager with input from partners and 

the NHSG Public Involvement 

Network.  

It is proposed that NHSG publish 

this on their website pages for 

each hospital and promote it on 

hospital wards.

↑

HE 3:

Continue 

support for 

THInC, to 

provide advice 

and sign 

posting for 

transport to 

health and 

social care 

appointments.

HE 2:

Continue to 

work with our 

partners in the 

Health and 

Transport 

Action Plan to 

provide advice, 

guidance and 

support for 

people 

accessing 

appointments 

whether 

travelling to a 

hospital or GP 

or accessing an 

E-clinic, 

telephone or 

video 

appointment.
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HE 4:

Lobby to raise 

the profile of 

access to 

health issues at 

a national level, 

the need for a 

more consistent 

approach and 

for greater 

financial 

support for 

transport

to health 

services, 

including 

support for 

community 

transport 

operators and 

volunteer 

drivers.

Partnership working Colleagues from NHSG have met with 

Scottish Government colleagues to 

discuss challenges relating to 

transport facing their organisation. 

Additionally, on 4 Aug RTPs met with 

S Gov to discuss the theme of health 

and transport.  Nestrans presented on 

HTAP and the benefits of having a 

formalised partnership structure for 

issues cutting across transport and 

health.  

A follow up meeting was held on 24 

Aug between Nestrans and Hitrans 

to discuss the local experience of 

establishing a health and transport 

specific partnership.   

Public Health representation on the 

Low Emission Zone development 

and North East road safety groups 

continues.

The HTAP Programme Manager 

attended a national workshop on 2 

Sept on the theme of Transport and 

Health. 

↑
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NHSG Active Travel & 

Sustainable Travel

The Programme Manager continues to 

attend various NHS Grampian meetings 

relating to Transportation promoting links 

with partner organisations and 

professionals.  These include the 

Transportation Overview Group, which 

includes Travel Planning as part of its 

remit and the newly formed NHS 

Grampian EV Infrastructure Group. 

Further links established between 

NHSG and wider public sector bodies 

around EV infrastructure and 

alternative fuels through the Northern 

Roads Collaborative Group.  

It is hoped that the Sustrans NHS 

Workplace Engagement Officer will 

be supported in part by the HTAP 

Programme Manager and work can 

be taken forward, including the 

development of actions within the 

refresh of the NHSG Travel Plan.  

↑

Sustrans NHS 

Workplace 

Engagement Officer

An officer has now been recruited by 

NHSG/Sustrans to engage with NHS 

staff on benefits of active travel in the 

workplace and at home.  They will link 

to the wider work of measures 

delivered using £850K Spaces for 

People funding previously awarded to 

NHSG.  

Post 100% funded 

by Sustrans in 

21/22, then 50% 

funded in 22/23 

and 23/24 with 

match funding 

being split 66% 

NHSG and 33% 

Nestrans

They will gather baseline data and 

use this to target programmes, and 

investigate barriers to active and 

sustainable travel and develop a 

wider Active Travel Strategy

↑

HTAP Spaces for 

People Knowledge 

Share

Various colleagues from partner 

organisations liaise on the SfP funding 

awarded to NHS Grampian and wider 

SfP measures.  

One of the infrastructure projects 

being considered is a path between 

ARI and Woodhill House and 

revised plans for this to be shared 

with HTAP manager.

↑

HE 5:

Work to 

develop active 

travel routes 

which link    

local 

communities to 

green networks 

and open 

spaces as part 

of a high quality 

and safe active 

travel network 

and to support 

both mental and 

physical health 

(see actions 

under  

‘increasing the 

number of 

people 

travelling 

actively for 

health and the 

environment for 

more detail). 
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AF - The affordability of transport

AF 1:

Work with bus 

operators and 

local authorities, 

through the 

North East Bus 

Alliance, to 

expand the 

availability of 

fares capping 

technology 

across all bus 

services in the 

north east, 

providing passengers 

with a guarantee that 

they will always pay the 

best price for their 

travel. First in Aberdeen 

already offer ‘Tap and 

Cap’ payments across 

their fleet ensuring that 

no matter how many 

times a passenger uses 

their services, they will 

only pay the cost of a 

day or weekly ticket.

AF 2:

Investigate the 

opportunities 

for 

mainstreaming 

Mobility as a 

Service (MaaS) 

measures in 

both rural and 

urban areas, …

 ...to consolidate the 

costs of travel and 

ensure the best price 

is paid, focussing on 

integration across 

different modes of 

travel.

See RE5 - Scoping of Live Lab 

proposals and RU.  The themes 

suggested for exploration through the 

live labs commission include Mobility 

Hubs and Rural Mobility as a Service 

Applications.

Desktop research and evidence 

gathering, including stakeholder 

engagement underway and draft 

potential projects being developed 

for appraisal. 

↑
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AF 3:

Work with 

transport 

operators, local 

and national 

government to 

promote and 

publicise the 

availability of 

fares capping 

and MaaS 

products as 

well as the 

various …

 ... concessionary 

fares and discount 

schemes, such as the 

Young Scot Card and 

TaxiCard, available to 

ensure passengers 

are aware of and able 

to access the best 

value fares for their 

journey.

Cabinet Sec for Transport, Infrastructure 

and Connectivity announced that the age 

of eligibility for the concessionary travel 

scheme will not change and the scheme 

will be extended to companions of 

eligible disabled children under the age 

of 5 and that options to provide free bus 

travel for modern apprentices will 

continue to be considered.  Following 

consultation, the Scottish Government is 

making preparations to extend free bus 

travel to all young people under the age 

of 19 who reside in Scotland. Draft 

legislation has now been laid which, if 

approved by the Scottish Parliament, will 

enable arrangements to be put in place 

for the scheme to start operating as soon 

as practicable during the financial year 

2021-22.

The Scottish Government and 

Scottish Green Party draft shared 

policy programme agrees to 

commission a Fair Fares Review to 

ensure a sustainable and 

integrated approach to public 

transport fares. This will look at the 

range of discounts and 

concessionary schemes which are 

available on all modes including 

bus, rail and ferry. The review will 

consider options against a 

background where the costs of car 

travel are declining and public 

transport costs are increasing, 

exacerbating the impact on those 

living in poverty

↑

Fare Structure The Scottish Government has 

announced plans to extend the current 

Emergency Measures Agreements 

(EMAs) for the ScotRail and Caledonian 

Sleeper franchises that were due to 

expire on 31 March 2021.  The additional 

support will now be in place until 

September 2021.

The 2021 annual inflation related 

increase in rail fares will be deferred 

until 1 March 2021 with off peak fares 

increasing by 0.6% and peak fares by 

1.6%, which are lower average 

increases in Scotland than elsewhere.

S Gov will continue to 

work with the rail 

industry and UK Gov 

during coming months to 

understand the ongoing 

impact of Covid 19.

↑AF 4:	

Work with 

partners, 

including 

Community 

Planning 

Partners, the 

Chamber of 

Commerce and 

others to 

promote the 

concessionary 

schemes, rail 

cards and other 

promotional 

tickets that are 

available and 

lobby to 

address 

anomalies in 

rail fares 

structures that 

may act as a 

disincentive to 

using rail.
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Smartcards ScotRail Alliance introduced smartcard 

technology to enable season ticket travel 

to be available on every ScotRail route 

by the end of summer 2019.  This 

enabled annual, monthly and weekly 

season ticket holders to use Smartcards 

and avoid queuing for tickets and give 

access to best value fares. Customers 

will be able to buy their season tickets at 

home or at station ticket machines, load 

them up onto their Smartcard and then 

tap and go. 

ScotRail also now provide Smart Flexi-

Pass ten journey tickets, Super Off-

Peak day return for travel at quieter 

times Monday to Friday on selected 

journeys to/from Glasgow, Ed and 

Abdn and Anytime and Off-Peak 

single/return tickets for ScotRail 

services on all their routes. All kinds 

of Smartcard tickets can be used on 

all ScotRail, CrossCountry, LNER and 

TransPennine services. Scotrail are 

working with our industry partners to 

make ScotRail Smartcards available 

on all services,

AF 5:

Work within the 

legislation of 

the Transport 

(Scotland) Act 

to influence 

fares through 

Bus Service 

Improvement 

Partnership 

agreements.

AF 4:	

Work with 

partners, 

including 

Community 

Planning 

Partners, the 

Chamber of 

Commerce and 

others to 

promote the 

concessionary 

schemes, rail 

cards and other 

promotional 

tickets that are 

available and 

lobby to 

address 

anomalies in 

rail fares 

structures that 

may act as a 

disincentive to 

using rail.
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AF 6:	

Work with the 

Councils to 

seek the ring 

fencing of 

income 

generated 

through bus 

lane …

 ... enforcement 

cameras and any 

other future demand 

management 

measures, for the 

improvement of local 

bus services across 

the region.

Nestrans funded new camera system 

and upgrade backroom office equipment 

for bus lane decriminalisation in 2012/13. 

Budget agreed in 20/21 to replace 

existing bus lane enforcement system 

hardware and software that is becoming 

obsolete.  Contract awarded following 

tender.

£151.4K in 20/21

Final amount 

invoiced = 

£152,451

Site surveys of existing column and 

power infrastructure has taken place 

and some sites will benefit from being 

placed up higher than existing 

camera columns and in these 

situations light columns will be used.  

New system is rapidly deployable and 

units can be easily moved to other 

locations around the city.  Equipment 

being funded by Nestrans was 

delivered by end March and final 

invoice now received.

ACC arranging and 

funding installation of 

new cameras. 

↑

AF 7:

Work through 

the Getabout 

partnership and 

brand to 

increase 

awareness of 

the real cost of 

car 

ownership… 

... with a focus on 

enabling users to 

make an informed 

choice when it comes 

to cost and 

affordability of 

transport options.

AF 8:

Enhance the 

network of safe 

and secure 

cycling and 

walking links, 

focussed on 

connecting 

communities 

currently 

experiencing 

higher levels of 

inequality and 

…

… explore 

opportunities for cycle 

training,  enhance 

secure cycle parking, 

bike maintenance 

initiatives and bike 

hire opportunities, to 

remove some of the 

barriers to cycling for 

those on lower 

incomes.  

HTAP managers exploration of 

potential research proposals around 

transport and health inequality led to 

a meeting with Public Health Scotland 

who committed to producing a paper 

on Transport & Health and working 

with HTAP in future.

↑
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AA - Improving access to the transport network for all

a) All rail stations 

across the region to 

be fully accessible, 

with ramp / lift access, 

help points, 

appropriate lighting 

and information b) Work with 

Aberdeen City Council 

and the owners of 

Aberdeen Bus station 

to upgrade facilities to 

include enhanced 

waiting facilities, 

seating, information 

and support staff 

where appropriate.

c) Improve 

connections between 

Aberdeen Bus and 

Rail Stations, the 

Ferry terminal and 

Union Street with a 

focus on improving 

accessibility for those 

with disabilities.

d) Improve the access 

and provision of 

interchange sites 

within town centres in 

Aberdeenshire.

AA 1:

A programme of 

access for all 

improvements 

at all key public 

transport 

points, and 

within urban 

areas and town 

centres, to 

benefit those 

who have 

mobility 

difficulties.
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e) Improve the access 

and provision of 

interchange sites 

within Aberdeen City, 

particularly Union 

Street and Aberdeen 

Royal Infirmary bus 

interchange.

f) Upgrade facilities at 

Peterhead bus station 

to improve access and 

operation of services 

within the site.

Opened July 2007.  Redesign of Site to 

include waiting room minor 

refurbishments, footpath improvements, 

bus shelter replacement and upgrade of 

RTI to E-paper Displays.

£175K in 21/22

Invoiced to date = 

£0.8K

AC has advised that this project 

will not be delivered until next 

financial year and a reduced 

budget to progress the design and 

contract documentation in 21/22 

proposed.

Virement proposed in 

separate budget 

report.

g) Upgrade facilities at 

Fraserburgh bus 

station to improve 

access and operation 

of services within the 

site.

AA 2:

Work with 

partners 

including 

transport 

operators, 

Transport 

Scotland, Local 

Authorities and 

Traveline 

Scotland…

... to provide more 

disability relevant 

transport information 

and   information in 

accessible formats, 

including, but not 

limited to digital 

formats recognising 

that not everyone has 

access to digital 

information or 

services.

AA 1:

A programme of 

access for all 

improvements 

at all key public 

transport 

points, and 

within urban 

areas and town 

centres, to 

benefit those 

who have 

mobility 

difficulties.
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AA 3:

Work with bus 

operators and 

local authority 

partners to 

improve the 

punctuality and 

reliability of bus 

services in 

order to make 

this a more   ... 

... Reliable mode of 

transport, thus 

reducing levels of 

uncertainty and 

anxiety for many when 

travelling (further 

details on this are 

contained within the 

chapter ‘improving the 

region’s bus 

network’).

Multi-modal corridor studies being 

funded through the Bus Partnership 

Fund looking at bus priority measures 

to deliver journey time, punctuality 

and reliability improvements.  See 

actions under ART and BUS.

AA 4:

Explore 

technological 

solutions to 

removing some 

of the barriers 

to travel that 

are experienced 

and to enhance 

provision of 

information and 

facilities. 

For example, audio 

and visual messaging 

and pedestrian 

crossings operated by 

linking to a mobile 

phone. Although not 

everyone has access 

to a mobile phone, it 

can play a significant 

role in providing 

information and 

assistance at a 

personal level.

AA 5:

Placemaking in 

town and city 

centres with a 

focus on 

removing traffic 

and reducing 

traffic speeds to 

enhance 

provision … 

... and space available 

for pedestrians. This 

will help to reduce 

conflict between 

modes, improve actual 

and perceived safety 

and reduce noise 

pollution which can 

cause difficulties for 

some.
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AA 6:

Work with 

partners, 

including 

groups 

representing 

the range of 

protected 

characteristics, 

…

... to better understand 

the needs of people 

who find it difficult to 

access the transport 

network, in order to 

better inform design 

and decision making.

AA 7:

Continue to 

support and 

promote the 

Thistle 

Assistance 

card, to help 

people with 

additional 

needs feel more 

confident to use 

public 

transport.

Thistle Assistance 

Cards

Thistle Assistance cards for use by 

people who need extra help whilst using 

public transport are now available. There 

is also a Thistle Card app available for 

free download via Google play and the 

apple app store.  Thistle Card and its 

app and website have been amended to 

include exemption for wearing face 

masks.

Costs to be met 

from travel plan 

budget, with fixed 

cost remaining at 

approx £2.2K

Nestrans has again agreed to 

contribute share along with other 

RTPs of marketing and 

maintaining/updating the website and 

app in 20/21. Costs identified for 

leaflet, card and sticker printing an 

postage on direct orders from RTPs 

and requests via phone & website 

from RTP areas. 

Nestrans part of project 

team for the journey 

planning and wayfinding 

for thistle assistance, 

which is being funded by 

Scottish Enterprise and 

led by Sestrans

↑
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Project/Action Progress Budget To be done Target

Policy Headings

RTS actions

Status

PP - Planning and designing places for people

Aberdeen Sub Area 

Model (ASAM) - 

Nestrans manage and 

maintain the strategic 

regional model to 

ensure it provides a 

suitably robust tool for 

transport and land use 

appraisal

CRD funding used to meet costs of 

upgrade to strategic Aberdeen Sub Area 

Model (ASAM) to 2014 base year.  

Transport Scotland  managing requests 

for access to ASAM14 through Latis 

framework with Nestrans being 

contacted to grant formal approval. The 

ASAM 2014 base model and forecast 

models for 2017,2022, 2027, 2032 and 

2037 completed. 

Costs for ASAM 

update to 2019 

base year following 

opening of AWPR 

to be met via CRD

Nestrans in partnership with TS, AC, 

ACC and SDPA appointed Systra in 

July 2019 following competitive 

tender to update ASAM to a 2019 

base year with 2022, 2027, 2032, 

2037 and 2042 forecast years.  

Significant data collection exercise 

undertaken in autumn 2019 to update 

and calibrate the base model to 2019 

and to reflect the change in traffic 

patterns as a result of the AWPR.  

PBA appointed as auditor through 

Transport Scotland's Latis framework. 

Calibration of model outputs ongoing.  

Matrix operation 

ongoing. Realism 

sensitivity tests to be 

undertaken.  Progress 

meeting to be held in 

Sept. Demonstration 

tests be agreed and 

undertaken. Awaiting 

national  forecast 

scenarios. Extension 

to programme and 

budget agreed by CRD 

Programme Board.

↑

Development Plans Further cumulative transport appraisal 

works in support of LDP MIR allocations 

completed and supplementary draft CTA 

report with option testing based on LDP 

allocations  reported to Board in June 

2019 and now published on Nestrans 

website.  Scottish Ministers have 

approved the Aberdeen City & Shire 

Strategic Development Plan subject to 

modifications.  Responses to both 

Council's LDP consultations submitted.

PP 1:

Provide support 

and input to the 

development 

planning 

process at a 

national, 

regional and 

local level, in 

line with the key 

priorities of this 

strategy.
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PP 2:

Support local 

planning 

authorities in 

adopting 

planning 

policies, 

supplementary 

guidance and 

design 

standards,  …

… which complement 

this strategyby 

promoting successful 

places and 

sustainable 

communities, well 

served by a range of 

transport options and 

reflecting the Town 

Centres First 

principle.

PP 3:

Produce a 

Regional Travel 

Planning 

Strategy in 

conjunction 

with Councils, 

including 

planning 

colleagues, 

providing 

guidance and a 

framework 

within which 

measures to 

ensure an 

adequate 

choice and 

mode split can 

be 

demonstrated.

Travel Planning strategy 

& Action Plan

Various travel planning related packages 

were commissioned via Civitas Portis 

work.  A refresh of the Regional Travel 

Planning Strategy was undertaken for 

the short term that reflects travel advice 

during the covid pandemic.  A medium to 

long term strategy has been developed 

as part of the Regional Transport 

Strategy refresh and Civitas Portis. This 

considered lessons learnt via the Civitas 

Portis Travel Planning projects and 

provides guidance as to travel planning 

development with linkage to relevant 

information on Council  websites. 

£76.5K in 21/22 

(includes £16.5K 

delay in draw down 

from 20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£22.5K

Short to medium term guidance and 

medium to long term guidance has 

now been published on the Nestrans 

and Getabout websites.

↑
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Policy Headings

RTS actions

Status

PP 4:

We will support 

Placemaking 

principles, 

creating 

environments 

for people 

which … 

...are not dominated 

by traffic in town and 

city centres, 

residential areas and 

communities as well 

as other places where 

people will want to 

walk, linger and visit.

PP 5:

Work with our 

partners to 

communicate 

the vision and 

overarching 

ambition for our 

places, 

particularly our 

city and town 

centres and ... 

.... in line with existing 

plans such as the City 

Centre Masterplan, to 

build support and 

understanding for the 

actions that will be 

needed in terms of 

traffic management 

and reprioritisation of 

road space to more 

active and sustainable 

modes. 

The Scottish Government and 

Scottish Green Party draft shared 

policy programme agrees the National 

Planning Framework (NPF4) will 

embed the concept of 20 minute 

neighbourhoods to strengthen 

community resilience, reduce carbon 

emissions and reduce the need to 

travel by improving local liveability 

and well being.

NT - Future impact of new technologies

NT 1:

Support local 

authority 

partners in the 

delivery of …

 ...the Smart City 

Strategy action plan 

and City Region Deal 

digital connectivity 

workstream.

Osprey upgrade To allow ACC's Intelligent Transport 

Systems unit to create strategies more 

easily and will be particularly useful for 

TECA and City Centre Events.  

Additional budget to provide greater 

functionality and enable further 

strategies to be developed approved.

£37.8K Capital in 

2021/22 (delay 

draw down from 

20/21 of remaining 

£70K budget)

Invoiced to date = 

£32.2K

Extra datasets introduced to 

database.  System being tested and 

upgrade completed.  Stability issue 

resolved and monitoring underway 

to ensure no further issues.

Final invoice expected 

at end August. ↑NT 2:

Identify 

opportunities, 

in partnership 

with the 

Councils and 

bus operators, 

to use City 

Management 

Operations and 

the data sensor 

network to 

enhance 

priority for 

public 

transport, for 

example 

through signal 

control 

junctions, early 

identification 

and 

management of 

congestion and 

appropriate 

routeing of 

traffic.
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Traffic Signal Review Re-validation of SCOOT signal timings to 

ensure optimal staging and 

synchronisation between junctions and 

installation of SCOOT at junctions not on 

system on King Street and Market Street 

corridors and routes feeding onto these 

corridors that are used by a number of 

bus services and review of lane 

allocation on Union Street at Rose 

Street.

£30K in 21/22 (all 

delay draw down 

from 20/21)

Siemens have been commissioned to 

undertake the revalidation work. 

A confirmed start date won't be 

agreed for this project until traffic 

patterns and volumes are considered 

to be at consistent representative 

levels. Anticipate that the on-site 

SCOOT revalidation works may be 

programmed for after the summer 

holidays, during late August/early 

September, if traffic levels have 

returned to something near normal.

↑

Roadside Weather 

Station Network

It is proposed to renew two stations, add 

one additional station and relocate one 

station, which are used by officers to 

make vital real-time decisions regarding 

the treatment of the road, footway and 

cycleway networks

£86K Capital in 

21/22 (all delay 

draw down from 

20/21)

Sites have been identified. 

Materials have been delivered to 

the yard. Programmed to start 

implementation in September. 

Aim to complete 

project by end 

December 2021.

↑

NT 3:

Identify 

opportunities 

for products, 

supported by 

enhancements 

in digital 

capabilities, to 

improve the 

operation ... 

... and passenger 

experience of using 

public transport and 

sustainable modes, 

considering the 

benefits that MaaS 

principles and 

technology can bring.

NT 2:

Identify 

opportunities, 

in partnership 

with the 

Councils and 

bus operators, 

to use City 

Management 

Operations and 

the data sensor 

network to 

enhance 

priority for 

public 

transport, for 

example 

through signal 

control 

junctions, early 

identification 

and 

management of 

congestion and 

appropriate 

routeing of 

traffic.
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NT 4:

Support and 

facilitate the 

introduction of 

trials of new 

and emerging 

…

 ...transport 

technologies in the 

region e.g. Connected 

and Autonomous 

Vehicles.

NT 5:

Work with 

Community 

Planning 

Partnerships, 

our partner 

local authorities 

and  … 

... Universities to 

identify the potential 

for and provide 

support to enhanced 

awareness around 

opportunities and 

future skills in the 

transport sector.

Nestrans are statutory partners, 

contribute financially and attend 

appropriate meetings.    Two active travel 

Project Charters (one cycling and one 

walking) have been produced for the 

Aberdeen Sustainable City LOIP group, 

which Nestrans is leading on.

£10K in 21/22

Invoiced in full

Membership costs for both CP 

partners in 2021/22 have been 

invoiced. 

↑
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NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 15 September 2021 

 

 

7.    Publications and Consultations 

 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Members of recent publications and consultation 

papers of interest.  Since the last meeting of the Board, a number of publications and 

consultations of interest have been received and are discussed below. 
 

2. Department for Transport:  Decarbonising Transport 

 

2.1 The UK Department for Transport published its Decarbonising Transport – A Better, 

Greener Britain (publishing.service.gov.uk)  on 14th of July 2021. This document discusses 

the UK Governments ambitions: to increase walking and cycling, zero emission buses and 

coaches, decarbonising railways, zero emission fleet of cars, vans and motorcycles and 

scooters. As well as accelerating maritime decarbonisation and accelerating aviation 

decarbonisation. It also emphasises working with freight and logistics, place planning and 

the role of hydrogen. Many of the specific pilots mentioned are for England, due to transport 

being devolved to the nations in the UK, but there is also a lot of UK wide work involved.   

 

2.2 For Scotland, this work is relevant in relation to national goals to reduce Scotland’s 

emissions of all greenhouse gases to net-zero by 2045 at the latest, with interim targets for 

at least 75% by 2030, and 90% by 2040.  During this period, significant progress is required 

on Transport greenhouse gas emissions. 

 
3. Aberdeen City Centre Low Emission Zone 
  

3.1 At the meeting of Aberdeen City Council’s City Growth and Resources Committee on 

Thursday 24th June, the Committee agreed the proposed boundary for Aberdeen’s Low 

Emission Zone (LEZ) and proposed grace period. In accordance with LEZ Regulations, the 

proposals were then taken forward for public and stakeholder consultation and the feedback 

received will help inform the final LEZ boundary and the Council’s formal submission to 

Scottish Ministers in late 2021/early 2022. 

 

3.2 An online questionnaire was made available on the Aberdeen City Council website at: 

https://consultation.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning/lowemissionzone/. The website explains 

the reason for developing a Low Emission Zone and gives access to all the supporting 

materials that helped inform the proposals. A short questionnaire was also provided to seek 

feedback on the proposed LEZ boundary shown below, the suggested grace period of 2 

years and any additional exemptions that should be applied. 
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3.3 It was noted that the LEZ will be clearly signed to allow non-complaint vehicles to divert 

away from the area. Enforcement will be via Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) 

cameras, as are currently used for monitoring bus lanes in Aberdeen.  The proposed grace 

period is 2 years, meaning that should the Council declare a LEZ in May 2022 (as per the 

current programme), enforcement (the issuing of fines) will not take place until May 2024  

by which time many vehicles are likely to be compliant.  The Scottish Government is 

providing support to individuals and businesses to help them prepare for the introduction of 

LEZs and a link is given to the website where further information on this support can be 

found: lowemissionzones.scot  

 

3.4 It is noted that the traffic modelling suggested that the LEZ could cause traffic increases in 

streets south and west of the zone which are not suitable for such an increase. Various 

ways of addressing this have been considered, the most effective solution being an access 

restriction to and from Millburn Street at its junction with South College Street / Palmerston 

Place. It is likely therefore that this restriction will be put in place prior to LEZ enforcement 

commencing. The modelling also suggested that, even with the LEZ in place, some areas 

of unacceptable pollution will remain unless further traffic restriction measures are 

introduced in the city centre. It is likely therefore that the LEZ will be accompanied by 

changes to certain roads to prioritise people walking, wheeling and cycling, and using public 

transport. These are not the subject of the consultation, but will be taken forward via the 

Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) process upon which members of the public and 

stakeholders will also be consulted.  

 

3.5 The consultation was open from 28 June and closed on 22 August 2021.  As there was not 

a meeting of the Board within this timescale the Nestrans response was agreed with the 
Chair and Vice-Chairs and is provided in Appendix 1.  

 

 
4. Workplace Parking Licensing - Consultation on Regulations and Guidance 
 

4.1 The Transport (Scotland) Act 2019 introduced a discretionary power for local authorities to 

implement Workplace Parking Licensing (WPL) schemes.  The Act provides the legislative 
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framework for WPL and confers powers on Scottish Ministers to make regulations in relation 

to certain elements.  Transport Scotland are currently consulting on a national regulatory 

framework and guidance for any such schemes.  The consultation documents are available 

via this link: https://www.transport.gov.scot/consultation/workplace-parking-licensing-

consultation-on-regulations-and-guidance/ 

 

4.2 This consultation is not about the principles, design or implementation of any individual 

scheme.  Local authorities will be required to undertake a consultation on their local 

schemes if they wished to take any schemes forward.  The draft Nestrans RTS identifies 

that WPL schemes are one of a number of demand management approaches that are 

available for consideration, and the RTS commits to undertaking a regional study at a future 

date on the advantages and disadvantages of such options. 

 

4.3 The consultation was launched 11 June 2021, with responses due by 06 September 2021.  

Accordingly, a draft response has been prepared following consultation with regional 

partners, which has been submitted to Transport Scotland following Chair and Vice Chair 
approval, and this is presented in Appendix 2.  Officers have however sought assurance 

from Transport Scotland that they will be happy to accept any amendments to the 

consultation response that are agreed during the meeting.   

 
 

5. Implementing the Bus Provisions of the Transport (Scotland) Act 2019 

 

5.1 Transport Scotland have issued a consultation regarding the implementation of the bus 

provisions of the Transport (Scotland) Act 2019, which is available at this link: 

https://consult.gov.scot/transport-scotland/part-3-bus-services-transport-scotland-act-

2019/  The consultation opened on 14 July 2021, and runs until 06 October 2021. 

 

5.2 The consultation covers the key elements forming Part 3 of the Act, which refine and further 

develop provisions relating to the regulatory landscape relating to the operation of bus 

services in Scotland, with the aim of halting declines in patronage. Consultation questions 

are focussed around the following subjects: 

a) Local Authority run bus services;  

b) Bus Service Improvement Partnerships;  

c) Local Services Franchises;  

d) Information relating to services; and 

e) Impact assessments 

 
5.3 Regional discussions are currently being held in response to this consultation, with officers 

liaising with officers from the Public Transport Units in both Aberdeen City and 

Aberdeenshire Council.  Officers are also drawing on discussions being held at a national 

level with Association of Transport Co-ordinating Officers (ATCO).  At the point of report 

preparation, it is not clear whether a separate Nestrans will be prepared in response to this 

consultation.  If it is determined appropriate to do so, any response will be approved in 

advance with the Chair and Vice Chairs prior to submission, and reported to a subsequent 

board.   
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6. Tactran RTS Main Issues Report 

 

6.1 Neighbouring RTS Tactran have recently consulted on the development of their RTS Main 

Issues Report.  This has taken the form of a face to face discussion, and a follow-up email 
in response to a map-based questionnaire.   

 

6.2 The Nestrans response highlighted key areas of thematic and geographic overlap with the 

Nestrans RTS, including shared interest in rail, strategic road, and rural accessibility 
projects, particularly in the Kincardine and Mearns area of Aberdeenshire and Angus 

Council area.  Nestrans officers will continue to liaise with those in Tactran on these shared 

areas of interest, and will be happy to comment in due course on any further consultations 
that Tactran may issue. 

 
7. Aberdeenshire Road Safety Plan 

  
7.1 Aberdeenshire Council have prepared a draft Road Safety Plan. This is a strategic 

document which details the mechanisms which will be employed to allow Aberdeenshire 

Council to achieve the Scottish governments road safety framework targets, of reducing the 

number of people Killed or Seriously injured on our roads across Aberdeenshire.  Officers 

were asked to read and comment on the draft plan by 9th of July 2021. Nestrans officers 

made some minor suggestions and comments on the document, but overall were 

impressed by the quality and content of the draft; which was comprehensive, logical and 

ambitious. Officers will continue to work with Aberdeenshire Council and other partners as 

part of the North East Scotland Road Safety Partnership, with the overall aim to have zero 

fatalities on the roads. 

 
 
8 Recommendations 

 
8.1 It is recommended that the Board:  

 

1. Notes the Publications and Consultations. 

2. Approve the submission of the Workplace Parking Licensing consultation response to 

Transport Scotland, provided in Appendix 2. 

3. Note that if following partner discussions, a Nestrans response is deemed appropriate 

in response to the consultation on the Bus Provisions of the Transport (Scotland) Act 

2019, that this will be approved in advance with the Chair and Vice Chairs. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RD/PMF/KW August 2021 
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Appendix 1 

 
Low Emissions Zone Boundary Consultation 
 
Submitted to Aberdeen Low Emission Zone Preferred Option Consultation 
Submitted on 2021-08-18  
 
Introduction 

 
1) Are you responding to this questionnaire as an individual or on behalf of an 

organisation? 

 
Organisation 

 
Questions for Businesses 

 
5) What is the name of your organisation? 
 

Name: Nestrans 
 
6) Which of the following statements is true for your organisation (please select 

all that apply)? 

 
My organisation is located within the proposed LEZ area, My organisation requires 
infrequent travel through the LEZ area, Other 

 
Please expand upon your answer in the box below: 

 
Nestrans is the statutory Regional Transport Partnership covering the local authority 
areas of Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire and is principally responding as a 
statutory consultee. 
 
However, it is noted that Nestrans’ office accommodation is located within the LEZ 
and therefore staff and visitor travel to/from the office and services/deliveries to the 
office will also involve access to the LEZ. 

7) Based on the information provided in the 'Proposal to make a LEZ scheme', on 
a scale of 1-5 (where 1 is very easy and 5 is very hard) how easy do you think it 
will be for your organisation to comply with the LEZ by 2024? 

 
1 - Very Easy 

 
If you would like to expand upon your answer, please use the box below.: 

 
Staff either already have compliant vehicles, have access to co-wheels car club 
vehicles for work related travel, use public transport, walk or cycle. Would expect that 
Council fleet for services within the city centre area will be compliant given the 
authorities fleet replacement programme and net zero ambitions and that deliveries 
to city centre premises can be made by compliant vehicles by 2024. 

 
8) Generally, are you in favour of a Low Emission Zone in Aberdeen? 

 
Yes 
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If you would like to expand upon your answer, please use the box below.: 

 
This will assist in improving air quality, which is one of the key priorities within the 
Regional Transport Strategy to 2040, within the existing Air Quality Management 
Area in Aberdeen City Centre. 
 
Whilst improving air quality and public health are of key importance, there should 
however be an awareness of the risk to accessibility should public transport services 
be withdrawn, reduced in frequency or increased in cost as a result of the economic 
difficulties for operators to upgrade their fleet, particularly whilst income has been 
reduced as a result of the Covid pandemic and efforts to mitigate this further may 
require to be considered. 

 
9) Do you agree with the proposed LEZ boundary? 

 
No 

 
If you would like to expand upon your answer, please use the box below.: 

 
The proposed southern boundaries on College Street and Market Street are 
important to ensure that access to the railway station, harbour and ferry terminal are 
maintained. Although this means that a current exceedance location on Market Street 
is not within the LEZ, the fact that through routeing northwards is not possible for 
non-compliant vehicles has resulted in the supporting appraisal information predicting 
that this area would reach compliance levels with the proposed zone boundary and it 
should not therefore be extended. 
 
The proposed eastern boundary including East North Street and Commerce Street 
will however make non-compliant freight access to the north harbour quaysides, rail 
freight terminal and adjacent industrial areas difficult and may result in use of less 
appropriate routes, some of which are subject to width and weight restrictions. 
Nestrans would therefore ask that the views of Aberdeen Harbour Board, freight 
companies and businesses out with the zone that may be affected are considered 
and if necessary that these streets be removed from the boundary provided that the 
Virginia Street inclusion to deter through traffic is sufficient and there is not a risk to 
compliance, particularly adjacent to Hanover Primary School playground, as a result 
of this suggested amendment. 
 
It is noted that there is scope to issue time-limited exemptions if any abnormal load 
vehicles etc. require access on an ad-hoc basis. 

 
10) Do you agree with the proposed 2 year grace period until LEZ enforcement will 

commence? 

 
Yes 

 
If you would like to expand upon your answer, please use the box below.: 

 
This strikes a reasonable balance between achieving the aim to improve air quality 
and public health as quickly as possible, whilst recognising and being sympathetic to 
the financial impact for many residents and businesses to be able to comply with the 
LEZ, particularly in the context of the Covid pandemic. 
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11) In your view, should any additional time-limited exemptions (in addition to the 
national exemptions described in the 'Proposal to make a LEZ scheme') be 
granted to any particular user group or class of vehicle? 

 
Not sure 

 
If you answered yes, please provide details in the box below.: 

 
There may be a case for exempting Specialist Vehicles which by their nature may be 
very high cost and expected to have a long life in fleet management or construction. 
They would likely have a low incidence of being in the LEZ area ie only there if being 
used for a specific purpose within the area – such as cranes, gritters, etc 
 
Again, it is noted that there is scope to issue time-limited exemptions if any abnormal 
load vehicles etc. require access on an ad-hoc basis, but this may entail significant 
paperwork given the size of the boundary if such vehicles frequently require access 
within the zone, or to travel through it to reach an adjacent destination, such as the 
harbour, if restrictions mean that no alternative routes are available that are suitable 
for these vehicles beyond the boundary. 

 
 
Ends 
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Appendix 2 

 
Workplace Parking Licensing - Consultation on Regulations and Guidance 

Draft Nestrans Response 
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Workplace Parking Licensing Consultation 

Transport Scotland 
 

Workplace Parking Licensing - Consultation on Regulations 
and Guidance 
https://www.transport.gov.scot/consultation/workplace-parking-licensing-consultation-on-regulations-and-

guidance/ 

Consultation Questions 

Question 1 

Are there other elements of WPL schemes that local authorities should be required to 
consult on, besides those listed under the ‘Consultation and Impact Assessment’ section? 

 No 

Please explain your answer, including, if appropriate, what additional elements should be required 
and why:  

We consider the elements listed to be comprehensive. 

Question 2 

Should the regulations specify a list of statutory consultees that local authorities are 
required to consult? 

 Yes 

Please explain your answer. If yes, please detail what statutory consultees and why:  

Statutory consultees should include every business or organisation who would be required to pay 

a charge under the proposed scheme and should be consistent with other Statutory consultee 
lists, including surrounding affected local authorities, and other public bodies.  

Question 3 

When local authorities communicate information about new, amended, or revoked WPL 
schemes, what information should the notices contain? Please support your view with 

evidence where possible. 

Legal notices are usually short and comply with a legal minimum in terms of information provision, 
however they should include similar information to that provided as part at the consultation stage 

on any proposed Workplace Parking Licensing Scheme, including key scheme details, 
exemptions, and appeal process.   

 
Wider publicity should be available and linked with the notices on a dedicated website.   
 

Question 4 

When local authorities communicate information about new, amended, or revoked WPL 

schemes, where/how should notices be published? Please support your view with evidence 
where possible. 

Considering the legal aspects, Workplace Parking Licensing notices should be published in a 
consistent manner in the same way that all Council notices are. For example they should be 
published on the Council website, displayed at the workplaces where the scheme is to be 
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Transport Scotland 
 

implemented and advertised in the newspaper.  Notices can potentially follow a similar process to 
that carried out for traffic and other orders. 

 
Considering the wider publicity aspects, employers’ guidance, background to the scheme, scheme 

benefits, and other supporting documents including impact assessments should be clearly 
available on a dedicated, accessible, and regularly maintained web page.   
 

Question 5 

Are there any circumstances where an employer besides the occupier of the premises 

should be responsible for the charges imposed through a WPL scheme?   

 No 

Please explain your answer. If Yes, please describe the circumstances and entities who 

should be liable, supporting your view with evidence where possible. 

It should be linked to occupation of premises.  

Question 6 

Should the rationale and process for a local authority’s review of licensing decisions be 

wholly set out by the local authority?   

 Yes   

Please explain your answer. 

Stems from being able to defend a legal challenge to the scheme or associated decisions. 

Question 7 

What circumstances/rationale do you consider reasonable for review or appeal of licensing 
decisions to take place? 

These may include the correct application of regulations, factual accuracy, and legal competency 

of decisions being made.  Would look to mirror existing and well-established licencing regulations 
and guidance in this regard. 

Question 8 

Do you agree with the approach to penalty charges as outlined under the ‘Penalty Charges’ 

section above?  

 No 

Please explain your answer, supporting your view with evidence where possible. 

This approach could cause confusion with other parking contraventions where Penalty Charge 
Notices (PCNs) are issued and consideration should be given to a different name for any penalty 

applied under Workplace Parking Licensing to avoid such confusion.  
 
It is unlikely that existing front line parking enforcement teams will be carrying out the enforcement 

on Workplace Place Licensing schemes and therefore consideration should be given to how any 
contraventions are enforced and who is responsible for this enforcement.  Likewise for the 

operation of payment and back office for any such penalty could become confused and difficult.  
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Workplace Parking Licensing enforcement should follow processes for other licensing matters 
and not be seen as similar to on or off street car parking enforcement as it is unlikely that 

enforcement action will be taken on employees using car parks but on the employers who provide 
the car parks. 

 

Question 9 

Do you consider that there should be additional grounds for review or appeal of penalty 

charges besides those listed under the ‘Penalty Charges’ section above?  

 No 

Please explain your answer, supporting your view with evidence where possible. 

The list provided in the consultation document for grounds for review or appeal of penalty charges 
is comprehensive. 

 

Question 10 

Which approach to the amount of the penalty charge do you consider more appropriate?  

 A formula for the penalty charge, including a reduction in payment for payment within a 

certain timeframe or increase in response to delayed payment, should be set in 
regulations  

A reasonable national formula set by regulations would be easier for Local Authorities to 

implement as such an approach would seem fair, clear and efficient rather than devising and 
consulting on their own formula. 

 
 The amount of the penalty charge be determined entirely by local authorities  

Not preferred. 

Please explain your answer, including what formula you consider appropriate, supporting 
your view with evidence where possible. 

See above 

Question 11 

Do you agree with the approach outlined under ‘Accounts’? 

 Yes 

Question 12 

Do think further regulation on accounts is required? 

 No 

Please explain your answer.  

The suggested approach is reasonable and proportionate. 
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Question 13 

What positive or negative impacts do you think the WPL proposals outlined within this 

consultation may have on: 

 particular groups of people, with particular reference to ‘protected characteristics’ listed 

above 

No particular positive or negative impacts on the groups within protected characteristics.  An 
additional charge to SCIO’s and Charity Groups may have a negative impact on their activities and 

they may be reluctant to pass this cost on to “employees” especially if they are volunteers.   

Investment in local transport schemes, will bring wider benefits to all sections of the community. 

 children and young people 

No direct impact.  Indirect benefits from increased investment in local transport schemes. 

 people facing socioeconomic disadvantages 

Experience from the scheme run by Nottingham City Council suggests that many larger employers 
pass the parking levy costs on to their employees, often indirectly through their monthly salary (i.e. 

a reduction to account for the parking charge). This could have an adverse impact on people in 
lower-paid and more insecure employment and could affect for example, net Living Wage 

amounts, if they have and continue to use a workplace parking space.   

Women are more likely to work part time and also be paid a lower wage, therefore women could 
be directly impacted. Women in a rural area that have to use a car for work are also more likely to 

be impacted unless there is adequate public transport.   

Moreover, individual schemes would need to take account of the specific circumstances of their 

area.  Investment in local transport schemes, will bring wider benefits to these sections of the 
community. 

 people living in island communities 

No comment 

Question 14 

Do you think the WPL proposals outlined within this consultation are likely to increase, 
reduce or maintain the costs and burdens placed on business sectors? Please be as 

specific as possible in your reasoning. 

The proposals undoubtedly create an additional administrative burden on businesses, 
proportionate to the number of their employees captured by the WPL scheme. There is either a 

payroll implication (with related adjustments to payroll software, at cost to the business) or a 
benefits in kind implication, with related reporting requirements to HMRC. Even companies that 

implement less sophisticated schemes (i.e. a direct charge to employees who use workplace 
parking) will have to establish invoicing and payment mechanisms. Businesses would of course 
have the choice not to pass on the charge directly but absorb it within their overall  overheads and 

see it as part of their approach to tackling climate change. 
 

  

Page 242



Workplace Parking Licensing Consultation 

Transport Scotland 
 

Question 15 

What impacts do you think the proposals outlined in this consultation may have on the 

personal data and privacy of individuals? 

Probably limited impacts, the businesses will be applying for licences for spaces, not individual 

cars or who are using the spaces.  Existing privacy regulations would be used to manage the 
scheme in relation to the businesses applying for the licences, as in other similar licensing 
activities. 

 

Question 16 

Do you think the WPL proposals outlined in this consultation are like to have an impact on 
the environment? If so, in what way? Please be as specific as possible in your reasoning. 

Beneficial impacts on the environment would be anticipated to arise if there is a net reduction in 

traffic volumes associated with the scheme (carbon emissions, air pollution, noise etc) across an 
area.  The extent and location of such impacts would be scheme specific, as might any 

displacement of activity.  Further beneficial environmental benefits would be secured if the income 
raised were used to support the development and support of transport measures that enable 
modal shift, tackle climate change and pollution.   

Question 17 

Do you have any other comments that you would like to add on the Scottish Government’s 

WPL proposals outlined within this consultation? 

As any experienced is gained in the practical application of the WPL in Scotland, it will be 

important that a review is undertaken to the associated national regulations and guidance in order 

to learn any key lessons.   

 

ENDS 
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8    Information Bulletin 

 

 Purpose of Report 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide information and updates for the Board on a number 
of matters not requiring decisions. 

 

 Press and Communications 

 
A summary of Press Enquiries, Media Releases and coverage relevant to Nestrans since the 
last Board meeting is attached as Appendix 1 to this report. 

 

 Covid 19 Travel Behaviour and Attitude Surveys 

 

Consultants Systra have been re-commissioned to undertake six travel behaviour surveys 

during the current financial year.  The results from the survey undertaken at the end of June 

2021 have now been finalised and published on the Nestrans Website. 

https://www.nestrans.org.uk/projects/monitoring-and-modelling/.  The infographic illustrating 
key results is presented in Appendix 2 to this report.   

 

The results for survey 11 are showing some changes from surveys 1-10.  Key differences 

include:  More journeys are being undertaken than in previous surveys, people are walking 

less for these journeys, and more are travelling by car. People are currently less likely to 

walk/cycle for leisure purposes than previously, but fewer people feel negative and unsafe 

towards public transport than earlier surveys.  These results reflect the easing of restrictions. 

Field work for the next set of surveys were being conducted and analysed between the end 

of August and early September.   

 

 Consultation – Standards and Ethics Commissioner 

 
Nestrans has responded to a consultation by the Acting Ethical Standards Commissioner for 

Scotland on their Strategic Plan for 2021-24, following consultation with the Chair.  Whilst 

noting an increased focus on meaningful engagement with local authorities and associated 

bodies, the strategic plan lacked detail on a number of other proposed changes, including 

around governance, and codes of practice/guidance on appointments to public bodies.  It 

was suggested that the conversation with stakeholders was continued when further detail 

was available.  

 Consultation – Fire Service Strategic Plan  

 
Through our participation in Community Planning Partnerships, Nestrans has responded to 

strategic consultation on a future set of strategic objectives for the Scottish Fire and Rescue 

Service.  The response noted that “Nestrans agrees with the Scottish Fire and Rescue 

Service’s Long-Term Vision, that the vision will allow for better and greater partnership 

working in the future, and that Nestrans looks forward to continuing to work in partnership 
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with the SFRS in the future, particularly in its Community Planning and work with the North 

East Scotland Road Safety Partnership.” 

 

 University of Aberdeen Collaboration / A90(N) Ellon – Peterhead 

 
The previously reported opportunity to collaborate with an MSc student unfortunately did not 

come to fruition.  Traffic survey information was successfully collected during the end of May 

at key locations (north and south roundabouts at Ellon, Toll of Birness), and Nestrans have 

commissioned Systra to undertake an analysis of results, and comparisons with previous 

surveys.  Outcomes will have relevance in the context of regional work on 

Freeports/Greenport proposals, and ongoing interest in the transport needs of this corridor. 

The cost of the analysis will be met from within the existing approved budget line for surveys 

to support RTS2040. 

 

 Getabout Update 

 
The Getabout working group continues to meet virtually and key messages around active 

travel and Covid-19 safe travel messages continue to be promoted through social media and 

advertising. The next campaign will be focused on road safety, particularly around vulnerable 

road users in the dark or bad weather as we enter Autumn and the winter months. 

 

Getabout has also been supporting the Tour of Britain event held on Sunday 12th of 

September. Through a radio advert promoting the Tour of Britain and the Getabout village, 

sharing key information and communication on the event. The Getabout ‘Village’ had lots of 

stands and free family activities at the Beach in Aberdeen, at the finish of the final stage of 

the Tour of Britain 2021. Further information on this can be found at Tour of Britain 2021 - 

VisitAberdeenshire (visitabdn.com) 

 

 Vaccination Centre Support 
 

Nestrans have been working closely with NHS Grampian and the Aberdeen City Health and 

Social Care Partnership on travel planning for the move from TECA/P&J Live, as the main 

vaccination centre for Aberdeen, to the Aberdeen Vaccination Centre – Bon Accord Centre 

(old John Lewis site).  The new vaccination centre is due to open w/c 13th of September 2021 

and will be carrying out Covid-19 vaccinations as well as flu vaccines and under fives routine 

vaccinations that would have normally been carried out at GP practices.  

 

This partnership work is to ensure that travel information and support is available for 

everyone who requires to travel to the centre, for a vaccination. 

 

 eCargo Bike Update  

 
One of the trikes has been delivered to Aden Park, Mintlaw where it will be used by a variety 

of community groups; Friends of Aden, Aden Allotments, SAMH, Mintlaw and District Men’s 

Shed and the Caravan Park Wardens.  Buchan Development Partnership will use it and 

assume responsibility for its daily oversight and management.   
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One of the bikes will be handed over later this month to Mad Potato, a grocer in Aberdeen’s 

West End which specialises on fresh local produce.  They had been due to take ownership 

of a trike however, following a recent move to larger premises, they no longer had suitable 

secure storage space for the much larger bike. This bike was returned from Poldino’s who 

had been using it much less recently since the reopening of their restaurant.  

 

Of the remaining trikes, Fargo’s Cargo, CFine and the City Council’s Countryside Rangers 

continue to make efficient, daily use of them.  The Haven are experiencing a marked increase 

in demand for their services and, as a result, they are giving consideration to acquiring a 

small electric van. In preparation of a possible rehoming of this trike, it is our intention to 

issue some refreshed publicity across our social media channels about the offer of the 

eCargo bikes.  

 
 

 Recommendation 

 
It is recommended that the Board note the contents of this report. 

PF/JB/LJ/KW September 2021 
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Appendix 1 

 

Nestrans Communications Report   

 29 May – 31 August 2021 
   

 Nestrans News Releases   

 

Date   Details    
   

10.08.2021 Quote from Councillor Macdonald as Chair of Nestrans prepared for 
forthcoming Aberdeenshire Council news release on the Share Space project. 

09.08.2021 News release announcing the launch of the Grampian Cycle Partnership ‘Good 
Cycling Guide’, featuring a quote from Councillor Macdonald as Chair of 
Nestrans. 

21.07.2021 Aberdeenshire Council news release on new zero-emissions vehicles, 
including input and quote from Councillor Macdonald as Chair of Nestrans. 

20.07.2021 Partner news release on the Tour of Britain stage route announcement, 
featuring a quote from Councillor Macdonald as Chair of Nestrans, alongside 
others. 

22.06.2021 News release on the success of the Bus Partnership Fund bid. 

 

   

   

 Nestrans News Coverage   

   
Date   Media   Details   
26.08.2021 Buchan Observer Article following SNP-Greens deal and the 

commitment to increase investment in active travel 
and public transport. The deal specifically mentions 
working with Nestrans and both local councils on 
rapid transit and a rail link between Dyce and Ellon 
and to Peterhead and Fraserburgh. 

25.08.2021 Scottish Construction 
Now 

Article following the SNP-Greens deal and that plans 
to fully dual the A96 route between Inverness and 
Aberdeen will now be subject to a review. Also 
focuses on rapid transit and rail links between Dyce 
and Ellon and to Peterhead and Fraserburgh. 

23.08.2021 Planet Radio 
(Northsound) 

Article following SNP-Greens deal and the 
commitment to increase investment in active travel 
and public transport. The deal specifically mentions 
working with Nestrans and both local councils on 
rapid transit and a rail link between Dyce and Ellon 
and to Peterhead and Fraserburgh. 

17.08.2021 Buchan Observer Article ahead of the final event from the Peterhead 
North Sustaining Choices project. 

13.08.2021 Deeside Piper and 
Herald 

Article following the launch of Grampian Cycle 
Partnership’s Good Cycling Guide. 

02.08.2021 Evening Express Article following Aberdeen City Council’s purchase 
of the former Aberdeen Market and BHS buildings  
and how this could be combined with improving links 
to the bus and train stations, as well as 
pedestrianisation. 
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26.07.2021 Grampian Online Aberdeenshire MSP Gillian Martin welcomes the 

addition of the new zero-emission electric vehicles to 

Aberdeenshire Council’s fleet. 

21.07.2021 Grampian Online The final stage route for the Tour of Britain has been 

announced. Chair of Nestrans, Councillor Sandra 

Macdonald welcomes the announcement and 

discusses Nestrans’ role in championing cycling as 

an option for active travel. 

21.07.2021 Grampian Online Article on Aberdeenshire Council’s 20 new zero-
emissions electric vehicles. Article includes details of 
Nestrans’ funding of one of the accessible electric 
minibuses. 

14.07.2021 Grampian Online MP Richard Thomson highlights the Ellon Park & 
Ride to Garthdee consultation and encourages 
people to take part. 

07.07.2021 Grampian Online Article reminds Ellon community of the path closures 
under the viaduct as a safety precaution. Article 
notes Nestrans funding, following a successful grant, 
of works carried out by Aberdeenshire Council to 
repair the bridge deck drains and sealing of the deck 
to prevent water ingress. 

25.06.2021 The Press and Journal Pippa Robertson and Maggie Bochel of Aurora 
Planning discuss the recovery of Aberdeen city 
centre. Article notes Ms Bochel’s role as a vice-chair 
of Nestrans. 

22.06.2021 Grampian Online Article following the North East Bus Alliance’s 
successful bid for £12m from the Bus Partnership 
Fund. 

22.06.2021 Grampian Online Article ahead of the next phase of improvements to 
the Formartine & Buchan Way. Nestrans had been 
successful in applying for funding for the cost of the 
works. 

17.06.2021 Deeside Piper and 
Herald Articles on the launch of the collective summer road 

safety campaign. 14.06.2021 Grampian Online 

11.06.2021 The Press and Journal Article following Alex Hynes’ attendance at the 
Nestrans board meeting in June and his comments 
on the derailment, climate change and acting on the 
recommendations from the WATF report.  

02.06.2021 SmallBusiness.co.uk Article for small businesses looking to find grant to 
fund environmental and sustainable projects. Article 
includes mention of the Nestrans Sustainable Travel 
Grant Fund. 
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CovidTravel Behaviour and Attitude Survey 
Survey 11 (June 2021) – Summary Infographic 
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Since the Covid-19 restrictions

North East Transport 
BEHAVIOUR AND ATTITUDE SURVEYS 

Wave 11 Report  
(Survey undertaken between 10th June and 23rd June 2021)  

Key Findings Infographic

 

Positivity towards ways of travelling 

Commuting behaviours

Reasons for feeling negatively towards public transport How to feel safer 

71%
Car/van as 

driver

70%
Car/van as  
passenger

29%
Car sharing/ 

pooling      

28%
Train

30%
Bus

26%
Motorcycle, 
scooter or 

moped

24%
Taxi

45%
Bicycle

80%
Walking

44%  
Travelling by car 
is easier/more 

convenient

40%  
Concern 

over catching 
coronavirus/other 

illness

37%  
Concern about 
overcrowding 

27% 
Limiting the number 
of people that can 
board the train/

tram/bus

7/10  
agree that use of face 

coverings on public 
transport makes them 

feel safer

30% 
Deep-cleaning 

of the interiors of 
vehicles, stations 

and bus stops

Public transport  
users were over 

twice more likely to 
feel positively 

towards using 
 the bus

have made a trip to work in the 
last seven days

would like to  
work more flexibly 

expect that virtual meetings will 
replace some, or all, face to face 

meetings

54% 

77% 

49% 

Walking:  
for leisure/exercise

Cycling:  
for leisure/exercise

23%
Walking: to replace 
a journey I would 

normally make 
another way

Cycling: to replace 
a journey I would 

normally make 
another way

These results are from 293 survey responses from Aberdeenshire and Aberdeen City, undertaken between 10th June and 23rd June 2021. 
Full survey report and results available at www.nestrans.org.uk

The results for Wave 11 are broadly similar to Waves 1-10.
Key differences include:
• More journeys are being undertaken 
• Less are walking for these journeys and more are travelling by car
• Less are currently more likely to walk/cycle for leisure purposes
• Less feeling negative and unsafe towards public transport

48% 27%

20%
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9    Conferences and Presentations 

 

 

 Recent and Forthcoming Conferences of Interest to Nestrans 

Date Location Title Organiser 
Conf Cost 
(Excl. Vat) 

Nestrans 
Attendees 

Thursday 24th 

June 2021 

On-line The Hydrogen 

revolution, helping 

to fuel the race to 

net zero 

AGCC nil Jenny Anderson 

Thursday 19th 

August 2021 

On-line DfT’s Transport 

Decarbonisation 

Plan 

Systra nil Rab Dickson 

and Jenny 

Anderson 

Wednesday 25 

August 2021 

On-line Accessible Cycling 
Event 

Energy 

Savings 

Trust 

nil Kelly Wiltshire 

and Jon Barron 

Monday 6 

September 2021 

On-line Supporting Scottish 
Workplaces 

Love to 

Ride 

nil Kelly Wiltshire 

Thursday 30 

September 2021 

On-line Net Zero 
Conference 

Aberdeen 

Climate 

Action 

nil Rab Dickson 

 

 

 Other Training 

Date Location Title Organiser 

Cost     
(excl. 

VAT) 
Attendees 

      

 

 Presentations by Nestrans  

Date Location Presentation Title 
Organisation 
and Audience 

Press 

Involve
ment 

Presenters 

      

 

RD/ Sept 2021 
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NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 15 September 2021 

 

 

10    Pending Business and Reports for Future Meetings 

 

 

 Purpose of Report 

 
The purpose of this report is to advise of progress on pending business requested by the Board 
and major reports scheduled for forthcoming Board meetings, and to provide the opportunity 
for the Board to add to or amend this scheduling. 

 

 Background 

 
It has been agreed that this be a standing item on the Board's agenda, listing progress on 
major areas of work which are not yet in final form to report to the Board with reasons for any 
delays explained, together with a provisional list of major reports for future Board meetings. 

 

 Major Reports for Future Meetings 

 

Within the current term of office, four board meetings are anticipated: 10 November 2021, 08 

December 2021, February 2022 and March/April 2021.  Dates for the meetings in 2021 are 

currently being confirmed and proposals will be presented to the next meeting.  The 

programme for resumption of face to face meetings is also being discussed.  

 

2021 

 Final approval of Regional Transport Strategy 

 Bus Partnership Fund update 

 5 -Year Capital Plan Proposal 

 Outcomes from Live Labs scoping work and proposals for next steps 

 Presentation on transport’s contribution to climate change targets. 

 Presentation from Energy Savings Trust 

 
2022 

 Draft Outcomes from STPR2 and Implications for North East 

 

 Recommendation 

 
It is recommended that the Board note the report on pending business. 

 
 

PF/06 September 2021 
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